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Special Note Regarding Forwa-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report on ForalK 0Annual Report") or in other materials we hdited or will file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"), and incorporated hdvgireference, are forward-looking in nature ameéé in Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of the Séesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended, and thetBr8ecurities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. You can identify these statements by thetfattthey do not relate to matters of a stricéigtfial or historical nature and generally dis:
or relate to forecasts, estimates or other expentategarding future events. Generally, the wObddieve," "expect,” "intend," "estimate,"
"anticipate,” "project,” "plan," "may," "can," "ctdj" "might," "will" and similar expressions idefitiforward-looking statements, including
statements that relate to such matters as plamtkedxpected capacity increases and utilizationcigated capital spending; environmental
matters; legal proceedings; exposure to, and sffefdiedging of raw material and energy costs aneidn currencies; interest rate fluctuatic
global and regional economic, political, and busgeonditions; expectations, strategies, and gtariadividual assets and products, business
segments, as well as for the whole Company; caghiraments and uses of available cash; financiagsplpension expenses and funding;
anticipated restructuring, divestiture, and cortadlon activities; cost reduction and control eand targets and integration of acquired
businesses.

Forward-looking statements are not historical factguarantees of future performance but instepesent only our beliefs at the time the
statements were made regarding future events, velmeBubject to significant risks, uncertainties] ather factors, many of which are outside
of our control and certain of which are listed abo&ny or all of the forwardeoking statements included in this Annual Repod a any othe
materials incorporated by reference herein may dutrto be materially inaccurate. This can occua assult of incorrect assumptions, in some
cases based upon internal estimates and analysasrefit market conditions and trends, managemnians@and strategies, economic
conditions, or as a consequence of known or unknisks and uncertainties. Many of the risks andemtainties mentioned in this Annual
Report, such as those discussettéam 1A. Risk Factorsitem 3. Legal Proceedingsditem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operaticwill be important in determining whether these fardrlooking statements prove to be accurate
Consequently, neither our stockholders nor anyrgibeson should place undue reliance on our ford@oking statements and should
recognize that actual results may differ materiftyn those anticipated by us.

All forward-looking statements made in this AnnRaport are made as of the date hereof, and théhaslactual results will differ materially
from expectations expressed in this Annual Repdtinerease with the passage of time. We undertakebligation, and disclaim any duty, to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staéats, whether as a result of new information,rievents, changes in our expectations or
otherwise. However, we may make further disclosuegarding future events, trends and uncertaiimiesir subsequent reports on Forms 10-
K, 10-Q and 8-K to the extent required under theHaxge Act. The above cautionary discussion ofrigkcertainties and possible inaccurate
assumptions relevant to our business includesrfaete believe could cause our actual results ferdihaterially from expected and historical
results. Other factors beyond those listed above ibem 1A. Risk Factorsltem 3. Legal ProceedingmdIitem 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrationsbelow, including factors unknown to us and factarewn to us which we have
determined not to be material, could also adverafgct us.




Item 1. Business
Basis of Presentatiol

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term "Cels@’" refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delawargocation, and not its subsidiaries. The
terms "Company," "we," "our" and "us" refer to Getae and its subsidiaries on a consolidated bEsésterm "Celanese US" refers to the
Company’s subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LLCetafRare limited liability company, and not its sialsries.

Industry

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes industagadobtained from industry publications and sunasysvell as our own internal company
surveys. Third-party industry publications, survaysl forecasts generally state that the informat@mrtained therein has been obtained from
sources believed to be reliable. The statementwdety the Company’s industry position in this doent are based on information derived
from, among others, t2012 IHS Chemicals Economics Handbook.

Overview

The Company is a global technology and specialtieriads company that engineers and manufacturddewariety of products essential to
everyday living. As a recognized innovator in prodand process technology in the chemicals industeyhelp to create applications that mee
the needs of our customers worldwide. We are ortkeoivorld's largest producers of acetyl produstsch are intermediate chemicals for
nearly all major industries. We are also a leadjlodpal producer of high performance engineeredrmelg that are used in a variety of high-
value applications.

Our highly-diversified product portfolio serves @ad range of end-use applications including paint$ coatings, textiles, automotive
applications, consumer and medical applicationdppmance industrial applications, filter mediappaand packaging, chemical additives,
construction, consumer and industrial adhesived famd and beverage applications. Serving a divgisieal customer base, our products hold
leading global positions in the major product irtdies that we serve, supported by our large glpbadluction capacity, operating efficiencies,
proprietary production technology and competitiestcstructures.

Celanese's history began in 1918, the year thptédecessor company, The American Cellulose & Gtedrivianufacturing Company, was
incorporated. The company, which manufactured elkiacetate, was founded by Swiss brothers Dmsilléaand Henri Dreyfus. Since that
time, the Company has transformed into a leadinfgajlchemical company. The current Celanese waspncated in 2005 under the laws of
the State of Delaware and is a US-based public eompaded on the NYSE under the ticker symbol CE.

Headquartered in Irving, Texas, our operationgaraarily located in North America, Europe and Aaiad consist of 27 global production
facilities, and an additional 9 strategic affiliggeduction facilities. As of December 31, 2012e, @mployed approximately 7,550 people
worldwide.

Due to our geographic breadth, our net sales damtxd across the global regions. For the yearceBéeember 31, 2012 , 288bour net sale
were to customers located in the United StatesN®ée 25- Segment Informatioim the accompanying consolidated financial statemfar
further details on our international sales.




Business Segment Overvie

We operate principally through four business segmeXxdvanced Engineered Materials, Consumer Spgesalndustrial Specialties and Ace
Intermediates. Sedote 25- Seament Information the accompanying consolidated financial stateémfar further details on our business
segments.

The table below illustrates each business segmeet’sales to external customers for the year ebéegmber 31, 2012 , as well as each
business segment’s major products and end-usecappfis.

Advanced
Engineered Materials Consumer Specialties Industrial Specialties Acetyl Intermediates
(In'$ millions)
2012 Net Sale® 1,261 1,182 1,184 2,791
Key Products * Polyoxymethylene  Acetate tow » Conventional emulsions  « Acetic acid
("POM")  Acetate flake * Vinyl acetate ethylene * Vinyl acetate monomer
* GUR® ultra-high  Acetate film emulsions ("VAE") ("VAM")
molecular weight  Sunetf® high intensity * Ethylene vinyl acetate * Acetic anhydride
polyethylene sweeteners ("EVA") resins and * Acetaldehyde
* Polybutylene » Sorbates compounds * Ethyl acetate
terephthalate ("PBT") » Low-density polyethylene < Formaldehyde
« Long-fiber reinforced resins ("LDPE") * Butyl acetate
thermoplastics
("LFT")
« Liquid crystal polymer
("LCP")
Major End-Use » Fuel system * Filter products » Paints * Paints
Applications components + Beverages « Coatings + Coatings
» Automotive safety » Confections « Adhesives » Adhesives
systems + Baked goods « Textiles * Lubricants
» Conveyor belts - Paper finishing * Pharmaceuticals
* Battery separators - Flexible packaging . F|Im$
. Elec'gromcs « Lamination products » Textiles
» Appliances 'P * Inks
« Filtrations * Photovoltaic cell systems , p|agticizers
» Medical Devices * Medical tubing * Esters
« Telecommunications * Automotive parts + Solvents

@ Net sales for Consumer Specialties and Acetyl inéeliates exclude int-segment sales of $4 million and $440 million pesstively, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Business Segments
Advanced Engineered Materia

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment usesaddagolymer technology to produce a broad podfofihigh performance specialty
polymers used in a wide spectrum of applicatiomsluiding automotive, medical and electronics prasiuas well as other consumer and
industrial applications. As a performance-drivelusons provider, Advanced Engineered Materialsntans its competitive advantage with
leading technical and application expertise thatéas innovation and new product development ircedrwith its customers. By focusing on
new application development for its product linesften creates custom formulations to satisfytdwhnical and processing requirements of it
customers' applications. With a strong specificaposition, Advanced Engineered Materials is ableuild upon its differentiated polymer
processing and material capability to create snabdé value for its high performance polymers. Thisiness segment also includes four
strategic affiliates that complement our globakteamprove our ability to capture growth opporties in emerging economies and position us
as a leading participant in the global specialtlymers industry.




Advanced Engineered Materials' specialty polymenseehchemical and physical properties that enalgmtto perform in a variety of
conditions. These include enduring elevated tentpars, resisting adverse chemical interactions adllients and withstanding deformation.
POM, PBT and LFT are used in a broad range of pmdace-demanding applications including automativ@ponents, medical devices,
electronics, appliances and industrial applicati@idR ® ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene is usedattery separators, conveyor belts
filtration equipment, coatings and medical devid&anary end uses for LCP are electrical and edeats applications or products. These
value-added applications in diverse end-uses stifp@business' global growth trends.

Value-in-use pricing for most of these productstipalarly specialized product grades for targedpglications, generally reflect the value
added in complex polymer chemistry, precision fdatian and compounding, and the extensive apptioadievelopment services provided.

Advanced Engineered Materials has polymerizatiommounding and research and technology centergimé&y, Brazil, China and the
United States. In 2010, we announced the consbructi a new 50,000 ton POM manufacturing facilitySaudi Arabia through our Ibn Sina
affiliate. This facility is expected to be compléta late 2015. In 2011, we opened a state-of-thB@M production facility in Frankfurt
Hoechst Industrial Park, Germany. This new POMIitsds the world's largest and is expected to nmiketincreased global demand for
innovative specialty solutions in polymer-baseddoras.

e Key Products

POM . Polyoxymethylene, also commonly known as polyadetthe chemical industry, is sold by AdvancedjiBerered Materials under the
trademarks Celcofiand Hostaforn?. POM is used for mechanical parts in automotivaliagtions, including fuel system components, and i
electrical, medical and consumer applications sasctirug delivery systems and gears for large apg@® Polyplastics Co., Ltd., our 45%-
owned strategic venture ("Polyplastics"), and Kdeegineering Plastics Co., Ltd., our 50%-ownedtsgig venture ("KEPCO"), also
manufacture POM and other engineering resins i\#ia-Pacific region.

The primary raw material for POM is formaldehyddieh is manufactured from methanol. Advanced Ergjiee Materials sources
formaldehyde in the United States from our Acetyétmediates segment and manufactures formaldéhy@ermany from purchased
methanol.

Ultra-high molecular weight polyethylenéur ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene prothisold under the trademark GURare highly
engineered materials designed for heavy-duty im@istnd automotive applications. They are useiteims such as industrial conveyor belts,
car battery separator panels, as well as speci@gical and consumer applications, such as spmtsheses and equipment. GBRicro
powder grades are used for high-performance fjltaembranes, diagnostic devices, coatings andieelitor thermoplastics and elastomers.
High tenacity fibers based on GURiltra-high molecular weight polyethylene are alsediin protective ballistic applications. The prigneaw
material for GURP ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene is ethyden

PolyestersOur products include a series of thermoplastic @stigrs including Celan&PBT, Celane® PET, Thermx¥® PCT and Vanda?, as
well as Riteflex®, a thermoplastic polyester elastomer. They ard irsa wide variety of automotive, electrical ammhsumer applications,
including ignition system parts, radiator grillesectrical switches, appliance and sensor housliggis,emitting diodes ("LEDs") and technical
fibers.

LCP. Liquid crystal polymers, such as Vectfrand Zenite®, are primarily used in electrical and electrordpglications for precision parts with
thin walls and complex shapes. They are also usaijh heat cookware applications. Raw materiald @P include acetic anhydride, whict
sourced from our Acetyl Intermediates segment,randomers such as hydroxybenzoic acid.

LFT. Celstrar® and CompeP are long-fiber reinforced thermoplastics that intigatra strength and stiffness, making them moitalste for
larger parts than conventional thermoplastics. Rotucts are used in automotive, transportati@himaaustrial applications, such as
instrument panels, consoles and front end moduiles primary raw materials for LFT include polyprégrye and a variety of fibers such as
glass, stainless steel and carbon.




e Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinatiortioé net sales of the Advanced Engineered Matesedsent by geographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Agnced Engineered Materials

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 47¢ 38% 43¢ 34% 384 34%
Europe and Africa 52¢ 42% 622 48% 53C 48%
Asia-Pacific 20€ 16% 191 15% 152 14%
South America 49 4% 47 3% 43 4%
Total 1,261 1,29¢ 1,10¢

e Customers

Advanced Engineered Materials' principal custonaeesoriginal equipment manufacturers and their Begpserving the automotive, industri
consumer and medical industries. By collaboratiitf Wts customers, Advanced Engineered Materiasstsin developing and improving
specialized applications and systems. Advancedrieegéd Materials has long-standing relationshipls miost of its major customers. In
addition, it utilizes distribution partners as wadl online tools to expand its customer base. @ctstwith customers for most Advanced
Engineered Materials products typically have a tefrane to two years.

Advanced Engineered Materials' sales in Asia aréengbrectly and through distributors, includingstsategic affiliates. These affiliates,
Polyplastics, KEPCO and Fortron Industries LLC, 60%-owned strategic venture with Kureha Corporafl&ortron"), are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting and therefotencluded in Advanced Engineered Materials'sohidated net sales. If Advanced
Engineered Materials' portion of the sales madthbge strategic affiliates were included in thédaove, the percentage of sales sold in Asi
Pacific would be substantially higher. In additiorour Advanced Engineered Materials' strategidiafs, we directly service Asian demand
by offering our customers global solutions.

»  Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials' principal compediioclude BASF AG, E.I. DuPont de Nemours and CamgpBSM N.V., SABIC
Innovative Plastics and Solvay S.A. Other regiamahpetitors include Asahi Kasei Corporation, MitishbGas Chemical Company, Inc.,
Chevron Phillips Chemical Company, L.P., Braske#. S.anxess AG, Teijin, Sumitomo Corporation andalndustries Inc.

Consumer Specialties

The Consumer Specialties segment includes our fecBt@ducts and Nutrinova businesses, which semsurner-driven applications. These
businesses deliver growth primarily through mantwhacg productivity, geographic expansions andetirgy high value opportunities in dive
applications, and generally are not dependent ossgdlomestic product.

Our Acetate Products business is a leading procarmsupplier of acetate flake, acetate film aretae tow, primarily used in filter products
applications. We also hold an approximately 30% enship interest in three separate ventures in Chiatgproduce acetate flake and tow.
China National Tobacco Corporation, a Chinese giat@ed tobacco entity, has been our venture paftmever two decades and has driven
successful growth in our Acetate business.

During 2012, the Company introduced CelMnatrix technology, which redefines tobacco filtoatiperformance, enabling unique product
attributes and innovation, such as increased filésign flexibility and improved constituent redant CelFX™ also supports a broad choice of
enhancement additives and is engineered to ruxistirgy equipment.
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Acetate Products has production sites in the Urtiades, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiunongl with sites at its three acetate
ventures in China. In November 2012, we ceased faaturing acetate tow and acetate flake at our 8&ponDerby, United Kingdom site. We
will continue to manufacture our Clarifdiffilm at this facility.

Our Nutrinova business is a leading internationglpdier of premium quality ingredients for the fodtverage and pharmaceutical industries.
The company produces and sells Sufi@tesulfame potassium), a high intensity sweeténisralso one of the world's largest producers of
food protection ingredients, such as potassiumagesband sorbic acid. Nutrinova's expertise isdagdts more than sixty years of experience
in developing and marketing specialty ingredientthe food and beverage and pharmaceutical inégstWhile this business has traditionally
focused on providing low calorie sweeteners inldeeerage industry, it continues to target high @apportunities in more diverse applicatis
such as oral hygiene, pharmaceuticals, dairy arehte

During 2012, Nutrinova announced Surfed, the first new line of product from the Nutrireds Sunsatiof platform. Sunetf SL products
are dropin solutions that can be easily incorporated intstamers' food and beverage formulations, helpirsoeners bring products to marl
faster. Sensory tests carried out by an accreditgztnal institute confirm that Sun&L significantly improves the sweetness and moat-f
perception of sugar-free and sugar-reduced products

Nutrinova has a production facility in Germany, wsales and distribution facilities in all majogi@ns of the world
» Key Products

Acetate flake, acetate tow and acetate film (Claiif . Acetate tow is a fiber used primarily in cigaeditters. In order to produce acetate tow,
we first produce acetate flake by processing wadd pith acetic acid and acetic anhydride. Woomenerally comes from reforested trees
and is purchased externally from a variety of sesy@nd acetic anhydride is an intermediate chéithiaawe produce from acetic acid. The
acetate flake is then further processed into azétai. Flake can also be solvent cast to creatmanthich is primarily used in packaging for
food and high-end luxury goods.

Sales of acetate tow amounted to 15% , 14% anddf5%r consolidated net sales for the years end=zember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Sunett® sweetenersAcesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweetenlerisader the trademark Suné&ttis used in a variety of beverages,
confections and dairy products throughout the wdldhetf® sweetener is the ideal blending partner for calanid non-caloric sweeteners and
is recognized for its consistent product qualitd agliable supply.

Food protection ingredientsNutrinova's food protection ingredients are maumgd in foods, beverages and personal care pro@artsates
pricing is extremely sensitive to demand and ingusapacity and is not necessarily dependent oedkeof raw materials.

» Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyagedgraphic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — @aumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 20C 17% 18C 16% 18¢€ 17%
Europe and Africa 464 39% 45¢ 40% 44¢ 41%
Asia-Pacific 452 38% 45¢€ 3% 394 36%
South America 66 6% 63 5% 61 6%
Total® 1,182 1,15¢ 1,08¢

@ Excludes inter-segment sales of $4 million , $3Jiariland $9 million for the years ended DecemberZBl2 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively.




e Customers

Acetate tow is sold principally to the major toba@ompanies that account for a majority of worldsvaigarette production. Contracts with
most of our customers are generally entered intaroannual basis.

Customers of Clarifoifinclude printers, carton manufacturers, retailpeskaging buyers, publishers and designers.

Nutrinova primarily sells Sune® sweeteners to a limited number of large multinatiand regional customers in the beverage and food
industry under long-term and annual contracts. iNowa sells food protection ingredients primarlydugh regional distributors to small and
medium sized customers and directly to large mafitimal customers in the food industry.

e Competition
Acetate Products’ principal competitors include d@hiChemical Industries Ltd., Eastman Chemical Gafion and Solvay S.A.

The principal competitors for Sunétsweetener include The NutraSweet Company, Ajinon@mg Inc., Tate & Lyle PLC and several Chinese
manufacturers. In sorbates, Nutrinova competes Méhtong AA, Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd. andestChinese manufacturers.

Industrial Specialties

The Industrial Specialties segment, which inclutthesEmulsions and EVA Performance Polymers busasgss active in every major global
industrial sector and serves diverse industrial@msumer end-use applications. These includetivadl vinyl-based end uses, such as paints
and coatings and adhesives, as well as other unidiglevalue end uses including solar cells andioa@pplications.

The Emulsions business is a leading global prodoteinyl acetate-based emulsions and developsymtscand application technologies to
improve performance, create value and drive inriomdh applications such as paints and coatingsesiies, construction, glass fiber, textiles
and paper. The business has manufacturing fasilitienajor global regions and is supported by exjeehnical service regionally. Celanese
emulsion products are sold under globally and meajlg recognized brands including EcoVAEMowilith ®, Vinamul®, Celvolit®, BriteCoat
®, TufCOR™ and Avicor™. The Emulsions business has production sitesatUthited States, Canada, China, Spain, SwedeNdtierlands
and Germany.

EVA Performance Polymers is a leading North Amerioganufacturer of a full range of logdensity polyethylene and specialty EVA resins
compounds. Sold under the Ateévand VitalDose® brands, these products are used in many applicatiociuding flexible packaging films,
lamination film products, hot melt adhesives, metjroducts, automotive, carpeting and photovolktaits. EVA Performance Polymers has a
production facility in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada.

The Industrial Specialties segment builds on oadileg acetyl technology. Our Acetyl Intermediategraent produces VAM, a primary raw
material for our Emulsions and EVA Performance Rays businesses. Ethylene, another key raw matsrigdirchased externally from a
variety of sources.

Our Industrial Specialties businesses have exparkrignificant growth in Asia, and we have madeatments to support continued growt
the region. In 2011, we doubled the VAE capacitgwatintegrated chemical complex in Nanjing, Chimaneet the increased global deman
innovative specialty solutions in vinyl-based eriis.

In addition to geographic growth, the IndustriakSiplties businesses are focused on innovatiomeffo increase value. The business segmel
has successfully launched new innovative produndstechnologies in non-traditional applicationshsas medical, carpet, textiles and paper.

» Key Product:

Our Emulsions business produces conventional venylt acrylate-based emulsions and VAE. Emulsioasreade from VAM, ethylene,
acrylate esters and styrene. VAE is a key componfewater-based architectural coatings, adhesivas;wovens, textiles, glass fiber and othe
applications.

EVA Performance Polymers produces low-density pgblylene and EVA resins and compounds. EVA resimscampounds are produced in
high-pressure reactors from ethylene and VAM.




e Geographic Region
The following table illustrates the destinatiortloé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segmggteographic region.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — bustrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(in millions, except percentages)
North America 47E 40% 492 4C% 45C 43%
Europe and Africa 482 41% 55C 45% 481 47%
Asia-Pacific 213 18% 16¢ 14% 97 9%
South America 13 1% 12 1% 8 1%
Total 1,18¢ 1,22: 1,03¢

e Customers

Industrial Specialties' products are sold to amdiggyroup of regional and multinational custom€rsstomers for emulsions products are
manufacturers of water-based paints and coatimfgsives, paper, building and construction produggéss fiber, non-wovens and textiles.
Customers for EVA Performance Polymers producteagaged in the manufacture of a variety of pragjuntluding hot melt adhesives,
automotive components, solar energy products, thlaminations, flexible and food packaging materienedical packaging and controlled-
release medical devices.

e Competition

Principal competitors for the Emulsions businestuide The Dow Chemical Company, BASF AG, Dairen @ital, Wacker Chemie AG and
several smaller regional manufacturers.

Principal competitors for the EVA Performance Padymbusiness include E.l. DuPont de Nemours andp@oy ExxonMobil Chemical,
Arkema and several Asian manufacturers.

Acetyl Intermediate:

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetic anhydride and acetate esters. Tl
products are generally used as starting matealsdiorants, paints, adhesives, coatings and nmegicOther chemicals produced in this
business segment are organic solvents and inteatesdior pharmaceutical, agricultural and chenpeatiucts.

As an industry leader, Acetyl Intermediates ha# louiits leading technology, an advantaged feattsposition and attractive competitive
position to drive growth. With decades of exper&raxdvanced proprietary process technology anddhle production costs, we are a leading
global producer of acetic acid and VAM. Our produoctof acetyl products employs our leading proggtand licensed technologies, incluc
AOPIlus®, AOPIus® 2 and AOPIu¢ 3 technologies for the production of acetic acid ®¥Antage®, VAntagePlus" and VAntage® 2 VAM
technologies. Our technology is expected to enhprnaguction efficiency and lower operating cost@Pus® 3 technology, introduced in
2011, extends our historical technology advantagkeemables us to construct a greenfield aceticfacitity with a capacity of 1.8 million tons
at a lower capital cost. VAntage? technology, also introduced in 2011, could inseeAM capacity by 50% to meet growing customer
demand globally. We believe our production techgplis among the lowest cost in the industry andrigles us with global growth
opportunities through low cost expansions and aAadgantage over our competitors. Acetyl Intermididnas production sites in the United
States, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, FranceGarchany.

Building on our acetic acid technology platform, developed Celanese TC¢thanol process technology to supply current andpactive
customers with ethanol for industrial purposes fanather potential uses. Industrial ethanol isduisechemical and industrial applications for
the manufacture of paints, coatings, inks and phaeuticals. This innovative, new process combinggpmprietary and leading acetyl
platform with advanced manufacturing technologptoduce ethanol from hydrocarbon-sourced feedstocks
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In 2012, we completed construction of a technoldgyelopment unit for ethanol production at ourlfgcin Clear Lake, Texas which will
allow us to continue the advancement of our agatgl TCX®technologies. In addition, we are in the processodifying and enhancing our
existing integrated acetyl facility in Nanjing, @liwith our TCX® advanced technology. The modifications would adat@aximately 275,000
tons of ethanol production capacity by mid-2013. 8é® intend to construct one, and possibly twdjtamhal industrial ethanol complexes in
China, following necessary approvals, utilizing &@else TCX ethanol process technology to help supply appboatfor the growing Asia
region.

e Key Products

Acetyl ProductsAcetyl products include acetic acid, VAM, acetihgdride and acetaldehyde. Acetic acid is primarggd to manufacture
VAM, purified terephthalic acid and other acetytidatives. VAM is used in a variety of adhesiveaints, films, coatings and textiles. Acetic
anhydride is a raw material used in the produatibcellulose acetate, detergents and pharmacesitibaktaldehyde is a major feedstock fol
production of a variety of derivatives, such adgiyes, which are used in agricultural products. Ménufacture acetic acid, VAM and acetic
anhydride for our own use, as well as for saldiatparties.

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic acetyl intermedigpesducts, are impacted by global supply and denfiamdiamentals and are cyclical in
nature. The principal raw materials in these préslace: carbon monoxide, which we generally purehamler long-term contracts; methanol,
which we generally purchase under both long-terthshort-term contracts; and ethylene, which we Ipage from numerous sources.
Generally, methanol and ethylene are commodity yetedavailable from a wide variety of sources.

Sales from acetyl products amounted to 32% of onsalidated net sales for the year ended Decembhe@03.2 and 34% for each of the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 .

Solvents and DerivativeWe manufacture a variety of solvents, formaldehgu@ other chemicals, which in turn are used imthaufacture ¢
paints, coatings, adhesives and other productsylalvents and derivatives products are derivechfooir production of acetic acid. Primary
products are:

» Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sbhgad in coatings, inks and adhesives and in #reufacture of photographic films and coated
papers;

» Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a solsatt in inks, pharmaceuticals and perft

» Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde and formcelschvhre primarily used to produce adhesive resinplfavood, particle board, coatings,
POM engineering resins and a compound used in maddtyurethane; and

»  Other chemicals, such as crotonaldehyde, whielused by the Nutrinova business for the prodnatiosorbates, as well as raw materials
for the fragrance and food ingredients industry.

Sales from solvents and derivatives products anealtat 11% , 12% and 11% of our consolidated nesdalr the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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e Geographic Region
The following table illustrates net sales by deation of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by gegplgiaregion.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Astyl Intermediates

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
$ Segment $ Segment $ Segment
(In millions, except percentages)
North America 69¢ 25% 717 23% 654 24%
Europe and Africa 97C 35% 1,11(C 36% 897 34%
Asia-Pacific 1,02¢ 37% 1,16¢ 38% 1,04¢ 39%
South America 97 3% 90 3% 85 3%
Total @ 2,791 3,08¢ 2,68

@ Excludes inter-segment sales of $440 million , $#tion and $400 million for the years ended Debem31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

e Customers

Acetyl Intermediates markets its products bothdliyeto customers and through distributors. Acatidd, VAM and acetic anhydride are global
businesses which have several large customersr&gnae supply these global customers under ry@éir contracts. Acetic acid, VAM and
acetic anhydride customers produce polymers useaiar-based paints, adhesives, paper coatinggegtels, film modifiers, pharmaceuticals,
cellulose acetate and textiles. We have long-standilationships with most of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diversemguofuegional and multinational customers undertiydar contracts and on the basis of long-
standing relationships. Solvents and derivativesarners are primarily engaged in the productiopaifits, coatings and adhesives. We
manufacture formaldehyde for our own use as weflbasale to a few regional customers that inclodenufacturers in the wood products and
chemical derivatives industries. The sale of fodehalde is based on long- and short-term agreentgpégialty solvents are sold globally to a
wide variety of customers, primarily in the coasrand resins and the specialty products indusffiesse products serve global regions in the
synthetic lubricant, agrochemical, rubber proceagsind other specialty chemical areas.

»  Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermedissegment include Atofina S.A., BASF AG, BP PL@a@g Chun Petrochemical Co., Ltd.,
Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd., The Dow Chemicah@any, Eastman Chemical Corporation, E.I. DuPeritidmours and Company,
LyondellBasell Industries, Nippon Gohsei, Perstioip, Jiangsu Sopo Corporation (Group) Ltd., Sh@eako K.K., Kuraray Co. Ltd. and
other Chinese producers.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathetivities such as legal, accounting and
treasury functions, interest income and expensecaged with our financing activities, and our ¢aptinsurance companies. Our two wholly-
owned captive insurance companies are a key compoheur global risk management program, as wseH &orm of self-insurance for our
liability and workers compensation risks. The capinsurance companies issue insurance policiegrtsubsidiaries to provide consistent
coverage amid fluctuating costs in the insuranceketand to lower long-term insurance costs throthghreduction of certain fees and
expenses. The captive insurance companies reskimtievels approved by management and obtaisueince coverage from third parties to
limit the net risk retained. One of the captiveuirssice companies also insures certain third-paskg r
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Strategic Affiliates

Our strategic affiliates represent an important gonent of our strategy for accelerated growth dobaj expansion. We have a substantial
portfolio of ventures in various regions, includiAgia-Pacific, North America, the Middle East and Europleese ventures, some of which ¢
back as far as the 1960s, have sizeable operatiwhare significant within their industries.

Our strategic affiliates have similar growth patteand business models as our core businessesshtitad characteristics such as products,
applications, and manufacturing technology, théisgegjic affiliates complement and extend our tedbgy and specialty materials portfolio.
We have historically entered into these investmengmin access to local demand, minimize costsaandlerate growth in areas we believe
have significant future business potential. Depegdin the level of investment and other factorsaaeount for our strategic ventures using
either the equity method or cost method of accognti

Our strategic affiliates contribute substantiaésakarnings and cash flows. During the year ebdegmber 31, 2012 , our equity affiliates
generated combined sales of $5 billion, resultmthe Company recording $242 million of equity &t Barnings of affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated financial statementgheryear ended December 31, 2012 .

Our key strategic affiliates as of December 31,28rk as follows:

Year
Location Ownership Partner(s) Entered
Equity Method Investments
Advanced Engineered Materials
National Methanol Company Saudi Saudi Basic Industries Corporation / Texas Easte 1981
Arabia 25 % Arabian Corporation Ltd.
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd South Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc./Mitsubishi 1999
Korea 50 % Corporation
Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Japan 45 % Daicel Chemical Industries Ltd. 1964
Fortron Industries LLC us 50 % Kureha Corporation 1992
Cost Method Investments
Consumer Specialties
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30 % China National Tobacco Corporation 1993
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 31% China National Tobacco Corporation 1986
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. China 30 % China National Tobacco Corporation 1993

National Methanol Company (Ibn Sini National Methanol Company represents approximdtedyof the world's methanol production capa
and is one of the world's largest producers of gigértiary-butyl ether ("MTBE"), a gasoline addi. Its production facilities are located in
Saudi Arabia. We indirectly own a 25% interesthin Sina through CTE Petrochemicals Company, a 50%/int venture with Texas East
Arabian Corporation Ltd. (which also indirectly osva 25% interest). The remaining 50% interest m3Sma is held by the Saudi Basic
Industries Corporation ("SABIC"). SABIC is respdoisi for all product marketing. Because methanal key feedstock for POM production,
we enjoy an advantaged position through our Ibma S8anture that mitigates the impact of raw matenna energy volatility.

In April 2010, we announced that Ibn Sina will const a 50,000 ton POM production facility in Saddabia. The new facility will supply
POM to support Advanced Engineered Materials' &cagdd future growth plans as well as our ventarénprs' regional business developm
Upon successful startup of the POM facility, owtifect economic interest in Ibn Sina will incredisam 25% to 32.5%. SABIC's economic
interest will remain unchanged.

Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Li KEPCO is the leading producer of POM in South l&ot€EPCO is a venture between Celanese Holding
B.V. (50% ownership and a wholly-owned subsidiaiiCelanese GmbH), Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Compéamgy, (40%) and Mitsubishi
Corporation (10%). KEPCO has polyacetal productamilities in Ulsan, South Korea, compounding faieis for PBT and nylon in Pyongtaek,
South Korea, and participates with Polyplastics Biitdubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc. in a wortdde POM facility in Nantong, China.
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Polyplastics Co., Ltc Polyplastics is a leading supplier of engineeregdtics in the Asia-Pacific region and is a ventugéveen Daicel
Chemical Industries Ltd., Japan (55%) and Ticon& (5% ownership and a wholywned subsidiary of CNA Holdings LLC). Polyplastis:
a producer and marketer of POM and LCP, with ppakproduction facilities located in Japan, Taiwisialaysia and China.

Fortron Industries LLC Fortron is a leading global producer of polypheng sulfide ("PPS"), sold under the Fortfdmwand, which is used in
a wide variety of automotive and other applicati@specially those requiring heat and/or chemiesiktance. Fortron is a limited liability
company whose members are Ticona Fortron Inc. (8@#ership and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CNA Hog$ LLC) and Kureha
Corporation (50%). Fortron's facility is locatedWilmington, North Carolina. This venture combirtke sales, marketing, distribution,
compounding and manufacturing expertise of Celanétbethe PPS polymer technology expertise of Kareh

China acetate strategic ventureg/e hold ownership interest in three separate septaduction ventures in China as follows: Nantong
Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. (31%), Kunming Cellulddbers Co. Ltd. (30%) and Zhuhai Cellulose Fibeos Iad. (30%). The China National
Tobacco Corporation, the Chinese state-owned tabagctty, controls the remaining ownership inteiestach of these ventures.

Our Chinese acetate ventures fund their operatisimg) operating cash flow and pay a dividend instheond quarter of each fiscal year based
on the ventures' performance for the preceding. ye&012 , 2011 and 2010 , we received cash diddef $83 million , $78 million and $71
million , respectively.

During 2012, our venture's Nantong facility comptein expansion of its acetate flake and acetatedpacity, each by 30,000 tons. We madk
contributions of $29 million over three years rethto the capacity expansion in Nantong. Similgragsions since the ventures were formed
have led to earnings growth and increased dividémdhie Company.

According to the Euromonitor database servicesn&ls estimated to have a 42% share of the w@@il4 cigarette consumption and is the
fastest growing area for cigarette consumptiomagstimated growth rate of 3.5% per year from 2Btdugh 2016. Combined, these ventures
are a leader in Chinese domestic acetate produatidiwe believe we are well positioned to supplin€se cigarette producers.

Although our ownership interest in each of our @Ghacetate ventures exceeds 20%, we account fa itesstments using the cost method of
accounting because we determined that we cannatisgesignificant influence over these entities tlulcal government investment in and
influence over these entities, limitations on owalvement in the day-to-day operations and thegareinability of the entities to provide
timely financial information prepared in accordamdth generally accepted accounting principleshim tnited States ("US GAAP").

e Other Equity Method Investment

InfraServs We hold indirect ownership interests in severalr@ar InfraServ Groups that own and develop indugigeks and provide on-site
general and administrative support to tenants.durership interest in the equity investments imdBerv ventures are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

(In percentages)

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG 32

Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials and enemy Sources in many countries for use in our pridogrocesses. We have a policy of
maintaining, when available, multiple sources qifgy for materials. However, some of our individp&nts may have single sources of su
for some of their raw materials, such as carbononrigie, steam and acetaldehyde. Although we have &kl to obtain sufficient supplies of
raw materials, there can be no assurance thatasgen developments will not affect our raw matestigply. Even if we have multiple sources
of supply for a raw material, there can be no asse that these sources can make up for the l@ssajor supplier. It is also possible
profitability will be adversely affected if we arequired to qualify additional sources of supplyto specifications in the event of the loss of a
sole supplier. In addition, the price of raw maikrivaries, often substantially, from year to year.
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A substantial portion of our products and raw matgrare commaodities whose prices fluctuate aslgupp demand fundamentals change.
production facilities rely largely on natural gaeal, fuel oil and electricity for energy. We maaamur exposure to commodity risk primarily
through the use of long-term supply agreementsti+tpear purchasing and sales agreements and foqathase contracts.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesrafuaprecious metals, such as rhodium, used afystd for the manufacture of Acetyl
Intermediates products. For precious metals, thgele are normally distributed among multiple leséar each product.

Research and Development

Our businesses are innovation-oriented and condaetairch and development activities to develop aed,optimize existing, production
technologies, as well as to develop commercialipld new products and applications. We consideatheunts spent during each of the last
three fiscal years on research and developmenftigito be sufficient to execute our currentteme initiatives.

Intellectual Property

We attach importance to protecting our intellecpalperty, including through patents, trademarkpycights and product designs in order to
preserve our investment in research and developmramufacturing and marketing. Patents may covargsses, products, intermediate
products and product uses. We also seek to regiatbtgrmarks as a means of protecting the brand sxafreur products. We protect our
intellectual property against infringement and asek to register design protection where apprtgria

PatentsIn most industrial countries, patent protectiorsexior new substances and formulations, as wdtirasertain unique applications and
production processes. However, we do businesgyinne of the world where intellectual property paton may be limited and difficult to
enforce. We maintain strict information securitjipies and procedures wherever we do business. ifmtmation security policies and
procedures include data encryption, controls dverdisclosure and safekeeping of confidential imfation, as well as employee awareness
training. Moreover, we monitor competitive develggits and defend against infringements on our autlbl property rights.

Trademarks.AOPIlus®, AOPIlus®2, AOPIlus® 3, VAntage®, VAntagePlus™, VAntage®2, BuyTiconaDirect, Celanex®, Celcon®,
Celstrarf®, CelFX™, Celvolit®, Clarifoil ®, Compel®, GUR®, Hostaforn®, Impet®, Mowilith ®, Nutrinova®, Riteflex®, Sunetf®,
Sunsatiort™™, Thermx®, Zenite®, Vandar®, Vectra®, Vinamul®, EcCoVAE®, Durosef®, Ateva®, Acetex®, TCX®, VitalDose®, BriteCoat®
and certain other branded products and servicegamthis document are registered or reserve@mnadks or service marks owned or
licensed by Celanese. The foregoing is not interiddx: an exhaustive or comprehensive list ofegjistered or reserved trademarks and
service marks owned or licensed by Celanese. Fotima registered trademark of Fortron.

Neither Celanese nor any particular business segisiematerially dependent upon any one patentetretk, copyright or trade secr
Environmental and Other Regulation

Matters pertaining to environmental and other ratioihs are discussed li@m 1A. Risk Factorsltem 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems— Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates — Aacting for Commitments and
Contingencies andNote 15- EnvironmentabhndNote 23- Commitments and Contingencigsthe accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Employees
The approximate number of employees employed bgr@ske on a continuing basis throughout the word if®llows:

Employees as of
December 31, 2012

North America

us 2,75C
Canada 25C
Mexico 60C
Total 3,60(
Europe
Germany 1,60(
Other Europe 1,25(
Total 2,85(
Asia 1,05(
Rest of World 50
Total 7,55(
Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantdatbr of the level of future sales activity. In geal, we do not manufacture our products
against a backlog of orders. Production and invgrtyels are based on the level of incoming ordersvell as projections of future demand.
Therefore, we believe that backlog informationas material to understanding our overall businesbshould not be considered a reliable
indicator of our ability to achieve any particulavel of revenue or financial performance.

Available Information — Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Filings and Corporate Governance Mderials

We make available free of charge, through our irgewebsite (http://www.celanese.com), our annebrts on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and ammands to those reports filed or furnished purstastection 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as well as ownpngiports on Form 3 and Form 4, as soon as rebBopeacticable after electronically
filing such material with, or furnishing it to, ttf&EC. References to our website in this reporpesgided as a convenience, and the informe
on our website is not, and shall not be deemea t@ jpart of this report or incorporated into artyeoffilings we make with the SEC. The SEC
maintains an internet site that contains reportsgpand information statements, and other inforomategarding issuers, including Celanese
Corporation, that electronically file with the SEChttp://www.sec.gov.

We also make available free of charge, throughrternet website, our Corporate Governance Guidslof our Board of Directors and the
charters of each of the committees of the Board.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Many factors could have an effect on our financi@hdition, cash flows and resuof operations. We are subject to various risks itésy from
changing economic, environmental, political, indysbusiness, financial and regulatory conditiombe factors described below represent our
principal risks.

Risks Related to Our Business

We are a company with operations around the worltdaare exposed to general economic, political argulatory conditions and risks in
the countries in which we have significant operatis.

We operate globally and have customers in manytdegnOur major facilities are primarily locatedMorth America, Europe and Asia, and
we hold interests in ventures that operate in tBe Germany, China, Japan, Malaysia, South Koreayafeand Saudi Arabia. Our principal
customers are similarly global in scope, and theegrof our most significant products are typicaliyrid market prices. Also, our operations in
certain foreign jurisdictions are subject to nasiliration and
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expropriation risk, and some of our contractuatiehships within these jurisdictions are subjeatancellation without full compensation for
loss. In certain cases where we benefit from Igogkernment subsidies or other undertakings, suobflie are subject to the solvency of local
government entities and are subject to terminatithout meaningful recourse or remedies. Consedyenir business and financial results
affected, directly and indirectly, by world econampolitical and regulatory conditions.

In addition to the worldwide economic downturn, ditions such as the uncertainties associated wath t@rrorist activities, civil unrest,
epidemics, pandemics, weather, natural disastexsftects of climate change or political instapiln any of the countries in which we operate
or have significant customers or suppliers coutdafus by causing delays or losses in the supptietivery of raw materials and products, as
well as increasing security costs, insurance preraiand other expenses. These conditions couldedsit in or lengthen economic recession
in the United States, Europe, Asia or elsewhere.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, rules, riagions or court decisions could expose us to fipesalties and other costs. Moreover,
changes in laws or regulations, such as unexpettaages in regulatory requirements (including inhpoexport licensing requirements), or
changes in the reporting requirements of the Urfitiedes, Canadian, Mexican, German, European Wta4") or Asian governmental
agencies, could increase the cost of doing busingsgse regions. Any of these conditions may teaveffect on our business and financial
results as a whole and may result in volatile aitresd future prices for our securities, including stock.

In particular, we have invested significant resesrin China and other Asian countries. This regigndbwth may slow, and we may fail to
realize the anticipated benefits associated withrorestment there and our financial results magpdheersely impacted.

In addition, we have significant operations andificial relationships based in Europe. Europe teeritally accounted for over one-third of
our net revenues and more than 40% in 2012. Thepean sovereign debt crisis and bank funding pressn the Eurozone may continue to
negatively impact our overall financial results doeeduced economic growth and resulting decreasdelise customer demand.

As of December 31, 2012, we held $189 million islcan Europe. This cash is primarily invested ipakgts in several European banks, a
European money market fund that invests only imlyigated and liquid European sovereign debt ablba reasury money market fund. The
allocation of the cash invested in each of thes®ogp fluctuates based on market conditions. ABetember 31, 2012, we also had $75 mil
of direct investments in highly rated European seigm debt in our pension funds, accounting fos ksn 3% of our total pension fund assets
that may be affected if European economic conditiworsen. Finally, our ability to access additidigalidity from European financial
institutions in the future may also be impaired.

We are subject to risks associated with the inceshsolatility in the prices and availability of kexaw materials and energy, which could
have a significant adverse effect on the marginsoefr products and our financial results.

We purchase significant amounts of ethylene, methaarbon monoxide and natural gas from thirdipanprimarily for use in our production
of basic chemicals in the Acetyl Intermediates segprincipally acetic acid, VAM and formaldehyd@e use a portion of our output of these
chemicals, in turn, as inputs in the productionl@ivnstream products in all our business segmengsaldéd purchase some of these raw
materials for use in our Industrial Specialtiesrseqt, primarily for VAE and EVA production, as wak significant amounts of wood pulp for
use in our production of cellulose acetate in oonglimer Specialties segment. The price of manlgesfet items is dependent on the available
supply of that item and may increase significaaslya result of natural disasters, plant or prodadlisruptions, strikes or other labor unrest,
war or other outbreak of hostilities or terroridmneakdown or degradation of transportation infrattire used for delivery of strategic raw
materials and energy commaodities, or changes is @wegulations. In particular, to the extent of wertical integration in the production of
chemicals, shortages in the availability of raweniad chemicals, such as natural gas, ethylenerattlanol, or the loss of our dedicated
supplies of carbon monoxide, may have an increadedrse impact on us as it can cause a shortageimediate and finished products. Suct
shortages would adversely impact our ability todoie certain products and increase our costs igudt reduced margins and adverse
financial results.

We are exposed to volatility in the prices of cawmaterials and energy. Although we have agreesym@oviding for the supply of ethylene,
methanol, carbon monoxide, wood pulp, natural gestricity and fuel oil, the contractual prices foese raw materials and energy can vary
with economic conditions and may be highly volatifeaddition to the factors noted above that rmagdct supply or price, factors that have
caused volatility in our raw material prices in fhest and which may do so in the future include:
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. Shortages of raw materials due to increasing depegd from growing uses or new u:
. Capacity constraints, e.g., due to constructioaydellabor disruption or involuntary shutdow

. The inability of a supplier to meet our delivemders or a supplier's choice not to fulfill orsler to terminate a supply contract or our
inability to obtain or renew supply contracts ondeble terms;

. The general level of business and economic actigity
. The direct or indirect effect of governmental regign (including the impact of government regulatielating to climate chang

If we are not able to fully offset the effects afler energy and raw material costs through pricesiases, productivity improvements or cost
reduction programs, or if such commodities becomavailable, it could have a significant adverseafbn our ability to timely and profitably
manufacture and deliver our products with a resglteduction in our margins and financial results.

A portion of our supply of methanol in North Amaaitcs currently obtained under a contract expirmg@15. If we are unable to obtain a
reliable source of supply prior to expiration of ttontract, we will likely purchase methanol on ¢ipen market. We currently plan to construct
a methanol plant in the US to partially replaceriethanol obtained under that contract.

Production at our manufacturing facilities could bdisrupted for a variety oreasons, which could prevent us from producing emuof our
products to maintain ouisales and satisfy our customers' demands.

A disruption in production at one or more of ourmagacturing facilities could have a material adeezffect on our business. Disruptions coulc
occur for many reasons, including fire, naturabdters, weather, unplanned maintenance or otheufadaring problems, disease, strikes or
other labor unrest, transportation interruptionjayoment regulation, political unrest or terrorighiternative facilities with sufficient capacity
or capabilities may not be available, may cost sutiglly more or may take a significant time tarsproduction, each of which could
negatively affect our business and financial pen@mce. If one of our key manufacturing facilitiesinable to produce our products for an
extended period of time, our sales may be redugetdshortfall caused by the disruption and we matybe able to meet our customers'
needs, which could cause them to seek other supplieparticular, production disruptions at oummgacturing facilities that produce
chemicals used as inputs in the production of chalsiin other business segments, such as acatic\éM and formaldehyde, could have a
more significant adverse effect on our businessfimaahcial performance and results of operatiothtoextent of such vertical integration.
Furthermore, to the extent a production disruptioours at a manufacturing facility that has beegrating at or near full capacity, the resulting
shortage of our product could be particularly halbecause production at the manufacturing facitigy not be able to reach levels achieved
prior to the disruption.

Failure to develop new products and production tectogies or to implement productivity and cost rexdion initiatives successfully may
harm our competitive position.

Our operating results depend significantly on teeadopment of commercially viable new products duct grades and applications, as well as
process technologies, free of any legal restristitiwe are unsuccessful in developing new praglwgtplications and production processes in
the future, our competitive position and operati@gults may be negatively affected. For exampleregently announced our intention to
construct new ethanol manufacturing facilities mir@ and the US that will utilize advanced techggldeveloped with elements of our
proprietary advanced acetyl platform. However, asnwest in the commercialization of this new pssgechnology, we face the risk of
unanticipated operational or commercializationidiffties, including an inability to obtain necegsaermits or governmental approvals, the
development of competing technologies, failureaailities or processes to operate in accordande spiecifications or expectations,
construction delays, cost overns, the unavailability of financing, required ergls or equipment and various other factors. Wike, we hav:
undertaken and are continuing to undertake inigatin all business segments to improve produgtaiid performance and to generate cost
savings. These initiatives may not be completeldemieficial or the estimated cost savings from aatlvities may not be realized.

Our business is exposed to risks associated withdteditworthiness of our suppliers, customers dnasiness partners and the industries in
which our suppliers, customers and business parsparticipate are cyclical in nature, both of whiahay adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

Some of the industries in which our end-use custerparticipate, such as the automotive, electraaistruction and textile industries, are
cyclical in nature, thus posing a risk to us whikbeyond our control. The industries in which theastomers
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participate are highly competitive, to a large extriven by end-use applications, and may expee@vercapacity, all of which may affect
demand for and pricing of our products. Our busine&xposed to risks associated with the credibiwmess of our key suppliers, customers
and business partners and reductions in demaralifagustomers' products. The consequences ofdhid include the interruption of
production at the facilities of our customers, tb@uction, delay or cancellation of customer orddetays in or the inability of customers to
obtain financing to purchase our products, delayiaterruptions of the supply of raw materials weghase and bankruptcy of customers,
suppliers or other creditors. The occurrence of@rthese events may adversely affect our cash, fiwafitability and financial condition.
Furthermore, the continuing European sovereign desis could increase the likelihood and impacthefse events for our European customer
by potentially limiting end-use customer demand easdricting our customers' access to capital, wbauld continue to negatively affect our
financial results.

Environmental regulations and other obligations ring to environmental mattercould subject us to liability for fines, clean-u@sd other
damages, require us to incur significant costs t@dify our operations and increase our manufacturirand delivery costs.

Costs related to our compliance with environmelatak and regulations, and potential obligation$\witspect to sites currently or formerly
owned or operated by us, may have a significanatiegimpact on our operating results. We also tebligations related to the indemnity
agreement contained in the demerger and transfeeagnt between Celanese GmbH and Hoechst AGredtsoed to as the demerger
agreement, for environmental matters arising owteofain divestitures that took place prior to deenerger.

Our operations are subject to extensive internatjorational, state, local and other laws and @#gurs that govern environmental and health
and safety matters. We incur substantial capitdl@her costs to comply with these requirementaelfviolate any one of those laws or
regulations, we can be held liable for substaffiti@ls and other sanctions, including limitationsoom operations as a result of changes to or
revocations of environmental permits involved. @i environmental, safety and health laws, regaratand enforcement policies could result
in substantial costs and liabilities to us or latibns on our operations and could subject our l@gndnanufacture, transport, use, reuse or
disposal of substances or pollutants to more rigoszrutiny than at present.

One example of such regulations is the NationalsSimn Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants foubktdal, Commercial, and Institutional
Boilers and Process Heaters ("Boiler MACT"), whigas published by the Environmental Protection AggEPA") in the Federal Register
on March 21, 2011. EPA issued a revised final amlédecember 20, 2012. The Boiler MACT regulatiofi véquire us to make significant
capital expenditures to comply with stricter emassi requirements for industrial boilers and pro¢esgers at our facilities in the next three to
four years. Consequently, compliance with theses lamd regulations may negatively affect our easangd cash flows in a particular report
period.

Changes in environmental, health and safety regudats in the jurisdictions where we manufacture asell our products could lead to a
decrease in demand for our products.

New or revised governmental regulations and indéeenstudies relating to the effect of our productdealth, safety and the environm
may affect demand for our products and the coptaducing our products.

In June 2009, the California Office of Environmériaalth Hazard Assessment ("OEHHA") formally prepd to add VAM, along with 11
other substances, to a list of chemicals "knowti¢ostate of California" to cause cancer. OEHHZeuired to maintain this list under the S
Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 198@(bposition 65"). Celanese successfully defeatecgttempt to list VAM through a
judicial challenge that is now final, and OEHHA haithdrawn VAM from its list of proposed chemicdts the Proposition 65 list. Howeve
OEHHA initially proposed VAM to the Proposition @St as a result of a lawsuit by an environmentalg. Activists may again seek to
require OEHHA to consider listing VAM or other chiels on the Proposition 65 list. In addition, VAM other chemicals we produce may be
classified in other jurisdictions in a manner thvatuld adversely affect demand for such products.

We are a producer of formaldehyde and plasticvddrirom formaldehyde. Several studies have ingattd possible links between
formaldehyde exposure and various end points ifetulukemia. The International Agency for ReseamsiCancer ("IARC"), a private
research agency, has reclassified formaldehyde Gomup 2A (probable human carcinogen) to Groupnbn human carcinogen) based on
studies linking formaldehyde exposure to nasoplgeghcancer, a rare cancer in humans. In Octoli¥3,28RC also concluded based on a
recent study that there is sufficient evidenceafoausal association between formaldehyde andethedapment of leukemia. We expect the
results of IARC's review will be examined and colesed by government agencies with responsibilitys&iting worker and environmental
exposure standards and labeling requirements.
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Other pending initiatives will potentially requitexicological testing and risk assessments of awatiety of chemicals, including chemicals
used or produced by us. These initiatives inclireMoluntary Children's Chemical Evaluation Progratigh Production Volume Chemical
Initiative and expected modifications to the ToSgbstances Control Act ("TSCA") in the United Ssates well as various European
Commission programs, such as the Registration,uatiah, Authorization and Restriction of ChemicdREACH").

The above-mentioned assessments in the UnitedsStateEurope may result in heightened concernst abewchemicals involved and
additional requirements being placed on the pradochandling, labeling or use of the subject cleaisi. Such concerns and additional
requirements could also increase the cost incuryeaur customers to use our chemical products #mebwise limit the use of these products,
which could lead to a decrease in demand for thesducts. Such a decrease in demand would likelg ba adverse impact on our business
and results of operations.

US federal regulations aimed at increasing secur#lycertain chemical production plants and similégislation that may be proposed in the
future, if passecinto law, may increase our operating costs and caas adverse effect on our results of operations.

Regulations are being implemented by the US Departrof Homeland Security ("DHS") aimed at decregisie risk, and effects, of potential
terrorist attacks on chemical plants located withim United States. Pursuant to these regulatibase goals would be accomplished in part
through the requirement that certain high-priofitgilities develop a prevention, preparedness,ragdonse plan after conducting a
vulnerability assessment. In addition, companieg bwarequired to evaluate the possibility of udigs dangerous chemicals and technologie:
as part of their vulnerability assessments andrggqlans and implementing feasible safer techgige in order to minimize potential damage
to their facilities from a terrorist attack. We learegistered certain of our sites with DHS in adeoce with these regulations, have conducted
vulnerability assessments at applicable sites amadwaaiting DHS review and approval of securitynglaJntil that is done we cannot determine
with certainty the costs associated with any se¢cuaneasures that DHS may require.

We are subject to risks associated with possibimate change legislation, regulation and internatial accords.

Greenhouse gas emissions have become the subpetargie amount of international, national, regipstate and local attention. Cap and trade
initiatives to limit greenhouse gas emissions Haefen introduced in the EU. The EPA has promulgatks$ concerning greenhouse gas
emissions. In addition, regulation of greenhouseaiso could occur pursuant to future US treatjgakibns, statutory or regulatory changes
under the Clean Air Act or new climate change ledjisn.

While not all are likely to become law, many coisgrare considering or have implemented regulgiomgrams to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions. Future environmental legislative andilagry developments related to climate changeassible, which could materially increase
operating costs in the chemical industry and thenetrease our manufacturing and delivery costs.

Our business exposes us to potential product lidpitlaims and recalls, which could adversely affexr financial condition and
performance.

The development, manufacture and sales of spedhdéynical products by us, including products predufor the food, beverage, cigarette,
automobile, medical device and pharmaceutical itndhss involve a risk of exposure to product lighitlaims, product recalls, product seizt
and related adverse publicity. A product liabilitgim or judgment against us could also resuluipssantial and unexpected expenditures,
affect consumer or customer confidence in our petsjland divert management's attention from otbgpansibilities. Although we maintain
product liability insurance, there can be no asstedhat this type or the level of coverage is adézjor that we will be able to continue to
maintain our existing insurance or obtain comparaidurance at a reasonable cost, if at all. Aycbrecall or a partially or completely
uninsured judgment against us could have a magstizdrse effect on our results of operations @riaial condition. Although we have
standard contracting policies and controls, we matyalways be able to contractually limit our expesto third party claims should our failure
to perform result in downstream supply disruptiongroduct recalls.

Our production facilities handle the processing sbme volatile and hazardous materials that subjestto operating risks that could have a
negative effect on our operating results.

Our operations are subject to operating risks aatmtwith chemical manufacturing, including thiated storage and transportation of raw

materials, finished products and waste. These nkade, among other things, pipeline and stotag& leaks and ruptures, explosions and
fires and discharges or releases of toxic or hazerdubstances.
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These operating risks can cause personal injuopgsty damage and environmental contamination naagresult in the shutdown of affected
facilities and the imposition of civil or crimingknalties. The occurrence of any of these evenysdisaupt production and have a negative
effect on the productivity and profitability of apicular manufacturing facility and our operatiegults and cash flows.

Our business and financial results may be adversaffected by various legal and regulatory proceegsn

We are subject to legal and regulatory proceediagssuits and claims in the normal course of bussirend could become subject to additiona
claims in the future, some of which could be maleifhe outcome of existing proceedings, lawsuit$ @aims may differ from our
expectations because the outcomes of litigatiariuding regulatory matters, are often difficultradiably predict. Various factors or
developments can lead us to change current esmétmabilities and related insurance receivalbgre applicable, or permit us to make sucl
estimates for matters previously not susceptibleasonable estimates, such as a significant pldiging or judgment, a significant settlem:
significant regulatory developments, or changespplicable law. A future adverse ruling, settlementunfavorable development could result
in charges that could have a material adversetaffeour business, results of operations or firgreondition in any particular period. For a
more detailed discussion of our legal proceediagsltem 3. Legal Proceedindslow.

Changes in tax legislation throughout the world clsumaterially impact our results.

Our future effective tax rate and related tax bedasheet attributes could be impacted by changex ilegislation throughout the world. In
particular, proposed US tax legislation could matlrimpact our results. Currently, the majoritiyaur revenue is generated from customers
located outside of the US, and a substantial ppdfoour assets and employees are located outbitie &S. We have not accrued income ti
and foreign withholding taxes on undistributed @aga for most non-US subsidiaries, because thasengs are intended to be indefinitely
reinvested in the operations of those subsidia@estain proposals could substantially increaset@aexpense, which would substantially
reduce our income and have a material adverset @ffecur results of operations and cash flows foparating activities.

Changes in our tax rates could affect our futuregelts.

Our future effective tax rates could be affectedbgnges in the mix of earnings in countries wiffedng statutory tax rates, expirations of
holidays, changes in the valuation of deferredassets and liabilities, or changes in tax lawsragdlations or their interpretation. We are
subject to the regular examination of our incomerédurns by various tax authorities. We reguladgess the likelihood of adverse outcomes
resulting from these examinations to determineatitequacy of our provision for taxes. There candagsurance that the outcomes from thes
examinations will not have a material adverse ¢ff@cour financial condition and operating results.

Our success depends upon our ability to attract aethin key employees and the identification andsdpment of talent to succeed senior
management.

Our success depends on our ability to attract atadir key personnel, and we rely heavily on ouragament team. The inability to recruit and
retain key personnel or the unexpected loss ofgeegonnel may adversely affect our operationsdtitmn, because of the reliance on our
management team, our future success depends inrpatir ability to identify and develop talent tecseed senior management. The retention
of key personnel and appropriate senior managesusgession planning will continue to be criticaityportant to the successful
implementation of our strategies.

Some of our employees are unionized, representeditikers councils or are subject to local laws thae less favorable to employers th
the laws of the US.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had approximately@ giiployees. Approximately 19% of our 2,750 US taseployees are unionized. Our
two US based collective bargaining agreements expi2014 and 2016. In addition, a large numbernuwfemployees are employed in coun
in which employment laws provide greater bargairongther employment rights than the laws of the 8&h employment rights require us
work collaboratively with the legal representatieéshe employees to effect any changes to labmesgents. Most of our employees in Eut
are represented by workers councils and/or uniagisnhust approve any changes in terms and consliibamployment, including potentially
salaries and benefits. They may also impede effontestructure our workforce. Although we believe have a good working relationship w
our employees and their legal representatives lmdhances are low, a strike, work stoppage, evdslavn by our employees could occur,
resulting in a disruption of our operations or l@gbngoing labor costs.
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We may not be able to complete future acquisitiamsuccessfully integrate future acquisitions intur business, which could affect
adversely our business or results of operations.

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to puraaguisitions and joint venture opportunities. Ssstul accomplishment of this objective
may be limited by the availability and suitability acquisition candidates and by our financial ugses, including available cash and borrov
capacity. Acquisitions involve numerous risks, uthg difficulty determining appropriate valuationiegrating operations, technologies,
services and products of the acquired lines omassies, personnel turnover and the diversion oagenent's attention from other business
matters. In addition, we may be unable to achiewieipated benefits from these acquisitions intthreeframe that we anticipate, or at all, wr
could affect adversely our business or resultpefations.

Our significant non-US operations expose us to giblexchange rate fluctuations that could adversétypact our profitability.

Because we conduct a significant portion of ourapens outside the United States, fluctuationsurrencies of other countries, especially the
Euro, may materially affect our operating resufisr example, changes in currency exchange ratesde@agase our profits in comparison to
the profits of our competitors on the same prodsotd in the same markets and increase the catstno$ required in our operations.

A substantial portion of our net sales is denongidanh currencies other than the US dollar. In amsolidated financial statements, we trans
our local currency financial results into US dddlé#ased on average exchange rates prevailing daifiegorting period or the exchange rate at
the end of that period. During times of a strengihg US dollar our reported international saleshiggs, assets and liabilities will be reduced
because the local currency will translate into fielt® dollars.

In addition to currency translation risks, we ineuturrency transaction risk whenever one of o@rafing subsidiaries enters into either a
purchase or a sales transaction using a currefieyatit from the operating subsidiary's functiooafrency. Given the volatility of exchange
rates, we may not be able to manage our curreaogdction and translation risks effectively, anthtility in currency exchange rates may
expose our financial condition or results of operet to a significant additional risk. Since a pmrtof our indebtedness is and will be
denominated in currencies other than US dollaveeakening of the US dollar could make it more difft for us to repay our indebtedness
denominated in foreign currencies unless we hask flaws in those foreign currencies from our fgreoperations to repay such indebtedn

We use financial instruments to hedge certain exgot® foreign currency fluctuations, but we cangedrantee that our hedging strategies wil
be effective. In addition, the use of financialtingnents creates counterparty settlement riskuFeatb effectively manage these risks could
have an adverse impact on our financial positiesults of operations and cash flows.

Significant changes in pension fund investment penfhance or assumptions relating pension costs may have a material effect on the
valuation of pension obligations, the funded statabpension plans and our pension cost.

The cost of our pension plans is incurred over lpagods of time and involves many uncertaintiesriuthose periods of time. Our funding
policy for pension plans is to accumulate plan @stet, over the long run, will approximate thegant value of projected benefit obligations.
Our pension cost is materially affected by the dlistt rate used to measure pension obligationdettet and value of plan assets available to
fund those obligations at the measurement datéhenexpected long-term rate of return on plan asSagnificant changes in investment
performance or a change in the portfolio mix ofésted assets will likely result in corresponding@ases and decreases in the valuation of
plan assets and a change in the discount ratdikely result in an increase or decrease in theaisdn of pension obligations. The combined
impact of these changes will affect the reportadiid status of our pension plans as well as thpar@idic pension cost in the following fiscal
years. In recent years, an extended duration girétethe asset portfolio has been implementedmesplans to reduce the influence of liabi
volatility due to changes in interest rates. If thieded status of a pension plan declines, we reagfuired to make unscheduled contributions
in addition to those contributions for which we balready planned.

Our future success depends in part on our abilibydgrotect our intellectual property rights. Our irmlity to protect and enforce these rights
could reduce our ability to maintain our market pibi®n and our profit margins.

We attach importance to our patents, trademarksrights, know-how and trade secrets in order tagmt our investment in research and
development, and competitive commercial positionsianufacturing and marketing of our products. Weehalso adopted internal policies for
protecting our valuable know-how and trade secis.sometimes license patents and other techndtogythird parties. Our practice is to
seek protection for significant developments thavjgle us competitive
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advantages and freedom to practice for our busise§atents may cover catalysts, processes, pspduermediate products and product uses
These patents are usually filed throughout thedvand provide varying periods and scope of prataedbased on the filing date and the type o
patent application. The legal life and scope otgrtions provided by patents may vary between ¢c@msin which we seek protection. As
patents expire, the catalysts, processes and pggodescribed and claimed in those patents may begemerally available for use by the pul
subject to our continued protection for associ&teav-how and trade secrets. We also seek to redisigemarks as a means of protecting the
brand names of our products, which brand nameshbeooore important once the corresponding produptarsess patents have expired. We
operate in regions of the world where intellecfualperty protection may be limited and difficulteaforce and our continued growth strategy
may bring us to additional regions with similar bbages. If we are not successful in protectingnaintaining our patent, license, trademark ol
other intellectual property rights, our revenuesuits of operations and cash flows may be adweedtcted.

We are subject to information technology securityéats that could materially affect our business.

We have been and will continue to be subject taaded persistent information technology securitgats. While some unauthorized access t
our information technology systems occurs, we lveli® date these threats have not had a matef@dnon our business. We seek to detect
and investigate these security incidents and tegoretheir recurrence but in some cases we mighinbgvare of an incident or its magnitude
and effects. The theft, mis-use or publication af intellectual property and/or confidential busisénformation or the compromising of our
systems or networks could harm our competitivetfmysi cause operational disruption, reduce theevaluour investment in research and
development of new products and other strategiiativies or otherwise adversely affect our busires®sults of operations. To the extent that
any security breach results in inappropriate dsale of our employees', customers' or vendorsiagential information, we may incur liability
as a result. Although we attempt to mitigate thésles by employing a number of measures, includiagitoring of our systems and networks,
and maintenance of backup and protective systemsystems, networks, products and services repwantially vulnerable to increasingly
sophisticated advanced persistent threats thathaag a material effect on our business. In additiom devotion of additional resources to the
security of our information technology systemshia future could significantly increase the costioihg business or otherwise adversely im
our financial results.

We may incur significant charges in the event west or divest all or part of a manufacturing plaot facility.

We periodically assess our manufacturing operatioasder to manufacture and distribute our prosglirtthe most efficient manner. Based on
our assessments, we may make capital improvemenmsdernize certain units, move manufacturing strifiution capabilities from one plant
or facility to another plant or facility, discontia manufacturing or distributing certain produatglose or divest all or part of a manufacturing
plant or facility. We also have shared servicegagrents at several of our plants and if such agretmare terminated or revised, we would
assess and potentially adjust our manufacturingadipes. The closure or divestiture of all or pafra manufacturing plant or facility could
result in future charges that could be significant.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation antlylaws, as well as any stockholders' rights plarayrdiscourage a takeover attem

Provisions contained in our certificate of incomtozn and bylaws could make it more difficult fothérd party to acquire us, even if doing so
might be beneficial to our stockholders. Provisiohsur certificate of incorporation and bylaws iose various procedural and other
requirements, which could make it more difficult &iockholders to effect certain corporate actiéiws.example, our certificate of
incorporation authorizes our Board of Directorgl&dermine the rights, preferences, privileges asttictions of unissued series of preferred
stock, without any vote or action by our stockhodd@ hus, our Board of Directors can authorize igade shares of preferred stock with voting
or conversion rights that could adversely affeet\ibting or other rights of holders of our Seriesgfnmon stock. These rights may have the
effect of delaying or deterring a change of contfobur Company. In addition, a change of contfadr Company may be delayed or deterrec
as a result of our having three classes of diredaich class elected for a three year term) amrasult of any stockholders' rights plan that our
Board of Directors may adopt. These provisions @diatit the price that certain investors might bifling to pay in the future for shares of our
Series A common stock.

We could be subject to damages based on claimsdimbagainst us by our customers or lose customessaesult of the failure of our
products to meet certain quality specificatior

Our products provide important performance attebub our customers' products. If a product failgdrform in a manner consistent with
quality specifications, a customer could seek egtzent of the product or damages for costs inclaseal result of the product failing to
perform as guaranteed. A successful claim or sefielaims against us could have a material adveffeet on our financial condition and
results of operations and could result in a lossnaf or more key customers.
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The insurance coverage that we maintain may notiyutover all operational risks.

We maintain property, business interruption andiakyg insurance but such insurance may not coverf #ihe risks associated with the hazards
of our business and is subject to limitations,udiahg deductibles and maximum liabilities coverdte may incur losses beyond the limits, or
outside the coverage, of our insurance policieduding liabilities for environmental remediatidn.the future, there can be no assurance that
the types of insurance we obtain or the level okecage we maintain is adequate or that we willdde # continue to maintain our existing
insurance or obtain comparable insurance at a meh$®cost, if at all.

Differences in views with our joint venture partigants may cause our joint ventures not to operatearding to their business plans, whic
may adversely affect our results of operations.

We currently participate in a number of joint veresiand may enter into additional joint venturethnfuture. The nature of a joint venture
requires us to share control with unaffiliated dharties. Differences in views among joint ventp@aeticipants may result in delayed decisions
or failure to agree on major decisions. If thestedinces cause the joint ventures to deviate fiweir business plans or to fail to achieve their
desired operating performance, our results of digeracould be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

Our level of indebtedness could diminish our abylito raise additional capital to fund our operatignlimit our ability to react to changes in
the economy or the chemicals industry and preveatftom meeting obligations under our indebtedness.

Our total indebtedness is $3.1 hillion as of Deceni, 2012 . SeMote 13- Debtin the accompanying consolidated financial statemfar
further information.

Our level of indebtedness could have important equences, including:

» Increasing our vulnerability to general economma industry conditions including exacerbatingithpact of any adverse business effects
that are determined to be material adverse evewtsrwour existing senior credit facilities (the h8® Credit Agreement");

» Requiring a substantial portion of cash flownfroperations to be dedicated to the payment otjpd@h and interest on indebtedness,
therefore reducing our ability to use our cash ftoviund operations, capital expenditures and &husiness opportunities or pay
dividends on our common stock;

» Exposing us to the risk of increased interest ragesertain of our borrowings are at variable rafeésteresi

» Limiting our ability to obtain additional financinigr working capital, capital expenditures, proddevelopment, debt service requireme
acquisitions and general corporate or other puspeead

e Limiting our ability to adjust to changing matl@nditions and placing us at a competitive disalage compared to our competitors who
have less debt.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the futusehich could increase the risks described above.

Although covenants under the Senior Credit Agredragd the indentures governing the $600 millioaggregate principal amount of
6.625% Senior Notes due 2018, the $400 milliongigragate principal amount of 5.875% Senior Notes2021, and the $500 million in
aggregate principal amount of 4.625% Senior Notes2022 (together, the "Notes") limit our abilityihcur certain additional indebtedness,
these restrictions are subject to a number of ficaions and exceptions, and the indebtednessowlel éncur in compliance with these
restrictions could be significant. To the extemittive incur additional indebtedness, the risks@atzd with our debt described above,
including our possible inability to service our tldbcluding the Notes, would increase.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to iestrrate risk, which could cause our debt serviddigations to increase significantly and
affect our operating results.

Certain of our borrowings are at variable ratemti#rest and expose us to interest rate risktéfr@st rates were to increase, our debt service
obligations on our variable rate indebtedness windcease. As of December 31, 2012 , we had $78ibmj €214 million and CNY680
million of variable rate debt and outstanding USlatanterest rate swap agreements with a
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notional value of $1.1 billion that expire Janu@r2014. These interest rate swap agreements hexecbnomic effect of modifying the US-
dollar variable rate obligations into fixed interebligations. Accordingly, a 1% increase in intn@ates would increase annual interest exp
by $1 million .

On February 1, 2012, we executed forward-startmgrest rate swap agreements with a notional val$800 million which are effective
January 2, 2014 through January 2, 2016.I%eee 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis adiiiial Condition and Results of Operations
Liquidity and Capital Resources, Item 7A. Quanitiaiand Qualitative Disclosures About Market Fbelow andNote 21- Derivative

Financial Instruments the accompanying consolidated financial statedmfar further information.

We may not be able to generate sufficient casheosie our indebtedness and may be forced to tatkeoactions to satisfy obligations
under our indebtedness, which may not be successful

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or tmagfce our debt obligations depends on the findgoiadition and operating performance of
our subsidiaries, which are subject to prevailingr®mic and competitive conditions and to certaiaricial, business and other factors beyon
our control. We may not be able to maintain a |®falash flows from operating activities sufficigatpermit us to pay the principal, premium,
if any, and interest on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capitadstructure or refinance our indebtedness. Thkkemative measures may not be successful
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debicseobligations. In the absence of such operatisglts and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be reqdite dispose of material assets or operations &t mg& debt service and other obligations.
The Senior Credit Agreement restricts our abilitylispose of assets and use the proceeds fronisghasiion. We may not be able to
consummate those dispositions or to obtain thegaas which we could realize from them and thesegas may not be adequate to meet an
debt service obligations then due.

Restrictive covenants in our debt agreements mayitliour ability to engage ircertain transactions and may diminish our abilitp tmake
payments on ouindebtedness.

The Senior Credit Agreement and the indentures ipavg the Notes each contain various covenantdithiatour ability to engage in specified
types of transactions. The indentures governindhibtes limit Celanese US's and certain of its slibges' ability to, among other things, incur
additional debt; pay dividends or make other retd payments; consummate specified asset sales;ieto transactions with affiliates; incur
liens, impose restrictions on the ability of a sdiasy to pay dividends or make payments to CeladS and its restricted subsidiaries; merge
or consolidate with any other person; and seligassransfer, lease, convey or otherwise dispdsdl or substantially all of Celanese US's
assets or the assets of its restricted subsidiaries

In addition, the Senior Credit Agreement requiresaumaintain a maximum first lien senior secumdktage ratio if there are outstanding
borrowings or letters of credit issued under thehang credit facility. Our ability to meet thisnancial ratio can be affected by events beyonc
our control, and we may not be able to meet thusatall.

Such restrictions in our debt instruments couldltés us having to obtain the consent of holddrthe Notes and of our lenders in order to |
certain actions. Disruptions in credit markets mesvent us from obtaining or make it more difficoftmore costly for us to obtain such
consents. Our ability to expand our business adtress declines in our business may be limitegiére unable to obtain such consents.

A breach of any of these covenants could reswdtdefault, which, if not cured or waived, could Bavmaterial adverse effect on our business
financial condition and results of operations. Rarore, a default under the Senior Credit Agre¢roenld permit lenders to accelerate the
maturity of our indebtedness under the Senior €glieement and to terminate any commitments td.l&rwe were unable to repay or
refinance such indebtedness, the lenders und&eher Credit Agreement could proceed against dlateral granted to them to secure that
indebtedness. Our subsidiaries have pledged diseymti portion of our assets as collateral to seaur indebtedness under the Senior Credit
Agreement. If the lenders under the Senior Credite@ment accelerate the repayment of such indedgsdwe may not have sufficient assets
to repay such amounts or our other indebtednedisidimg the Notes. In such event, we could be fdiog bankruptcy or liquidation.
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Celanese and Celanese US are holding companiesaayuend on subsidiaries to satisfy their obligatiamsder the Notes and the guarantee
of Celanese US's obligations under the Notes bydbeke.

As holding companies, Celanese and Celanese USicosabstantially all of their operations throupkit subsidiaries, which own
substantially all of our consolidated assets. Cgusatly, the principal source of cash to pay Cedarand Celanese US's obligations, including
obligations under the Notes and the guaranteeso€tianese US's obligations under the Notes byn€sda is the cash that our subsidiaries
generate from their operations. We cannot assateotlr subsidiaries will be able to, or be perrditie, make distributions to enable Celanese
US and/or Celanese to make payments in respelewfdbligations. Each of our subsidiaries is diwli$ legal entity and, under certain
circumstances, applicable country or state lawgylegory limitations and terms of our debt instruntsemay limit our subsidiaries' ability to
distribute cash to Celanese US and Celanese. \tfigilmndentures governing the Notes limit the apibt our subsidiaries to put restrictions on
paying dividends or making other intercompany payisiéo us, these limitations are subject to ceamlifications and exceptions, which v
have the effect of significantly restricting thepéipability of those limits. In the event Celand$8 and/or Celanese do not receive distribution:
from our subsidiaries, Celanese US and/or Celamasebe unable to make required payments on thesNitte guarantee of Celanese US's
obligations under the Notes by Celanese, or owgrdtidebtedness.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
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Item 2. Properties

Description of Property

We and our affiliates own or lease numerous pradnend manufacturing facilities throughout the ldokWe also own or lease other
properties, including office buildings, warehousapelines, research and development facilitiessaies offices. We continuously review and
evaluate our facilities as a part of our strateggptimize our business portfolio. The followindpla sets forth a list of our principal production
and other facilities throughout the world as of Baber 31, 2012 .

Site

Leased/Owned

Products/Functions

Corporate Offices

Budapest, Hungary

Irving, Texas, US

Nanjing, China

Shanghai, China

Sulzbach, Germany

Advanced Engineered Materials
Auburn Hills, Michigan, US

Bishop, Texas, US

Florence, Kentucky, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Fuji City, Japan

Jubail, Saudi Arabia
Kaiserslautern, Germariy
Kelsterbach, Germany
Kuantan, Malaysia

Leuna, Germany
Nanjing, Chind”

Oberhausen, Germafty

Shelby, North Carolina, US
Suzano, Brazif’

Ulsan, South Korea
Wilmington, North Carolina, US
Winona, Minnesota, US
Consumer Specialties
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Kunming, China

Lanaken, Belgium

Nantong, China

Narrows, Virginia, US

Ocotlan, Mexico

Spondon, Derby, United Kingdoft
Zhuhai, China

Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt8.

Owned by National Methanol Compafiy
Leased

Owned

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt8.

Owned by Polyplastics Co., Lt8.
Owned

Leased
Owned
Leased

Owned by Korea Engineering Plastics Co., [%d.

Owned by Fortron Industries LLE
Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Leased by Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. [%d.
Owned

Owned by Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. L%d.
Owned

Owned

Owned

Leased by Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. 1%d.
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Administrative offices
Corporate headquarters
Administrative offices
Administrative offices
Administrative offices

Automotive Development Center

POM, GUR®ultra-high molecular
weight polyethylene, Compounding

Compounding

POM, Compounding

POM, PBT, LCP, Compounding
MTBE, Methanol

LFT

Site is no longer operating
POM, Compounding

P-hydroxybenzoic acid, Potassium
sulfate

LFT, GUR®ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene, Compounding

GUR ®ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene

LCP, Compounding
Compounding

POM

PPS

LFT

Sorbates, Sunett sweetener
Acetate tow

Acetate tow

Acetate tow, Acetate flake
Acetate tow, Acetate flake
Acetate tow, Acetate flake
Acetate film

Acetate tow




Site

Leased/Owned

Products/Functions

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Canada
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada
Enoree, South Carolina, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy
Geleen, Netherlands
Meredosia, lllinois, US
Nanjing, Chind”

Perstorp, Sweden
Tarragona, Spaiff

Acetyl Intermediates

Bay City, Texas, U®

Bishop, Texas, US
Cangrejera, Mexico

Clear Lake, Texas, US
Frankfurt am Main, Germarf
Jurong Island, Singapofé

Nanjing, Chind”
Pardies, France
Roussillon, Franc®
Tarragona, Spaift

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned

Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa AfE

Leased
Owned
Owned
Owned
Owned by InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG
Leased

Owned
Owned
Leased
Owned by Complejo Industrial Tagsa ATE

Conventional emulsions

LDPE, EVA

Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
VAE emulsions

Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic
Conventional emulsions, VAE emulsic

VAM

Formaldehyde

Acetic anhydride, Ethyl acetate
Acetic acid, VAM

Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl acetate

Acetic acid, Butyl acetate, Ethyl acetate,
VAM

Acetic acid, Acetic anhydride, VAM
Site is no longer operating

Acetic anhydride

VAM

@ Celanese owns the assets on this site and leastmththrough the terms of a lotegm land leas

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Nanjing facility. Celanese owns thetasse this site. Celanese also owns
the land through "land use right grants” for 4&@oyears with the right to transfer, mortgage aséesuch land during the term of the

respective land use right grant.

®  Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park logameFrankfurt am Main, Germar

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Tarragona site. Celanese owns the asstiss site and shares ownershi|
the land. Celanese’s ownership percentage in titkital5%.

® A Celanese cost method investment. Kunming Celtukibers Co. Ltd. owns the assets on this sitdeasks the land from China Natio

Tobacco Corporation.

® A Celanese cost method investm

™ A Celanese cost method investment. Zhuhai Cellutdisers Co. Ltd. owns the assets on this site aasds the land from China National

Tobacco Corporation.

® A Celanese equity method investm

©  Celanese no longer manufactures acetate tow atat@dkeke at the Spondon, Derby, United Kingdota as of December 31, 20
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in a number of legal and regulafmmceedings, lawsuits, claims and investigatioegliental to the normal conduct of our
business, relating to such matters as productitigdand disputes, commercial contracts, emplogmantitrust, intellectual property, workers’
compensation, chemical exposure, asbestos expgsigeacquisitions and divestitures, past wasspaal practices and release of chemicals
into the environment. The Company is actively ddfeg those matters where it is named as a defenSeaiNote 15- EnvironmentahndNote
23 - Commitments and Contingenciiesthe accompanying consolidated financial statdmfar a discussion of environmental matters and
commitments and contingencies related to legalragdlatory proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.
Executive Officers of the Registrai

The names, ages and biographies of our executiiceis as of February 8, 2013 are as follows:

Name Age Position
Mark C. Rohr 61 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief ExeeuOfficer, President
Douglas M. Madden 60 Chief Operating Officer
Steven M. Sterin 41  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Christopher W. Jensen 46 Senior Vice President, Finance
Lori A. Johnston 48 Senior Vice President, Human Resources
Gjon N. Nivica, Jr. 48 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corp@atretary
Mark W. Oberle 47 Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs
Jay C. Townsend 54  Senior Vice President, Business Strategy Developangth Procurement

Mark C. Rohrhas been our Chairman of the Board of Directors@mef Executive Officer and President since ARfilL2 and a member of
our board of directors since April 2007. He serasdh director and as the Executive Chairman ofrAlizée Corporation, a global developer,
manufacturer and marketer of highdwgineered specialty chemicals, from September RéfillFebruary 2012 and previously had serveche
Chairman from 2008 to 2011, President from 200R0b0, Chief Operating Officer from 2000 to 2002 &fdef Executive Officer from 2002
to 2011 of Albemarle. Prior to that, Mr. Rohr sehas Executive Vice PresidenDperations of Albemarle. Before joining Albemaiiés,. Rohi
held leadership roles with companies including @eotal Chemical Corporation and The Dow Chemicah@any. Mr. Rohr has served on the
board of directors of Ashland Inc. since 2008, had served as a member of its audit committeerandrivironmental, health & safety
committee. He also serves on the board of diretogsthe executive committee of the American Cheh@ouncil. Mr. Rohr received a
bachelor's degree in chemistry and chemical engimge&om Mississippi State University.

Douglas M. Madderhas served as our Chief Operating Officer sinceebBdaer 2009. Prior to that time, Mr. Madden sen&€arporate
Executive Vice President with responsibility foet@ompany’s Acetyl Intermediates and Industrialcsdées Segments since February 2009.
He was the Executive Vice President and Presidemttate, EVA Performance Polymers and EmulsionsvV&®H from 2006 through February
2009. Mr. Madden previously served as Preside@at@inese Acetate from October 2003 to 2006. Reiassuming leadership for Celanese
Acetate, Mr. Madden served as Vice President antkfaé Manager of the acrylates business and heglbloél supply chain for Celanese
Chemicals from 2000 to October 2003. Prior to 2000,Madden held various vice president level posi in finance, global procurement ¢
business support with the Hoechst Celanese LiferSeis Group, Celanese Fibers and Celanese Chelisatesses. In 1990, he served as
business director for our GURultra-high molecular weight polyethylene business held prior responsibilities as director of qtyali
management for Specialty Products. Mr. Maddenexiarts career with American Hoechst Corporatiohd84 as manager of corporate
distribution. His prior experience included operatl and distribution management with Warner-Larnbed Johnson & Johnson. Mr. Madden
received a bachelor's degree in business admitigstriaom the University of lllinois. On Novembe®,12012, Mr. Madden provided notice of
his intent to retire from the Company as Chief @giag Officer, effective March 31, 2013. The Comypaoes not plan to appoint a successor
to Mr. Madden.
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Steven M. Sterirhas served as our Senior Vice President and ChiaehEial Officer since July 2007. Mr. Sterin preyéty served as our Vice
President, Controller and Principal Accounting €fi from September 2005 to July 2007 and Direct&imance for Celanese Chemicals from
2003 to 2005 and Controller of Celanese Chemicals 2004 to 2005. Prior to joining Celanese, MerBtworked for Reichhold, Inc., a
subsidiary of Dainnippon Ink and Chemicals, Incogbed, beginning in 1997. There he held a variétgadership positions in the finance
organization before serving as Treasurer from 2001 and later as Vice President of FinancetiGg#&esins from 2001 to 2003.

Mr. Sterin began his career at Price Waterhouse BhRassurance, tax and advisory services firnmently known as PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP. Mr. Sterin, a Certified Public Accountant, dteted from the University of Texas at Austin inyM#95, receiving both a bachelor's
degree in business and a master's degree in pmfakaccounting.

Christopher W. Jenseias served as our Senior Vice President, Finance #ipril 2011. From August 2010 to April 2011, Mensen served
as our Senior Vice President, Finance and Treadariar to August 2010, Mr. Jensen served as ote Yresident and Corporate Controller
from March 2009 to July 2010. From May 2008 to feeloy 2009, he served as Vice President of FinandeTeeasurer. In his current capacity,
Mr. Jensen has global responsibility for corpofatence, treasury operations, insurance risk mamagé pensions, business planning and
analysis, corporate accounting, tax and genergkledccounting. Mr. Jensen was previously the gasisCorporate Controller from March
2007 through April 2008, where he was responsitleSEC reporting, internal reporting, and technamdounting. In his initial role at Celant
from October 2005 through March 2007, he built dindcted the compang’technical accounting function. From August 2a®®ttober 200:
Mr. Jensen worked in the inspections and registmadivision of the Public Company Accounting OvgidiBoard. He spent 13 years of his
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an assurtaxcand advisory services firm, in various posisian both the auditing and mergers &
acquisitions groups. Mr. Jensen earned bachelod'sreaster’'s degrees in accounting from Brigham ‘gouniversity and is a Certified Public
Accountant.

Lori A. Johnstonhas served as our Senior Vice President, HumanuRe=®since October 2012. Prior to joining Celansise was the Vice
President, International Human Resources for Amtyen, a biotechnology medicines company, and leadesl in various human resources
positions of increasing importance with Amgen sif681, except from January 2006 to April 2007 whlea served as the Human Resources
and Communications Director of the Michael and &uU3all Foundation. Before joining Amgen, Ms. Jatemsheld a variety of leadership
positions beginning in 1990 at Dell, Inc., a glolmdibrmation technology company, before servinghesHuman Resources Director, Home
Small Business, from 1997 to 2001. Ms. Johnstonezha master's of human sciences degree from Qiyrdfahe Lake University and a
bachelor's degree in psychology from the UniversitZentral Oklahoma.

Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.has served as our Senior Vice President, Generaiseband Corporate Secretary since April 200%rRoi that time,

Mr. Nivica served as Vice President and GeneralnSelof the $5 billion Honeywell Transportation &yas business group from 2005 to
2009, during which time he also served as Deputye@d Counsel to Honeywell International Inc. Ptmthat time, he was the Vice President
and General Counsel to Honeywell Aerospace Eleti®ystems from 2002 to 2005 and to Honeywell EegiBystems and Services from
1996 to 2002. Mr. Nivica began his career in 198@ &orporate associate in the Los Angeles officgilesson, Dunn & Crutcher, a global law
firm, where he specialized in acquisitions, diveiséis and general corporate and securities wofkyddecoming M&A Senior Counsel to
AlliedSignal Aerospace Inc. from 1994 to 1996. Mivica received his J.D., magna cum laude, fromt@o&Jniversity Law School.

Mark W. Oberlehas served as our Senior Vice President, Corpaféd@s since February 2010. From April 2005 to Redry 2010, Mr. Ober
served as our Vice President, Investor Relatiomsassumed overall responsibility for global commations and public affairs in 2006. Prior
to joining Celanese, Mr. Oberle was Director ofdator Relations for Navistar International Corpimrata holding company whose subsidia
and affiliates produce commercial and military ksicdiesel engines, commercial buses and recredtiehicles, where he served also in a
variety of financial and commercial roles from 1986&005. Prior to that time, he was a managemamtudtant with KPMG LLP. Mr. Oberle
earned bachelor's and master’s degrees in busagsmistration from Bradley University.

Jay C. Townsendhas served as our Senior Vice President, Businese @y Development and Procurement since 2010Thlnnsend
previously served as our Senior Vice Presidengt&gy and Business Development from 2007 to 20idaa our Vice President of Business
Strategy and Development from 2005 to 2006. Mr. isend joined Celanese in 1986 as a Business Aralgshas held several roles of
increasing responsibility within the US and Eurojde. Townsend received his bachelor's degree eriattional finance from Widener
University in 1980.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for the Registrant’'s Common Equity, Relat&lockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of EquBgcurities
Market Information

Our Series A common stock has traded on the New %tock Exchange under the symbol "CE" since Jan2ay2005. The closing sale price
of our Series A common stock, as reported by the Merk Stock Exchange, on February 4, 2013 was5@16The following table sets forth
the high and low intraday sales prices per shamupBeries A common stock, as reported by the Mew Stock Exchange, and the dividends
declared per share on our Series A common stodkéoperiods indicated.

Price Range Dividends
Declared
High Low Per Share
2012
Quarter ended March 31, 2012 $ 525¢ $§ 422 § 0.06(
Quarter ended June 30, 2012 $ 4980 $ 332« % 0.06(
Quarter ended September 30, 2012 $ 4318 $ 3277 9 0.07¢
Quarter ended December 31, 2012 $ 4531 $ 349 $ 0.07¢
2011
Quarter ended March 31, 2011 $ 454; $ 383 $ 0.05(
Quarter ended June 30, 2011 $ 538 $ 4298 % 0.05(
Quarter ended September 30, 2011 $ 5866 $ 324¢ 9 0.06(
Quarter ended December 31, 2011 $ 4700 $ 294: % 0.06(

Holders

No shares of Celane’'s Series B common stock and no shares of Celamds25%convertible perpetual preferred stock ("Preferramt’) are
issued and outstanding. As of February 4, 2018retiwvere 34 holders of record of our Series A comstock. By including persons holding
shares in broker accounts under street names, leoywee estimate we have approximately 55,594 beiaéfiolders.

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors has a policy of declaringpject to legally available funds, a quarterly cedishidend on each share of our Series A
common stock as determined in its sole discrettor. Board of Directors may, at any time, modifyrevoke our dividend policy on our
Series A common stock.

On February 6, 2013, we declared a cash dividé8$8.075 per share on our Series A common stockuating to $12 million . The cash
dividend was for the period from November 1, 20d ddnuary 31, 2013 and will be paid on February2P&3 to holders of record as of
February 19, 2013 .

The amount available to us to pay cash dividendssigicted by our Senior Credit Agreement andi¢hims of our Notes. Any decision to
declare and pay dividends in the future will be matithe discretion of our Board of Directors arilfi depend on, among other things, our
results of operations, cash requirements, finamaatlition, contractual restrictions and otherdagthat our Board of Directors may deem
relevant.

31




Celanese Purchases of its Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regardingurehases of our Series A common stock duringttreetmonths ended December 31, 2012

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares

Total Number of Remaining that may
Total Number Average Shares Purchased as be
of Shares Price Paid per Part of Publicly Purchased Under the
Period Purchased® Share Announced Program Program @
October 1 - 31, 2012 260,20¢ $ 37.7¢ 84,23t $ 397,000,00
November 1 - 30, 2012 64,67: $ 39.3¢ 63,39¢ $ 394,000,00
December 1 - 31, 2012 73,38 $ 43.0¢ 58,69¢ $ 392,000,00
Total 398,26 206,33:

@ Includes 175,972, 1,276, and 14,685 for Octobewadtber and December 2012, respectively, relatatiaces withheld from employees
cover their statutory minimum withholding requiremefor personal income taxes related to the vgsifrrestricted stock units.

@ Our Board of Directors authorized the repurchaseunfCommon Stock as follov

Authorized Amount

(In $ millions)

February 2008 40C
October 2008 10C
April 2011 12¢
October 2012 264

89:

As of December 31, 2012
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed "soliciting material" ortie "filed" with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedpeto the extent that we specifically incorperiatoy reference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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This comparison 1s based on a retur asswning $1Mmmmdj 172W3m Celanese Corporation Cmmmssmk and the SGP ﬁwﬂampmm’:

Index, the S&P 500 Chemicals Index and the S&P 500 Specialty Chemicals Index, usswnﬁg the mmmtq?uﬂm
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Our deferred compensation plan offers certain ofsemior employees and directors the opportunigyeffer a portion of their compensation in
exchange for a future payment amount equal to tlefe@rments plus or minus certain amounts based tifpomarket-performance of specified
measurement funds selected by the participant.eTtieferred compensation obligations may be coresidsecurities of Celanese. Participants
were required to make deferral elections undeptae prior to January 1 of the year such defemdllsbe withheld from their compensation.
We relied on the exemption from registration preddy Section 4(2) of the Securities Act in makiinig offer to a select group of employees,
fewer than 35 of which were non-accredited investorder the rules promulgated by the Securitiestaathange Commission.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The balance sheet data as of December 31, 20120drid, and the statements of operations data éoyears ended December 31, 2012 , 201
and 2010, all of which are set forth below, argvéel from the consolidated financial statementiuded elsewhere in this Annual Report and
should be read in conjunction with those finanstatements and the notes thereto. The balanceddtaeeds of December 31, 2010 , 2009 and
2008 and the statements of operations data foyeghaes ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 shown betosvderived from previously issued
financial statements, adjusted for applicable diiooed operations.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In $ millions, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales 6,41¢ 6,76: 5,91¢ 5,082 6,82:
Other (charges) gains, net (14 (48) (46) (13¢) (1098
Operating profit 511 69C 503 29C 44C
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 657 75E 53¢ 251 43¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 60¢ 60¢€ 42€ 494 37C
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations (4) 1 (49 4 (90)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Cattjmor 60% 607 377 49¢ 281
Earnings (loss) per common share
Continuing operations — basic 3.84 3.8¢ 2.7: 3.37 2.44
Continuing operations — diluted 3.81 3.81 2.6¢ 3.14 2.2
Balance Sheet Data (at the end of period)
Total assets 9,00( 8,51¢ 8,281 8,41 7,15¢
Total debt 3,09¢ 3,015 3,21¢ 3,501 3,53¢
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity 1,73(C 1,341 92¢€ 58€ 174
Other Financial Data
Depreciation and amortization 30¢ 29¢ 287 30¢ 35C
Capital expenditure® 33¢ 364 227 167 267
Dividends paid per common shéte 0.27 0.22 0.1¢ 0.1¢€ 0.1¢

@ Amounts include accrued capital expenditures. Ando not include capital expenditures relatedafuital lease obligations or capital
expenditures related to the relocation and expansi@ur POM plant in Kelsterbach. Seete 24- Supplemental Cash Flow Information
andNote 27- Plant Relocatiolin the accompanying consolidated financial statémen

@ Annual dividends for the year ended December 3122@nsist of two quarterly dividend payments @@ and two quarterly dividend
payments of $0.075 per share. In April 2012 therBad Directors approved a 25% increase in our tgulgrdividend rate from $0.06 to
$0.075 per share of Series A common stock appkcabtiividends payable beginning in August 20A2nual dividends for the year enc
December 31, 2011 consist of two quarterly dividpagments of $0.05 and two quarterly dividend paytsef $0.06 per share. In April
2011 the Board of Directors approved a 20% incr@aser quarterly dividend rate from $0.05 to $0@@8 share of Series A common
stock applicable to dividends payable beginningugust 2011.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

In this Annual Report on Form -K ("Annual Report"), the term "Celanese" refer€elanese Corporation, a Delaware corporation, auod
its subsidiaries. The terms the "Company," "welir"and "us," refer to Celanese and its subsidiaram a consolidated basis. The term
"Celanese US" refers to the Company’s subsidiagla@ese US Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited ligjitompany, and not its subsidiaries.

The following discussion should be read in conjiomcwith the accompanying consolidated financiatsments and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, which are prepared in accai@awith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of AmericaUS
GAAP").

Investors are cautioned that the forwrlooking statements contained in this section aheioparts of this Annual Report involve both résid
uncertainty. Several important factors could caastial results to differ materially from those afiated by these statements. Many of these
statements are macroeconomic in nature and areetbee, beyond the control of management. See "&aiooking Statements"” below.

Forward-Looking Statements

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataddtion and Results of Operations ("MD&A") and ethparts of this Annual Report
contain certain forwartboking statements and information relating tohet are based on the beliefs of our managemenekhasvassumptior
made by, and information currently available ta,@enerally, words such as "believe," "expect,tend," "estimate,” "anticipate," "project,"
"plan," "may," "can," "could," "might," and "will,and similar expressions, as they relate to uinéeaded to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements reflect our curremtsvivith respect to future events, are not guaeandé future performance and involve risks
and uncertainties that are difficult to predictrtRer, certain forward-looking statements are bagmmh assumptions as to future events that
may not prove to be accurate. Segpecial Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemeats$he beginning of this Annual Report for further

discussion.

Item 1A. Risk Factorof this Annual Report also contains a descriptiboestain risk factors that you should consideraithtould significantly
affect our financial results. In addition, the éling factors could cause our actual results tfedihaterially from those results, performanc
achievements that may be expressed or implied dy fuward-looking statements. These factors ineJainong other things:

» changes in general economic, business, politicdiragulatory conditions in the countries or regionghich we operat

» the length and depth of product and industryiriess cycles particularly in the automotive, eiealr textiles, electronics and construction
industries;

» changes in the price and availability of raw enils, particularly changes in the demand forpsupf, and market prices of ethylene,
methanol, natural gas, wood pulp and fuel oil dredgrices for electricity and other energy sources;

» the ability to pass increases in raw material grime to customers or otherwise improve marginsuingrice increase
» the ability to maintain plant utilization rates atodmplement planned capacity additions and expas:

» the ability to reduce or maintain at their catrievels production costs and improve productibigyimplementing technological
improvements to existing plants;

» increased price competition and the introductionarfipeting products by other compar

» changes in the degree of intellectual propenty @ther legal protection afforded to our prodwetsechnologies, or the theft of such
intellectual property;

» costs and potential disruption or interruptidrpduction or operations due to accidents, cyeeurity incidents, terrorism or political
unrest, or other unforeseen events or delays istogtion of facilities;

« potential liability for remedial actions and reased costs under existing or future environmeatallations, including those relating to
climate change;
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» potential liability resulting from pending ortfure litigation, or from changes in the laws, regigns or policies of governments or other
governmental activities in the countries in which @perate;

» changes in currency exchange rates and interest

» our level of indebtedness, which could diminighr ability to raise additional capital to fund ogéons or limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or the chemicals indusiny; a

» various other factors, both referenced and noteefsed in this Annual Repc

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in natndeaae, therefore, beyond our control. Should anaare of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions pliogerrect, our actual results, performance oreadinents may vary materially from those
described in this Annual Report as anticipatedeletl, estimated, expected, intended, plannedajegied. We neither intend nor assume any
obligation to update these forward-looking statetsanhich speak only as of their dates.

Overview

We are a global technology and specialty matecafspany. We are one of the world’s largest prodiioéacetyl products, which are
intermediate chemicals, for nearly all major indiest, as well as a leading global producer of lugtformance engineered polymers that are
used in a variety of high-value applications. Ageognized innovator in the chemicals industry angineer and manufacture a wide variety o
products essential to everyday living. Our broastpct portfolio serves a diverse set of end-usédicgijpns including paints and coatings,
textiles, automotive applications, consumer andioa@pplications, performance industrial applioas, filter media, paper and packaging,
chemical additives, construction, consumer andstréal adhesives, and food and beverage applicationr products enjoy leading global
positions due to our large global production catyaoperating efficiencies, proprietary productteshnology and competitive cost structures.

Our large and diverse global customer base prignadhsists of major companies in a broad arrapdfistries. We hold geographically
balanced global positions and participate in difies end-use applications. We combine a demoresiraick record of execution, strong
performance built on shared principles and objestiand a clear focus on growth and value creatinown for operational excellence and
execution of our business strategies, we deliverevep customers around the globe with best-insctashnologies and solutions.

2012 Highlights

. We completed an offering of $500 million in aggate principal amount of 4.625% senior unsecuoateisndue 2022. In connection with
completion of the offering, we repaid $400 milliohour existing senior secured credit facility ibtedness that was set to mature in 2
and used the remaining proceeds, together with @astand, to make a $100 million contribution to bi$ pension plan.

. We ceased manufacturing acetate tow and acet&gdtzour Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom :

. We announced our new CelPXmatrix technology for filter media. CelFX provides a flexible additive platform for innovatithat
allows our customers increased filter design fléikyh improved constituent reduction and suppertisroad choice for enhancement
additives.

. We announced plans to construct and operatetlzama production facility at our Clear Lake, Texastyl complex which is expected to
start up after July 1, 2015. As one of the worllafgest producers of acetyl products, we planilzetour existing infrastructure to
capture the opportunities created by abundant iartable US natural gas supplies.

. We announced that the Board of Directors in@dasir remaining share repurchase authorizatiai September 30, 2012 to $400
million.

. We launched the new Sunsatitfplatform to help food and beverage manufacturevelde low- and no-calorie products that are better
tasting and simplify the formulation process tangrproducts to market faster.

. We entered into a joint statement of cooperatioadvance the development of fuel ethanol prsjedth Pertamina, the state-owned
energy company of Indonesia. In line with our ldagm strategy to develop new and renewable eneapglilities, Pertamina will
collaborate exclusively with us to jointly develspnthetic fuel ethanol projects in the Republi¢rmfonesia utilizing our proprietary TC
®ethanol process technology.
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. We started up our technology development umiefbanol production at our facility in Clear LaKasxas. The unit will support our
continuing development of TCXethanol process technology for customers in bathstrial-grade and fuel ethanol.

. We completed the acquisition of certain assets fAshland Inc., including two product lines, Varfaand Flexbond, which will support
the strategic growth of our Emulsions business.

. We received key government approvals necesegryoceed with previously announced plans to madglifg enhance our existing
integrated acetyl facility at the Nanjing Chemitradustrial Park in China to produce ethanol forusiial uses. Based upon continued
advancements to our TCX*thanol process technology, we now expect to hpgeoaimately 30 to 40 percent additional ethanol
production capacity above the originally announ2@d,000 tons with no increase in the capital investt for the modification and
enhancement. The unit is expected to startup én2ai.3.

. Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Pdealtings Services both upgraded its outlook for Gede to "Positive” from "Stable." In
raising our outlook, both agencies cited improvpdrating performance, debt reduction as well aoperational, geographical and
product diversity.

. We announced that our Board of Directors appiav@5% increase in our quarterly Series A CommonkScash dividend. The Board of
Directors increased the quarterly dividend ratenf80.06 to $0.075 per share of Common Stock oreateply basis and $0.24 to $0.30
per share of Common Stock on an annual basis. &Wwedividend rate began in August 2012.

2013 Outlook

. We anticipate a challenging global economic envitent will continue into 2013, particularly with thecertainty in the European Unit
We expect growth in China will improve througholu tyear but remain modest compared to historiddeyes a result, a higher
proportion of our earnings is expected to be gdadria higher tax jurisdictions, but should not aapour earnings growth. We expect
our earnings growth in 2013 to be consistent withlong-term growth objectives of 12% to 14% andbéodriven by Celanese-specific
initiatives. In addition to productivity initiativee we will continue to focus on technology platferthat expand our addressable
opportunities, invest in technology innovation thahances our growth prospects and to increaseffinetiveness and speed of new
product introductions.
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Results of Operations

Financial Highlights

Statement of Operations Data
Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other (charges) gains, net
Operating profit (loss)
Equity in net earnings of affiliates
Interest expense
Refinancing expense
Dividend income - cost investments
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)
Other Data
Depreciation and amortization
Operating margif”
Other (charges) gains, net
Employee termination benefits
Kelsterbach plant relocation
Plumbing actions
Insurance recoveries
Asset impairments
Plant/office closures
Commercial disputes
Other

Total other (charges) gains, net

@ Defined as operating profit (loss) divided by nales

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt - third party and affiliates

Long-term debt
Total debt

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
6,41¢ 6,76: 5,91¢
1,192 1,43¢ 1,18(
(507) (53€) (50%)
(14) (48) (46)
511 69C 50z
24z 192 16€&
(185) (221 (204)
(©) (©) (16)
85 80 73
657 755 53¢
60¢< 60€ 42€
4) 1 (49)
60t 607 377
30¢ 29€ 287
8.C% 10.2% 8.5%

(6) (22) (32
() (47) (26)

5 6 59

— — 18
8 D (74)
— — (4

2 15 13

— 1 —
(149 (48) (46)

As of December 31,

2012 2011

(In $ millions)

95¢ 682
16€ 144
2,93( 2,87¢
3,09¢ 3,013







Selected Data by Business Segment

Net Sales
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Inter-segment eliminations
Total
Other (Charges) Gains, Net
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Operating Profit (Loss)
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total

Earnings (Loss) From Continuing Operations Before

Tax
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Depreciation and Amortization
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Other Activities
Total
Operating Margin
Advanced Engineered Materials
Consumer Specialties
Industrial Specialties
Acetyl Intermediates
Total

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 Change 2011 2010 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)
1,261 1,29¢ (37) 1,29¢ 1,10¢ 18¢
1,18¢ 1,161 25 1,161 1,09¢ 63
1,18¢ 1,227 (39 1,22 1,03¢ 187
3,231 3,551 (320 3,551 3,08 46¢
— 1 (1) 1 2 1)
(444) (471 27 (471 (409) (62)
6,41¢ 6,76: (345) 6,76: 5,91¢ 84t
2 (49 47 (49 31 (80)
4) (©) @ ©) (7€) 73
— — — — 25 (25
— 14 (14 14 (12 26
(8) (20) 2 (20 (14) 4
(14 (48) 34 (48) (4€) 2
86 7€ 10 76 18¢€ (110)
244 227 17 227 164 63
82 10C (18 10C 89 11
262 45¢ (196) 45¢ 242 21€
(164) (172) 8 (172) (179) 7
511 69C (179) 69C 502 187
27¢€ 23¢ 37 23¢ 32¢ (90
334 307 27 307 237 70
82 10z (20 10z 89 13
27€ 46¢ (299 46¢ 252 217
(311) (362) 51 (362 (369 7
657 75t (98) 758 53¢ 217
11z 10C 13 10C 76 24
45 44 1 44 42 2
55 45 10 45 41 4
80 96 (16) 96 117 (21)
15 13 2 13 11 2
30¢ 29¢ 10 29¢ 287 11
6.8% 5.€% 5.8% 16.8%
20.6% 19.¢% 19.€% 14.9%
6.2% 8.2% 8.2% 8.€%
8.1% 12.<% 12.% 7.£%
8.C% 10.2% 10.2% 8.5%
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Factors Affecting Business Segment Net Sales
The percentage increase (decrease) in net saiésitable to each of the factors indicated for eaicbur business segments is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2011

Volume Price Currency Other Total
(In percentages)
Advanced Engineered Materials 2 2 3 — (©)]
Consumer Specialties (4) 6 — — 2
Industrial Specialties 3 3 3 — (©)]
Acetyl Intermediates — @) 2 — (9
Total Company — 3 2 — 5)

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Endé&2kcember 31, 2010

Volume Price Currency Other Total
(In percentages)
Advanced Engineered Materials 2 8 3 4 @ 17
Consumer Specialties 1 5 — — 6
Industrial Specialties 2 13 3 — 18
Acetyl Intermediates 4) 16 3 — 15
Total Company D 13 3 — 15

@ 2011 includes the effects of the two product liaeguired in May 2010 from DuPont Performance Polgne
Consolidated Results — Year Ended December 31, 20C®@mpared with Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net salesdecreased $345 million in 2012 from 2011 primadilie to lower pricing in our Acetyl Intermediategsent and unfavorable
currency impacts across all our segments, exceps@oer Specialties, due to the stronger US dojjainast the Euro. Although Acetyl
Intermediates volumes remained flat compared t@th year, acetic acid pricing declined compa®@d011 as a result of the unfavorable
economic conditions in Europe and Asia. Also in RQemporarily elevated industry utilization dueptanned and unplanned outages of ac
products resulted in higher industry pricing.

Operating profit decreased $179 million from thepyear primarily due to lower pricing in our Agétntermediates segment and unfavorable
currency impacts. Lower other (charges) gainsandtselling, general and administrative expenses ansolidated basis were not sufficier
offset the pricing and currency impacts. Operafingfit as a percentage of sales in 2012 decreas@®¥% from 10.2% in 2011.

Selling, general and administrative expenses desete$®29 million in 2012 primarily due to a reduntia business and functional optimization
initiatives and other productivity spending. Asaxgentage of sales, selling, general and admitiigraxpenses remained unchanged at 7.9%
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

Other (charges) gains, net changed $34 millionndu2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due to losygenses related to the relocation of ou
German polyacetal ("POM") operations to the Frartkfloechst Industrial Park in Germany. During tlearyended December 31, 2012 and
2011 we recorded $7 million and $47 million of dtion expenses, respectively. Additionally, weorded $8 millionof employee terminatic
benefits during the year ended December 31, 20afeckto the relocation of our German POM plant.ddditional employee termination
benefits were recorded in 2012. $émte 27- Plant Relocatioin the accompanying consolidated financial stateémfar further information
regarding the POM plant relocation. The German Papirations are included in our Advanced Enginedtatkrials segment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 , we redetensideration of $17 million in connection witie settlement of a claim against a
bankrupt supplier. The resolution of this commédrdigpute is included in our Acetyl Intermediategment.
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Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased $%ilion in 2012 compared to the prior year primaidiue to $18 million in higher earnings in
our Ibn Sina affiliate and $13 million in our Polgptics affiliate both included in our Advanced kregred Materials segment. During the yeal
ended December 31, 2012 , a subsidiary of ourdefsaHoechst affiliate restructured its debt resglin additional net earnings of affiliates of
$22 million of which $3 million was attributable émr Consumer Specialties segment, $6 million toAmetyl Intermediates segment and $13
million to Other Activities.

Our effective income tax rate for the year endedddeber 31, 2012 was 7% compared to 20% for thegreded December 31, 2011 . The
effective tax rate for 2012 was favorably impadbgdoreign tax credit carryforwards realized in th8 during the three months ended March
31, 2012 and offset by deferred tax charges rekatetianges in assessment regarding the permagiemestment of certain foreign earnings.

Consolidated Results - Year Ended December 31, 20Cbmpared with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net saledncreased $845 million in 2011 from 2010 primadiye to higher pricing across all of our busineggrents. Favorable foreign
currency impacts due to the weakening of the Usdabainst the Euro also added to the increasetisales. In addition to higher pricing, our
Advanced Engineered Materials segment contribugexlit increase in net sales reflecting the impéatt®two product lines, Zenifdiquid
crystal polymers ("LCP") and Thern®polycyclohexylenedimethylene terephthalate ("PCT"), acquired in N&y0, as well as higher volur

in almost all of its product lines, particularlyliong-fiber reinforced thermoplastics ("LFT") andJ®& ® ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene. Increased net sales also were atr@fsstrong global demand and higher innovatiorumas from our Emulsions business.
Volumes in our Consumer Specialties segment rerdaiglatively flat while volumes in our Acetyl Intaediates segment decreased primarily
due to planned and unplanned production outagegradtianjing facility and industry destocking acrtiss supply chain at the end of the year.

Operating profit increased $187 million from théopiyear due to higher net sales, primarily in Agetyl Intermediates segment, which more
than offset the increase in raw materials, otheiatée costs, and selling, general and administeatxpenses. Operating profit also increased
due to the absence of certain write-offs and acatdd amortization recorded in 2010. During ther yraled December 31, 2010 , we wrote-of
other productive assets of $18 million relateduo $ingapore and Nanjing, China facilities, whict ecluded in our Acetyl Intermediates
segment. We also recorded $22 million of acceldratrortization to writeff the asset associated with a raw material pusekagreement wit

a supplier who filed for bankruptcy in 2009. Theelerated amortization was recorded as $20 mitlioour Acetyl Intermediates segment and
$2 million to our Advanced Engineered Materialsraegt. Both the write-off of other productive assatsl accelerated amortization were
recorded to Cost of Sales in the accompanying diolaged statements of operations during the yedediDecember 31, 2010 .

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise&31 million in 2011 primarily due to costs @sated with business and functional
optimization initiatives and higher spending ondmation. However, as a percentage of sales, seliieigeral and administrative expenses
declined from 8.5% to 7.9% for the year ended Ddamm31, 2011 as compared to the same period in @0&@0o sustainable efficiencies.

Other (charges) gains, net changed $2 million du2i@11 as compared to 2010 primarily due to a dserén asset impairments and employee
termination benefits offset by an increase in ptafdcation costs, a decrease in insurance reasvarid the absence of reductions in legal
reserves.

During 2010, we concluded that certain long-livedets were partially impaired at our acetate fhaka tow manufacturing operations in
Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom. Accordingly, we terdown the related property, plant and equipmeitstfair value of $31 million ,
resulting in long-lived asset impairment losse$ 7 million . The Spondon, Derby, United Kingdoneagtions are included in our Consumer
Specialties segment.

Employee termination benefits decreased $10 miltimmpared to prior year, primarily due to lower sanee costs associated with the plar
closure of our Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom fiaciind our "Project of Closure" at our Pardiesriee operations, offset by additional
severance costs related to our Kelsterbach pléotaton. The Pardies, France operations are ieduna our Acetyl Intermediates segment.
Note 4, Acquisition- Dispositions, Ventures and Plant Closurethe accompanying consolidated financial statamgr further information
regarding these plant closures. We recorded $8mitif employee termination benefits during theryeaded December 31, 20fdlated to the
relocation of our POM Kelsterbach, Germany operstim the Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park, Genyn&n September 26, 2011, we
announced the start-up of the new POM productioilitiain the Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011 , we redeiensideration of $17 million in connection witie settlement of a claim against a
bankrupt supplier. The resolution of this commédrdigpute is included in the Acetyl Intermediategment.

Other (charges) gains, net for the year ended DieeeB1, 2011 and 2010 was partially offset by $tioniand $59 million , respectively, of
recoveries and decreases in legal reserves assbeigh plumbing actions which are included in dulvanced Engineered Materials segment.

As a result of certain events beginning in Octd@®38 and subsequent periodic cessation of produdtioing 2009, we recorded $25 millioh
insurance recoveries during the year ended Dece&ihe010 in our Industrial Specialties segments Bmount was partially offset by a $7
million charge from our captive insurance compainietuded in Other Activities.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased dgr2011 primarily due to higher earnings in our 8ina affiliate included in our Advanced
Engineered Materials segment.

Our effective income tax rate for the year endedddgber 31, 2011 was 20% compared to 21% for thegrebed December 31, 2010. The
effective tax rate for 2011 was favorably impadigdncreased foreign tax credit benefits realizethe United States and changes in
assessments regarding valuation allowances onircederred tax assets, partially offset by fordiggses not providing tax benefits. The
effective rate for 2010 was favorably impacted meadments to tax legislation in Mexico.

Business Segments — Year Ended December 31, 2012npared with Year Ended December 31, 2011

Advanced Engineered Materia

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,261 1,29¢ (37
Net sales variance

Volume (2) %

Price 2%

Currency 3) %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net 2 (49 47
Operating profit (loss) 86 76 10
Operating margin 6.€ % 5.€%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 19C 161 29
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 27¢ 23¢ 37
Depreciation and amortization 112 10C 13

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devefopsiuces and supplies a broad portfolio of higfiggmance specialty polymers for
application in automotive, medical and electromosducts, as well as other consumer and industpiplications. Together with our strategic
affiliates, our Advanced Engineered Materials seginga leading participant in the global speciaibyymers industry. The primary product:
Advanced Engineered Materials are polyoxymethylate®y commonly known as polyacetal ("POM"), LFTlybaitylene terephthalate

("PBT"), GUR®ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene and LCPNP, LFT and PBT are used in a broad range of prisdaciuding
automotive components, medical devices, electrpajggliances and industrial applications. GURtra-high molecular weight polyethylene is
used in battery separators, conveyor belts, fittraéquipment, coatings and medical devices. Pxiraad uses for LCP are electrical and
electronics applications or products. Polyphenykuiéide ("PPS"), sold under the Fortrdbrand, is a key product of Fortron Industries LLC,
one of our strategic affiliates. PPS is used indewariety of automotive and other applicatiorspexially those requiring heat and/or chemica
resistance.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales decre®3@dnillion for the year ended December 31, 20IBmared to the same period in 2011 .
The decrease in net sales was primarily due tavlek economic conditions in Europe, particularlpéoting demand for automotive and
industrial applications in this region, partiallffset by increased volumes in automotive
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applications in the Americas. The weak Euro hadrdavorable currency impact on net sales. 2% higkierage pricing across most product
lines partially offset the lower volumes and unfaale currency impacts.

Operating profit increased $10 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 as compared to the saind pe2011 primarily due to a change
in other (charges) gains, net of $47 millppmmarily associated with the relocation and expamsf our Kelsterbach, Germany POM produc
operations which more than offset the higher deatien of $13 million mainly related to the new PQivbduction facility in Frankfurt

Hoechst Industrial Park. Increased pricing resuitegkpanded margins which partially offset lowetumes, unfavorable currency impacts anc
higher expenses of $28 million, primarily relatecbtant maintenance, integrating manufacturing afens from recently acquired product
lines and investing in our compounding operationasia.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , equitytieammings (loss) of affiliates increased $29 muillprimarily due to an $18 million increase

in earnings in our Ibn Sina affiliate, which progglan economic hedge against raw material costsinggir specialty polymer operations. The
increase in lbn Sina earnings was primarily dritsgrhigher pricing of methanol and methyl tertianyyd ether. Operating and financial results
of our Polyplastics affiliate for the year endedcBmber 31, 2011 were modestly impacted by the M2@d1 natural disasters in Japan and a
plant turnaround during the three months ended idbee 31, 2011 . No such events occurred in 2012 @atnings in our Polyplastics affiliate

up $13 million over 2011 .

Consumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,18¢ 1,161 25
Net sales variance

Volume 4) %

Price 6 %

Currency — %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net 4 3 (D)
Operating profit (loss) 244 227 17
Operating margin 20.€% 19.€%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 6 2 4
Dividend income - cost investments 83 78 5
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase t 334 307 27
Depreciation and amortization 45 44 1

Our Consumer Specialties segment includes our A&@@ducts and Nutrinova businesses, which semsutner-driven applications. Our
Acetate Products business is a leading producesapglier of acetate flake, acetate film and aeatw, primarily used in filter products
applications. Our Nutrinova business is a leadmgrnational supplier of premium quality ingredeefdr the food, beverage and
pharmaceuticals industries. Nutrinova producessafid Sunet?, high intensity sweeteners, and is one of the dimtargest producers of food
protection ingredients, such as potassium sorlzatesorbic acid.

Net sales for Consumer Speciallincreased $25 million for the year ended Decembef812 as compared to the same period in 2011cdue
6% higher Acetate Products pricing which more tofiset the decline in volumes. Volumes declined4oetate Products primarily due to
actions taken to accommodate the November 2012 et of our acetate tow and flake manufacturingajpens at our Spondon, Derby,
United Kingdom site. Nutrinova net sales remairatidver prior year.

Operating profit increased $17 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 as compared with the parial in 2011 as higher pricing more
than offset lower volumes and $24 million in higlpdaint maintenance and energy costs. Plant maintenzosts included $10 million of
increased spending related to a temporary produotitage during the three months ended March 3112.20

Other (charges) gains, net changed $1 millionHerytear ended December 31, 2012 primarily duedordéng insurance recoveries of $9
million related to an electrical disruption in 2040our Acetate Products manufacturing facilitiNarrows,
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Virginia offset by $8 million of long-lived assehpairment losses related to the previously annalintesure of our Spondon, Derby, United
Kingdom facility. The insurance recoveries wereseffin our captive insurance companies includddtiver Activities.

Industrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,18¢ 1,22: (39
Net sales variance

Volume 3%

Price (3) %

Currency 3) %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net — — —
Operating profit (loss) 82 10C (18
Operating margin 6.€% 8.2%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 82 10z (20)
Depreciation and amortization 55 45 10

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Eions and EVA Performance Polymers businessesE@uisions business is a leading
global producer of vinyl acetate-based emulsiorsdavelops products and application technologiesprove performance, create value and
drive innovation in applications such as paints epakings, adhesives, construction, glass fibatilés and paper. Our emulsions products are
sold under globally and regionally recognized bsimtluding EcoVAE®, Mowilith ©, Vinamul®, Celvolit®, BriteCoat®, TufCOR™, and
Avicor ™ EVA Performance Polymers is a leading North Arweanimanufacturer of a full range of low-densityyathylene and specialty
ethylene vinyl acetate ("EVA") resins and compourgtsdd under the Atevaand VitalDose® brands, these products are used in many
applications, including flexible packaging filmaphination film products, hot melt adhesives, mddicaducts, automotive, carpeting and
photovoltaic cells.

Net saledecreased in Industrial Specialties $39 milliontfar year ended December 31, 2012 compared t@the period in 2011 . Volumes
increased, reflecting the increased demand in Namtlerica and Asia for our Emulsions applicationgt, Wwere not sufficient to offset the
impacts of lower pricing and unfavorable curremogstly due to the stronger dollar against the Euoaver pricing was primarily driven by
lower raw material costs, a shift in product miboir Emulsions business and a soft global demanpHotovoltaic applications.

Operating profit decreased $18 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 compared to the samealperi®11 . The decrease in operating
profit is attributed to the 3% lower average prigipartially offset by higher volumes as well aséo raw material costs of $34 million,
primarily related to ethylene and vinyl acetate wmoer ("VAM"). Depreciation and amortization incredss10 million compared to prior year,
primarily due to increased amortization in our Esmuhs business related to the recent acquisitidimiéé-lived intangible assets and increased
depreciation related to the China vinyl acetatgletfe emulsions ("VAE") capacity expansion.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 3,231 3,551 (320
Net sales variance

Volume — %

Price (7) %

Currency (2) %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net — 14 (14
Operating profit (loss) 263 45¢ (19¢€)
Operating margin 8.1% 12.%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 11 5 6
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 27¢ 46¢ (199
Depreciation and amortization 80 96 (16

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetic anhydride and acetate esters. Tl
products are generally used as starting matewalsdiorants, paints, adhesives, coatings and nmedicThis business segment also produces
organic solvents and intermediates for pharmacagricultural and chemical products.

Net saledecreased $320 million for the year ended Decei®be?012 compared to the same period in 2011 dlener pricing and
unfavorable foreign currency impacts primarily @nvby the weakening of the Euro against the USadddiolumes overall remained flat, with
higher downstream product volumes, primarily VAMlaacetic anhydride, offsetting the decline in acatid volumes. Acetic acid pricing and
demand declined during the year ended Decemb&@?P, as a result of the unfavorable economic cmmditin Europe and Asia. Also in
2011 , temporarily elevated industry utilizatioredo planned and unplanned outages of acetyl ptsedesulted in higher industry pricing.

Operating profit decreased $196 million for theryeaded December 31, 2012 compared to the sanmeparR011 primarily due to the 7%
decrease in sales prices and 2% impact of unfalefateign currency on sales. The decrease in tipgrarofit was partially offset by lower
raw materials costs of $69 million and lower plangintenance of $20 million. Other (charges) games,changed $14 milliofor the year ende
December 31, 2012 . During the year ended DeceBthet011 we received consideration of $17 milliorcdnnection with the settlement of a
claim against a bankrupt supplier. No such setttégmes received in 2012. Depreciation and amortinatecreased $16 million primarily due
to certain customer-related intangible assets bieilhgamortized in 2011.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrataegivities, and our captive insurance
companies.

The operating loss of $164 million for Other Acties decreased $8 million for the year ended Deeer@b, 2012 compared to the same perio
in 2011 primarily due to a decrease in selling,agahand administrative expenses. Selling, gersrdladministrative expenses decreased $1¢
million primarily due to a reduction in businesgldanctional optimization initiatives, stock-bassmmpensation costs and other productivity
spending. The decrease in these costs were padfédet by captive insurance recoveries paid ofrfiion during the year ended

December 31, 2012 related to an electrical disongth 2010 at our Acetate Products manufacturiedifiain Narrows, Virginia.
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Business Segment - Year Ended December 31, 2011 Quamred with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Advanced Engineered Materia

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,29¢ 1,10¢ 18¢
Net sales variance

Volume 2%

Price 8%

Currency 3%

Other 4%
Other (charges) gains, net (49 31 (80)
Operating profit (loss) 76 18¢€ (110
Operating margin 5.8% 16.€%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 161 144 17
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase t 23¢ 32¢ (90)
Depreciation and amortization 10C 76 24

Advanced Engineered Materials' net sales incref$88@ million for the year ended December 31, 2Qdrhmared to the same period in 2010.
The increase in net sales is primarily due to iases in value-in use pricing for all products, aid#act due to two product lines, ZerfteCP
and Therm¥ PCT, acquired from DuPont Performance Polymers ay 010, favorable currency impacts, driven byviieakening of the US
dollar against the Euro, as well as higher volumedmost all product lines, particularly in LFT&GUR® ultra-high molecular weight
polyethylene, reflecting an increase in automotieenand with auto builds up 9% in North America ower prior year*.

Operating profit decreased $110 million for theryeaded December 31, 2011 as compared to the samoe jn 2010 mainly due to an $80
million change in other (charges) gains, net. Otbkarges) gains, net were higher than in the gear reflecting $21 million in higher costs
incurred in 2011 associated with the relocationwf POM production facility to Frankfurt Hoechstilrstrial Park and $53 million related to a
lower amount of recoveries and legal reserve résligtassociated with plumbing actions. In addititve, improved margins from volume and
price were more than offset by higher depreciatedated to the new POM production facility in Fréumk of $20 million, and higher raw
material costs, primarily ethylene and polypropgleof $52 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, an incraasguity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates pallyi offset the decrease in earnings (loss)
from continuing operations before tax. The incraaseet earnings (loss) of affiliates was primadiyven by $31 million of higher earnings in
our Ibn Sina affiliate, which provides an econotmétige against raw material costs used in our POdviadipns.

Operating and financial results of our Polyplastitategic affiliate were modestly impacted by therch 2011 natural disasters in Japan and
plant turnaround during the year ended Decembe?®11.

*Source: IHS, Inc. 2012
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Consumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,161 1,09¢ 63
Net sales variance

Volume 1%

Price 5%

Currency — %

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net 3 (76) 73
Operating profit (loss) 227 164 63
Operating margin 19.€¢ % 14.<%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 2 2 —
Dividend income - cost investments 78 71 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase t 307 237 70
Depreciation and amortization 44 42 2

Net sales for Consumer Speciallincreased $63 million for the year ended DecemtieP811 as compared to the same period in 2010.
Acetate Products pricing increased 6% while volustaged relatively flat year over year, reflectsigpng global demand for our products
which offset the impact on volumes during the thremnths ended September 30, 2011 when the busimessed a temporary manufacturing
outage. Nutrinova's volumes increased slightlye@fhg higher demand and new applications for Stneidffsetting its slight decrease in
pricing.

Operating profit increased $63 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 as compared with the paria in 2010 primarily due to a
change in other (charges) gains, net with the atesehthe long-lived asset impairment losses of ®ilton incurred in 2010 associated with
management's assessment of the closure of outadlatee and tow production operations in Sponderpy, United Kingdom. Higher raw
material costs, primarily due to wood pulp pricad &ncreased spending on planned maintenance aaliliy efforts of $43 million and $27
million, respectively, were partially offset by higr pricing.

Industrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 1,22: 1,03¢ 187
Net sales variance

Volume 2%

Price 13%

Currency 3%

Other —%
Other (charges) gains, net — 25 (25)
Operating profit (loss) 10C 89 11
Operating margin 8.2% 8.6%
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 10z 89 13
Depreciation and amortization 45 41 4

Net saledncreased in our Industrial Specialties segmen7$tBlion for the year ended December 31, 2011 caneqgh to the same period in
2010. Increased net sales in our Emulsions busimess a result of geographic growth primarily inil@h reflecting the growth in Asia's
construction industry and an increase in our capaSirong global demand, particularly in North Anaa, for innovative applications and
adhesive applications from our Emulsions businé&ss @ntributed to our
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increase in net sales. In addition net sales wepadcted by a favorable currency due to the weatkardagainst the Euro and higher pricing in
both our Emulsions and our EVA Performance Polyrhessnesses.

Operating profit increased $11 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 compared to the samelper2®10. The increase in operating
profit is attributed to the increase in volumes aniding offset by higher raw material costs of $@#lion, primarily ethylene, VAM and
acrylates, higher depreciation with the completbour China facility expansion, as well as the $#8ion impact of an insurance recovery in
2010 related to events of force majeure at our Péfformance Polymers facility in Edmonton, Albe@anada in 2008 and 2009, which is
recorded as a component of other (charges) gaghs, n

Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Net sales 3,551 3,08z 46¢
Net sales variance

Volume 4) %

Price 16 %

Currency 3%

Other — %
Other (charges) gains, net 14 (12 26
Operating profit (loss) 45¢ 242 21€
Operating margin 12.€% 7.€%
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 5 5 —
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befare t 46¢ 252 217
Depreciation and amortization 96 117 (21)

Net saledncreased $469 million for the year ended Decer8tie011 compared to the same period in 20d®to higher pricing and favoral
foreign currency impacts driven by the weakeninghefUS dollar against the Euro and Chinese reninoiifet partially by lower volumes.
Volumes decreased primarily due to planned andamnm@d outages at our Nanjing facility, which hatkgative 1% impact on volume year
over year, and industry destocking across the gugin at the end of the year. The rapid destgcuross the acetyl chain during the three
months ended December 31, 2011 was a result of lem@use demand in Europe due to European econoroartainty which temporarily
lowered volumes 1% compared to prior year. Faverghiing for all major acetyl derivative produittds was achieved across all regions,
reflecting the recovery of higher raw material edstr ethylene, methanol and carbon monoxide aighasupply.

Operating profit increased $216 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011 compared to the sanmmdpar2010 . The increase in operating
profit is primarily due to the increase in salee@s and impact of favorable foreign currency desahich more than offset the decline in
volumes and the impact of higher raw material, gnand other variable costs of 14%. During the wrated December 31, 2011 , we also
received consideration of $17 million in connectiith the settlement of a claim against a banksupiplier which was recorded to other
(charges) gains, net. Depreciation and amortizdtiothe year ended December 31, 2011 was lessitithe prior year. In 2010 , $20 million
of accelerated amortization was recorded to wrifehe asset associated with a raw material pueclagseement with the bankrupt supplier.
The increase in operating profit also reflectsrerguction in exit costs related to our acetic aid VAM production operations in Pardies,
France of $8 million .

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathegivities, and our captive insurance
companies.

The operating loss for Other Activities decreasédrfiilion for the year ended December 31, 2011 caneqb to the same period in 2010
primarily due to lower selling, general and adntiaive expenses and other (charges) gains, niihdg@eneral and administrative expenses
decreased $13 million primarily due to lower shasediices costs, stock-based compensation costewardlegal claims, slightly offset by
strategic growth initiatives. Other (charges) gamet changed $4
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million due to the resolution of a commercial dispand the absence of insurance recovery paynefitetting these lower costs was the
absence of the $14 million gain on the sale offéineobuilding in 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexhf operations, available cash and cash equivaterdglividends from our portfolio of
strategic investments. In addition, as of Decen3ie2012 we have $108 million available for bornogviinder our credit-linked revolving
facility and $600 million available under our réxing credit facility to assist in meeting our warly capital needs and other contractual
obligations, if required.

While our contractual obligations, commitments detit service requirements over the next severabyaa significant, we continue to belie
we will have available resources to meet our liguicequirements, including debt service, in 201f3our cash flow from operations is
insufficient to fund our debt service and otherigditions, we may be required to use other meanablato us such as increasing our
borrowings, reducing or delaying capital expendisjiseeking additional capital or seeking to restine or refinance our indebtedness. There
can be no assurance, however, that we will contioggnerate cash flows at or above current levels.

As a result of the National Emission Standard faz&tdous Air Pollutants for Industrial, Commercaaid Institutional Boilers and Process
Heaters ("Boiler MACT") regulations discussedtem 1A. Risk Factorswe will be required to make significant capitapenditures to comp
with stricter emissions requirements for industbiailers and process heaters at our facilitiebénrtext three to four years. In October 2012, w
received approval to proceed with replacing thd-iced boilers at our Narrows, Virginia site wittew, natural gas-fired boilers. Our total
investment is estimated at over $150 million. Uppproval of construction permits, we anticipatestarction will begin in early 2013 with
completion approximately 2 years later.

In June 2012, we announced our intent to buildva h& million ton per year methanol plant in Cleake, Texas. The unit is expected to start
up in mid-July 2015. We are currently evaluatingmas strategic alternatives that would allow ushiare the off-take and minimize our
portion of the capital expenditures of this planfelity.

In June 2011, we announced our plans to modifyeardince our existing integrated acetyl facilityhat Nanjing Chemical Industrial Park with
our TCX®advanced technology. In March 2012, we receivedgmernment approvals necessary to proceed witiplans to modify and
enhance our Nanjing facility. The unit is expededtartup in late 2013 with a capacity of appraadefy 275,000 tons per year. We also intenc
to construct one, and possibly two, additional stdal ethanol complexes in China, following neeggsapprovals, utilizing Celanese TCX
ethanol process technology to help supply appboatfor the growing Asia region.

In April 2010, we announced that, through our sgat affiliate Ibn Sina, we will construct a 50,0@& POM production facility in Saudi
Arabia. Our pro rata share of invested capitahePOM expansion is expected to total approxima&B5 million over a five year period
which began in late 2010.

Total cash outflows for capital expenditures, idéhg the specific projects above, are expectectmithe range of $375 million to $400
million in 2013 .

On a stand-alone basis, Celanese and its immeiDBa8s owned subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LL&[@@ese US"), have no material
assets other than the stock of their subsidiaridswa independent external operations of their dvazordingly, they generally depend on the
cash flow of their subsidiaries and their abilitypay dividends and make other distributions taa@ese and Celanese US in order to meet the
obligations, including their obligations under seriredit facilities and senior notes and to payd#inds on Celanese Series A common stock.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2862%359 million , which is an increase of $277lionl from December 31, 2011 . As of
December 31, 2012 , $674 million of the $959 millf cash and cash equivalents was held by ouigioubsidiaries. If these funds are
needed for our operations in the US, we may beiredjtio accrue and pay US taxes to repatriate thesbks. Our intent is to permanently
reinvest these funds outside of the US, with thesjide exception of funds that have been previosishject to US federal and state taxation.
Our current plans do not demonstrate a need tdriafgacash held by our foreign subsidiaries imxable transaction to fund our US operati
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2861$682 million , which was a decrease of $58omilfrom December 31, 2010 .
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* Net Cash Provided by Operating Activiti

Cash flow provided by operating activities increhbg $84 million for the year ended December ®,2as compared to the same period in
2011 . The increase in cash provided by operati@sspositively impacted by the decrease in tradekiwg capital, which was primarily due to
the decrease in trade receivables. Trade recewdelereased primarily due to lower net sales duhieghree months ended December 31,
2012. The increase in cash provided by operatiasalso impacted by lower cash taxes paid of $8bmij lower cash interest paid of $34
million , offset by higher pension plan and othesfpetirement benefit plan contributions of $81limil made during the year ended Decembel
31, 2012 as compared to the prior year.

Cash flow provided by operating activities increhbg $186 million for the year ended December2®1l,1 as compared to the same period in
2010. Cash flow provided by operations was poditiipacted by the increase in earnings from cartig operations as well as lower cash
taxes. The increase in cash provided by operati@sspartially offset by the impact of increasefr@ue working capital, which was primarily
impacted by the increase in trade receivables mrehtories. Trade receivables increased primatiby th increases in net sales resulting from
higher average selling prices. Inventories incrégsénarily due to anticipated business growth@i2, higher raw material prices and in
preparation for site optimization. The increaseash provided by operations was also offset bydrigiension plan and other postretirement
benefit plan contributions of $127 million made idgrthe year ended December 31, 2011 as compatee fior year.

Trade working capital is calculated as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
Trade receivables, net 827 871 827
Inventories 711 71z 61C
Trade payables - third party and affiliates (649) (679 (67%)
Trade working capital 88¢ 91C 764

» Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activit

Net cash used in investing activities v$500 million and $441 million for the years endegcBmber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Cash
outflows were primarily for capital expenditures®#61 million and $349 million for the years end@ecember 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively, excluding amounts related to thecation and expansion of our German POM operatiBapital expenditures for our
Kelsterbach POM plant relocation and expansion d8million and $204 million for the years endeelcBmber 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively. In addition, during the year endedédyeber 31, 2011, we received proceeds of $158mifliom the Frankfurt, Germany Airport
related to the relocation of our German POM opensti No such proceeds were received during thegreded December 31, 2012.

Net cash used for acquisitions increase®15 million during the year ended December 31, 2012012 we acquired two emulsions product
lines, Vinac®and Flexbond, for $23 million while in 2011 we spent $8 milliam the acquisition of emulsions process technology

Net cash used in investing activities decre:$119 million for the year ended December 31, 20l &mmpared to the same period in 2010.
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we redéig&8 million from the Frankfurt, Germany Airpoelated to the relocation of our
Kelsterbach, Germany Ticona operations. No suchgads were received during the same period in 2@Jddition, in 2011 capital
expenditures related to the relocation and expansi@ur German POM operations were $108 milliomdothan in 2010. In 2011 we acquired
a business primarily consisting of emulsions predeshnology for $8 million while in 2010 we incedr$46 million related to our acquisition
of two complimentary product lines by our Advandathineered Materials segment, ZeffiteCP and Therm® PCT. These decreases in cash
used in investing activities was partially offsgtdn increase in capital expenditures from $34%anifor the year ended December 31, 201
compared to $201 million in 2010.

» Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activiti

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitéange$302 million from a cash outflow of $253 millionrfthe year ended December 31,
2011 to a cash inflow of $49 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012 . The increase in net aasidpd by financing activities was
primarily due to net borrowings of $63 million i@22 compared to net repayments of
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$196 million in 2011. Net cash provided by finarngcactivities also benefited from higher stock optéxercises in 2012 of $62 million
compared to $20 million of stock option exercige2011. On November 13, 2012, Celanese US compdetexdfering of $ 500 million in
aggregate principal amount of 4.625% senior ungecnotes due 2022 (the " 4.625% Notes"). We usedgb the proceeds from the 4.625%
Notes to prepay 400 millionof our outstanding Term C loan facility. The remiagproceeds, together with cash on hand, were tosethke :
$100 million contribution to our US pension plan.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitbeingec$135 million from a cash outflow of $388 millidor the year ended December
2010 to a cash outflow of $253 millidor the year ended December 31, 2011. The decirassh used in financing activities was prims
related to lower net borrowings and fewer stockurepase transactions when compared to the samedperi2010. In May 2011, w
completed an offering of $400 million of 5.875% Eerunsecured notes due 2021 (the " 5.8788tes"). We used the proceeds from
issuance of the 5.875% Notes and cash on han@&paythe outstanding balance of $516 million onTeerm B loan facility.

In addition, exchange rate effects on cash and egsivalents were a favorable currency impact ofrfion in 2012compared to unfavorat
impacts of $2 million and $18 million for the yeansded December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Debt and Other Obligation
» Senior Notes

On November 13, 2012, Celanese US completed arraffef $ 500 million in aggregate principal amoohtd.625% senior unsecured notes
due 2022 (the " 4.625% Notes") in a public offeriegistered under the Securities Act of 1933, asratad (the "Securities Act"). The 4.625%
Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured ba€islagese and each of the domestic subsidiari€glahese US that guarantee its obligal
under its senior secured credit facilities (theb'Sdiary Guarantors").

The 4.625% Notes were issued under an indentuesl déday 6, 2011, as amended by a second suppleniedésiture, dated November 13,
2012 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture") amongn@ése US, Celanese, the Subsidiary Guarantorgvatld Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee. Celanese US will pay @steon the 4.625% Notes on March 15 and Septentbef dach year commencing on

March 15, 2013. Prior to November 15, 2022, Celar¢S may redeem some or all of the 4.625% Notasedemption price of 100% of the
principal amount, plus a "make-whole" premium ascé#fied in the Second Supplemental Indenture, aticsued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date. The 4.625% Notes are senswaumed obligations of Celanese US and rank equmaitight of payment with all other
unsubordinated indebtedness of Celanese US.

In May 2011 , Celanese US completed an offering4@0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.8¥%enior unsecured notes due 2021
(the " 5.875% Notes") in a public offering regig@munder the Securities Act. The 5.875% Notes aaegagnteed on a senior unsecured basis b
Celanese and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

The 5.875% Notes were issued under an indentura éinst supplemental indenture, each dated M&0&1 (the "First Supplemental
Indenture”) among Celanese US, Celanese, the Saysf@uarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, National Agg@n, as trustee. Celanese US |
interest on the 5.875% Notes on June 15 and Deaehdbef each year commencing on December 15, 2@tibr. to June 15, 2021 , Celanese
US may redeem some or all of the 5.875% Notes@dl@mption price of 100% of the principal amouhisp "make-whole" premium as
specified in the First Supplemental Indenture, plosrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemplate. The 5.875% Notes are senior
unsecured obligations of Celanese US and rank lggnaight of payment with all other unsubordindtedebtedness of Celanese US.

In September 2010, Celanese US completed the prnplatement of $600 million in aggregate princgraount of 6.625% senior unsecured
notes due 2018 (the " 6.625% Notes") under an idlerated September 24, 2010 (the "Indenture"nan@elanese US, Celanese, the
Subsidiary Guarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, Natidsaociation, as trustee. In April 2011, Celane&eregistered the 6.625% Notes under
the Securities Act. Celanese US pays interest @6 #25% Notes on April 15 and October 15 of eadr gommencing on April 15, 2011. The
6.625% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in paengatime on or after October 15, 2014 at the mgutéon prices specified in the Indenture.
Prior to October 15, 2014, Celanese US may redeene r all of the 6.625% Notes at a redemptionepoic100% of the principal amount,
plus a "make-whole" premium as specified in theshtdre, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anthe redemption date. The 6.625% Notes
are senior unsecured obligations of Celanese USaridequally in right of payment with all othersubordinated indebtedness of Celanese
US. The 6.625% Notes are guaranteed on a seniecurexl basis by Celanese and the Subsidiary Goasant
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The Indenture and the First and Second Supplemietahtures contain covenants, including, but imitéd to, restrictions on our ability to
incur indebtedness; grant liens on assets; meogsotidate, or sell assets; pay dividends or maékergestricted payments; engage in
transactions with affiliates; or engage in othesibasses.

*  Senior Credit Facilities

In September 2010, we entered into an amendmeeéagmt with the lenders under our existing ser@oured credit facilities in order to
amend and restate the corresponding credit agreedaad as of April 2, 2007 (as previously amendee "Existing Credit Agreement”, and
as amended and restated by the amendment agre¢nectAmended Credit Agreement”). Our Amended Gradreement consists of the
Term C loan facility due 2016, the Term B loan liacidue 2014, a $600 million revolving credit fhi terminating in 2015 and $228 million
credit-linked revolving facility terminating in 2@1

In May 2011, Celanese US, through its subsidiapespaid the outstanding Term B loan facility undher Amended Credit Agreement set to
mature in 2014 in an aggregate principal amou$sd6 million using proceeds from the 5.875% Noted @ash on hand.

On November 13, 2012, Celanese US prepaid $40&mif its outstanding Term C loan facility undeetAmended Credit Agreement set to
mature in 2016 using proceeds from the 4.625% Notes

As a result of the Term C loan paydown using prdsdeom the issuance of the 4.625% Notes, $3 miltias been recorded as Refinancing
expense in the accompanying consolidated stateroénfgerations which includes accelerated amoitinadf deferred financing costs and
other refinancing expenses. In addition, we reabdiferred financing costs of $8 million which &eing amortized over the term of the
4.625% Notes. These deferred financing costs cosdbivith existing deferred financing costs of $228iom are included in noncurrent Other
assets on the consolidated balance sheet as ofribec&1, 2012 .

The balances available for borrowing under the Ikérg credit facility and the credit-linked revohg facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

(In $ millions)

Revolving Credit Facility

Borrowings outstanding —

Letters of credit issued —

Available for borrowing 60C
Credit-Linked Revolving Facility

Borrowings outstanding 50

Letters of credit issued 70

Available for borrowing 10¢

As a condition to borrowing funds or requesting tbtters of credit be issued under the revolviregit facility, our first lien senior secured
leverage ratio (as calculated as of the last ddli@fmost recent fiscal quarter for which finansi@tements have been delivered under the
revolving facility) cannot exceed the thresholdspscified below. Further, our first lien seniorweal leverage ratio must be maintained at or
below that threshold while any amounts are outstandnder the revolving credit facility.

Our amended first lien senior secured leveragesatnd the borrowing capacity under the revolvirgglit facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Estimate, If Fully
Maximum Estimate Drawn Borrowing Capacity

(In $ millions)
First Lien Senior Secured Leverage Ratios 3.9C 0.8¢ 1.37 60C

The Amended Credit Agreement contains covenantsdimg, but not limited to, restrictions on our létlgito incur indebtedness; grant liens on
assets; merge, consolidate, or sell assets; paedids or make other restricted payments; makestments; prepay or modify certain
indebtedness; engage in transactions with affgiadater into sale-leaseback transactions
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or hedge transactions; or engage in other busisgasevell as a covenant requiring maintenancensddmum first lien senior secured
leverage ratio.

We are in compliance with all of the covenantsteelao our debt agreements as of December 31, 2012
Share Capital

Our Board of Directors follows a policy of declagirsubject to legally available funds, a quartedgh dividend on each share of our Series A
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share unlesBahard of Directors, in its sole discretion, deteres otherwise. The amount available to
pay cash dividends is restricted by our AmendediCfgreement, the 4.625% Notes, the 5.875% Natelsthe 6.625% Notes.

On April 23, 2012 , we announced that our Boar®ioéctors approved a 25% increase in the Celaneadeagly Series A common stock cash
dividend. The Board of Directors increased the tprrdividend rate from $ 0.06 to $ 0.075 per shafr Series A common stock on a quarterly
basis, which equates to an increase from $0.28.80%er share of Series A common stock annualig. few dividend rate became effective
August 2012 .

On February 6, 2013, we declared a cash dividé®0.075 per share on our Series A common stockuatimg to $12 million . The cash
dividends are for the period from November 1, 2@i2anuary 31, 2013 and will be paid on February?P83 to holders of record as of
February 19, 2013 .

Based on the increase in the quarterly dividenel fraim $0.06 to $0.075 per share of Series A comstock beginning August 2012 and the
number of outstanding shares as of December 32 2€4sh dividends to be paid in 2013 are expdotbe slightly higher than those paid in
2012.

Our Board of Directors authorized the repurchasguofCommon Stock as follows:

Authorized Amount

(In $ millions)
February 2008 40C
October 2008 10C
April 2011 12¢
October 2012 264
As of December 31, 2012 89:<

These authorizations give management discretia@etiarmining the timing and conditions under whibkares may be repurchased. This
repurchase program does not have an expiration date

The share repurchase activity pursuant to thiscaiziftion is as follows:

Total From
Year Ended December 31, February 2008 Through
2012 2011 2010 December 31, 2012
Shares repurchased 1,059,710 @ 652,01¢ 1,667,59: 13,142,52
Average purchase price per share $ 42.4¢ $ 46.9¢ $ 28.71 % 38.1¢
Amount spent on repurchased shares (in millions) $ 45 $ 31 $ 48 % 501

@ Ex cludes 5,823 shares withheld from employee t@cetatutory minimum withholding requirements parsonal income taxes related to
the vesting of restricted stock. Restricted staokansidered outstanding at the time of issuanddtarefore, the shares withheld are
treated as treasury shares.

The purchase of treasury stock reduces the nunilstrapes outstanding and the repurchased sharebenased by us for compensation
programs utilizing our stock and other corporatgpaes. We account for treasury stock using thermethod and include treasury stock as a
component of stockholders’ equity.
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Contractual Debt and Cash Obligations

The following table sets forth our fixed contradtdabt and cash obligations as of December 31, 2012

Payments due by period

Less Than After 5
Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & 5 Years
(In $ millions)
Fixed contractual debt obligations
Senior notes 1,50(C — — — 1,50(C
Term C loan facility 977 10 20 947 —
Credit linked revolving facility 50 — 50 — —
Interest payments on debt and other obligations 1,25¢ @ 18€ 322 277 47C
Capital lease obligations 244 13 26 32 17z
Other debt 327 @ 14k — — 182
Total 4,35¢ 354 41¢ 1,25¢ 2,32t
Operating leases 307 49 86 56 11€
Uncertain tax positions, including interest andaltes 24¢€ 65 — — 181 @
Unconditional purchase obligations 3,33: @ 80C 99t 631 90¢€
Pension and other postretirement funding obligation 731 ® 55 22C 21€ 24C
Environmental and asset retirement obligations 16€ 58 47 19 42
Total 9,13¢ 1,381 1,767 2,17¢ 3,81(

1)

@)

(©)]

4)

)

We have outstanding interest rate swap agreemaetitsawotional value of $1.1 billion that expire danuary 2, 2014 that have the
economic effect of modifying the variable rate ghtions associated with our US term loans intodfixgerest obligations. The impact of
these interest rate swaps was factored into thoelledilon of the future interest payments on longateebt. Future interest expense is
calculated using the rate in effect on Decembe812 .

Other debt is primarily made up of fixed rate ptiin control and industrial revenue bonds, shamatborrowings from affiliated
companies and other bank obligations.

Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectaadtlement of tax positions with the respectiveéng authorities, we are unable to
determine the timing of payments related to oureutaén tax obligations, including interest and pées. These amounts are therefore
reflected in "After 5 Years".

Unconditional purchase obligations primarily regmsthe take-or-pay provisions included in certaimg-term purchase agreements. We
do not expect to incur material losses under thesmgements. These amounts also include othehgsembligations such as maintene
and service agreements, energy and utility agreesneonsulting contracts, software agreements #met miscellaneous agreements and
contracts, obtained via a survey of the Company.

Excludes expected payments from nonqualified tnedtged to nonqualified pension plans of $202iomil

Contractual Guarantees and Commitments

As of December 31, 2012, we have current stanelibgrk of credit of $70 million and bank guarantee$12 million outstanding which are
irrevocable obligations of an issuing bank thatueapayment to third parties in the event thatatersubsidiaries fail to perform in accordance
with specified contractual obligations. The likeldd is remote that material payments will be rezfiinder these agreements. In addition, the
senior notes issued by Celanese US are guaranyg@dliinese and certain domestic subsidiaries afriésk US. Sedote 13- Debtin the
accompanying consolidated financial statementa fdescription of this guarantee and the guarantegsr our senior credit facility.

SeeNote 23- Commitments and Contingenci@sthe accompanying consolidated financial stateamér a discussion of commitments and
contingencies related to legal and regulatory pedigys.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not entered into any material off-balarmsesarrangements.
Market Risks

Please sedkem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosureoabMarket Rislof this Form 10-K for additional information abauir Market
Risks.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are basaterelection and application of significant acamgpolicies. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformityhwitS Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("G8AP") requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdireontingent assets and liabilities at the
of the consolidated financial statements and thented amounts of revenues, expenses and allochtedes during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimateswidver, we are not currently aware of any reasgnidddly events or circumstances that
would result in materially different results.

We believe the following accounting policies antreates are critical to understanding the finanglorting risks present in the current
economic environment. These matters, and the judtgand uncertainties affecting them, are alsondisé¢o understanding our reported and
future operating results. Sélte 2- Summary of Accounting Policigs the accompanying consolidated financial stateémfar further
discussion of our significant accounting policies.

» Recoverability of Lon-Lived Asset:
Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefin-Lived Assets

We test for impairment of goodwill at the reportimgit level. Our reporting units are either our igtimg business segments or one level below
our operating business segments for which dis¢irmg@cial information is available and for whichespting results are regularly reviewed by
business segment management and the chief opedatiigjon maker. Our operating business segmentstheen designated as our reporting
units and include Advanced Engineered Materialgtate Products, Nutrinova, Emulsions, Celanese P€#ormance Polymers and Acetyl
Intermediates businesses. We assess the recoitgrabihe carrying value of our goodwill and othadefinite-lived intangible assets annually
during the third quarter of our fiscal year usingd 30 balances or whenever events or changesimtstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may not be fully recoverabézdverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lideéntangible assets is measured using a
discounted cash flow model incorporating discoatts commensurate with the risks involved for eaplorting unit. Use of a discounted cash
flow model is common practice in impairment testinghe absence of available transactional mankieieace to determine the fair value.

The key assumptions used in the discounted cashviiduation model include discount rates, growtiesacash flow projections and terminal
value rates. Discount rates, growth rates and tastprojections are the most sensitive and sudioleptio change as they require significant
management judgment. Discount rates are deternbpeding a weighted average cost of capital ("WALThe WACC considers market and
industry data as well as company-specific riskdefor each reporting unit in determining the appiate discount rate to be used. The
discount rate utilized for each reporting unitridicative of the return an investor would expeateeive for investing in such a business.
Operational management, considering industry amgpemy-specific historical and projected data, depeigrowth rates and cash flow
projections for each reporting unit. Terminal vatate determination follows common methodology ataring the present value of perpetual
cash flow estimates beyond the last projected gexrssuming a constant WACC and low long-term graates. If the calculated fair value is
less than the current carrying value, impairmenhefreporting unit may exist. If the recoverapitiést indicates potential impairment, we
calculate an implied fair value of goodwill for theporting unit. The implied fair value of goodwisl determined in a manner similar to how
goodwill is calculated in a business combinatidthé implied fair value of goodwill exceeds therging value of goodwill assigned to the
reporting unit, there is no impairment. If the gamng value of goodwill assigned to a reporting wniteeds the implied fair value of the
goodwill, an impairment charge is recorded to wditevn the carrying value. An impairment loss camateed the carrying value of goodwill
assigned to a reporting unit but may indicate @ettang-lived and amortizable intangible asset®eaissed with the reporting unit may require
additional impairment testing.
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Management tests indefinite-lived intangible asaétzing the relief from royalty method to detema the estimated fair value for each
indefinite-lived intangible asset. The relief fraoyalty method estimates the Company's theoretinallty savings from ownership of the
intangible asset. Key assumptions used in this irindiide discount rates, royalty rates, growtlesasales projections and terminal value
rates. Discount rates, royalty rates, growth ratebsales projections are the assumptions mostigersd susceptible to change as they
require significant management judgment. Discoatdés used are similar to the rates estimated bWHEC considering any differences in
company-specific risk factors. Royalty rates atatdished by management and are periodically snbatad by third-party valuation
consultants. Operational management, considerihgsiny and company-specific historical and projéctata, develops growth rates and sales
projections associated with each indefinite-livethngible asset. Terminal value rate determindtiows common methodology of capturing
the present value of perpetual sales estimatesdetpe last projected period assuming a constan€®And low long-term growth rates.

For all significant goodwill and indefinite-livedtangible assets, the estimated fair value of fseteexceeded the carrying value of the asset |
a substantial margin at the date of the most rdogmdirment test.

Recoverability of Lorn-Lived and Amortizable Intangible Assets

We assess the recoverability of loinged and amortizable intangible assets whenevenisvor circumstances indicate that the carryirigevaf
the asset may not be recoverable. Examples ofragehia events or circumstances include, but ardimded to, a decrease in the market price
of the asset, a history of cash flow losses reltidtie use of the asset or a significant advdraege in the extent or manner in which an asse
is being used. To assess the recoverability of-lmagl and amortizable intangible assets we comfgg@earrying amount of the asset or group
of assets to the future net undiscounted cash feoypected to be generated by the asset or assgt. drong-lived and amortizable intangible
assets are tested for recognition and measurerhantimpairment loss at the lowest level for whidéntifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdifies. If such assets are considered impaitieel jmpairment recognized is measured a
amount by which the carrying amount of the asse¢eds the fair value of the asset.

The development of future net undiscounted cash fimjections require management projections rdladesales and profitability trends and
the remaining useful life of the asset. Projectiohsales and profitability trends are the assuomgtimost sensitive and susceptible to change
they require significant management judgment. Tipesgections are consistent with projections wetosmanage our operations internally.
When impairment is indicated, a discounted cash flaluation model similar to that used to valuedwill at the reporting unit level,
incorporating discount rates commensurate withsradsociated with each asset, is used to detetherfair value of the asset to measure
potential impairment. We believe the assumptioreziuese reflective of what a market participant widuhve used in calculating fair value.

Valuation methodologies utilized to evaluate goddarnd indefinite-lived intangible, amortizable émgible and long-lived assets for
impairment were consistent with prior periods. Weigdically engage third-party valuation consulsatat assist us with this process. Specific
assumptions discussed above are updated at thefdzdeh test to consider current industry and amggspecific risk factors from the
perspective of a market participant. The curresin®ess environment is subject to evolving market@@mns and requires significant
management judgment to interpret the potential ehftathe Company's assumptions. To the extenttietges in the current business
environment result in adjusted management projestionpairment losses may occur in future periods.

¢ Income Taxes

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceséded based on historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, applicable taxipiag strategies, and the expected timing of thensals of existing temporary differences. A
valuation allowance is provided when it is morehkthan not that some portion or all of the dedfdrtax assets will not be realized. In forming
our judgment regarding the recoverability of defdrtax assets related to deductible temporaryrdiffees and tax attribute carryforwards, we
give weight to positive and negative evidence basethe extent to which the forms of evidence cawljectively verified. We attach the mi
weight to historical earnings due to its verifiahkture. Weight is attached to tax planning stiatei the strategies are prudent and feasible
and implementable without significant obstaclesd weight is attached to forecasted future earrdngsto its subjective nature, and expected
timing of reversal of taxable temporary differencegiven little weight unless the reversal of taleaand deductible temporary differences
coincide. Valuation allowances are established g@rilpnon net operating loss carryforwards and otteferred tax assets in the US,
Luxembourg, France, Spain, China, the United Kimgdmd Canada. We have appropriately reflected aseeand decreases in our valuation
allowance based on the overall weight of positigesus negative evidence on a jurisdiction by juctszh basis.
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We record accruals for income taxes and associatectst that may become payable in future yeassrasult of audits by tax authorities. We
recognize tax benefits when it is more likely thma (likelihood of greater than 50%), based on méxdd merits, that the position will be
sustained upon examination. Tax positions that rieetore-likely-than-not threshold are measuradgua probability weighted approach as
the largest amount of tax benefit that is gredtant50% likely of being realized upon settlemenhéitier the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold is met for a tax position is a mattejudfgment based on the individual facts and circamsts of that position evaluated in light o
available evidence.

The recoverability of deferred tax assets and ésegnition and measurement of uncertain tax positaoe subject to various assumptions anc
management judgment. If actual results differ fithin estimates made by management in establishingaimtaining valuation allowances
against deferred tax assets, the resulting chantieeivaluation allowance would generally impachaays or Other comprehensive income
depending on the nature of the respective deféapedsset. In addition, the positions taken witard to tax contingencies may be subject to
audit and review by tax authorities which may resufuture taxes, interest and penalties.

» Benefit Obligations

We have pension and other postretirement benetfitsptovering substantially all employees who megibdity requirements. With respect to
its US qualified defined benefit pension plan, minom funding requirements are determined by theiBer&rotection Act of 2006. Various
assumptions are used in the calculation of theasieiwaluation of the employee benefit plans. Ehessumptions include the discount rate,
compensation levels, expected long-term ratestofiren plan assets and trends in health care.dosasldition to the above mentioned
assumptions, actuarial consultants use factors asighithdrawal and mortality rates to estimategiggected benefit obligation. The actuarial
assumptions used may differ materially from acteallts due to changing market and economic camditihigher or lower withdrawal rates
longer or shorter life spans of participants. Thdifferences may result in a significant impacthte amount of net periodic benefit cost
recorded in future periods.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated finhsté@ements related to pension and other postneéint benefits are determined on an
actuarial basis. A significant assumption usedetednining our net periodic benefit cost is theestpd long-term rate of return on plan assets
As of December 31, 2012 , we assumed an expeatgetésm rate of return on plan assets of 8.5%HerdS defined benefit pension plans,
which represent approximately 83% and 84% of ouni@ue of pension plan assets and projected ltestdfgation, respectively. On average,
the actual return on the US qualified defined pemgilans' assets over the long-term (20 yearsgxeseded 8.5%.

Another estimate that affects our pension and gibstretirement net periodic benefit cost is trsedint rate used in the annual actuarial
valuations of pension and other postretirement titgulan obligations. At the end of each year, vetetimine the appropriate discount rate,
to determine the present value of future cash flowsently expected to be required to settle thesjpsm and other postretirement benefit
obligations. The discount rate is generally bagethe yield on high-quality corporate fixed-incosezurities. As of December 31, 2012 , we
decreased the discount rate to 3.8% from 4.6% &eoémber 31, 2011 for the US plans.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medieal life insurance benefits to retirees who meeimim age and service requirements. The
key determinants of the accumulated postretirermnengfit obligation ("APBQO") are the discount rateldhe health care cost trend rate. The
health care cost trend rate has a significant effie¢he reported amounts of APBO and related esgaen

Pension assumptions are reviewed annually on agpldrcountry-specific basis by third-party actumaed senior management. Such
assumptions are adjusted as appropriate to refteectges in market rates and outlook. We deterrhiméong-term expected rate of return on
plan assets by considering the current target afleetition, as well as the historical and expecttes of return on various asset categories in
which the plans are invested. A single ldegm expected rate of return on plan assets isd¢hknlated for each plan as the weighted averé
the target asset allocation and the long-term drpem@te of return assumptions for each asseta@at®gthin each plan.

Differences between actual rates of return of plssets and the long-term expected rate of retuplasnassets are generally not recognized ir
net periodic benefit cost in the year that theadldhce occurs. These differences are deferredrandiaed into net periodic benefit cost over
the average remaining future service of employdésapply the long-term expected rate of returnlan pssets to a market-related value of
plan assets to stabilize variability in the plaseavalues.
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The estimated increases in pension and postretivenat periodic benefit costs that would occur®.2 from a change in the indicated
assumptions are as follows:

Net Periodic
Change in Rate Benefit Costs
(In $ millions)
US Pension Benefits
Decrease in the discount rate 0.5(% 10
Decrease in the long-term expected rate of retarplan asset® 0.5(% 11
US Postretirement Benefits
Decrease in the discount rate 0.5(% —
Increase in the annual health care cost trend rates 1.0(% —
Non-US Pension Benefits
Decrease in the discount rate 0.5(% 2
Non-US Postretirement Benefits
Decrease in the discount rate 0.5(% —
Increase in the annual health care cost trend rates 1.0(% —

@ Excludes nonqualified pension pla
e Accounting for Commitments and Contingenci

We are subject to a number of legal and regulgioogeedings, lawsuits, claims, and investigatiomsdental to the normal conduct of our p
and current business, relating to and includinglpet liability, intellectual property, land dispstecommercial contracts, employment, antiti
workers' compensation, chemical exposure, asbesgfmssure, prior acquisitions and divestitures, pesste disposal practices and release of
chemicals into the environment, which are handtedidefended in the ordinary course of businessratfgnely assess the likelihood of any
adverse judgments or outcomes to these matterglhaswanges of probable and reasonably estimasdes. Reasonable estimates involve
judgments made by us after considering a broaderahgnformation including: naotifications, demandsttlements which have been recei
from a regulatory authority or private party, esttes performed by independent consultants anddeutsiunsel, available facts, identification
of other potentially responsible parties and tasitity to contribute, as well as prior experiendéth respect to environmental remediation
liabilities, it is our policy to accrue throughtéfn years, unless we have government orders er agfieements that extend beyond fifteen
years. A determination of the amount of loss caydircy required, if any, is assessed in accordaitbeRimancial Accounting Standards Bo:
("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASCI'ppic 450,Contingenciesand recorded if probable and estimable after cheafalysis
of each individual matter. The required reserveg omnge in the future due to new developmentsiah enatter and as additional information
becomes available.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SeeNote 3- Accounting Pronouncemeritsthe accompanying consolidated financial statemitluded in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncesaent
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Market Risks

Our financial market risk consists principally ofp@sure to currency exchange rates, interest sst@€£ommodity prices. Exchange rate and
interest rate risks are managed with a varietgdfiniques, including use of derivatives. We havelace policies of hedging against change
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyryarities as described below. Contracts to hedgesexes are primarily accounted for ur
FASB ASC Topic 815Derivatives and HedginlFASB ASC Topic 815").

SeeNote 21- Derivative Financial Instrumenis the accompanying consolidated financial statamgar further discussion of our market risk
management and the related impact on our finapoisition and results of operations.

Interest Rate Risk Manageme

We use interest rate swap agreements to managaéhest rate risk of our total debt portfolio aniethted overall cost of borrowing. To reduce
the interest rate risk inherent in our variable tabrrowings, we utilize interest rate swap agreem® convert a portion of our variable rate
borrowings to a fixed rate obligation. A portiontb&se interest rate swap agreements are desigmmtash flow hedges.

Our US-dollar interest rate swap derivative arrangets are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®™
(In $ millions)
1,10¢ January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%
50C January 2, 2014 January 2, 2016 1.02%

@ Fixes the LIBOR portion of our US-dollar denomigditvariable rate borrowings. Skete 13- Debtin the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for further information.

Upon issuance of the 4.625% Notes and $400 mifimydown of the Term C loan facility on November 2812, it became probable that the
hedged interest payments associated with $395omidif our variable rate US-dollar debt would notwrc Accordingly, we dedesignated as
cash flow hedges a notional value of $395 milliéthe $1.1 billion notional value US-dollar inteteate swap agreements expiring January 2
2014 and a loss of $5 million was reclassifiedafuAccumulated other comprehensive income (loss), into Interest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatioring the three months ended December 31, 20t@rd~mark-to-market adjustments on
these dedesignated interest rate swap agreemdhit@wécorded in Interest expense through thgjiraon on January 2, 2014. Sdete 13-
Debtin the accompanying consolidated financial statam&nr further information.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had $781 million ,£&1llion and CNY680 million of variable rate dedntd outstanding US-dollar interest rate
swap agreements with a notional value of $1.1dwilthat expire January 2, 2014. These interessra#g agreements have the economic effe
of modifying the US-dollar variable rate obligattoimto fixed interest obligations. Accordingly, @ Increase in interest rates would increase
annual interest expense by $1 million .

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The primary business objective of this hedging paiogis to maintain an approximately balanced pasitin foreign currencies so that excha
gains and losses resulting from exchange rate @samgt of related tax effects, are minimizeds tur policy to minimize currency exposures
and to conduct operations either within functiotizirencies or using the protection of hedge stresed\ccordingly, we enter into foreign
currency forwards and swaps to minimize our expasaiforeign currency fluctuations. From time to¢iwe may also hedge our currency
exposure related to forecasted transactions. Fdra@mtracts are not designated as hedges under A&EBTopic 815.
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The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure relaté€ghort) long foreign exchange forward
contracts outstanding by currency. All of the caats included in the table below will have approxiety offsetting effects from actual
underlying payables, receivables, intercompanydaarother assets or liabilities subject to foredqgohange remeasurement.

2013 Maturity
(In $ millions)

Currency

Euro (222)
British pound sterling (27)
Chinese renminbi (25¢)
Mexican peso 5
Singapore dollar 45
Canadian dollar 61
Japanese yen ©)]
Brazilian real (14)
Swedish krona (14
Other 5

Total (422)

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiggvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier than the US dollar. Fluctuations in
the value of these currencies against the US dcdlarhave a direct and material impact on the legsiand financial results. For example, a
decline in the value of the Euro versus the USadabsults in a decline in the US dollar value f sales and earnings denominated in Euros
due to translation effects. Likewise, an increasthé value of the Euro versus the US dollar woeglilt in an opposite effect.

Commodity Risk Management

We have exposure to the prices of commodities impoacurement of certain raw materials. We managesgposure to commodity risk
primarily through the use of long-term supply agneats, multi-year purchasing and sales agreemadtfoavard purchase agreements. We
regularly assess our practice of purchasing agodf our commodity requirements under forward pase agreements and other raw materia
hedging instruments in accordance with changesairket conditions. Forward purchases and swap azistfar raw materials are principally
settled through actual delivery of the physical owwdity. For qualifying contracts, we have eleceadpply the normal purchases and normal
sales exception of FASB ASC Topic 815 based ompthbability at the inception and throughout thertexf the contract that we would not
settle net and the transaction would settle by ighl/gelivery of the commaodity. As such, realizeddng and losses on these contracts are
included in the cost of the commaodity upon thelegttnt of the contract.

In addition, we occasionally enter into financialidatives to hedge a component of a raw materiehergy source. Typically, these types of
transactions do not qualify for hedge accountifgese instruments are marked to market at eachtiegp@eriod and gains (losses) are
included in Cost of sales in the accompanying clisesied statements of operations. We recognizegaio or loss from these types of contr.
during the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2012@h@ . As of December 31, 2012 , we did not haweapen financial derivative contracts
for commodities.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and suppléamgdata are included item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedofidlsis
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Quarterly Financial Information

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012
(Unaudited)
(In' $ millions, except per share data)
Net sales 1,63 1,67¢ 1,60¢ 1,501
Gross profit 27C 331 324 267
Other (charges) gains, net — (©) 2 (13
Operating profit (loss) 98 164 162 86
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax 107 264 17:¢ 112
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 182 21C 11¢ 97
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations — — 2 2
Net earnings (loss) 18: 21C 117 95
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic 1.17 1.3 0.7¢ 0.6(
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted 1.1¢F 1.31 0.7: 0.5¢
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
(Unaudited)
(In' $ millions, except per share data)
Net sales 1,58¢ 1,75: 1,807 1,61¢
Gross profit 351 41C 401 272
Other (charges) gains, net 3 s @ (24) @ 9 @
Operating profit (loss) 18¢ 20¢ 19¢ 97
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before tax 18C 28C 201 94
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 13¢ 20¢ 167 96
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 4 2 — 1)
Net earnings (loss) 14z 203 167 95
Net earnings (loss) per share — basic 0.91 1.3C 1.07 0.61
Net earnings (loss) per share — diluted 0.9C 1.2¢ 1.0t 0.6C

@ In cludes $16 million in costs and $4 million of gloyee termination benefits related to the relaratind expansion of the Company's
polyacetal ("POM") operations in Kelsterbach, Gemgnto Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park, Germany.

@ In cludes $14 million in costs and $1 million of gloyee termination benefits related to the relaratind expansion of the Company's
POM operations in Kelsterbach, Germany to Frankfiméchst Industrial Park, Germany, and a $7 milliafavorable settlement in a

resolution of a commercial dispute.

® Inc ludes $4 million in costs and $3 million of eloyee termination benefits related to the relocatibthe Company's POM operations in
Kelsterbach, Germany to Frankfurt Hoechst Induisitak, Germany.

For a discussion of material events affecting pennce in each quarter, dé&m 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis odufrdmal
Condition and Results of OperationAll amounts in the table above have been retioelgtadjusted for the effects of discontinued @iens.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including the Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, we he
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsiind procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rudelb8b) as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report. Based on that evi@ingas of December 31, 2012 , the Chief ExecufMfecer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that our disclosure controls andguiores are effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended December 31, 2di&re twere no changes in our internal control owericial reporting that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaorting for the Company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process toyile reasonable assurance regarding the reliabflibur financial reporting for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principieegally accepted in the United States of Ametit&rnal control over financial reporting
includes maintaining records that in reasonablaid@tcurately and fairly reflect our transactiopgviding reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary for pregacdtour consolidated financial statements; pdowg reasonable assurance that receipts an
expenditures of company assets are made in acamdéth management authorization; and providingoeable assurance that unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of company assets¢ould have a material effect on our consoldifiteancial statements would be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. Because of its @ftdimitations, internal control over financiapting is not intended to provide absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our consolidataddial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effantise of our internal control over financial repogtbased on the framework in Internal
Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiing Organizations of the Treadway Commissiaseg on this evaluatic
management concluded that the Company’s intermdtaioover financial reporting was effective asddcember 31, 2012 . The Company's
independent registered public accounting firm, KPM@, has issued an audit report on the effectiserd the Company's internal control
over financial reporting. Their report follows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited Celanese Corporation and subsidigthe "Company") internal control over finanai@porting as of December 31, 2012 ,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Framewoidsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike

Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageisieasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying Report of Management on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compargternal control over financial reporti
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corix@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsafdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over final reporting as of December 31, 2012 ,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Framewoidsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of the Company as of December 32,&td 2011 , and the related consolidated statsméonperations, comprehensive
income (loss), equity, and cash flows for eacthefytears in the three-year period ended Decemh&032 , and our report dated February 8,
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosedtmiaged financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 8, 2013
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governce

The information required by this Item 10 is incagted herein by reference from the sections captid®roposal 1: Election of Directors,"
"Corporate Governance" and "Stock Ownership Infaioma- Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporti®gmpliance” of the Company’s
definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual rimgeof stockholders to be filed with the Securittesl Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adi9¥4, as amended (the " 2013 Proxy Statemenf9rriration about executive officers of
the Company is contained in Part | of this AnnuapBrt.

Codes of Ethics

The Company has adopted a Business Conduct Polidirectors, officers and employees along withrefcial Code of Ethics for its
principal executive officer, principal financialfafer, principal accounting officer or controller, persons performing similar functions. These
codes are available on the corporate governandal péithe Company's investor relations websitttt://www.celanese.com. The Company
intends to satisfy the disclosure requirements utiden 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendments towatvers from these codes by posting
such information on the same website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incargted herein by reference from the sections captid@ompensation Discussion and
Analysis," "Risk Assessment of Compensation Prastic’Compensation Tables," "Potential Paymentsidprmination or Change in
Control," "Compensation Committee Interlocks ansider Participation" and "Compensation Committepd® of the 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiianagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to beneficial ownepstequired by this Iltem 12 is incorporated hergindference from the section captioned
"Stock Ownership Information - Principal Stockhaldland Beneficial Owners" of the 2013 Proxy Stateime

Equity Compensation Plans
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following information is provided as of DecemBé&, 2012 with respect to equity compensationglan

Number of Securities

Number of Securities to Remaining Available for
be Issued upon Exercise Weighted Average Future Issuance Under
of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Plans (excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in column (a))

@ (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 1,811,511 @ § 30.31 25,332,51 @
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders® 424.87( @ § 29.5¢ —
Total 2,236,38! © 25,332,51

@ In cludes 1,369,200 restricted stock units ("RS\gsénted under the Celanese Corporation 2009 Glabahtive Plan, as amended and
restated April 19, 2012, (the "2009 Plan"), inchgishares that may be issued pursuant to outstapéifiormance-based RSUs, assuming
currently estimated maximum potential performaraegyal shares may vary, depending on actual pediocer Upon vesting, a share of
Company'’s Series A Common Stock is issued for eastricted stock unit. Column (b) does not take¢hawards into account because
they do not have an exercise price.
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@ In cludes shares available for future issuance umd@e€elanese Corporation 2009 Employee Stock PugdPlas approved by stockhold
on April 23, 2009 (the "ESPP"). As of December2112 , an aggregate of 14,000,000 shares of oigsS&rCommon Stock were
available for future issuance under the ESPP. NMoeshhave been offered for purchase under the BSBPDecember 31, 2012 .

®  Th e shares to be issued under plans not approvstbbkholders relate to the Celanese Corporatd4 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2004
Plan"), which is our former broad-based stock itieerplan for executive officers, key employees dirdctors. No further awards were
made pursuant to the 2004 Plan upon stockholdepagbof the 2009 Plan in April 2009. The 2004 Pend the 2009 Plan are described
in more detail iNote 19- Management Compensation Plamshe accompanying consolidated financial statamekdditionally, there ar
28,046 shares of phantom stock for compensatiodifector services deferred by certain of our noplyee directors under the 2008
Deferred Compensation Plan which are not reflettemblumn (a). Each share of phantom stock reptssha right to receive one share of
Series A Common Stock.

@ In cludes no outstanding RSUs granted under the 20¥

® If t he performance-based RSUs included in thial tegst at the target level (as opposed to théchtievel), the aggregate awards
outstanding at December 31, 2012 would be 1,699,880 is comprised of 823,095 stock options, 383 time-based RSUs granted to
employees, 44,095 time-based restricted stock agmahted to our Chief Executive Officer, 16,298dibased RSUs granted to non-
employee directors and 429,208 performance-baséisRSsuming target performance.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aRaector Independence

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted herein by reference from the section captid@ertain Relationships and Related
Person Transactions" and "Corporate Governance re€ir Independence" of the 2013 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted herein by reference from the section captidReoposal 3: Ratification of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm" of the 2013 Br&tatement.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statement§.he report of our independent registered publioanting firm and our consolidated financial stateteere listed
below and begin opage 6%f this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Page Number

Report of Independent Reqgistered Public Accounfinm
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjLo
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GRERREESIB
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2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The financial statement schedules required byititis are included as Exhibits to this Annual Report~orm 10-K.
3. Exhibit List.

See Index to Exhibits following our consolidatedkficial statements contained in this Annual Repoifform 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /sl MARK C. ROHR
Name: Mark C. Rohr
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors and €fhi

Executive Officer

Date: February 8, 2013

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signhature appears below constitutes anairgpBteven M. Sterin
and Christopher W. Jensen, and each of them, tisrarue and lawful attorney-in-fact and agentheaf whom may act without joinder of the
other, each with full power of substitution andutestitution to sign in his or her name, place aedd, in any and all capacities, to do any and
all things and execute any and all instrumentsdhgtsuch attorney-ifact may deem necessary or advisable under theifestExchange Ac
of 1934 and any rules, regulations and requiremefiifse US Securities and Exchange Commission iimmection with the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31228nd any and all amendments hereto, as fullglfontents and purposes as he or she
might or could do in person, and hereby ratified eanfirms all that any such said attorney-in-factjing alone, or his substitute or substitutes
may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue héreo

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptine following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ MARK C. ROHR Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer February 8, 2013
Mark C. Rohr (Principal Executive Officer)

/sl STEVEN M. STERIN Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Steven M. Sterin Officer (Principal Financial Officer) February 8, 2013
/s/ CHRISTOPHER W. JENSEN Senior Vice President, Finance

Christopher W. Jensen (Principal Accounting Officer) February 8, 2013
/sl JAMES E. BARLETT Director February 8, 2013

James E. Barlett

/s/ DAVID F. HOFFMEISTER Director February 8, 21
David F. Hoffmeister

/sl JAY V. IHLENFELD Director February 8, 2013
Jay V. Ihlenfeld

/sl MARTIN G. MCGUINN Director February 8, 2013
Martin G. McGuinn
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Signature

/sl PAUL H. O’'NEILL

Paul H. O'Neill

/s DANIEL S. SANDERS

Daniel S. Sanders

/sl FARAH M. WALTERS

Farah M. Walters

/s/ JOHN K. WULFF

John K. Wulff
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Celanese Corporation and subsidignesCompany") as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statEsnof operations, comprehensive income (lossiifyecand cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 20h2se consolidated financial statements are thnssbility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedasa our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , anek$léts of its operations and its cash flows faheaf the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2012 , in conformity with U&hegally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012 , based on criteria establishéatémnal Control — Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 8, 2013 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of@mnpany’s internal control over financial reporting

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 8, 2013
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of intangible assets
Research and development expenses
Other (charges) gains, net
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and agsets
Operating profit (loss)
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates
Interest expense
Refinancing expense
Interest income
Dividend income - cost investments
Other income (expense), net
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t
Income tax (provision) benefit
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued operraio
Income tax (provision) benefit from discontinuedeogtions
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)
Net (earnings) loss attributable to noncontrollimigrests
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Caitjmor
Cumulative preferred stock dividends
Net earnings (loss) available to common stockhalder
Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss)
Earnings (loss) per common share - basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss) - basic
Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings (loss) - diluted
Weighted average shares - basic
Weighted average shares - diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions, except share and per share data)

6,41¢ 6,76: 5,91¢
(5,226) (5,329 (4,739)
1,197 1,43¢ 1,18(
(507) (53€) (505)
(59) (62 (61)
(102) (96) (70)
(14) (48) (46)

(4) — ©)

(©) @ 8

511 69C 503
247 197 16€
(185) (221 (204)
(©) (©) (16)

2 3 7

85 80 73

5 14 7

657 755 53¢
(49) (149) (112
60¢ 60¢€ 42¢€

(6) 2 (80)

o= o= 2

2 (D] 29

Q) 1 (49

60% 607 377
60< 607 377

— — ©)

60% 607 374
60¢ 60¢€ 42¢€

(4 1 (49)

60% 607 377
3.84 3.8¢ 2.7¢
(0.02) 0.01 (0.31)
3.82 3.8¢ 2.4z
3.81 3.81 2.6¢
(0.02) 0.01 (0.31)
3.7¢ 3.82 2.3¢
158,325,44 156,204,07 154,564,13
159,796,31 158,947,83 158,372,19



See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialastatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Net earnings (loss) 60% 607 377
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities — — (D)

Foreign currency translation 5 (27) 37

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps 7 27 17

Pension and postretirement benefits (2449 (180) (63

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (232) (180) (20

Total comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 373 427 367

Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to nonodlintg interests — — —

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Cela@srporation 37z 427 367

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialestatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,

2012 2011

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables - third party and affiliates (@fedllowance for doubtful accounts - 2012: $9;
2011: $9)

Non-trade receivables, net
Inventories

Deferred income taxes
Marketable securities, at fair value
Other assets

(In $ millions, except share data)

Total current assets

Investments in affiliates

Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulatgmetiation - 2012: $1,506; 2011: $1,316)
Deferred income taxes

Other assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current installmentsooig-term debt - third party and affiliates
Trade payables - third party and affiliates
Other liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Uncertain tax positions

Benefit obligations

Other liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sheuthorized (2012 and 2011: 0 issued anc
outstanding)

Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,@00sbares authorized (2012: 183,629,237
issued and 159,642,401 outstanding; 2011: 179,885skued and 156,463,811 outstanding)

Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000s8ares authorized (2012 and 2011: C
issued and outstanding)

Treasury stock, at cost (2012: 23,986,836 shafikt: 22,921,294 shares)
Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net

Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity

95¢ 682
827 871
20¢ 23t
711 712

49 104
53 64
31 35
2,83¢ 2,70°
80C 824

3,35( 3,26¢
60€ 421
462 344
777 76C
165 197

9,00( 8,51¢
16€ 144
64¢ 672
475 53¢

25 17
38 12
1,35¢ 1,38t

2,93( 2,87¢

50 92
181 182

1,607 1,49:

1,157 1,15:
(908) (860)
731 627

2,98¢ 2,42¢

(1,089 (850)

1,73( 1,341

1,73( 1,341




Total liabilities and equity 9,00( 8,51¢

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialestatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Preferred Stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Redemption of preferred stock
Balance as of the end of the period
Series A Common Stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Conversion of preferred stock
Redemption of preferred stock
Stock option exercises
Purchases of treasury stock
Stock awards
Balance as of the end of the period
Treasury Stock
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Purchases of treasury stock, including related fees
Balance as of the end of the period
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Stock-based compensation, net of tax
Stock option exercises, net of tax
Balance as of the end of the period
Retained Earnings
Balance as of the beginning of the period
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Celanese Catjmor
Series A common stock dividends
Preferred stock dividends
Balance as of the end of the period

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net

Balance as of the beginning of the period
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Balance as of the end of the period
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling Interests
Balance as of the beginning of the period

Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrollimgrests

Balance as of the end of the period
Total equity

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialestatements.

2012 2011 2010

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
(In $ millions, except share data)

_ — — — 9,600,00! —
— — — — (9,600,00i) —
156,463,81 — 155,759,29 — 144,394,06 —
— — — — 12,084,94 —
— — — — 7,437 —
3,751,82! — 842,34 — 800,34° —
(1,065,54) — (652,01¢) — (1,667,59) —
492,30 — 514,19: — 140,09( —
159,642,40 — 156,463,81 — 155,759,229 —
22,921,29 (860) 22,269,27 (829 20,601,68 (787)
1,065,54. (45) 652,01¢ (32) 1,667,59: (48
23,986,83 (90%) 22,921,29 (860) 22,269,27 (829)
627 574 522
12 17 19
92 36 33
731 627 574
2,42¢ 1,851 1,50¢
60¢E 607 377
(43 (39 (29
— — ©)
2,98¢ 2,42¢ 1,851
(850) (670 (660)
(232 (180 (20
(1,089 (850) (670
1,73( 1,341 92¢€
1,73( 1,341 92¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities
Net earnings (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash provided by operating activities

Other charges (gains), net of amounts used
Depreciation, amortization and accretion

Deferred income taxes, net

(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and assets
Refinancing expense

Other, net

Operating cash provided by (used in) discontinysetations

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates, net
Inventories
Other assets
Trade payables - third party and affiliates
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigme
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of businesses and assets, net
Deferred proceeds from Kelsterbach plant relocation
Capital expenditures related to Kelsterbach plelatcation
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing Activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayments of long-term debt
Refinancing costs
Purchases of treasury stock, including related fees
Stock option exercises
Series A common stock dividends
Preferred stock dividends
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents as of end of period

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialestatements.

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)

60t 607 377
(12 (6) ©)

32C 311 30C

(73 93 15
3 1 8

3 3 16

53 56 11

2 (9 8
50 (83 (90)
6 (112) (98)

9 17 9

5 22 19
(24¢) (262) (102)

722 63€ 457
(361) (349 (201)
(23) ) (4€)

1 6 26

—_ 15¢ —
(49 (204) (312
(68) (45 (27
(500) (441) (560)
2 (13 (31)

71 7C 7C
(71 (73 (59

55(C 411 60C
(489) (591) (897)
9) ) (24)
(4%) (31 (48)

62 2C 14
(43 (34 (28)
— — (©)

21 4 14
49 (252) (389
6 ) (19)
277 (58 (519

682 74C 1,25¢

95¢ 682 74C
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Preserttan
Description of the Compan

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (collelitj the "Company") is a global technology andcsqiéy materials company. The Compasy’
business involves processing chemical raw matesalsh as methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylenkenatural products, including wood
pulp, into value-added chemicals, thermoplastigmpelrs and other chemical-based products.

Definitions

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K ("Annual Repgrthe term "Celanese" refers to Celanese Cormras Delaware corporation, and not its
subsidiaries. The term "Celanese US" refers taCiimpany's subsidiary, Celanese US Holdings LLCekWare limited liability company, a
not its subsidiaries.

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements containgti;mAnnual Report were prepared in accordance adttounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("US GAWBY all periods presented. The consolidated fof@rstatements and other financial
information included in this Annual Report, unletkerwise specified, have been presented to sepasdtow the retroactive effects of
discontinued operations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangrsiimto contracts and agreements relative to eeuof topics, including acquisitions,
dispositions, joint ventures, supply agreemensgipet sales and other arrangements. The Compamaeois to describe those contracts or
agreements that are material to its business,tsesubperations or financial position. The Compamgy also describe some arrangements tha
are not material but in which the Company beliemgsstors may have an interest or which may haea liecluded in a Form 8-K filing.
Investors should not assume the Company has dedalbcontracts and agreements relative to thepg2oiyis business in this Annual Report.

For those consolidated subsidiaries in which then@any's ownership is less than 100% , the outsabkisolders' interests are shown as
noncontrolling interests.

The Company has reclassified certain prior perimdunts to conform to the current period’s preséorat
2. Summary of Accounting Policies
« Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped in accordance with US GAAP for all periodsgented and include the accounts o
Company and its majority owned subsidiaries oveictvkhe Company exercises control. All intercompangounts and transactions have bee
eliminated in consolidation.

» Estimates and assumptior

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with US GAAP requires managementii@ke estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liadslitilisclosure of contingent assets and liabilatebe date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenugsnsas and allocated charges during the reporénigch Significant estimates pertain to
impairments of goodwill, intangible assets and ptbeg-lived assets, purchase price allocatiorstrueturing costs and other (charges) gains,
net, income taxes, pension and other postretirebmmfits, asset retirement obligations, envirorsaldiabilities and loss contingencies,
among others. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

e Cash and cash equivalen
All highly liquid investments with original matuigts of three months or less are considered cashadenuts.
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* Inventories

Inventories, including stores and supplies, ariedtat the lower of cost or market. Cost for ineegies is determined using the first-in, first-out
("FIFO") method. Cost includes raw materials, dilabor and manufacturing overhead. Cost for staressupplies is primarily determined by
the average cost method.

* Investments in marketable securitit

The Company classifies its investments in debteandty securities as "available-for-sale" and répthrose investments at their fair market
values in the consolidated balance sheets as Mdolkesecurities, at fair value. Unrealized gainbsses, net of the related tax effect on
available-for-sale securities, are excluded frommiegs and are reported as a component of Accustlilaher comprehensive income (loss),
net until realized. The cost of securities soldésermined by using the specific identification hoet.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be dltsriemporary results in a reduction in 1
carrying amount to fair value. The impairment iaigjed to earnings and a new cost basis for theigemuestablished. To determine whether
impairment is other-than-temporary, the Companysiars whether it has the ability and intent tadhble investment until a market price
recovery and evidence indicating the cost of thestment is recoverable outweighs evidence todhérary. Evidence considered in this
assessment includes the reasons for the impairthenseverity and duration of the impairment, clesng value subsequent to year end and
forecasted performance of the investee.

The Company reviews all investments for other-tteemporary impairment at least quarterly or as iattics of impairment exist. Indicators of
impairment include the duration and severity ofdleeline in fair value below carrying value as vaslthe intent and ability to hold the
investment to allow for a recovery in the markdtiezof the investment. In addition, the Companysiders qualitative factors that include, but
are not limited to: (i) the financial condition abhdsiness plans of the investee including its figarnings potential, (ii) the investee’s credit
rating, and (iii) the current and expected market imdustry conditions in which the investee opesatf a decline in the fair value of an
investment is deemed by management to be othertémaporary, the Company writes down the carryingeaf the investment to fair value,
and the amount of the write-down is included ine®iings. Such a determination is dependent ofatitie and circumstances relating to each
investment.

* Investments in affiliates

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Acating Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 328yestments Equity Method and Joii
Ventureq"FASB ASC Topic 323"), stipulates that the equitgthod should be used to account for investmen&setlty an investor has "the
ability to exercise significant influence over opimg and financial policies of an investee", boésl not exercise control. FASB ASC Topic
generally considers an investor to have the aliitgxercise significant influence when it owns 2684nore of the voting stock of an investee.
FASB ASC Topic 323 lists circumstances under whitdspite 20% ownership, an investor may not be tabdxercise significant influence.
Certain investments where the Company owns gréaera 20% ownership interest are accounted foeuthd cost method of accounting
because the Company cannot exercise significaloeinte or control. The Company determined thadrinot exercise significant influence
over these entities due to local government investrim and influence over these entities, limitasi@on the Company's involvement in the day
to-day operations and the present inability oféhgties to provide timely financial informationgpared in accordance with US GAAP.

In certain instances, the financial informatiortled Company's equity investees is not availabla tmely basis. Accordingly, the Company
records its proportional share of the investeasiegs or losses on a consistent lag of no mone ¢ime quarter .

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events angles in circumstances indicate a loss ir
value that is other than a temporary decline. A iasvalue of an equity method or cost method itmest which is other than a temporary
decline will be recognized as the difference betwibe carrying amount of the investment and itsvialue.

The Company's estimates of fair value are deteminir@sed on a discounted cash flow model. The Coynpariodically engages third-party
valuation consultants to assist with this process.

e Property, plant and equipment, n
Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, maery and equipment, including capitalized interaad property under capital lease
agreements, are recorded at cost less accumulepedaiation. The Company records depreciation amatézation in its consolidated

statements of operations as either Cost of sal8gling, general and administrative expenses

76




consistent with the utilization of the underlyingsats. Depreciation is calculated on a straiglet#iasis over the following estimated useful
lives of depreciable assets:

Land improvements 20 year:
Buildings and improvements 30 year:
Machinery and equipment 20 year:

Leasehold improvements are amortized over 10 yaatse remaining life of the respective lease, Whier is shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the estichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair arantenance costs, including costs for
planned maintenance turnarounds, that do not extendseful life of the asset are charged to egaws incurred. Fully depreciated assets are
retained in property and depreciation accountd sokil or otherwise disposed. In the case of diaisosssets and related depreciation are
removed from the accounts, and the net amountspleseeds from disposal, are included in earnings.

The Company also leases property, plant and equipumeler operating and capital leases. Rent exgdensperating leases, which may have
escalating rentals or rent holidays over the tefth@lease, is recorded on a straight-line bagis the lease term. Amortization of capital leas
assets is included as a component of depreciatipanse.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatitheir fair values and depreciated over teetasremaining useful lives or the
Company's policy lives, whichever is shorter.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipmenendver events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoumino@isset or asset group may not be recoverablenpairment loss would be assessed when
estimated undiscounted future cash flows from feration and disposition of the asset group aetleen the carrying amount of the asset
group. Asset groups have identifiable cash flows @ largely independent of other asset groupashtement of an impairment loss is basec
on the excess of the carrying amount of the agsefpgover its fair value. Fair value is measurddgigiscounted cash flows or independent
appraisals, as appropriate. Impairment losseseam@ded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

» Goodwill and other intangible asse

Customer-related intangible assets and other ifttleswith finite lives are amortized on a straitjhe basis over their estimated useful lives.
The excess of the purchase price over fair valueebidentifiable assets and liabilities of an aceplibusiness ("goodwill"), trademarks and
trade names and other indefinite-lived intangitisess are not amortized, but rather tested forimmgat, at least annually. The Company test:
for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetpairment during the third quarter of its fiscalay using June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwilageporting unit may not be fully recoverable cBeerability is measured at the reporting
unit level based on the provisions of FASB ASC Tagh0,Intangibles - Goodwill and OthdfFASB ASC Topic 350"). Impairment losses are
recorded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

The Company measures the recoverability of goodaileach reporting unit using a discounted casiv finodel incorporating discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved, which is sified as a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASCcI8p0,Fair Value Measurement
("FASB ASC Topic 820"). The key assumptions usethandiscounted cash flow valuation model inclugealunt rates, growth rates, cash
flow projections and terminal value rates. Discouatiés, growth rates and cash flow projectiongfaenost sensitive and susceptible to chs
as they require significant management judgmenrg. Company periodically engages third-party valuationsultants to assist with this
process. The valuation consultants assess faie wjequally weighting a combination of two mar&pproaches (market multiple analysis anc
comparable transaction analysis) and the discow#sl flow approach.

If the calculated fair value is less than the autrarrying value, impairment of the reporting uniy exist. When the recoverability test
indicates potential impairment, the Company, azdrtain circumstances, a third-party valuation citast engaged by the Company to assist
with the process, will calculate an implied failwaof goodwill for the reporting unit. The impliddir value of goodwill is determined in a
manner similar to how goodwill is calculated inwsimess combination. If the implied fair value obgwill exceeds the carrying value of
goodwill assigned to the reporting unit, thereasmpairment. If the carrying value of goodwill &@ssed to a reporting unit exceeds the impliec
fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss égorded to write down the carrying value. An impent loss cannot exceed the carrying v

of goodwill assigned to a
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reporting unit but may indicate certain long-livaxd amortizable intangible assets associated hétheporting unit may require additional
impairment testing.

The Company assesses recoverability of other inilefiived intangible assets at least annually bemever events or changes in circumstanc
indicate that the carrying amount of the indefidited intangible asset may not be fully recoveealitecoverability is measured by a
comparison of the carrying value of the indefidited intangible asset over its fair value. Any ess of the carrying value of the indefinite-
lived intangible asset over its fair value is remiagd as an impairment loss. The Company peridgliealgages thirgharty valuation consultar

to assist with this process. Impairment lossesererded primarily to Other (charges) gains, net.

Management tests indefinite-lived intangible assétizing the relief from royalty method to detema the estimated fair value for each
indefinite-lived intangible asset which is classifias a Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Toffic B2e relief from royalty method
estimates the Company's theoretical royalty saviraye ownership of the intangible asset. Key asdionp used in this model include disco
rates, royalty rates, growth rates, sales projestand terminal value rates. Discount rates, rgyales, growth rates and sales projections are
the assumptions most sensitive and susceptibleange as they require significant management judgrdéscount rates used are similar to
rates estimated by the weighted average cost aat&8WACC") considering any differences in compaspecific risk factors. Royalty rates
are established by management and are periodmallgtantiated by third-party valuation consulta@®serational management, considering
industry and company-specific historical and prigdalata, develops growth rates and sales projectissociated with each indefinite-lived
intangible asset. Terminal value rate determinafidlows common methodology of capturing the préseue of perpetual sales estimates
beyond the last projected period assuming a con®f&CC and low long-term growth rates.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finredlintangible assets in the same manner as éqepty, plant and equipment as described
above. Impairment losses are recorded primari@tteer (charges) gains, net.

* Financial instruments

The Company manages its exposures to currency egelrates, interest rates and commodity pricesigir@ risk management program that
includes the use of derivative financial instrunsefithe Company does not use derivative financgtuments for speculative trading purpo:
The fair value of all derivative instruments isosed as an asset or liability at the balance gtetet Changes in the fair value of these
instruments are reported in earnings or Accumulathdr comprehensive income (loss), net, deperafinthe use of the derivative and whet
it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment undergrovisions of FASB ASC Topic 81Begrivatives and HedginlFASB ASC Topic 815").

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualif@s cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutatest comprehensive income (loss), net,
to the extent the hedges are effective, until theeulying transactions are recognized in earniligshe extent effective, gains and losses on
derivative and non-derivative instruments usedeafghs of the Company's net investment in foreig@ratfpns are recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), net as pahefdreign currency translation adjustment. Théf@utive portions of cash flow hedges and
hedges of net investment in foreign operationanif, are recognized in earnings immediately. Dékiganstruments not designated as hedges
are marked to market at the end of each accouptngd with the change in fair value recorded imewys.

» Concentrations of credit risl

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémonpayment by customers and counterpartiescidditworthiness of customers and
counterparties is subject to continuing review|uding the use of master netting agreements, wiher€ompany deems appropriate. The
Company minimizes concentrations of credit rislotlyh diverse customers across many different inéssind geographies. In addition, cr
risk arising from derivative instruments is notrgfgcant because the counterparties to these oteteae primarily major international financial
institutions and, to a lesser extent, major chehticempanies. Where appropriate, the Company hassified its selection of counterparties.
Generally, collateral is not required from custosn@nd counterparties and allowances are providesptecific risks inherent in receivables.

» Allowance for doubtful account:

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®ior estimated losses resulting from the ingbdf its customers to make required
payments. The Company believes, based on histagsalts, the likelihood of actual write-offs hagia material impact on financial results is
low. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estiedatising factors such as customer credit ratiras, gollection history and general risk
profile. Receivables are charged against the aleedor doubtful accounts when it is probable thatreceivable will not be recovered.
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e Deferred financing cost:

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taiakdebt financings and amortizes these costgusimethod that approximates the effec
interest rate method over the terms of the reldédd. Upon the extinguishment of the related daty,unamortized capitalized debt financing
costs are immediately expensed.

* Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fiohemical products throughout the world. Accordinghe Company's operations are
subject to various hazards incidental to the prédnof industrial chemicals including the use, tilamg, processing, storage and transportatiol
of hazardous materials. The Company recognizessamsd accrues liabilities relating to environmematters if available information
indicates that it is probable that a liability Heesen incurred and the amount of loss can be rebsoestimated. Depending on the nature of the
site, the Company accrues through 15 years , utlesSompany has government orders or other agrgsrtieat extend beyond 15 years . If
the event of loss is neither probable nor reasgnedtimable, but is reasonably possible, the Compaovides appropriate disclosure in the
notes to the consolidated financial statementseifdontingency is considered material. The Comgatiynates environmental liabilities on a
case-by-case basis using the most current stataadéble facts, existing technology, presentlgatad laws and regulations and prior
experience in remediation of contaminated sitesoReries of environmental costs from other pamiesrecorded as assets when their rece
deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofraasninated site might include, for example, a psimri for one or more of the following
types of costs: site investigation and testings;adeanup costs, costs related to soil and wat@amination resulting from tank ruptures and
post-remediation monitoring costs. These resereasodl take into account any claims or recoveriesfmsurance. The measurement of
environmental liabilities is based on the Compapgsodic estimate of what it will cost to perfoaach of the elements of the remediation
effort. The Company utilizes third parties to assithe management and development of cost essifat its sites. Changes to environmental
regulations or other factors affecting environmeliailities are reflected in the consolidateddntial statements in the period in which they
occur.

e Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todosingency matters when the costs associateddefénding these matters can be
reasonably estimated and are probable of occurtih@ther legal fees are expensed as incurred.

* Revenue recognitiol

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofishss have been transferred to the customer rgiyat the time of shipment of produs
and provided that four basic criteria are metp@lpsuasive evidence of an arrangement existsg{b)etly has occurred or services have been
rendered; (c) the fee is fixed or determinable; @hcaollectibility is reasonably assured. Shoutdmges in conditions cause the Company to
determine revenue recognition criteria are notfmetertain transactions, revenue recognition wdddlelayed until such time that the
transactions become realizable and fully earnegimats received in advance of meeting the abovenue recognition criteria are recorded a:
deferred revenue. Shipping and handling fees bitbezlistomers in a sales transaction are recordbliét sales and shipping and handling cost
incurred are recorded in Cost of sales.

» Research and developme
The costs of research and development are chasgaad expense in the period in which they are irclrr
* Insurance loss reserve

The Company has two wholly-owned insurance comga(tiee "Captives") that are used as a form ofisslirance for liability and workers
compensation risks. The Captives enter into rearses arrangements to reduce their risk of loss.réimsurance arrangements do not relieve
the Captives from their obligations to policyholsldrailure of the reinsurers to honor their oblgad could result in losses to the Captives.
Captives evaluate the financial condition of threinsurers and monitor concentrations of crediit tisminimize their exposure to significant
losses from reinsurer insolvencies and to estahlisivances for amounts deemed non-collectible.

One of the Captives also insures certain thirdypasks. The liabilities recorded by the Captivekate to the estimated risk of loss, which is
based on management estimates and actuarial \saind unearned premiums, which represent thopaf the third-party premiums
written applicable to the unexpired terms of thégies in-force. Liabilities are recognized for kmo

79




claims when sufficient information has been devetbt indicate involvement of a specific policy ahd Company can reasonably estimat
liability. In addition, liabilities have been estahed to cover additional exposure on both knowth anasserted claims. Estimates of the
liabilities are reviewed and updated regularlys [possible that actual results could differ sigaifitly from the recorded liabilities. Premiums
written are recognized as revenue as earned basta derms of the policies. Capitalization of @eptives is determined by regulatory
guidelines.

* |Income taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined usirggasset and liability approach of accountingrioome taxes. Under this approach,
deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effetteraporary differences between the carrying amoohassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢armpurposes and net operating loss and tax aredigforwards. The amount of deferred
taxes on these temporary differences is determised) the tax rates that are expected to applydgeriod when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, as applicable, based on tes and laws in the respective tax jurisdictioacted as of the balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets faverability and establishes a valuation allowarasel on historical taxable income,
projected future taxable income, applicable taatetfies and the expected timing of the reversagxisting temporary differences. A valuation
allowance is provided when it is more likely thast (likelihood of greater than 50% ) that some jporor all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized.

The Company considers many factors when evaluamaigestimating its tax positions and tax benefitéich may require periodic adjustments
and which may not accurately anticipate actuala@uts. Tax positions are recognized only whenntase likely than not, based on technical
merits, that the positions will be sustained uprangination. Tax positions that meet the more-likilgn-not threshold are measured using a
probability weighted approach as the largest amotitéx benefit that is greater than 50% likelybeing realized upon settlement. Whether the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is met & tax position is a matter of judgment basetherindividual facts and circumstances of
that position evaluated in light of all availabladence.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrbtatuncertain tax positions in Income tax (prioviy benefit in the consolidated statement
of operations.

» Functional and reporting currencie:

For the Company's international operations whegeuhctional currency is other than the US dobasets and liabilities are translated using
period-end exchange rates, while the statemenp@fations amounts are translated using the averadf@nge rates for the respective period.
Differences arising from the translation of assetd liabilities in comparison with the translatiofithe previous periods or from initial
recognition during the period are included as asp component of Accumulated other comprehensoame (loss), net.

3. Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Steaslblpdate ("ASU") 2013-0Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumdlate
Other Comprehensive Incoman amendment to FASB ASC Topic 220. The updateires disclosure of amounts reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income by compotreatldition, an entity is required to presenheiton the face of the statement of
operations or in the notes, significant amounttassified out of accumulated other comprehensieerime by the respective line items of net
income but only if the amount reclassified is regdito be reclassified to net income in its enfiietthe same reporting period. For amounts
not reclassified in their entirety to net income emtity is required to cross-reference to othecldsures that provide additional detail about
those amounts. This ASU is effective prospectifetythe Company for annual and interim periods beigig January 1, 2013. The Company
will comply with the disclosure requirements ofsiSU for the quarter ending March 31, 2013.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013@arifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsgtiissets and Liabilitiesan amendment to
FASB ASC Topic 210. The update clarifies that tbepe of ASU 2011-11Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilitiapplies to
derivatives accounted for in accordance with FASBCAT opic 815Derivatives and Hedgingincluding bifurcated embedded derivatives,
repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agtegand securities borrowing and securities fepttiansactions that are either offset or
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangearesimilar agreement. This ASU is effective foe tCompany for annual and interim
periods beginning January 1, 2013. The Companyowithply with the disclosure requirements of thisAfer the quarter ending March 31,
2013.
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In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02sting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for linpeent, an amendment to FASB ASC Topic
350. The update provides an entity with the opfist to assess qualitative factors in determinigether it is more likely than not that the
indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. Afessessing the qualitative factors, if an entétednines that it is not more likely than not that
the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairtten the entity is not required to take furtheractlf an entity concludes otherwise, then it is
required to determine the fair value of the indiéditived intangible asset and perform the quantitaitiveairment test. The ASU is effective
the Company for annual and interim impairment tpst$ormed for fiscal years beginning after Septenitb, 2012. Early adoption was
permitted. The Company did not early adopt the isioms of this ASU; however, the Company does npeet the impact of adopting this
ASU to be material to the Company's financial positresults of operations or cash flows.

4. Acquisitions, Dispositions, Ventures and Plant [Bsures
Acquisitions

On January 3, 2012, the Company completed the sitiquiof certain assets from Ashland Inc., inchgdtwo product lines, Vinatand
Flexbond®, to support the strategic growth of the Company'siEions business. In February 2011, the Companyiamta business primari
consisting of emulsions process technology fromw@r@aints Limited. Both of the acquired operatiansincluded in the Industrial Speciali

segment Note 10).

In May 2010, the Company acquired Zerfitigjuid crystal polymer ("LCP") and Thern®polycyclohexylene-dimethylene terephthalate
("PCT") product lines from DuPont Performance Palysa The acquisition builds on the Company’s positis a global supplier of high

performance materials and technology-driven aptitina. The acquired product lines are includedhanAdvanced Engineered Materials
segment.

Pro forma financial information since the respeeticquisition dates has not been provided as tigsitions did not have a material impact
the Company’s financial information.

The Company allocated the purchase price of thaisitigns to identifiable intangible assets acqiibased on their estimated fair values. The
excess of purchase price over the aggregate faiesvavas recorded as goodwill. Intangible assetse walued using the relief from royalty and
discounted cash flow methodologies which are canmeidl Level 3 measurements under FASB ASC Topic Ba6.relief from royalty method
estimates the Company’s theoretical royalty saving® ownership of the intangible asset. Key asgionp used in this model include
discount rates, royalty rates, growth rates, galegctions and terminal value rates, all of whietuire significant management judgment and,
therefore, are susceptible to change. The key gstsams used in the discounted cash flow valuatiadehinclude discount rates, growth rates
cash flow projections and terminal value ratescBimt rates, growth rates and cash flow projectayashe most sensitive and susceptible to
change as they require significant management jedgnthe Company, with the assistance of thirdypeaatuation consultants, calculated the
fair value of the intangible assets acquired tocalte the purchase price at the respective aciquisiate.

Ventures

The Company indirectly owns a 25% interest in itgibhal Methanol Company ("lbn Sina") affiliate tmigh CTE Petrochemicals Company
("CTE"), a joint venture with Texas Eastern Arab@arporation Ltd. (which also indirectly owns 25%dlon Sina). The remaining interest in
Ibn Sina is held by Saudi Basic Industries Corporat'SABIC"). SABIC and CTE entered into the Ibim& joint venture agreement in 1981
April 2010, the Company announced that Ibn Sindeahstruct a 50,000 ton per year polyacetal ("PPpbdduction facility in Saudi Arabia
and that the term of the joint venture agreemerst @a@ended until 2032. Ibn Sina’s existing natges supply contract expires in 2022. Upon
successful startup of the POM facility, which ipegted to be completed in 2015, the Company’ségtlieconomic interest in Ibn Sina will
increase from 25% to 32.5% although the Compangisdéct ownership interest will remain unchangeiBEC’'s economic and ownership
interest will remain unchanged. The Ibn Sina equigthod investment is included in the Advanced Begied Materials segment.

Plant Closures
 Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom

In March 2010, the Company assessed the possibflitpnsolidating its global acetate flake and atsetow manufacturing operations to
strengthen the Company's competitive position, cedixed costs and align future production capesitvith anticipated industry demand
trends. Based on this assessment, the Companyudeuicthat certain long-lived assets were partiadiyaired and recorded long-lived asset
impairment losses of $72 millionNote 17) to Other (charges) gains, net in the consolidatattments of operations. The Spondon, Derby,
United Kingdom operations are included in the Comsu
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Specialties segment.

In August 2010, the Company announced it would clste its global acetate manufacturing capabgithy closing its acetate flake and
acetate tow manufacturing operations in Spondorbypénited Kingdom. The Company expects to setvadetate customers under this
proposal by optimizing its global production netkjorhich includes facilities in Lanaken, Belgiumafows, Virginia; and Ocotlan, Mexico,
as well as the Company's acetate affiliate faediin China. In November 2012, the Company ceaseudifacturing acetate flake and acetate
tow at its Spondon, Derby, United Kingdom site.

The exit costs and plant shutdown costs relatéde@losure of the acetate flake and acetate tomufaaturing operations in Spondon, Derby,
United Kingdom (Note 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefits (5) 4 (15)
Asset impairments (8) — (72)
Total exit costs recorded to Other (charges) gaies, (13 (4) (87)
Accelerated depreciation (6) @) (6)
Other ©) ©) —
Total plant shutdown costs 13) (10) (6)

« Pardies, France

In July 2009, the Company completed the consuligtimcess with the workers council on its "ProfoClosure” and social plan related to the
Company’s Pardies, France facility pursuant to White Company ceased all manufacturing operatindsaasociated activities in December
2009. The Pardies, France operations are includdteiAcetyl Intermediates segment.

The exit costs and plant shutdown costs relatékded’roject of ClosureNote 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
Employee termination benefits 2 4 (6)
Asset impairments — — Q)
Contract termination costs — — (©)]
Reindustrialization costs — — ©)]
Other — — 1
Total exit costs recorded to Other (charges) gaies, (2) (4) (12)
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets, net — 1 —
Inventory write-offs — — 4)
Accelerated depreciation — — —
Other (8) @) ©)
Total plant shutdown costs ) €) (12)

5. Marketable Securities, at Fair Value
The Captives and nonqualified trusts hold availdbtesale securities for capitalization and fundmequirements, respectively.
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Realized gains (losses) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Realized gain on sale of securities — — 8
Realized loss on sale of securities — — —
Net realized gain (loss) on sale of securities — — 8

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, grossalined loss and fair values for available-foressécurities by major security type are as
follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011

(In $ millions)
Mutual Funds
Cost basis 53 64
Gross unrealized gain — —
Gross unrealized loss — —

Fair value 53 64

SeeNote 22- Fair Value Measurementsr additional information regarding the fair valagthe Company's marketable securities.

6. Receivables, Net

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates 83€ 88C
Allowance for doubtful accounts - third party arflliates (9) (9)
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates, net 827 871

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Non-income taxes receivable 80 82
Reinsurance receivables 22 24
Income taxes receivable 53 66
Other 55 64
Allowance for doubtful accounts - other @ @
Non-trade receivables, net 20¢ 23¢

7. Inventories

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Finished goods 514 511
Work-in-process 42 38
Raw materials and supplies 15& 162
Total 711 71z
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8. Investments in Affiliates

The Company is a party to various transactions affitiated companies. Entities in which the Compé&ias an investment accounted for unde
the cost or equity method of accounting are comsitlaffiliates; any transactions or balances witthscompanies are considered affiliate
transactions.

Equity Method

Equity method investments and ownership interegisusiness segment are as follows:

Ownership Share of Dividends and
Percentage Carrying Earnings (Loss) Other Distributions
as of Value as of Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
(In percentages) (In'$ millions)
Advanced Engineered Materials
Ibn Sina 25 25 55 54 13C 112 81 (12€) (111 (84)
Fortron Industries LLC 50 50 92 87 9 7 5 3 — —
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd. 50 50 152 15C 19 23 20 (23) (22 (20
Polyplastics Co., Ltd® 45 45 13€ 20z 32 19 37 (81) (45) (10
Una SA®W — — — — — — 1 — (3 —
Other Activities
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39 39 36 33 9 10 4 @) (©)] 2
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K& 32 32 142 12t 38 16 16 (18) (16) (18)
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27 27 22 21 5 5 4 4 (5) (4)
Consumer Specialties
Sherbrooke Capital Health and
Wellness, L.P? 10 10 5 5 — - — _ — _
Total 644 677 247 192 16¢€ (262) (20K) (13¢)

@ T he Company divested this investment in March 2

@ T he Company accounts for its ownership intere§thiarbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.P. utiteequity method of accounting
because the Company is able to exercise signifinéinence.

® D uring the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynamended its existing joint venture and otheatesl agreements with Polyplastics
Co., Ltd. The amended agreements, among other itedified certain dividend rights, resulting imat cash dividend payment to the
Company of $72 million during the three months ehiarch 31, 2012.

@ InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG is owned primarilyday entity included in the Company's Other ActastiThe Company's Consui
Specialties segment and Acetyl Intermediates segaiem each hold an ownership percentage. Duriagydlar ended December 31, 2012,
a subsidiary of InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KGmaestured its debt resulting in additional net éags of affiliates of $22 million
attributable to the Company.

Financial information for Ibn Sina is not providedthe Company on a timely basis and as a resgltCompany's proportional share is repa
on a one quarter lag. Accordingly, summarized fai@rinformation of Ibn Sina is as follows:

As of September 30,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Current assets 37¢ 35C
Noncurrent assets 20% 21C
Current liabilities 172 162
Noncurrent liabilities 56 41
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Twelve Months Ended

September 30,
2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Revenues 1,32¢ 1,204 92%
Gross profit 65¢ 54¢€ 40z
Net income 582 481 357
Cost Method
Cost method investments and ownership intereskaibiness segment are as follows:
Ownership Carrying Dividend
Percentage Value Income for the
as of as of Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2010
(In percentages) (In'$ millions)
Consumer Specialties
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 30 30 14 14 13 12 11
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 31 31 10€ 97 59 56 51
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd. 30 30 14 14 11 10 9
Other Activities
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden KG 8 8 6 6 2 2 2
Other 16 16 — — —
Total 15€ 147 85 80 73

Transactions with Affiliates

Transactions with affiliates are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Purchases 162 19C 16¢
Sales 1 1C 8
Interest income — 1 1
Balances with affiliates are as follows:
As of December 31,
2012 2011
(In' $ millions)

Non-trade receivables 11 15
Total due from affiliates 11 15
Short-term borrowings 36 34
Trade payables 9 4
Current Other liabilities 6 8
Total due to affiliates 51 46

The Company has agreements with certain affiliggemarily real estate service companies ("Infra3emtities") (Note 15), whereby excess
affiliate cash is lent to and managed by the Corppanvariable interest rates governed by thoseeagents.
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9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Land
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Gross asset value

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Assets under capital leases, net, included in ith@euats above are as follows:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Capitalized interest costs and depreciation exparesas follows:

Capitalized interest
Depreciation expense

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, certain long-liveskeds were impairedNote 4andNote 17).

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)

49 56

45 41

67% 63€
3,76( 3,51«
327 33¢
4,85¢€ 4,58¢
(1,506) (1,316)
3,35( 3,26¢

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
34 33
29C 274
(122 (96)
20z 211

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
7 4 2
261 232 19t




10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill
Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Total
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2010
Goodwill 29¢ 24¢ 35 191 774
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Net book value 29¢ 24¢ 35 191 774
Acquisitions (Note 4) — — 1 — 1
Exchange rate changes (5) ©)] Q) (6) (15)
As of December 31, 2011
Goodwill 294 24¢€ 35 18t 76C
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Net book value 294 24¢€ 35 18t 76C
Acquisitions (Note 4) — — 7 — 7
Exchange rate changes 3 3 — 4 1C
As of December 31, 2012
Goodwill 297 24¢ 42 18¢ 777
Accumulated impairment losses — — — — —
Net book value 297 24¢ 42 18¢ 777

In connection with the Company's annual goodwilb@nment test performed during the three montheér®@kptember 30, 2012 using June 3(
balances, the Company did not record an impairtosstrelated to goodwill as the estimated fair gdtar each of the Company's reporting
units exceeded the carrying value of the underlgisgets by a substantial margin. No events or @singcircumstances occurred during the
three months ended December 31, 2012 that wouldatedthat the carrying amount of the assets mapadully recoverable. Accordingly, no
additional impairment analysis was performed dutheg period.
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Intangible Assets, Ne

Finite-lived intangibles are as follows:

Customer- Covenants
Related Not to
Intangible Developed Compete
Licenses Assets Technology and Other Total
(In'$ millions)
Gross Asset Value
As of December 31, 2010 3C 52¢ 2C 23 59¢
Acquisitions (Note 4) — — 7 — 7
Exchange rate changes 2 (23 — (§0)] (12
As of December 31, 2011 32 51z 27 22 594
Acquisitions (Note 4) — 4 3 6 13 @ )
Exchange rate changes — 8 — — 8
As of December 31, 2012 32 52t 3C 28 61t
Accumulated Amortization
As of December 31, 2010 (20 (395 (12) ()] (430
Amortization 3 (52 (©)] 4 (62
Exchange rate changes — 14 — — 14
As of December 31, 2011 (13 (439 (14) (18) (47¢)
Amortization 3 (40 ©)] (5) (51)
Exchange rate changes — (7) — — (7)
As of December 31, 2012 (1€) (480) a7 (23 (53€)
Net book value 1€ 45 13 5 79
@ W eighted average amortization period of intang#ssets acquired was 6 years
Indefinite-lived intangibles are as follows:
Trademarks
and Trade Names
(In $ millions)
Gross Asset Value
As of December 31, 2010 83
Acquisitions (Note 4) —
Exchange rate changes 2
As of December 31, 2011 81
Acquisitions (Note 4)
Exchange rate changes 1
As of December 31, 2012 8€

The Company’s trademarks and trade names havelefirite life. Accordingly, no amortization experiseecorded on these intangible asset:
For the year ended December 31, 2012 , the Comglidmyot renew or extend any intangible assets.
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Estimated amortization expense for the succeedieditcal years is as follows:

(In $ millions)
2013 32
2014 21
2015 1C
2016 7
2017 6

In connection with the Company's annual indefitiited intangible assets impairment test performedngd) the three months ended Septembe
30, 2012 using June 30 balances, the Company dictoord an impairment loss to indefinite-livedaingible assets as the estimated fair value
for each of the Company's indefinite-lived intagiassets exceeded the carrying value of the widgrasset by a substantial margin. No
events or changes in circumstances occurred dthinthree months ended December 31, 2012 that viedilchte that the carrying amount of
the assets may not be fully recoverable. Accorgingb additional impairment analysis was perforrdadng that period.

11. Current Other Liabilities

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)

Salaries and benefits 74 101
Environmental (Note 15) 21 25
Restructuring (Note 17) 30 44
Insurance 15 19
Asset retirement obligations 38 22
Derivatives (Note 21) 23 26
Current portion of benefit obligations\ote 14) 47 47
Interest 23 25
Sales and use tax/foreign withholding tax payable 17 1€
Uncertain tax positionsNote 18) 65 7C
Customer rebates 44 55
Other 78 8¢

Total 47E 53¢

12. Noncurrent Other Liabilities

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)

Environmental (Note 15) 78 71
Insurance 58 64
Deferred revenue 36 4C
Deferred proceedd 90¢ 892
Asset retirement obligations 26 42
Derivatives (Note 21) 8 13
Income taxes payable 2 2
Other 35 28

Total 1,152 1,15:

@ P rimarily relates to proceeds received from trenkfurt, Germany Airport as part of a settlementtfee Company to cease operations an
sell its Kelsterbach, Germany manufacturing siteluded in the Advanced Engineered Materials seg
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ment (). Such proceeds will be deferred untiltthesfer of title to the Frankfurt, Germany Airport

Changes in asset retirement obligations are aswell

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Balance at beginning of year 64 77 67
Additions® 3 — —
Accretion 3 3 3
Payments (12) (10) (15)
Revisions to cash flow estimat@s 5 (5) 23
Exchange rate changes 1 (1) Q)
Balance at end of year 64 64 77

@ Primarily relates to sites which management no lomg@siders to have an indeterminate
@ Primarily relates to revisions to the estimated adstiture plant closure

Included in the asset retirement obligations ferybars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is $lioma@hd $10 million , respectively,
related to indemnifications received for a busiresguired in 2005. The Company has a corresporndiregjvable of $6 million in Non-trade
receivables, net and $4 million included in nonentrOther assets in the consolidated balance aked#tDecember 31, 2012 .

Periodically, the Company will conclude a site ander has an indeterminate life based on long-lagskt impairment triggering events and
decisions made by the Company. Accordingly, the @amy will record asset retirement obligations agged with such sites. To measure the
fair value of the asset retirement obligations,@oenpany will use the expected present value teclenivhich is classified as a Level 3
measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. The expqutesknt value technique uses a set of cash fleatsepresent the probabilityeightec
average of all possible cash flows based on thegaogis judgment. The Company uses the followingt®po determine the fair value of the
asset retirement obligations based on the Comparpirience with fulfilling obligations of this tgpand the Company's knowledge of market
conditions: a) labor costs; b) allocation of overtheosts; c) profit on labor and overhead costsffdrt of inflation on estimated costs and
profits; e) risk premium for bearing the uncertgimherent in cash flows, other than inflationtiffe value of money represented by the risk-
free interest rate commensurate with the timinthefassociated cash flows; and g) nonperformaskeeiating to the liability which includes
the Company's own credit risk.

The Company has identified but not recognized astiegément obligations related to certain of i&stng operating facilities. Examples of
these types of obligations include demolition, degussioning, disposal and restoration activitiesgal obligations exist in connection with
retirement of these assets upon closure of thétfasior abandonment of the existing operationswelver, the Company currently plans on
continuing operations at these facilities indeéhjitand therefore a reasonable estimate of fairevahnnot be determined at this time. In the
event the Company considers plans to abandon seagzerations at these sites, an asset retirerhligation will be reassessed at that time. If
certain operating facilities were to close, thated asset retirement obligations could signifigaatfect the Company's results of operations
and cash flows.

13. Debt

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Short-Term Borrowings and Current Installments ohg-Term Debt - Third Party and Affiliates
Current installments of long-term debt 60 38
Short-term borrowings, including amounts due tdiatés 10€ 10€
Total 16€ 144

The Company's weighted average interest rate art-s&rean borrowings, including amounts due to adfiéis, was 4.0% as Biecember 31, 201
compared to 4.3% as of December 31, 2011 .
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As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Long-Term Debt

Senior credit facilities - Term C loan due 2016 977 1,38¢
Senior unsecured notes due 2018, interest rate62586 60C 60C
Senior unsecured notes due 2021, interest rate885% 40C 40C
Senior unsecured notes due 2022, interest rate625% 50C —
Credit-linked revolving facility due 2014, intereste of 1.8% 50 —
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgliest rates ranging from 5.7% to 6.7%, due at uaraate:

through 2030 182 182
Obligations under capital leases due at varioussttrough 2054 244 24¢
Other bank obligations due 2017, interest rate. @%b 37 95

Subtotal 2,99( 2,911
Current installments of long-term debt (60) (398)

Total 2,93( 2,87:

Senior Notes

On November 13, 2012, Celanese US completed arraffef $ 500 million in aggregate principal amoohtd.625% senior unsecured notes
due 2022 (the " 4.625% Notes") in a public offeriegistered under the Securities Act of 1933, asratad (the "Securities Act"). The 4.625%
Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured ba€islagese and each of the domestic subsidiari€glahese US that guarantee its obliga
under its senior secured credit facilities (theb'Sdiary Guarantors").

The 4.625% Notes were issued under an indentured dday 6, 2011, as amended by a second supplehmefeature, dated November 13,
2012 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture”) amorngn@se US, Celanese, the Subsidiary Guarantorgvaiid Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee. Celanese US will pay é@steon the 4.625% Notes on March 15 and Septentbef dach year commencing on

March 15, 2013. Prior to November 15, 2022, Celan¢S may redeem some or all of the 4.625% Notagedemption price of 100% of the
principal amount, plus a "make-whole" premium asc#fied in the Second Supplemental Indenture, pticsued and unpaid interest, if any, to
the redemption date. The 4.625% Notes are sengeaumed obligations of Celanese US and rank equmailght of payment with all other
unsubordinated indebtedness of Celanese US.

In May 2011 , Celanese US completed an offering4@0 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.8¥%enior unsecured notes due 2021
(the " 5.875% Notes") in a public offering regig@munder the Securities Act. The 5.875% Notes aaegagnteed on a senior unsecured basis b
Celanese and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

The 5.875% Notes were issued under an indentura éinst supplemental indenture, each dated M&0&1 (the "First Supplemental
Indenture”) among Celanese US, Celanese, the Saysf@uarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, National Agg@n, as trustee. Celanese US |
interest on the 5.875% Notes on June 15 and Deaehdhbaf each year commencing on December 15, 2@tibr. to June 15, 2021 , Celanese
US may redeem some or all of the 5.875% Notesedl@mption price of 100% of the principal amouhisp "make-whole" premium as
specified in the First Supplemental Indenture, plosrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemplate. The 5.875% Notes are senior
unsecured obligations of Celanese US and rank klggnaight of payment with all other unsubordindtedebtedness of Celanese US.

In September 2010, Celanese US completed the prplatement of $600 million in aggregate princgralount of 6.625% senior unsecured
notes due 2018 (the " 6.625% Notes") under an inderdated September 24, 2010 (the "Indenture")nan@elanese US, Celanese, the
Subsidiary Guarantors and Wells Fargo Bank, Natidsaociation, as trustee. In April 2011, Celang&registered the 6.625% Notes under
the Securities Act. Celanese US pays interest @ #25% Notes on April 15 and October 15 of eagdr gommencing on April 15, 2011. The
6.625% Notes are redeemable, in whole or in pagngptime on or after October 15, 2014 at the mgai®on prices specified in the Indenture.
Prior to October 15, 2014, Celanese US may redeene ®r all of the 6.625% Notes at a redemptionepoic100% of the principal amount,
plus a "make-whole" premium as specified in theshtdre, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anthé redemption date. The 6.625% Notes
are senior unsecured obligations of Celanese USaridequally in right of payment with all otheraubordinated indebtedness
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of Celanese US. The 6.625% Notes are guaranteadsenior unsecured basis by Celanese.

The Indenture and the First and Second Supplemirdt@htures contain covenants, including, but imoitéd to, restrictions on the Company’s
ability to incur indebtedness; grant liens on asseerge, consolidate, or sell assets; pay divisl@ndnake other restricted payments; engage
transactions with affiliates; or engage in othesibasses.

Senior Credit Facilities

In September 2010, Celanese US, Celanese, amincefthe domestic subsidiaries of Celanese U&redtinto an amendment agreement witl
the lenders under Celanese B/8kisting senior secured credit facilities in ersleamend and restate the corresponding Crediéékgent, date
as of April 2, 2007 (as previously amended, theistixg Credit Agreement”, and as amended and ezstat the amendment agreement, the
"Amended Credit Agreement"). Our Amended Creditégmnent consists of the Term C loan facility due@0the Term B loan facility due
2014 , a $600 million revolving credit facility tamating in 2015 and a $228 million credit-linkezolving facility terminating in 2014 .

In May 2011 , Celanese US prepaid its outstandigxgniB loan facility under the Amended Credit Agresnset to mature in 2014 with an
aggregate principal amount of $516 million usinggareds from the 5.875% Notes and cash on hand.

As a result of the Term B loan payoff by the isaeaaf the 5.875% Notes, the Company acceleratedtaation of deferred financing costs of
$3 million which is recorded as Refinancing expensthe consolidated statements of operationsdthitian, the Company recorded deferred
financing costs of $8 million which are being anmatl over the term of the 5.875% Notes.

On November 13, 2012 Celanese US prepaid $ 40miff its outstanding Term C loan facility undeetAmended Credit Agreement set to
mature in 2016 using proceeds from the 4.625% Notes

As a result of the Term C loan paydown using prdsdeom the issuance of the 4.625% Notes, $3 millias been recorded as Refinancing
expense in the consolidated statements of opesatiiich includes accelerated amortization of defitfinancing costs and other refinancing
expenses. In addition, the Company recorded deféimancing costs of $8 million which are being atired over the term of the 4.625%
Notes. These deferred financing costs combined existing deferred financing costs$22 million are included in noncurrent Other assets
the consolidated balance sheet as of Decembel032, .2

Amortization of deferred financing costs is asdal:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Interest expense 4 4 7

Net deferred financing costs are as follo

As of December 31,
2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Noncurrent Other assets 30 28

The margin for borrowings under the revolving ctéacility is currently 2.5% above LIBOR or EURIBQRs applicable, subject to increase o
reduction in certain circumstances based on changbs Company’s corporate credit ratings. Borraysi under the credit-linked revolving
facility and the Term C loan facility bear inter@sta variable interest rate based on LIBOR (forddfars) or EURIBOR (for Euros), plus a
margin which varies based on the Company's netdgeeratio.
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The estimated net leverage ratio and margin afellasvs:

As of December 31, 2012

Estimated Total Net Estimated
Leverage Ratio Margin
Credit-linked revolving facility 1.6C 1.5(%
Term C 1.6C 2.7%%

Borrowings under the Amended Credit Agreement baarest at a variable interest rate based on LIEORUS dollars) or EURIBOR (for
Euros), or, for US dollar-denominated loans unaegtain circumstances, a base rate, in each casephargin.

The margin on each facility may increase or dee€®a25% based on the following:

Credit-Linked Revolving Facility Term C Loan Facility
Margin over LIBOR Margin over LIBOR
Total Net Leverage Ratio or EURIBOR Total Net Leverage Ratio or EURIBOR
<=2.25 1.50 % <=1.75 2.75 %
>2.25 1.75% >1.75and <=2.25 3.00 %
>2.25 3.25 %

Term loan borrowings under the Amended Credit Agrext are subject to amortization at 1% of theahitrincipal amount per annum,
payable quarterly. In addition, the Company payarguly commitment fees on the unused portionsiefrevolving credit facility and credit-
linked revolving facility of 0.25% and 1.50% pemam, respectively.

The Amended Credit Agreement is guaranteed by @estaand certain domestic subsidiaries of Celan&serld is secured by a lien on
substantially all assets of Celanese US and suaragtors, subject to certain agreed exceptionfuiimg for certain real property and certain
shares of foreign subsidiaries), pursuant to thar@uee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of 2pap07 .

As a condition to borrowing funds or requestinddiet of credit be issued under the revolving fagithe Company’s first lien senior secured
leverage ratio (as calculated as of the last dali@fmost recent fiscal quarter for which finansi@tements have been delivered under the
revolving facility) cannot exceed the thresholdspscified below. Further, the Company’s first Isamior secured leverage ratio must be
maintained at or below that threshold while any ams are outstanding under the revolving creditifac

The Company’s first lien senior secured leveragiesand the borrowing capacity under the revoldinedit facility are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012
First Lien Senior Secured Leverage Ratio

Estimate, if Borrowing
Maximum Estimate Fully Drawn Capacity
(In $ millions)
Revolving credit facility 3.9C 0.8¢ 1.37 60C
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The balances available for borrowing are as foltows

As of
December 31,
2012

(In $ millions)
Revolving Credit Facility
Borrowings outstanding —
Letters of credit issued —

Available for borrowing 60C
Credit-Linked Revolving Facility

Borrowings outstanding 5C

Letters of credit issued 7C

Available for borrowing 10¢

The Amended Credit Agreement contains covenantsdirgy, but not limited to, restrictions on the Gmamy’s ability to incur indebtedness;
grant liens on assets; merge, consolidate, oase#ts; pay dividends or make other restricted paysnmake investments; prepay or modify
certain indebtedness; engage in transactions \fitiates; enter into sale-leaseback transactianisezlge transactions; or engage in other
businesses.

The Amended Credit Agreement also maintains a nuwibevents of default, including a cross defaolbther debt of Celanese, Celanese US
or their subsidiaries, including the 4.625% Nothkse,5.875% Notes and the 6.625% Notes, in an agggegnount equal to more than $40
million and the occurrence of a change of conffailure to comply with these covenants, or the aence of any other event of default, could
result in acceleration of the borrowings and offreancial obligations under the Amended Credit Agnent.

Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oygdebt, including short-term borrowings, aréotlews:

(In $ millions)

2013 16¢
2014 73
2015 23
2016 962
2017 17
Thereafter 1,85¢

Total 3,09¢

The Company is in compliance with all of the covaisaelated to its debt agreements as of Decenlhe2(3.2 .
14. Benefit Obligations

Pension obligations Pension obligations are established for beneéiy@bple in the form of retirement, disability anawéving dependent
pensions. The commitments result from participaiiodefined contribution and defined benefit plgmsmarily in the US. Benefits are
dependent on years of service and the employegipasation. Supplemental retirement benefits peal/id certain employees are
nonqualified for US tax purposes. Separate nonfigalirusts have been established for US nongedlifilans. Pension costs under the
Company's retirement plans are actuarially detegthin

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension phaNsrth America, Europe and Asia. Independenttéros insurance companies administe
the majority of these plans.

The Company sponsors various defined contributlangin North America, Europe and Asia coveringaiaremployees. Employees may
contribute to these plans and the Company will m#ttese contributions in varying amounts. The Camg[samatching contribution to the
defined contribution plans are based on specifexdgntages of employee contributions.
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The Company participates in a multiemployer defibedefit plan and a multiemployer defined contiidnuifplan in Germany covering certain
employees. The Company's contributions to the emitloyer defined benefit plan are based on spéaifeecentages of employee
contributions as outlined in a works council agreamcovering all German entity employees hiredmieo January 1, 2012. As of January 1,
2012, the multiemployer defined benefit pensiomplascribed above was closed to new employeesif@nglemployees hired in Germany
after December 31, 2011 are covered by a multiepepldefined contribution plan. The Company's camitions to the multiemployer defined
contribution plan are based on specified percestafiemployee contributions, similar to the multiayer defined benefit plan, but at a lower
rate.

Statutory regulations and the works council agregmegjuire the contributions to fully fund the niesthployer plans. The risks of participating
in the multiemployer plans are different from siggimployer plans in the following aspects:

» Assets contributed to the multiemployer plarobg employer may be used to provide benefits td@mps of other participating
employers.

» If a participating employer stops contributimgthe plan, any underfunding may be borne by theeing participants, especially since
regulations strictly enforce funding requirements.

« If the Company chooses to stop participatinghenmultiemployer plan, the Company may be requiogghy the plan an amount based on
the underfunded status of the plan, referred thasvithdrawal liability.

Based on the 2012 unaudited and 2011 audited mydtayer defined benefit plan's financial statemethts plan is at least 100% funded in
2012, 2011 and 2010 . The number of employeesredvwy the Company's multiemployer defined bergéih remained relatively stable year
over year from 2010 to 2012 , resulting in miniraaknges to employer contributions. The Companytcgaation in the German
multiemployer defined benefit plan is not consideirdividually significant to that plan as the Cceng's contributions were less than 5% in
both 2012 and 2011 . No other factors would ingiche Company's participation in the German mulleyer defined benefit plan is
individually significant.

Contributions to the Company's defined contribufitems and multiemployer plans are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Defined contribution plans 17 15 14
Multiemployer pension plan 6 6 6

Other postretirement obligationCertain retired employees receive postretiremeatth care and life insurance benefits under pdpoesisore:
by the Company, which has the right to modify emimate these plans at any time. The cost for ameis shared between the Company and
the retiree. The cost of providing retiree healihecand life insurance benefits is actuarially deteed and accrued over the service period of
the active employee group. The Company's polit¢g fsind benefits as claims and premiums are pdid. JS plan was closed to new
participants effective January 1, 2006.

95




Summarized information on the Company's pensionpastiretirement benefit plans is as follows:

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation as of beginning ofigper
Service cost
Interest cost
Participant contributions
Plan amendments
Net actuarial (gain) los¥
Divestitures
Settlements
Benefits paid
Federal subsidy on Medicare Part D
Curtailments
Exchange rate changes
Projected benefit obligation as of end of period

Change in Plan Assets

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance tSi@&ensist of:

Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprelverisicome

Fair value of plan assets as of beginning of period
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Participant contributions
Divestitures
Settlements
Benefits paid®
Exchange rate changes
Fair value of plan assets as of end of period

Funded Status as of end of period

Noncurrent Other assets
Current Other liabilities
Benefit obligations

Net amount recognized

Consist of:
Net actuarial (gain) los8
Prior service (benefit) cost

Net amount recognized

1)

)

3)

Primarily relates to change in discount r¢

Pension Benefits

As of December 31,

Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31,

2012 2011 2012 2011
(In $ millions)
3,761 3,53: 281 282
28 28 1 1
17C 182 11 13
— — 22 21
— ©) 4 —
46€ 274 12 13
_ (1) — —
(242) (236) (46) (53)
— — 6 4
_ (1) _ _
16 (15) 1 —
4,19¢ 3,761 292 281
2,562 2,46( — —
294 16¢ — —
27C 181 24 32
— — 22 21
(242) (23€) (46) (53
12 (12) — —
2,89¢ 2,56z — —
(2,309 (1,199 (292 (2817)
26 27 — —
(23 (22 (24) (25)
(2,306 (1,209 (26¢) (25€)
(1,309) (1,199 (292 (281)
1,32¢ 994 (21) (35)
6 7 4 1
1,332 1,001 ()] (39

Amount includes accumulated other comprehensiveesf $ 9 million and gains of $ 1 million as cfd@mber 31, 2012 and 2011 ,
respectively, related to the Company's equity nettheestments' pension plans. Amount shown nehaheome tax benefit of $307

million and $203 million as of December 31, 200212011 , respectively, in the consolidated statesef equity (Note 16).

Includes benefit payments to nonqualified pensiangof $22 million and $22 million as of DecemBé&r 2012 and 201 1respectively




The percentage of US and international projecteafieobligation at the end of the period is asdek:

US plans
International plans

Total

The percentage of US and international fair valuglan assets at the end of the period is as falow

US plans
International plans

Total

Pension plans with projected benefit obligationsxness of plan assets are as follows:

Projected benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Pension Benefits
As of December 31,

Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31,

(In percentages)

2012 2011
88 88
12 12
100 100

Pension Benefits
As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In percentages)
83 82
17 18
100 100

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
3,98¢ 3,54(
2,657 2,31«

Included in the above table are pension plans adttumulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets as follows:

Accumulated benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defiremhefit pension plans is as follows:

Accumulated benefit obligation

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
3,881 3,46¢
2,65¢ 2,30(

As of December 31,

2012 2011

(In $ millions)
4,09¢ 3,691




The components of net periodic benefit costs arfelksvs:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)

Service cost 28 28 30 1 1
Interest cost 17C 182 18¢€ 11 13 15
Expected return on plan assets (20¢€) (202) (197) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost 1 1 1 1 — —
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss 57 29 8 (@D} 2 4
Curtailment (gain) loss — 2 (4) — — —
Settlement (gain) loss — — — — — —
Special termination benefits — — — — — —

Total 50 36 26 12 12 12

Amortization of Accumulated other comprehensiveoime (loss), net into net periodic benefit cost@ 2 is expected to be as follows:

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

(In' $ millions)

Net actuarial (gain) loss 93 —
Prior service cost 1 —
Total 94 —

The Company maintains nonqualified pension plangiéd with nonqualified trusts for certain US emgley as follows:

As of December 31,
2012 2011

(In $ millions)

Nonqualified Trust Assets

Marketable securities, at fair value 53 64

Noncurrent Other assets, consisting of insuranog&racts 66 68
Nonqualified Pension Obligations

Current Other liabilities 22 21

Benefit obligations 264 24¢

Expense relating to the nonqualified pension piaakided in net periodic benefit cost, excludinguras on the assets held by the nonqualifiec
trusts, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In $ millions)
Total 17 18 18

Valuation

As part of the valuation process for its defineddf& plans and other postretirement benefits @Gbmpany uses a corridor approach to
recognize actuarial gains and losses. The coragproach defers all actuarial gains and lossedtiresfrom variances between actual results
and economic estimates or actuarial assumptiondéfmed benefit pension plans, these unrecogrgagis and losses are amortized when th
net gains and losses exceed 10% of the greatheoharket-related value of plan assets or the giexjebenefit obligation at the beginning of
the year. For other postretirement benefits,

98




amortization occurs when the net gains and lossssed 10% of the accumulated postretirement beolgligation at the beginning of the year.
The amount in excess of the corridor is amortizest the average remaining service period to reérgrdate for active plan participants or, for
retired participants, the average remaining lifpestancy.

The principal weighted average assumptions useétiermine benefit obligation are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011

(In percentages)
Discount Rate Obligations

US plans 3.80 4.60 3.40 4.30
International plans 3.55 4.70 3.82 4.10
Combined 3.77 461 3.45 4.28
Rate of Compensation Increase
US plans 4.00 4.00
International plans 2.85 2.63
Combined 3.81 3.58

The principal weighted average assumptions useé@termine benefit cost are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

(In percentages)
Discount Rate Obligations

US plans 4.60 5.30 5.90 4.30 4.90 5.50
International plans 4.70 5.05 5.41 4.04 4.95 5.49
Combined 4.61 5.26 5.83 4.27 491 5.50
Expected Return on Plan Assets
US plans 8.50 8.50 8.50
International plans 6.00 6.00 6.07
Combined 8.06 8.06 8.06
Rate of Compensation Increase
US plans 4.00 4.00 4.00
International plans 2.88 2.66 2.94
Combined 3.84 3.58 3.84

The expected rate of return is assessed annuallisdrased on long-term relationships among majsetaclasses and the level of incremental
returns that can be earned by the successful ingpitation of different active investment managensténategies. Equity returns are based on
estimates of long-term inflation rate, real rateatfirn, 10-year Treasury bond premium over cashegpity risk premium. Fixed income
returns are based on maturity, long-term inflatie| rate of return and credit spreads. The Udifepecadefined benefit plans' actual return on
assets for the year ended December 31, 2012 wa%h&rsus an expected long-term rate of assetragsumption of 8.5% .

In the US, the rate used to discount pension dmer gtostretirement benefit plan liabilities wasdzhen a yield curve developed from market
data of over 300 Aa-grade non-callable bonds aeBwser 31, 2012 . This yield curve has discountsrttat vary based on the duration of the
obligations. The estimated future cash flows far pension and other benefit obligations were mak¢hehe corresponding rates on the yield
curve to derive a weighted average discount rate.

The Company determines its discount rates in the Eone using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond aadi with appropriate adjustments for
the duration of the plan obligations. In other intgional locations, the Company determines itealist rates based on the yields of high
guality government bonds with a duration approprtatthe duration of the plan obligations.
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On January 1, 2012 , the Company's health carererst assumption for US postretirement medical'plaet periodic benefit cost was 7.5%
for the first year, declining 0.5% per year to dimate rate of 5% . On January 1, 2011 , the Camisehealth care cost trend assumption for
US postretirement medical plan's net periodic benest was 8% for the first four years declinin§% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% . On
January 1, 2010 , the Company's health care @ul tissumption for US postretirement medical plagtperiodic benefit cost was 8.5% for
the first year declining 0.5% per year to an ultienaate of 5% .

Assumed health care cost trend rates for US pastreznt medical plans have a significant effecttmamounts reported for the health care
plans.

The impact of a one percentage point change imseamed health care cost trend is as follows:

Trend Rate Change

Decreases 1% Increases 1%

(In'$ millions)
Postretirement obligations 5 6
Service and interest cost — —

Plan Asset:
The investment objectives for the Company's penglans are to earn, over a moving twenty-year geadong-term expected rate of return,
net of investment fees and transaction costs,cseiffi to satisfy the benefit obligations of therplevhile at the same time maintaining adequate

liquidity to pay benefit obligations and proper erpes, and meet any other cash needs, in the sharedium-term.

The weighted average target asset allocationh@®Cobmpany's pension plans in 2013 are as follows:

us International
Plans Plans
(In percentages)
Bonds - domestic to plans 53 81
Equities - domestic to plans 26 13
Equities - international to plans 20 3
Other 1 3
Total 100 100

The equity and debt securities objectives are doige diversified exposure across the US and glehalty markets and to manage the risks
and returns of the plans through the use of meltiphnagers and strategies. The fixed income syrageatgesigned to reduce liability-related
interest rate risk by investing in bonds that mahehduration and credit quality of the plan lighkak. Derivatives based strategies may be use
to improve the effectiveness of the hedges.

FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hidrarthat prioritizes the inputs used to measurevaliue. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active negsifor identical assets or liabilities (Level 1aserement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). Thisttly requires entities to maximize the use okolable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. If a financial instrument ugesits that fall in different levels of the hiechy, the instrument will be categorized based
upon the lowest level of input that is significamthe fair value calculation. Valuations for fuim¢estments such as common/collective trusts
and registered investment companies, which do ae¢ headily determinable fair values, are typicallyimated using a net asset value pro\
by a third party as a practical expedient.

The levels of inputs used to measure fair valuear®llows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessibleéi®yCompany
Level 2 - inputs that are observable in the matketother than those inputs classified as Level 1

Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable in the ntptliee and significant to the valuation
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The Company's defined benefit plan assets are meghatifair value on a recurring basis and inclidefollowing items:

Cash and Cash Equivalent$ioreign and domestic currencies as well as short securities are valued at cost plus accruedesitewhich
approximates fair value.

Common/Collective TrustsComposed of various funds whose diversified pbafis comprised of foreign and domestic equitfesed income
securities, and short term investments. Investmemtvalued at the net asset value of units helthdylan at year-end.

Corporate stock and government and corporate d&tstued at the closing price reported on the aatiagket in which the individual securit
are traded. Automated quotes are provided by nielfpcing services and validated by the plan aliste. These securities are traded on
exchanges as well as in the over the counter market

Registered Investment Compani Composed of various mutual funds and other investrnompanies whose diversified portfolio is corsge
of foreign and domestic equities, fixed income siies, and short term investments. Investmentsahged at the net asset value of units held
by the plan at year-end.

Mortgage Backed Securitie Fair value is estimated based on valuations obtiairom third-party pricing services for identicalcomparable
assets. Mortgage Backed Securities are tradectiovér the counter broker/dealer market.

Derivatives: Derivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using discounted cash flow techniques. & beshniques incorporate
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs such as interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates. These margetsrare utilized in the discounted cash
flow calculation considering the instrument's termotional amount, discount rate and credit risgn8icant inputs to the derivative valuation
for interest rate swaps, foreign currency forwaadd swaps, and options are observable in the aui@rkets and are classified as Level 2 in th
hierarchy.

Insurance contracts Valued at contributions made, plus earnings, pesticipant withdrawals and administrative expenadsch approximate
fair value.
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The fair values of pension plan assets are asisllo

Fair Value Measurement

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
As of December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 14 — — 15 14
Common/collective trusts
Loans — — 55 — 55 —
Equities — — 17€ 15¢ 17€ 15z
Derivatives
Swaps — — 10 10 10 10
Other — — 1 — 1 —
Equity securities
US companies 35¢ 327 — — 35¢ 327
International companies 45C 35¢ — — 45C 35¢
Fixed income
Collateralized mortgage obligations — — 2 6 2 6
Corporate debt — 1 822 761 822 762
Treasuries, other debt 10z 36 34¢ 37¢ 451 411
Mortgage backed securities — — 31 44 31 44
Registered investment companies — — 27¢ 282 27¢ 282
Securities lending collateral 10 63 — — 10 63
Short-term investments — — 22¢ 18¢€ 22¢ 18¢€
Insurance contracts — — 31 29 31 29
Other 22 7 8 10 30 17
Total assets 95¢ 80¢€ 1,99: 1,85¢ 295( 2,667
Liabilities
Derivatives
Swaps — — 10 10 10 10
Other — — — 1 — 1
Obligations under securities lending 10 63 — — 10 63
Total liabilities 10 63 10 11 20 74
Total net asset®) 94¢ 745 1,98: 1,84t 2,93( 2,58¢

@ Total net assets excludes non-financial plan red#és and payables of $29 million and $63 millioespectively, as ddbecember 31, 20:
and $38 million and $64 million , respectively,aiDecember 31, 2011 . Non-financial items incldde to/from broker, interest
receivables and accrued expenses.
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The Company's Level 3 investment in common/coNectiusts was valued using significant unobservadgats. Inputs to this valuation
include characteristics and quantitative datairgjab the asset, investment cost, position sigaidity, current financial condition of the
company and other relevant market data. Levelrd/&ue measurements using significant unobseniaplés are as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
As of the beginning of the year — 26
Unrealized gain (loss) — 3
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net — (29

As of the end of the year — —

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compmeive review of each plan's liability
structure. The Company's asset allocation polityased on detailed asset/liability analysis. Inaligping investment policy and financial goi
consideration is given to each plan's demograptfiesieturns and risks associated with currentadiednative investment strategies and the
current and projected cash, expense and fundif@sraft each plan. Investment policies must alsomgwith local statutory requirements as
determined by each country. A formal asset/liapgitudy of each plan is undertaken every threévtyfears or whenever there has been a
material change in plan demographics, benefit sireor funding status and investment market. Toe@any has adopted a long-term
investment horizon such that the risk and durabbimvestment losses are weighed against the leng-potential for appreciation of assets.
Although there cannot be complete assurance thaethbjectives will be realized, it is believed tiw likelihood for their realization is
reasonably high, based upon the asset allocatiosechand the historical and expected performantgeadsset classes utilized by the plans.
The intent is for investments to be broadly diviezdiacross asset classes, investment styles, trsek®rs, investment managers, developed
and emerging markets and securities in order toemate portfolio volatility and risk. Investments yriae in separate accounts, commingled
trusts, mutual funds and other pooled asset pa¥@rovided they all conform to fiduciary standard

External investment managers are hired to managsg@eassets. Investment consultants assist watkdheening process for each new
manager hired. Over the long-term, the investmertfgio is expected to earn returns that exceedraposite of market indices that are
weighted to match each plan's target asset altotatihe portfolio return should also (over the ldagm) meet or exceed the return used for
actuarial calculations in order to meet the futueeds of each plan.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andtpisement benefits are estimated to be $52 miléiad $24 million , respectively, in 2013 .
Benefit payments related to nonqualified pensi@mplare estimated to be $22 million in 2013 . Hixetbelow reflects pension benefits
expected to be paid from the plans or from the Camyjs assets. The postretirement benefits représe@ompany's share of the benefit cost.

Postretirement Benefit

Pension Expected
Benefit Federal
Payments® Payments Subsidy
(In $ millions)
2013 237 54 6
2014 23€ 55 6
2015 23€ 56 6
2016 237 55 2
2017 241 54 2
2018-2021 1,25( 26C 6

@ Payments are expected to be made primarily from aézet:
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Other Obligations
Additional benefit obligations are as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 22 26
Other 6 6

15. Environmental
General

The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide that impose limitations on tlischarge of pollutants into the air and
water and establish standards for the treatmesrggt and disposal of solid and hazardous waskesCbmpany believes that it is in substa
compliance with all applicable environmental lawmsl aegulations. The Company is also subject tanethenvironmental obligations specified
in various contractual agreements arising fromdikiestiture of certain businesses by the Comparonerof its predecessor companies.

Environmental expenditures for preventative andediation efforts are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Capital expenditures 40 30 19
Other expenditure® 45 41 47

@ Includes expenditures for US Superfund sites afnfifon , $2 million and $2 million for the yearméed December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

The components of environmental remediation reseave as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Demerger obligationsNote 23) 31 34
Divestiture obligations Note 23) 21 24
Active sites 28 2C
US Superfund sites 15 14
Other environmental remediation reserves 4 4
Total 99 9€

Remediation

Due to its industrial history and through retaimedtractual and legal obligations, the Companythasbligation to remediate specific area
its own sites as well as on divested, demergehar US Superfund sites. In addition, as pathefdemerger agreement between the
Company and Hoechst AG ("Hoechst"), a specifiedipomof the responsibility for environmental liabiés from a number of Hoechst
divestitures was transferred to the Compahipte 23). The Company provides for such obligations whenevent of loss is probable and
reasonably estimable. The Company believes that@maental remediation costs will not have a mateadverse effect on the financial
position of the Company, but may have a materiakesk effect on the results of operations or clstsfin any given period.
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Remediation efforts recorded are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Cost of sales 10 2 1
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3 6 8

The Company did not record any insurance recoveiesg 2012r have any receivables for insurance recoveriasagto these matters as
December 31, 2012 . As of December 31, 2012 and 2€iere were receivables of $6 million and $6iaril, respectively, from the former
owner of the Company's Spondon, Derby, United Kargdcetate flake, tow and film business, which aeguired in 2007.

German InfraServ Entities

On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorganizatibthe Hoechst businesses in Germany, real estatéce companies (“InfraServ Entities")
were created to own directly the land and propaniy to provide various technical and administrasieevices at each of the manufacturing
locations. The Company owns manufacturing facdiaie the InfraServ location in Frankfurt am Mainddbst, Germany and holds equity
interests in the companies which own and operadatmer Hoechst sites in Frankfurt am Main-HoecB&ndorf and Knapsack, all of which
are located in Germany.

InfraServ Entities are liable for any residual @nination and other pollution because they own¢latkestate on which the individual facilities
operate. In addition, Hoechst, and its legal susm®s as the responsible party under German platlicis liable to third parties for all
environmental damage that occurred while it wdkteg owner of the plants and real estaiofe 23). The contribution agreements entered
into in 1997 between Hoechst and the respectiveatipg companies, as part of the divestiture of¢heompanies, provide that the operating
companies will indemnify Hoechst, and its legal@ssors, against environmental liabilities resglfiom the transferred businesses.
Additionally, the InfraServ Entities have agreedndemnify Hoechst, and its legal successors, agjaimy environmental liability arising out of
or in connection with environmental pollution ofyasite.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sabetween the partners, each partner is resperisithny contamination caused
predominantly by such partner. Any liability, whicannot be attributed to an InfraServ partner anavhich no third party is responsible, is
required to be borne by the InfraServ partnership.

If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respecingemnification obligations to eliminate residuahtamination, the owners of the remaining
participation in the InfraServ companies have agjtedund such liabilities, subject to a numbetimitations. To the extent that any liabilities
are not satisfied by either the InfraServ Entitbesheir owners, these liabilities are to be bdrpehe Company in accordance with the deme
agreement. However, Hoechst, and its legal sucressidl reimburse the Company for two-thirds ofyauch costs. Likewise, in certain
circumstances the Company could be responsiblénéoelimination of residual contamination on selsites that were not transferred to
InfraServ companies, in which case Hoechst, anégl successors, must also reimburse the Comipamyo-thirds of any costs so incurred.
The German InfraServ Entities are owned partiafiyhie Company Note 8), as noted below, and the remaining ownershigld hy various
other companies. The Company's ownership intereseavironmental liability participation percentader such liabilities which cannot be
attributed to an InfraServ partner are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Ownership Liability Reserves?

(In percentages) (In $ millions)
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf KG 39 10 11
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG 27 22 1
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst KG 32 40 74

@ Gross reserves maintained by the respective InfvaSHity.
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US Superfund Sites

In the US, the Company may be subject to substariéiems brought by US federal or state regulagggncies or private individuals pursuant
to statutory authority or common law. In particyldme Company has a potential liability under tt#& kederal Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980amended, and related state laws (collectivebrired to as "Superfund") for investigati
and cleanup costs at certain sites. At most oktséss, numerous companies, including the Compamyne of its predecessor companies,
been notified that the Environmental Protection A@g state governing bodies or private individwaiasider such companies to be potentially
responsible parties ("PRP") under Superfund otedl&aws. The proceedings relating to these sieefavarious stages. The cleanup process
has not been completed at most sites and the sifitiis insurance coverage for some of these pdigg is uncertain. Consequently, the
Company cannot accurately determine its ultimatieility for investigation or cleanup costs at theies.

As events progress at each site for which it has lmamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as appropriatbility for site cleanup. Such
liabilities include all costs that are probable @ad be reasonably estimated. In establishing tiesiéties, the Company considers its
shipment of waste to a site, its percentage of tediate shipped to the site, the types of wastedied, the conclusions of any studies, the
magnitude of any remedial actions that may be sacgsand the number and viability of other PRP$ei®the Company joins with other PRPs
to sign joint defense agreements that settle, arRétigs, each party’s percentage allocation of @tgtse site. Although the ultimate liability
may differ from the estimate, the Company routinelyiews the liabilities and revises the estimageappropriate, based on the most current
information available.

One such site is the Lower Passaic River Study .Area Company and 70 other companies are parti@dvtay 2007 Administrative Order on
Consent with the US Environmental Protection AgefiBfPA") to perform a Remedial Investigation/FedgipStudy ("RI/FS") of the
contaminants in the lower 17 mile stretch knowhaslL ower Passaic River Study Area. The RI/FS goimg and may take several more year:
to complete. The Company is among a group of sgtparties to a June 2012 Administrative Order ongént with the EPA to perform a
removal action on a small section of the river. Qmmpany has also been named as a third-party defiealong with more than 200 other
entities in an action initially brought by the N&ersey Department of Environmental Protection ("EPD in the Supreme Court of New
Jersey against Occidental Chemical Corporationsawdral other companies. This suit by the NJDERssexovery of past and future cleap-
costs, as well as unspecified economic damagegtjymidamages, penalties and a variety of othenoof relief arising from alleged
discharges into the Lower Passaic River.

In 2007, the EPA issued a draft study that evatliateernatives for early remedial action of a portof the Passaic River at an estimated cc
$900 million to $2.3 billion . Several parties coemted on the draft study, and the EPA has annoutsedention to issue a proposed plan in
2013. Although the Company's assessment that tit@amination allegedly released by the Companyk&ylian insignificant aspect of the final
remedy, because the RI/FS is still ongoing, and=fRA has not finalized its study or the scope gfissted cleanup the Company cannot
reliably estimate its portion of the final remediaksts for this matter at this time. However, tlempany currently believes that its portion of
the costs would be less than approximately 1% ta Z¥%e Company is vigorously defending these ahrbkted matters.

Environmental Proceeding

On January 7, 2013, following self-disclosures iy €Company, the Company's Meredosia, lllinoisr&teived a Notice of Violation/Finding
of Violation from the US Environmental Protectiogéncy Region 5 ("EPA") alleging Clean Air Act vititans. The Company is working with
the EPA and with the state agency to reach a regolaf this matter. Based on currently availabiisimation and the Company's past
experience, we do not believe that resolution of timatter will have a significant impact on the Gmamy, even though the Company cannot
conclude that a penalty will be less than $100,000e Meredosia, lllinois site is included in tmelustrial Specialties segment.

16. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stoclk

In February 2010, the Company delivered noticén¢ottolders of its 4.25%onvertible Perpetual Preferred Stock (the "PreteBtock”) that i
was calling for the redemption of all 9,600,000sbaimding shares of Preferred Stock. Holders oPtlederred Stock were entitled to convert
each share of Preferred Stock into 1.2600 shdrémdCompany’s Series A Common Stock, par valu8®mL per share ("Common Stock™).
Holders of the Preferred Stock elected to conv&®B,276 shares of Preferred Stock into an agtgegfal 2,084,942hares of Common Stoc
The 8,724 shares of Preferred Stock that remanéstanding after such conversions were redeemédeb@ompany for 7,437 shares of
Common Stock, in accordance with the terms of tledered Stock. The Company paid cash in lieuadtfonal shares.
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Common Stock

The Company’s Board of Directors follows a polidydeclaring, subject to legally available fundgyuarterly cash dividend on each share of
Common Stock unless the Company’s Board of Diractiarits sole discretion, determines otherwisee @mount available to pay cash
dividends is restricted by the Company’s AmendeadirAgreement, the 4.625% Notes, the 5.875% Natelsthe 6.625% Notes.

In April 2011, the Company announced that its Ba#rDirectors approved a 20% increase in the Coryigaguarterly Common Stock cash
dividend. The Board of Directors increased the taiBrdividend rate from $0.05 to $0.06 per shd&r€o@mmon Stock on a quarterly basis and
$0.20 to $0.24 per share of Common Stock on anarrasis beginning in August 2011.

On April 23, 2012, the Company announced that d@tarB of Directors approved a 25% increase in thamgamy's quarterly Common Stock
cash dividend. The Board of Directors increasedjtreaterly dividend rate from $0.06 to $0.075 geare of Common Stock on a quarterly
basis and $0.24 to $0.30 per share of Common Stoan annual basis beginning in August 2012.

Treasury Stock
The Company’'s Board of Directors authorized theurepase of Common Stock as follows:

Authorized Amount

(In'$ millions)

February 2008 40C
October 2008 10C
April 2011 12¢
October 2012 264

As of December 31, 2012 89:

The authorization gives management discretion tard@ning the timing and conditions under whichrelsamay be repurchased. The share
repurchase activity pursuant to this authorizaisoas follows:

Total From
February 2008
Year Ended December 31, Through
2012 2011 2010 December 31, 2012
Shares repurchased 1,059,710 @ 652,01t 1,667,59; 13,142,52
Average purchase price per share $ 42.4¢ $ 46.9¢ $ 28.71 % 38.1¢
Amount spent on repurchased shares (in millions) $ 45 $ 31 % 48 $ 501

@ Ex cludes 5,823 shares withheld from employee t@cetatutory minimum withholding requirements p@rsonal income taxes related to
the vesting of restricted stock. Restricted staokansidered outstanding at the time of issuanddtarefore, the shares withheld are
treated as treasury shares.

The purchase of treasury stock reduces the nunilsraoes outstanding and the repurchased sharebenased by the Company for
compensation programs utilizing the Company’s sttt other corporate purposes. The Company acctarrtteasury stock using the cost
method and includes treasury stock as a compoffistdakholders’ equity.
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Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Income Income Income
Tax Tax Tax
Gross (Provision) Net Gross (Provision) Net Gross (Provision) Net
Amount Benefit Amount  Amount Benefit Amount  Amount Benefit Amount
(In' $ millions)
Unrealized gain (loss) on
marketable securities — — — — — — — @ D
Foreign currency translatic 13 (8) 5 (29 2 (27) 26 11 37
Unrealized gain (loss) on
interest rate swaps 10 (©)) 7 37 (10) 27 32 (15 17
Pension and postretirement
benefits (34¢) 104 (244 (290 11C (180) (102) 39 (63)
Total (325) 93 (232 (282) 10z (180) (44) 34 (20
Adjustments to Accumulated other comprehensiverme@oss), net, are as follows:
Accumulated
Unrealized Unrealized Pension Other
Gain (Loss) on Foreign Gain (Loss) and Comprehensive
Marketable Currency on Interest Postretirement Income
Securities Translation Rate Swaps Benefits (Loss), Net
(In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2009 — (39 (207) (521) (660)
Current period change — 2€ 32 (102) (44)
Income tax (provision) benefit (2) 11 (15) 39 34
As of December 31, 2010 1) (1) (84) (5849) (670
Current period change — (29 37 (290) (282)
Income tax (provision) benefit — 2 (20 11C 10z
As of December 31, 2011 (2) (28) (57) (7649) (850)
Current period change — 13 10 (348 (325)
Income tax (provision) benefit — (8) 3 104 93
As of December 31, 2012 (1) (23) (50) (1,009¢) (1,082)
17. Other (Charges) Gains, Net
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
Employee termination benefits (6) (22 (32
Kelsterbach plant relocatiorNote 27) @) 47 (26)
Plumbing actions Note 23) 5 6 59
Insurance recoverieg\ote 28) — — 18
Asset impairments (8) @ (74)
Plant/office closures — — 4)
Commercial disputes 2 15 13
Other — 1 —
Total (14 (48) (46)
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2012

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , the Coyngcorded $5 million of employee termination éeerelated to the previously
announced closure of the Company's acetate flatt@estate tow manufacturing operations at its SponDerby, United Kingdom siteNote
4). Also during the year ended December 31, 20b2 Ctompany concluded that certain long-lived assets partially impaired at its acetate
flake and acetate tow manufacturing operationgion8on, Derby, United Kingdom. Accordingly, the Quamy wrote down the related
property, plant and equipment to its fair valu&8fmillion , measured at the date of impairmerguling in long-lived asset impairment losses
of $8 million for the year ended December 31, 20TRe Company calculated the fair value using eatliated cash flow model incorporating
discount rates commensurate with the risks invofeedhe reporting unit. This fair value measuret&long-lived assets is classified as a
Level 3 measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. Tedssumptions used in the discounted cash flouatiah model include discount
rates, growth rates, cash flow projections anditehvalue rates. Discount rates, growth ratesaasth flow projections involve significant
judgment and are based on management's estimeerefnt and forecasted market conditions and ¢osttsre.

2011

As a result of the Company’s Pardies, France "EtajeClosure" and the previously announced closfitbte Company’s acetate flake and
acetate tow manufacturing operations at its Sponderby, United Kingdom siteNote 4), the Company recorded $4 million and $4 million ,
respectively, of employee termination benefits digithe year ended December 31, 2011. Additiondllying the year ended December 31,
2011, the Company recorded $8 million of employretnation benefits related to the relocation & @ompany's polyacetal ("POM")
operations located in Kelsterbach, Germany to Frahkloechst Industrial Park, GermanpM¢éte 27) and $6 million of employee termination
benefits related to a business optimization projégth is included in the Other Activities segment.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyneaeived consideration of $17 million in connentivith the settlement of a claim
against a bankrupt supplieNote 23). The resolution of this commercial dispute iduded in the Acetyl Intermediates segment.

2010

In 2010, the Company concluded that certain longeliassets were partially impaired at its acetatefand acetate tow manufacturing
operations in Spondon, Derby, United Kingdoiidte 4). Accordingly, the Company wrote down the relgbedperty, plant and equipment to
its fair value of $31 million , measured at theedat impairment, resulting in long-lived asset innpeent losses of $72 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010. The Company calculatef@ithealue using a discounted cash flow model ipooating discount rates
commensurate with the risks involved for the reipgrunit. This fair value measurement of long-livestets is classified as a Level 3
measurement under FASB ASC Topic 820. The key assons used in the discounted cash flow valuati@aehinclude discount rates,
growth rates, cash flow projections and termindli@aates. Discount rates, growth rates and cashglojections involve significant judgment
and are based on management's estimate of cumgiv@casted market conditions and cost structure.

As a result of the announced closure of the Compametate flake and acetate tow manufacturingatipes in Spondon, Derby, United
Kingdom (Note 4), the Company recorded $15 million of employeenieation benefits during the year ended Decemlef310.

As a result of the Company's Pardies, France "BrofeClosure” (Note 4), the Company recorded exit costs of $12 millicluring the year
ended December 31, 2010, which primarily consisfe®6 million in employee termination benefits, ®lllion of long-lived asset impairment
losses, $3 million of contract termination costd &3 million of reindustrialization costs.

As a result of several business optimization pitsjeadertaken by the Company beginning in 2009camdinuing throughout 2010, the
Company recorded $11 million in employee terminatiosts during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Other charges for the year ended December 31, 8bdncluded gains of $13 million , net, relatedéttlements in resolution of commercial
disputes. The settlements were recorded in the @oy'p Consumer Specialties segment.
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The changes in the restructuring reserves by bssisegment are as follows:

Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Other Total
(In $ millions)
Employee Termination Benefits
As of December 31, 2010 3 1€ — 24 10 53
Additions 8 4 — 1 8 21
Cash payments 2 2 — (20 4 (28)
Other changes — — — — (©) (©)]
Exchange rate changes (@D} — — — — Q)
As of December 31, 2011 8 18 — 5 11 42
Additions — 5 — 2 1 8
Cash payments 2 (12) — 3 3 (29)
Other changes — — — QD 2 ©)]
Exchange rate changes — 1 — — —
As of December 31, 2012 6 13 — 3 7 29
Plant/Office Closures
As of December 31, 2010 — — — 3 1 4
Additions — — — — — —
Cash payments — — — 2 — 2
Other changes — — — — — —
Exchange rate changes — — — — — —
As of December 31, 2011 — — — 1 1 2
Additions — — — — — —
Cash payments — — — — — —
Other changes — — — — Q) Q)
Exchange rate changes — — — — — —
As of December 31, 2012 — — — 1 — 1
Total 6 13 — 4 7 3C
18. Income Taxes
Income Tax Provisior
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befapelty jurisdiction are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
us 421 31C 214
International® 23¢ 44k 324
Total 657 75& 53¢

@ In cludes aggregate earnings generated by opesdtiddermuda, Luxembourg, the Netherlands and Hamg of $320 million , $321
million and $260 million for the years ended Decem®1, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively, whaoretan aggregate effective income
tax rate of 5.6% , 2.5% and 3.7% for each yeapeetively.
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The income tax provision (benefit) consists of fibléowing:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Current

us 41 24 62
International 77 32 35
Total 11¢€ 56 97

Deferred
us 5 89 1€
International (75) 4 @
Total (70 93 15
Total 48 14¢ 112

A reconciliation of the significant differences Ween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% aedeffective income tax rate on income from
continuing operations is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions, except percentages)

Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 23C 264 18¢
Change in valuation allowance 27 7 39
Equity income and dividends (32) (25) (42)
(Income) expense not resulting in tax impact, net (39 (16 8
US tax effect of foreign earnings and dividends 42 48 28
Foreign tax credits (187) (66) (33
Other foreign tax rate differentials (8) (62) (12
Legislative changes — — 7y @
Tax-deductible interest on foreign equity investiseand other related

items 11 ©) ©)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 9 1C 5
Other, net (6) 9 3

Income tax provision (benefit) 48 14¢ 112
Effective income tax rate 7% 2C% 21%

@ R epresents the impact of Miscellaneous Tax Resokiissued by the Mexican tax authority to clavifyious provisions included in the
2010 Mexican Tax Reform Bill.

Federal and state income taxes have not been pawoid accumulated but undistributed earnings & Biflion as of December 31, 2012 as
such earnings have been permanently reinvestdaibusiness. The determination of the amount ofitlhecognized deferred tax liability
related to the undistributed earnings is not pcatiie.

The effective tax rate for continuing operationstfee year ended December 31, 2012 was 7% compa@aPs for the year ended
December 31, 2011 . The effective tax rate for 2042 favorably impacted by foreign tax credit corwards realized in the US and offset by
deferred tax charges related to changes in assessegarding permanent reinvestment of certainigorearnings.

During 2012, the Company amended certain prior yreame tax returns to recognize the benefit oflakbe foreign tax credit carryforwart
As a result the Company recognized an income tagfiteof $142 million . The available foreign tasedits are

111






subject to a ten year carryforward period and @xp&ginning 2014 through 202IThe Company expects to fully utilize the credifthin the
prescribed carryforward period.

On February 15, 2012, the Company amended itsiexigtint venture and other related agreements itgtiienture partner in Polyplastics Co.,
Ltd ("Polyplastics"). The amended agreements ("Agrents”), among other items, modified certain aiaidl rights, resulting in a net cash
dividend payment to the Company of $72 million dgrthe three months ended March 31, 2012. In aniditis a result of the Agreements,
Polyplastics is required to pay certain annualdéivids to the venture partners. Consequently, Radtipts' undistributed earnings will no longer
be invested indefinitely. Accordingly, the Compasgognized a deferred tax liability of $38 milliarich was charged to Income tax provis
(benefit) in the consolidated statement of openatioelated to the taxable outside basis differefidts investment in Polyplastics.

The Company operates under tax holidays in vaijimisdictions which are in effect through DecemB@i3 . Due to limited profitability in
these jurisdictions, the Company realized no maltbenefit from tax holidays for the years endedddeber 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010.

Deferred Income Taxe

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettermporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢armpurposes. Significant components of the codatdd deferred tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Deferred Tax Assets
Pension and postretirement obligations 57¢ 52¢
Accrued expenses 58 57
Inventory —
Net operating loss 39¢ 35¢
Tax credit carryforwards 20€ 94
Other 37C 15¢
Subtotal 1,611 1,19¢
Valuation allowancé’ (399 (362
Total 1,212 83€
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 47¢ 31¢
Investments in affiliates 83 5C
Other 70 51
Total 632 42C
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 58C 41€

@ In cludes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesapily for the Company's deferred tax assethaWS, Luxembourg, France, Spain,
China, the United Kingdom and Germany, as welltaerdforeign jurisdictions. These valuation allowas relate primarily to net operat
loss carryforward benefits and other net deferagdassets, all of which may not be realizable.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , the valuatiowance increased by $36 million primarily daeb27 million of losses generated with
no currently realizable income tax benefit as \@slan increase of $7 million related to exchanteahanges.

Legislative Change

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the billi@pd the existing asset-based tax and
established a dual income tax system consistirggrifw minimum flat tax (the "IETU") and the exigtiregular income tax system. The IETU
system taxes companies on cash basis net incom&sting only of certain specified items of reveiamel expense, at a rate of 17% and 17.59
for 2009 and 2010 forward, respectively. In generampanies must pay the
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higher of the income tax or the IETU, although B&U is not creditable against future income tabiiities. The Company has determined
it will primarily be subject to the IETU in futuggeriods. Accordingly, the Company has recordecetgense (benefit) of $9 million , $4
million , and $19 million for the years ended Detem31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively, fertéix effects of the IETU system.

In December 2010, the US enacted the Tax Relieéniyyiloyment Reauthorization and Job Creation A@Qdf0 (the "2010 Tax Relief Act").
The 2010 Tax Relief Act increased bonus deprecidto qualified investments made after Septemb@080 and before January 1, 2012, and
also made bonus depreciation available for qudlifimperty placed in service after December 311201 before January 1, 2013. The 2010
Tax Relief Act also provided a two-year extensibexpired provisions that were relevant to the Campincluding the research tax credit anc
look-through treatment for controlled foreign corpiions. The 2010 Tax Relief Act enabled the Comgaraccelerate deductions of capital
improvements resulting in a reduction to Incomeetagayable of $27 million for the year ended Decem3d, 2011.

On January 2, 2013, the US enacted the Americapaleex Relief Act of 2012 (the "2012 Tax Relief ActThe 2012 Tax Relief Act extends
many expired corporate income tax provisions thno2@13, including the research and developmenitcitbd look-through treatment of
payments between related controlled foreign cotpmrs, the active financing exception and bonugelgption, including retroactive
application to January 1, 2012. The income tax aeting effect, including any retroactive effect,tbé 2012 Tax Relief Act will be accounted
for in the period of enactment. The Company dog¢s®Rrpect to record a material benefit in 2013 assalt of these provisions.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company has US fedetaperating loss carryforwards of $33 millidvat are subject to limitation. These net
operating loss carryforwards begin to expire inR0At December 31, 2012 , the Company also hdd skt operating loss carryforwards, net
of federal tax impact, of $54 million , $52 milliaf which are offset by a valuation allowance duereertain recoverability. A portion of the
net operating loss carryforwards begin to expir2da3 .

The Company also has foreign net operating losyfcawards as of December 31, 2012 of $1.2 billwimarily for Luxembourg, France,
Spain, Canada, China, Singapore, the United KingdnthGermany with various expiration dates. Netatieg losses in China have various
carryforward periods and began expiring in 201kt dperating losses in most other foreign jurisditt do not have an expiration date.

Uncertain Tax Positions

Activity related to uncertain tax positions is aidws:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)

As of the beginning of the year 211 244 20¢

Increases in tax positions for the current year 6 — —

Increases in tax positions for prior years 42 37 8%

Decreases in tax positions for prior years (19 (54) (48)

Decreases due to settlements (33 (16) Q)

As of the end of the year 207 211 244

Total uncertain tax positions that if recognizedigdompact the effective tax rate 237 23C 264
Total amount of interest and penalties recogninetié consolidated statements of

operations 6 @ 11

Total amount of interest and penalties recogninetié consolidated balance sheets 61 55 5€

The Company primarily operates in the US, Germ&anada, China, Mexico and Singapore. Examinatiom®iagoing in a number of these
jurisdictions including Germany for the years 2802004 and 2005 to 2007 and the US for the ye@®8 2o 2011. The Company's US fed¢
income tax returns for 2003 and forward are opemkamination under statute. The Company's Gerragyocate tax returns for 2001 and
forward are open for examination under statuteurthier change in uncertain tax positions may oedtlrin the next twelve months related to
the settlement of one or more tax examinations or
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the lapse of applicable statutes of limitationsclfsamounts have been reflected as the currenbparfiuncertain tax positiond\ote 11).
19. Management Compensation Plans
General Plan Description

In April 2009, the Company and our stockholdersraped a global incentive plan which replaces then@any’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
("2004 SIP"). The 2009 Global Incentive Plan ("2@%") enables the compensation committee of ther@of Directors to award incentive
and nonqualified stock options, stock appreciatights, shares of Series A common stock, restristedk, restricted stock units ("RSUs") and
incentive bonuses (which may be paid in cash aksbto a combination thereof), any of which may keefgrmance-based, with vesting and
other award provisions that provide effective inoento Company employees (including officers), ianagement directors and other service
providers. Under the 2009 GIP, the Company maygrexit RSUs with the right to participate in divideror dividend equivalents.

On April 19, 2012, the 2009 GIP was amended to,rajraiher things, increase the maximum number afeshthat may be issued under the
2009 GIP by 8,000,000 shares to 13,350,000 sipdwega) any shares of Series A common stock #ratin available for issuance under the
2004 Stock Incentive Plan (not including any shafeSeries A common stock that are subject to antiihg awards under the 2004 SIP or any
shares of Series A common stock that were issueshipnt to awards under the 2004 SIP) and (b) amydswnder the 2004 stock incentive
plan that remain outstanding that cease for arsoreto be subject to such awards (other than tsoreaf exercise or settlement of the awal
the extent that such award is exercised for oteskit vested and non-forfeitable shares).

Total shares available for awards and total shewbpect to outstanding awards are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Shares
Shares Available Subject to
for Outstanding
Awards Awards
2009 GIP 11,332,51 1,811,51
2004 SIP — 424.87( M

@ N o RSUs remaining outstanding under the 2004

Upon the termination of a participant’s employmeith the Company by reason of death or disabitigyirement or by the Company without
cause (as defined in the respective award agresjnantaward in amount equal to (i) the value efdtvard granted multiplied by (i) a
fraction, (x) the numerator of which is the numbégfull months between grant date and the dateiof $ermination, and (y) the denominato
which is the term of the award, such product tocasded down to the nearest whole number, and eeliog (iii) the value of any award that
previously vested, shall immediately vest and bexpayable to the Participant. Upon the terminatiba Participant’s employment with the
Company for any other reason, any unvested poadtidhe award shall be forfeited and canceled wittommsideration.

The Company realized income tax benefits from stition exercises and RSU vestings as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
Income tax benefit realized 31 25 19
Amount reversed in current year related to pri@arye 1 9 —
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Stock Options

It is the Company’s policy to grant stock optionshwan exercise price equal to the average of itpe &ind low price of the ComparsySeries /
common stock on the grant date. The options iskagd a term ranging from seven to ten years arndovesa graded basis over either three or
four years . The estimated value of the Compartgsksbased awards less expected forfeitures igyrézed over the awardeéspective vestir
period on a straight-line basis.

Generally, vested stock options are exercised fir@broker-assisted cashless exercise programolkéebassisted cashless exercise is the
simultaneous exercise of a stock option by an eyggland a sale of the shares through a broker.ofigdd shares of the Company’s Series A
common stock are used to settle stock options.

Beginning in October 2010 through April 2012, then@pany granted awards of stock options to certaitive officers of the Company that
require a holding period of one year subsequeakéucising a stock option award for net profit €isafas defined below) acquired upon
exercise. Net profit shares means the aggregatbeaf shares determined by the Company’s humaruress department representing the
total number of shares remaining after taking aoount the following costs related to exercigeth@ aggregate option price with respect to
the exercise; (ii) the amount of all applicablegsxwvith respect to the exercise, assuming thecgaatit's maximum applicable federal, state
local tax rates (and applicable employment taxa); (i) any transaction costs.

The fair value of each option granted is estimatethe grant date using the Black-Scholes optiaimy method. The weighted average
assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 0.7&% 0.81% 1.27%
Estimated life in years 4.5¢ 4.7t 5.72
Dividend yield 0.7(% 0.6(% 0.5%%
Volatility 50.31% 45.0(% 51.7%%

The computation of the expected volatility assumptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is based on the Company'’s
historical volatilities. When establishing the egfesl life assumptions, the Company reviews annigébtical employee exercise behavior of
option grants with similar vesting periods.

The summary of changes in stock options outstanidiag follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term Value
(In millions) (In $) (In years) (In $ millions)
As of December 31, 2011 4.€ 18.9¢ 3.6 11¢€
Granted 0.1 40.2¢
Exercised (3.9 16.57
Forfeited (0.7 32.47
Expired — —
As of December 31, 2012 0.8 29.9: 4.4 12
Options exercisable at end of year 0.7 29.6¢ 4.3 11

The weighted average grant date fair values oksbptions granted is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Total $ 16.21 $ 11.3¢  $ 14.7¢
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The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdisg as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Intrinsic value 11C 20 13

As of December 31, 2012 , the Company had $2 miltibtotal unrecognized compensation expense cktatstock options, excluding actual
forfeitures, which is expected to be recognized dhve weighted average period of three years .

Restricted Stock Unit

The Company’s RSUs are net settled by withholdmyes of the Comparny'Series A common stock to cover minimum statuilocpme taxe:
and remitting the remaining shares of the Compa8gises A common stock to an individual brokeragmoant. Authorized shares of the
Company's Series A common stock are used to Je8lds.

Performanc-based RSUsThe Company generally grants performance-basedsR&the Company’s executive officers and certaipleyees
once per year. The Company may also grant perfarezbased RSUs to certain new employees or to em@soywho assume positions of
increasing responsibility at the time those eventaur. The number of performanbased RSUs that ultimately vest is dependent oroobett
of the following according to the terms of the sfieaward agreement: The achievement of a) inlgunafitability targets (performance
condition) and b) market performance targets meakhy the comparison of the Company’s stock perdmce versus a defined peer group
(market condition).

The outstanding performance-based RSUs gener#fiyest during the Company’s quarter-end Septendfeblack-out period three years
from the date of grant. The ultimate number of ekanf the Company’s Series A common stock issuéidamige from zero to stretch , with
stretch defined individually under each award,afethares used to cover minimum statutory persiocaine taxes withheld. The market
condition is factored into the estimated fair vahe unit and compensation expense for each awilirdeabased on the probability of
achieving internal profitability targets, as applite, and recognized on a straight-line basis theeterm of the respective grant, less estimatec
forfeitures. For performance-based RSUs granteldowtita performance condition, compensation expisnsased on the fair value per unit
recognized on a straight-line basis over the terthegrant, less estimated forfeitures. Upon #mmination of participans’ employment by th
Company without cause prior to the vesting date péticipant is eligible for a prorated numbepefformance-based RSUs based on a
formula as outlined in each agreement.

A summary of changes in nonvested performance-baSik outstanding is as follows:

Weighted

Number of Average

Units Fair Value

(In thousands) (In$)

As of December 31, 2011 1,06¢ 37.3(
Granted 67 45.1:
Vested (31¢€) 39.1¢
Cancelled (a77) 23.9]
Forfeited (220) 44.0¢
As of December 31, 2012 42¢ 42.2:

The fair value of shares vested for performancet##&SUs is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Total 12 14 8

Fair value for the Company’s performarttased RSUs was estimated at the grant date usitegne Carlo simulation approach less the pre
value of the expected dividends not received duttiegpoerformance period. Monte Carlo simulation wiiized to randomly generate future
stock returns for the Company and each compantyeiméfined peer group for each
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grant based on company-specific dividend yield&tidies and stock return correlations. Thesemes were used to calculate future
performance-based RSU vesting percentages anéhtbtated values of the vested performance-basedsRBide then discounted to present
value using a risk-free rate, yielding the expectalde of these performance-based RSUs.

The range of assumptions used in the Monte Camalstion approach is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 0.38% 0.38% 0.7%
Dividend yield 0.00-4.37 % 0.00-4.37 % 0.00-4.18 %
Volatility 25-90 % 25 -90 % 25 -70 %

Time-based RSUsThe Company grants non-employee Directors timedh&SUs annually that generally vest one year gftant. The fair
value of the time-based RSUs is equal to the ojpgiice of the Company’s Series A common stockhengrant date less the present value of
the expected dividends not received during theivggteriod.

The Company also grants time-based RSUs to the @oy'gpexecutives and certain employees that vésbisaover intervals ranging from
three to four years . The fair value of the timedzthRSUs is equal to the average of the high amgbie of the Company’s Series A common
stock on the grant date less the present valugeodxpected dividends not received during the nggteriod. Upon the termination of
participant’'s employment by the Company withoutseaprior to the vesting date, the participantigitele for a prorated number of time-based
RSUs based on a formula as outlined in each agmeme

A summary of changes in nonvested time-based R&t¢amding is as follows:

Employee Time-Based RSUs Director Time-Based RSUs
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Units Fair Value Units Fair Value
(In thousands) (In$) (In thousands) (In$)
As of December 31, 2011 67C 30.44 13 50.82
Granted 12¢ 42.39 16 47.48
Vested (329) 30.11 (13 50.82
Forfeited 44 28.80 — —
)
As of December 31, 2012 431 © 34.41 16 47.48

@ Inc ludes 66,108 of time-based restricted stockrdsvgranted to the Company's Chief Executive OfftseApril 5, 2012, of which 22,013
vested on October 1, 2012.

The fair value of shares vested for time-based RSUEs follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)

Total 13 7 6

Beginning in October 2010 through April 2012, then@pany granted both time-based RSUs and performisased RSUs to executive officers
and certain employees of the Company that requir@ding period of seven years from the grant déthe awards for 0% to 75% the share
vested, depending on salary level, as specifieghah individual agreement. The fair value of thé&JR®iith holding periods were discounted
due to the lack of transferability of these RSUsrmlyithe holding period as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In percentages)

Holding period discount 30 30 30

117






The holding period discount was determined usiegikighted average results as calculated undeZhhée and Finnerty models.

As of December 31, 2012 , there was $13 millionmfecognized compensation cost related to RSU$ydirg actual forfeitures, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof one year.

20. Leases

Rent expense recorded under all operating leasesfalows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Total 16E 1732 16C

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetabtal and lease agreements which have initiatimaining terms in excess of one year
are as follows:

As of December 31, 2012
Capital Leases

(In $ millions)

2013 43
2014 42
2015 4C
2016 4C
2017 4C
Later years 28¢
Sublease income —
Minimum lease commitments 49:
Less amounts representing interest (249

Present value of net minimum lease obligations 244

As of December 31, 2012
Operating Leases
(In $ millions)

2013 49
2014 4€
2015 4C
2016 34
2017 22
Later years 11€
Sublease income (22)

Minimum lease commitments 28¢€

The Company expects that, in the normal coursausiniess, leases that expire will be renewed oroepl by other leases.
21. Derivative Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Risk Manageme!

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in then@any’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrest rate swap agreements to convert a
portion of its variable rate borrowings into a fikeate obligation. A portion of these interest rmte@ap agreements are designated as cash flow
hedges and fix the LIBOR portion of the CompanyS-tbllar denominated variable rate borrowin@dofe 13). If an interest rate swap
agreement is terminated prior to its maturity, @ngount previously recorded in
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)iswetcognized into earnings over the period thatitbdged transaction impacts earnings. |
the hedging relationship is discontinued becauseptobable that the forecasted transaction witlatcur according to the original strategy,
any related amounts previously recorded in Accutedlather comprehensive income (loss), net arggrézed into earnings immediately.

US-dollar interest rate swap derivative agreemaregsas follows:

As of December 31, 2012

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
1,10(¢ January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%
50C January 2, 2014 January 2, 2016 1.02%

@ Fi xes the LIBOR portion of the Company's US-dotlanominated variable rate borrowindsdte 13).

As of December 31, 2011

Notional Value Effective Date Expiration Date Fixed Rate®
(In $ millions)
80C April 2, 2007 January 2, 2012 4.92%
40C January 2, 2008 January 2, 2012 4.3%
20C April 2, 2009 January 2, 2012 1.92%
1,10¢ January 2, 2012 January 2, 2014 1.71%

@ Fi xes the LIBOR portion of the Company's US-dotlanominated variable rate borrowindsdte 13).
Interest rate swap activity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Hedging activities - Interest expense (15) (59 (68)
Ineffective portion - Other income (expense), net — — —

Upon issuance of the 4.625% Notes and $400 mipeydown of the Term C loan facility on November 2812 (Note 13), it became
probable that the hedged interest payments assdaith $395 million of variable rate US-dollar deould not occur. Accordingly, the
Company dedesignated as cash flow hedges a notiahed of $395 million of the $1.1 billion notiomahlue US-dollar interest rate swap
agreements expiring January 2, 2014 and a losS ofifion was reclassified out of Accumulated otkemprehensive income (loss), net, into
Interest expense in the consolidated statemerdparhtions during the three months ended Decermiheér03 2. Future mark-to-market
adjustments on these dedesignated interest rafeagvaements will be recorded in Interest expemsrigh their expiration on January 2,
2014.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Certain subsidiaries have assets and liabilitie@dgnated in currencies other than their respedtinetional currencies, which creates foreign
exchange risk. The Company enters into foreignecuay forwards and swaps to minimize its exposurfergign currency fluctuations. Throu
these instruments, the Company mitigates its foreigrency exposure on transactions with thirdypantities as well as intercompany
transactions. The foreign currency forwards andoswaae not designated as hedges under FASB ASC Btpi Gains and losses on foreign
currency forwards and swaps entered into to oftseign exchange impacts on intercompany balaneeslassified as Other income (exper
net, in the consolidated statements of operatiGais and losses on foreign currency forwards a@pbs entered into to offset foreign
exchange impacts on all other assets and lialilére classified as Foreign exchange gain (loss)jmthe consolidated statements of
operations.

119




The following table indicates the total US dollguévalents of net foreign exchange exposure relaté€ghort) long foreign exchange forward
contracts outstanding by currency. All of the caats included in the table below will have approxiety offsetting effects from actual
underlying payables, receivables, intercompanydaarother assets or liabilities subject to foredqgohange remeasurement.

2013 Maturity

(In $ millions)
Currency

Euro (222)
British pound sterling 27)
Chinese renminbi (25¢)
Mexican peso 5
Singapore dollar 45
Canadian dollar 61
Japanese yen (©)]
Brazilian real (14)
Swedish krona 149
Other 5

Total (422)

Gross notional values of the foreign currency fadgaand swaps are as follows:

As of December 31,
2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Total 90z 89¢€

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comnasditiits procurement of certain raw materials. Toenpany manages its exposure to
commodity risk primarily through the use of longrtesupply agreements, multi-year purchasing anessagreements and forward purchase
contracts. The Company regularly assesses itsiggauftusing forward purchase contracts and ottmrmaterial hedging instruments in
accordance with changes in market conditions. Fahparchases and swap contracts for raw maternialprincipally settled through physical
delivery of the commaodity. For qualifying contradise Company has elected to apply the normal msehand normal sales exception of
FASB ASC Topic 815 based on the probability atitteeption and throughout the term of the contraat the Company would not settle net
and the transaction would result in the physicéivdey of the commodity. As such, realized gaing &rsses on these contracts are included ir
the cost of the commodity upon the settlement efdbntract.

In addition, the Company occasionally enters imtaricial derivatives to hedge a component of anei#erial or energy source. Typically,
these types of transactions do not qualify for edigcounting. These instruments are marked to matleach reporting period and gains
(losses) are included in Cost of sales in the dateted statements of operations. The Company rézed no gain or loss from these types of
contracts during the years ended December 31, 22021 and 2010 . As of December 31, 2012 , thefgamy did not have any open financial
derivative contracts for commodities.
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Information regarding changes in the fair valu¢ghef Company’s derivative agreements is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Year Ended December 31, 2011 Year Ended December 31, 2010
Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Recognized in Recognized in Recognized in
Other Gain (Loss) Other Gain (Loss) Other Gain (Loss)
Comprehensive Recognized in Comprehensive Recognized in Comprehensive Recognized in
Income (Loss) Earnings (Loss) Income (Loss) Earnings (Loss) Income (Loss) Earnings (Loss)
(In $ millions)
Derivatives
Designated
as Cash Flov
Hedges
Interest rat ) )
swaps 12)® (15) @ (24) @ (59) @ (31 “ (68) @
Derivatives
Not
Designated
as Hedges
Interest rat
swaps — (6) ® — — — —
Foreign
currency
forwards
and swaps — 6) ® — 16 ©® — 33 ©®
Total (12) (26) (24) (43) (31) (39

@ Am ount excludes $2 million of gains associatechulite Company’s equity method investments’ denatictivity and $3 million of tax
expense recognized in Other comprehensive incomss)(l

@ Am ount represents reclassification from Accumulatther comprehensive income (loss), net and Isdied in Interest expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.

®  Am ount excludes $2 million of gains associatedwlite Company’s equity method investments’ denasictivity and $10 million of tax
expense recognized in Other comprehensive incomss)(l

@ Am ount excludes $5 million of gains associatedwlite Company’s equity method investments’ denasictivity and $15 million of tax
expense recognized in Other comprehensive incomss)(l

® In cluded in Interest expense in the consolidateéstants of operatior

® Inc luded in Foreign exchange gain (loss), nebfmgrating activity or Other income (expense), netbon-operating activity in the
consolidated statements of operations.

SeeNote 22- Fair Value Measuremenfisr additional information regarding the fair valagthe Company's derivative agreements.
22. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC To@20 for financial assets and liabilities. FASB@&%$opic 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measair value. The hierarchy gives the highestnitsido unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Letaheasurement) and the lowest priority to unobdseviaputs (Level 3 measurement). This
hierarchy requires entities to maximize the uselsiervable inputs and minimize the use of unobs®dsvaputs. If a financial instrument uses
inputs that fall in different levels of the hierhyg the instrument will be categorized based upendwest level of input that is significant to
fair value calculation. Valuations for fund invesimts such as common/collective trusts and regisiere@stment companies, which do not
have readily determinable fair values, are typjcalitimated using a net asset value provided hiré party as a practical expedient.
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The levels of inputs used to measure fair valueaar®llows:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessiblei®yCompany
Level 2 - inputs that are observable in the matketother than those inputs classified as Level 1

Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable in the ntataee and significant to the valuation

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilities mead at fair value on a recurring basis includeigges available for sale and derivative
financial instruments. Securities available foesaktlude US corporate bonds and equity securiflesivative financial instruments include
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwandssavaps.

Marketable Securities Where possible, the Company utilizes quoted piilc@gtive markets to measure debt and equity g&sjrsuch items
are classified as Level 1 in the hierarchy anduidelequity securities. When quoted market pricegdfntical assets are unavailable, varying
valuation techniques are used. Common inputs minglthese assets include, among others, benchyieds, issuer spreads and recently
reported trades. Such assets are classified a$ 2@vehe hierarchy and typically include corperéionds. Mutual funds are valued at the net
asset value per share or unit multiplied by the lnemof shares or units held as of the measurenatet d

Derivatives. Derivative financial instruments are valued in tharket using discounted cash flow techniques. & lbeshniques incorporate
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs such as interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates. These margetsrare utilized in the discounted cash
flow calculation considering the instrument’s temotional amount, discount rate and credit risgn8icant inputs to the derivative valuation
for interest rate swaps and foreign currency fodsamnd swaps are observable in the active markdtare classified as Level 2 in the
hierarchy.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurement

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for  Significant Other
Identical Assets  Observable Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total

As of December 31,
Balance Sheet Classification 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

(In $ millions)
Marketable securities, at fair
Mutual funds value 53 64 — — 53 64
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedges
Foreign currency forwards and swaps Current Other assets — — 2 9 2
Total assets 53 64 2 9 55 73
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges
Interest rate swaps Current Other liabilities — — (20 (27) (20 (22)
Interest rate swaps Noncurrent Other liabilities — — @) (13 () (13
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedges
Interest rate swaps Current Other liabilities — — 5) 2 (5) 2
Interest rate swaps Noncurrent Other liabilities — — Q) — Q) —
Foreign currency forwards and swaps Current Other liabilities — — (8 3 (8) (©)
Total liabilities — — (31 (39 (31 (39)
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Carrying values and fair values of financial ingtents that are not carried at fair value in thesotidated balance sheets are as follows:

Fair Value Measurement

Significant Other Unobservable
Observable Inputs Inputs
Carrying Amount (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

(In $ millions)
Cost investments 15€¢ 147 — — — — — —
Insurance contracts in nonqualified trusts 66 69 66 69 — — 66 69
Long-term debt, including current installments arid-term
debt 2,99 2,911 2,88 2,71¢ 244 24 3,13C 2,967

In general, the cost investments included in théetabove are not publicly traded and their faluga are not readily determinable; however,
the Company believes the carrying values approx@roagre less than the fair values. Insurance aotstin nonqualified trusts consist of long-
term fixed income securities, which are valued g$imdependent vendor pricing models with observaipets in the active market and
therefore represent a Level 2 measurement. Thedhie of long-term debt is based on valuationmfthbird-party banks and market quotation:
and is classified as Level 2 in the hierarchy. fievalue of obligations under capital leasesasddl on lease payments and discount rates,
which are not observable in the market and theeafepresents a Level 3 measurement.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the fair vabfesmsh and cash equivalents, receivables, traghbpes, short-term borrowings and the

current installments of long-term debt approximzgeying values due to the short-term nature aséhastruments. These items have been
excluded from the table with the exception of therent installments of lontgerm debt. Additionally, certain noncurrent recéiless, principally
insurance recoverables, are carried at net reédizatue.

The fair value of long-term debt is based on vaduest from third-party banks and market quotations.
23. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in legal and regulatoryceexdings, lawsuits, claims and investigations iecidl to the normal conduct of business,
relating to such matters as product liability, latishbutes, commercial contracts, employment, arstitintellectual property, workers'
compensation, chemical exposure, asbestos exp@sigeacquisitions and divestitures, past wasspalal practices and release of chemicals
into the environment. The Company is actively ddfeg those matters where the Company is namediafeadant. Due to the inherent
subjectivity of assessments and unpredictabilitpudtomes of legal proceedings, the Company'stitig accruals and estimates of possible
loss or range of possible loss ("Possible Loss'y n represent the ultimate loss to the Compaom fiegal proceedings. For reasonably
possible loss contingencies that may be mater@dharen determinable, the Company estimates itsittedsoss, considering that the Comp
could incur no loss in certain matters. Thus, thenBany's exposure and ultimate losses may be hagHewer, and possibly materially so,
than the Company's litigation accruals and estismaté®ossible Loss. For some matters, the Comsangable, at this time, to estimate its
Possible Loss that is reasonably possible of otmurGenerally, the less progress that has beem inathe proceedings or the broader the
range of potential results, the more difficult tbe Company to estimate the Possible Loss thaté@dsonably possible the Company could
incur. The Company may disclose certain informatiated to a plaintiff's claim against the Compaltigged in the plaintiff's pleadings or
otherwise publicly available. While information thiis type may provide insight into the potentialgndude of a matter, it does not necessarily
represent the Company's estimate of reasonablyiy®ss probable loss. Some of the Company's exasuegal matters may be offset by
applicable insurance coverage. The Company doesomsider the possible availability of insuranceezage in determining the amounts of
any accruals or any estimates of Possible Loss.

Plumbing Actions

CNA Holdings LLC ("CNA Holdings"), a US subsidiaof the Company, which included the US business imotlve Advanced Engineered
Materials segment, along with Shell Oil Companyh@l'), E.l. DuPont de Nemours and Company ("DuPasutd others, has been a defen:
in a series of lawsuits, including a number of glastions, alleging that plastic resins manufactimethese companies that were utilized by
others in the production of plumbing systems feidential
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property were defective for this use and/or contel to the failure of such plumbing. Based on, mgnather things, the findings of outside
experts and the successful use of the Companytal @opolymer in similar applications, CNA Holdindses not believe the Company's acetal
copolymer was defective for this use or contributethe failure of the plumbing. In addition, in nyacases CNA Holdings' potential future
exposure may be limited by, among other thingsuta of limitations and repose.

In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Sheleesd into national class action settlements inQbe, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese
Corporation, et al., No. 94-0047 (Chancery Ct.,ddiCounty, Tennessee) matter. The time to filexdaagainst the class has expired and the
entity established by the court to administer tlaégs was dissolved in September 2010. In addbietaveen 1995 and 2001, CNA Holdings
was named as a defendant in various putative atag&ms. The majority of these actions have nowlibemissed. As a result the Company
recorded $59 million in reserve reductions and vedes from associated insurance indemnificatiamind 2010. The reserve was further
reduced by $4 million during the year ended Deceritie 2011 following the dismissal of the remainln§ case (St. Croix, Ltd., et al. v. Shell
Oil Company d/b/a Shell Chemical Company, CaseX®97-CR-467, Virgin Islands Superior Court) whiehas appealed in 2011. Oral
argument for the appeal took place on Decembe2dB2 and a decision on the appeal is expecte@l.2

As of December 31, 2012, the class actions in Caaagl subject to a pending class settlement thakdwesult in a dismissal of those cases.
The Company does not believe the Possible Lossiassd with the remaining matters is material. Adaagly, the Company has determine:
reduce the reserves based on the expiration dintieeto file and the resolution of certain clainslar the Canada class and no significant
active claims outside of Canada. The Company recbrecoveries and reductions in legal reservetegeta plumbing actions to Other
(charges) gains, nefNote 17) as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In' $ millions)
Recoveries 1 2 14
Legal reserve reductions 4 4 45
Total S 6 5¢

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigatiol

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€ledanese Corporation ("HCC"), Celanese Americap@ation and Celanese GmbH
(collectively, the "Celanese Entities") and Hoectist former parent of HCC, were named as defesdaritvo actions (involving multiple
individual participants) filed in September 2006W$ purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufedtand sold by HCC. The actions allegec
that the defendants participated in a conspiradixtorices, rig bids and allocate customers ofypster staple sold in the US. These actions
were consolidated in a proceeding by a Multi-Dgdttiitigation Panel in the US District Court forethVestern District of North Carolina styled
In re Polyester Staple AntitruLitigation, MDL 1516. On June 12, 2008 the court dismissedéltactions with prejudice against all Celanese
Entities in consideration of a payment by the Comypdhis proceeding related to sales by the podyestiiple fibers business which Hoechst
sold to KoSa B.V., flk/a Arteva B.V., a subsidiafyKoch Industries, Inc. ("KoSa") in 1998. In Novkar 2003, KoSa sought recovery from
Company (Koch Industries, Inc. et al. v. Hoechstidgesellschaft et al., No. 03-cv-8679 Southerstrizit NY) alleging a variety of claims,
including indemnification and breach of represeate, arising out of the 1998 sale. During the fouuarter of 2010, the parties settled the
case pursuant to a confidential agreement andatbe was dismissed with prejudice.

Prior to December 31, 2008, the Company had entatedolling arrangements with four other alledésl purchasers of polyester staple fibers
manufactured and sold by the Celanese Entitiessélparchasers were not included in the settlemehbae such company filed suit against
the Company in December 20081{lliken & Company v. CNA Holdings, Inc., Celandsmericas Corporation and Hoechst ASo. 8-SV-
00578 W.D.N.C.)). On September 15, 2011, the casedismissed with prejudice based on a stipulaiahproposed order of voluntary
dismissal.

Commercial Actions

In April 2007, Southern Chemical Corporation ("Swrm") filed a petition in the 190th Judicial DistrCourt of Harris County, Texas styled
Southern Chemical Corporation v. Celanese L{@ause No. 2007-25490), seeking declaratory judgmelating to the terms of a multi-year
methanol supply contract. The trial court grantegsl Company's motion for summary judgment in Mar@d&dismissing Southern's claims. In
September 2009, the intermediate Texas appellaie xversed the trial court decision and remaritectase to the trial court. The Texas
Supreme Court subsequently declined both parties'
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requests that it hear the case. On August 15, Zdithern filed a second amended petition addiclgien for breach of contract and seeking
equitable damages in an unspecified amount fronCtirapany. Southern amended its complaint addingat@ws for fraud and tortious
interference with a third-party contract. More sfieally, Southern claimed the Company "materiatijsrepresented its intended use of the
methanol to be supplied by Southern" and "violdkedmaterial terms of the contract and failed toexi these breaches after Southern
provided notice." These alleged breaches includhirig, transferring, swapping or tolling methatmlor with entities other than the Company
and to entities or operations outside the U.S. exibb." In the May 2012 complaint, Southern souggirhpensatory damages of $1.3 billicex
well as pre- and post-judgment interest, attornegs and punitive damages equaling two timesciisahdamages. Southern also sought
rescission or termination of the contract. Trialenenced on July 16, 2012, and on August 10, 20&2juty returned a verdict of no liability
and no damages with respect to all of Southeralmslagainst the Company. The trial court adogtedury's verdict and entered final
judgment on October 10, 2012. In November 2012tt8wu filed a motion for new trial which the trizdurt denied

In June 2012, Linde Gas Singapore Pte Ltd ("Linds'( a raw materials supplier based in Singapoitggted arbitration proceedings in New
York against the Company's subsidiary, Celanesgapiore Pte. Ltd. ("Singapore Ltd."), alleging tBatgapore Ltd. had breached a certain
requirements contract for carbon monoxide by temlgridling Singapore Ltd.'s acetic acid facility Jurong Island, Singapore. The Company
filed its answer on August 8, 2012. The Companyebek that Linde Gas' claims lack merit and that@ompany has complied with the
contract terms and plans to vigorously defend th&éen Based on the Company's evaluation of cuyrentilable information, the Company
cannot estimate the Possible Loss, if any, forriaster as discovery is ongoing and Linde Gastratinn demand to date does not specify the
categories of damages it is seeking for the pahatithe plant was idled in 2012 and contendsithveitl incur additional damages if the plan
idled again in the future. The arbitral panel agreebifurcate the case into a liability and dansaglease and set hearing dates for all liability
issues in June 2013 and for all damages issuascéssary) in December 2013.

Award Proceedings in relation to Domination Agreenteand Squeez-Out

The Company's subsidiary, BCP Holdings GmbH ("BGidithgs"), a German limited liability company, islafendant in two special award
proceedings initiated by minority stockholders @l@hese GmbH seeking the court's review of the atsdi) of the fair cash compensation
and of the guaranteed dividend offered in the pageh offer under the 2004 Domination Agreement'{B@mination Agreement") and (ii) the
fair cash compensation paid for the 2006 squeetz€-8gueeze-Out") of all remaining stockholdersCafanese GmbH.

Pursuant to a settlement agreement between BCRHrigeldnd certain former Celanese GmbH stockholdfeltse court sets a higher value for
the fair cash compensation or the guaranteed payumeler the Domination Agreement or the Squeezee@mipensation, former Celanese
GmbH stockholders who ceased to be stockholde@etzinese GmbH due to the Squeeze-Out will be edtid claim for their shares the
higher of the compensation amounts determined &g dlurt in these different proceedings relatedhéoDomination Agreement and the
Squeeze-Out. If the fair cash compensation deteuniry the court is higher than the Squeeze-Out eosgiion of €66.99 , then 1,069,465
shares will be entitled to an adjustment. If thartdetermines the value of the fair cash comp&rsander the Domination Agreement to be
lower than the original Squeeze-Out compensatiohdbtermines a higher value for the Squeeze-Qupeasation, 924,078 shares would be
entitled to an adjustment. Payments already reddiyeghese stockholders as compensation for thaies will be offset so that persons who
ceased to be stockholders of Celanese GmbH die t8gueeze-Out are not entitled to more than tjfeshiof the amount set in the two court
proceedings.

In September 2011, an expert appointed by the ¢tmanting the Domination Agreement stockholdershdao assist it in determining the va

of Celanese GmbH rendered an opinion. The expénedghat the fair cash compensation for thesekbtwders ( 145,387 shares) should be
increased from €41.92 to €51.86 . This non-bindipopion recommends a total increase in share walé@2 million for those claims under the
Domination Agreement. The opinion has no effecthenSqueeze-Out proceeding because the share@cm@mended is lower than the price
those stockholders already received in the Squ@egeHowever, the opinion also advocates that tleanteed dividend should be increased
from €2.89 to €3.79 , aggregating an increasetal guaranteed dividends of €1 million to the Sque®ut claimants. The Company evaluatec
the non-binding opinion of the expert and submitiesritten response during the three months endextiber 31, 2011. No hearing date has
been set. No expert has yet been appointed ingheege-Out proceedings.

For those claims brought under the Domination Agrext, based on the Company's evaluation of cuyrertiilable information, including the
non-binding expert opinion, the fact that the Cdwas asked the expert to update his opinion, amébitt that the court may adopt this new
opinion or apply its own (there are legal questiabsut the applicable valuation method), which dantrease or decrease the Company's
potential exposure, the Company does not belieatthie Possible Loss is material.
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For those remaining claims brought by the Squeazec@imants, based on the Company's evaluati@umwéntly available information,
including that damages sought are unspecified,ppted or uncertain, the matter presents mearifegal uncertainties (including novel
issues of law and the applicable valuation methibaxe are significant facts in dispute and thetclhas not yet appointed an expert, the
Company cannot estimate the Possible Loss, if@rtpis time.

Guarantees

The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemiiitlgarties for environmental and other liabilitisrsuant to a variety of agreements,
including asset and business divestiture agreemnleatses, settlement agreements and various agneewi¢h affiliated companies. Although
many of these obligations contain monetary andioe timitations, others do not provide such liniat.

As indemnification obligations often depend on dlseurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutwsts associated with them cannot be
determined at this time.

The Company has accrued for all probable and redpestimable losses associated with all knowrterebr claims that have been brought
to its attention. These known obligations inclulde following:

» Demerger Obligation:

In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the Companeed to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal susmess for various liabilities under the
demerger agreement, including for environmentailities associated with contamination arising eitirom environmental damage in general
("Category A") or under 19 divestiture agreememitge=d into by Hoechst prior to the demerger ("Gatg B") (Note 15).

The Company's obligation to indemnify Hoechst, asdegal successors, is capped under CategoryeB5 million . If and to the extent the
environmental damage should exceed €750 millicaggregate, the Company's obligation to indemHifgchst and its legal successors apj
but is then limited to 33.33% of the remediatiostasithout further limitations. Cumulative paymentsder the divestiture agreements as of
December 31, 2012 are $61 million . Most of theeghiture agreements have become time barred aaayanotified environmental damage
claims have been partially settled.

The Company has also undertaken in the demergeemagnt to indemnify Hoechst and its legal successor(i) 33.33% of any and all
Category A liabilities that result from Hoechstrmpheld as the responsible party pursuant to pldhcor current or future environmental law
or by third parties pursuant to private or pubdiazrlrelated to contamination and (ii) liabilitieatiHoechst is required to discharge, including
liabilities, which are associated with busines$eas were included in the demerger but were not dgeatedue to legal restrictions on the
transfers of such items. These indemnities do rmtige for any monetary or time limitations. Therany has not been requested by Hoe
to make any payments in connection with this indéigation. Accordingly, the Company has not madg payments to Hoechst and its legal
SuUCCessors.

Based on the Company's evaluation of currentlylabls information, including the lack of requests indemnification, the Company cannot
estimate the Possible Loss for the remaining deemexigligations, if any, in excess of amounts aatrue

» Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agréedetmnify third-party purchasers of former bussessand assets for various pre-closing
conditions, as well as for breaches of represamtatiwarranties and covenants. Such liabilities mslude environmental liability, product
liability, antitrust and other liabilities. Thesedemnifications and guarantees represent standatdactual terms associated with typical
divestiture agreements and, other than environrhialdglities, the Company does not believe thaytlexpose the Company to any significant
risk (Note 15).

The Company has divested numerous businessestrivesats and facilities through agreements contaiimidgmnifications or guarantees to the
purchasers. Many of the obligations contain mowegad/or time limitations, ranging from one yeathoty years . The aggregate amount of
indemnifications and guarantees provided for utidese agreements is $195 million as of Decembe2@®12 . Other agreements do not
provide for any monetary or time limitations.

Based on the Company's evaluation of currentlylabls information, including the number of requdstsindemnification or other payment
received by the Company, the Company cannot estithatPossible Loss for the remaining divestitiniggations, if any, in excess of amounts
accrued.
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Purchase Obligation:

In the normal course of business, the Company ®iri&y various purchase commitments for goods andces which extend through 2028 .
The Company maintains a number of "take-or-pay'tremts for purchases of raw materials, utilitied ather services. Certain of the contracts
contain a contract termination buy-out provisioattallows for the Company to exit the contractsaioounts less than the remaining take-or-
pay obligations. The Company does not expect torinoy material losses under take-or-pay contrhetuangements. Additionally, the
Company has other outstanding commitments repriegemaintenance and service agreements, energytaitylagreements, consulting
contracts and software agreements. As of Decenthe2@® 2 , the Company had unconditional purchasgaitons of $3.3 billion .

The Company holds variable interests in entities supply certain raw materials and services tdbwpany. The variable interests primarily
relate to cosplus contractual arrangements with the suppliedsranovery of capital expenditures for certain pEssets plus a rate of returr
such assets. Liabilities for such supplier recasedf capital expenditures have been recordedpismlckease obligations. The entities are not
consolidated because the Company is not the pribvemgficiary of the entities as it does not hawepbwer to direct the activities of the
entities that most significantly impact the enstieconomic performance. The Company's maximumsexpdo loss as a result of its
involvement with these variable interest entiti88Es") as of December 31, 2012 relates primamlyearly contract termination fees.

The Company's carrying value of assets and lissléssociated with its obligations to VIEs, ashaslthe maximum exposure to loss relating
to these VIEs are as follows:

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(In $ millions)

Property, plant and equipment, net 11¢ 119
Trade payables 41 40
Current installments of long-term debt 7 6
Long-term debt 14C 137
Total 18¢ 183
Maximum exposure to loss 301 228

The difference between the total obligations to #8d the maximum exposure to loss, primarily regmes take-opay obligations for servici
included within the unconditional obligations dissad above.

During March 2010, the Company successfully congpletn amended raw material purchase agreemenawitpplier who had filed for
bankruptcy. Under the original contract, the Conypanade advance payments in exchange for prefelgmitting on certain volumes of
material purchases over the life of the contrabe ancellation of the original contract and threnteof the subsequent amendment resulted ir
the Company accelerating amortization on the untineal prepayment balance of $22 million duringttivee months ended March 31, 2010.
The accelerated amortization was recorded to (asdles in the consolidated statements of operatigrfollows: $20 million was recorded in
the Acetyl Intermediates segment and $2 million vem®rded in the Advanced Engineered Materials segnDuring the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company received considerafi$17 million in connection with the settlemeft claim against this bankrupt
supplier. The consideration was recorded to Otharges (gains), netNote 17), net in the consolidated statements of operaiiotise Acetyl
Intermediates segment.
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24. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information for cash and-oash activities is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Taxes paid, net of refunds 64 94 13t
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized 19¢€ 23C 18¢
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Fair value adjustment to securities available &bde snet of tax — — 2
Capital lease obligations 7 38 33
Accrued capital expenditures (22 15 21
Asset retirement obligations 8 2 25
Accrued Kelsterbach capital expenditures (14) (33 @)
Accrued acquisition of intangibles 2 — —
Lease incentives 6 3 —

25. Segment Information
Business Segmen

The Company operates through the following busisegsnents according to the nature and economiacteaistics of our products as well as
the manner in which the information is used intdyriay the Company's key decision maker, who is@oenpany's Chief Executive Officer.

» Advanced Engineered Materia

The Company’s Advanced Engineered Materials sega@relops, produces and supplies a broad porthbliagh performance specialty
polymers for application in automotive, medical a&hekctronics products, as well as other consumeiredustrial applications. The Company
and its strategic affiliates are a leading partaoipin the global specialty polymers industry. Phienary products of Advanced Engineered
Materials are used in a broad range of end-useuptsdncluding automotive components, medical desjielectronics, appliances, industrial
applications, battery separators, conveyor beltsation equipment, coatings, electrical applioag and products.

» Consumer Specialtie

The Company’s Consumer Specialties segment inclindeAcetate Products and Nutrinova businesseghwg@rve consumer-driven
applications. The Acetate Products business aniti®nova business are aggregated by the Compdayhe reportable segment based on
similar economic characteristics and similar prdauncprocesses, classes of customers and sellahgiatribution practices. The Acetate
Products business is a leading producer and sumblacetate flake, acetate film and acetate taimarily used in filter products applications.
The Companys Nutrinova business is a leading internationapapof premium quality ingredients for the fodmkverage and pharmaceutic
industries. The Nutrinova business produces ansgl Sahetf®, high intensity sweeteners, and is one of wotlidgest producers of food
protection ingredients, such as potassium sorlzatesorbic acid.

* Industrial Specialties

The Company'’s Industrial Specialties segment inedutie Emulsions and EVA Performance Polymers bases which are operating
segments aggregated by the Company into one répogagment based on similar products, productiongsses, classes of customers and
selling and distribution practices as well as ecoiccsimilarities over a normal business cycle. TQmnpany’s Emulsions business is a leading
global producer of vinyl acetate-based emulsiomsdevelops products and application technologiespmove performance, create value and
drive innovation in applications such as paints emakings, adhesives, construction, glass fib&tilés and paper. The EVA Performance
Polymers business is a leading North American naiufer of a full range of low-density polyethyleared specialty ethylene vinyl acetate
resins and compounds. EVA Performance Polymerglymts are used in many applications including Bexpackaging films, lamination film
products, hot melt adhesives, medical productgmaotive, carpeting and photovoltaic cells.
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e Acetyl Intermediate!

The Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segment prodaoéssupplies acetyl products, including acetid,agnyl acetate monomer, acetic
anhydride and acetate esters. These products aeeallg used as starting materials for colorardss, adhesives, coatings and medicines
Acetyl Intermediates segment also produces organlients and intermediates for pharmaceuticalcaljural and chemical products.

In November 2010, the Company announced its needgldped advanced technology to produce ethand.ifihovative, new process
combines our proprietary and leading acetyl platfarith highly advanced manufacturing technologptoduce ethanol from hydrocarbon-
sourced feedstocks.

*  Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathegivities such as legal, accounting and
treasury functions, interest income and expensecaed with financing activities of the Companggdahe captive insurance companies.

The business segment management reporting andbimgtisystems are based on the same accountimgjgsoas those described in the
summary of significant accounting policiesNiote 2.

Sales and revenues related to transactions betestmess segments are generally recorded at vilaeapproximate thirgarty selling price:

Advanced

aterals. Spodiaties Specaltes Intermedates Acivies Eiminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Net sales 1,261 1,18¢ @ 1,18¢ 3,231 @ — (449 6,41¢
Other (charges) gains, net 2 4 @ — — 8 @ — 14)
Operating profit (loss) 86 244 82 263 (1649) — 511
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates 19C 6 — 11 35 — 24z
Depreciation and amortization 112 45 55 80 15 — 30¢
Capital expenditures 51 65 38 16¢ 16 — 33¢ ©®
As of December 31, 2012
Goodwill and intangibles, net 37z 27¢€ 65 22¢ — — 94z
Total assets 2,708 1,29¢ 96° 2,23¢ 1,80( — 9,00(
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Net sales 1,29¢ 1,161 @ 1,22 3,551 @ 1 (471) 6,76
Other (charges) gains, net (49 ©)] — 14 (20 — 48)
Operating profit (loss) 76 227 10C 45¢ (172 — 69C
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates 161 2 — 5 24 — 192
Depreciation and amortization 10C 44 45 96 13 — 29¢
Capital expenditures 64 92 71 122 15 — 364 @
As of December 31, 2011
Goodwill and intangibles, net 391 277 54 23t — — 957
Total assets 2,781 1,154 901 2,03t 1,641 — 8,51¢
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Advanced
Engineered Consumer Industrial Acetyl Other
Materials Specialties Specialties Intermediates Activities Eliminations Consolidated

(In $ millions)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net sales 1,10¢ 1,09¢ @ 1,03¢ 3,082 @ 2 (409) 5,91¢
Other (charges) gains, net 31 (76) 25 @ (12 (14) @ — (46)
Operating profit (loss) 18¢€ 164 8¢ 243 (79 — 503
Equity in net earnings (loss) of

affiliates 144 2 — 5 17 — 16¢
Depreciation and amortization 76 ® 42 41 117 ® 11 — 287
Capital expenditures 52 50 55 48 16 — 222 ®

1)

)

®)

4)

®)

Net sales for Acetyl Intermediates and Consumer $tézs include inter-segment sales of $440 milkma $4 million , respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2012 and $468 miltior8 million , respectively, for the year endeccBraber 31, 2011 ; arg00 million
and $9 million , respectively, for the year endest®mber 31, 2010 .

In cludes $9 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company's captive insurance compaaslated to the Narrows, Virginia
facility that eliminates in consolidation.

Ex cludes expenditures related to the relocatiath®Company’s POM operations in GermatNote 27) and includes a decrease in
accrued capital expenditures of $22 million for ylear ended December 31, 2012 and an increasesahifiion and $21 million for the
years endeDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

In cludes $7 million of insurance recoveries reedifrom the Company’s captive insurance compaiesed to the Edmonton, Alberta,
Canada facility that eliminates in consolidation.

In cludes $2 million for Advanced Engineered Makriand $20 million for Acetyl Intermediates foetaccelerated amortization of the
unamortized prepayment related to a raw materiallmase agreemeniNote 23).

Geographical Segments

Revenues and noncurrent assets are presenteddraiezllocation of the business. The net salesdbas¢he geographic location of the
Company’s facilities are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In $ millions)
Net Sales
us 1,811 1,772 1,55¢
International 4,607 4,991 4,36%
Total 6,41¢ 6,76 5,91¢
International Countries with Significant Net Sales
Germany 2,08z 2,32¢ 1,95(
China 732 667 59¢
Singapore 561 722 612
Belgium 504 461 451
Canada 284 328 277
Mexico 257 241 267
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Property, plant and equipment, net based on thgrgpbic location of the Company’s facilities isfabows:

As of December 31,

2012 2011
(In $ millions)
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
us 81:¢ 73t
International 2,531 2,53¢
Total 3,35( 3,26¢
International Countries with Significant Propef@fant and Equipment, Net
Germany 1,32¢ 1,39«
China 64z 57%
Singapore 10¢ 112
Belgium 60 53
Canada 14¢ 154
Mexico 12¢ 117

26. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In $ millions, except share data)

Amounts attributable to Celanese Corporation

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 60¢ 60¢€ 42¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 4 1 (49
Net earnings (loss) 60= 607 371
Cumulative preferred stock dividends — — ©)
Net earnings (loss) available to common stockhslder 60< 607 374
Weighted average shares - basic 158,325,44 156,204,07 154,564,13
Dilutive stock options 848,43¢ 1,930,07; 1,828,74
Dilutive restricted stock units 622,43: 813,68! 425,38!
Assumed conversion of preferred stock — — 1,553,92!
Weighted average shares - diluted 159,796,31 158,947,83 158,372,19

Securities not included in the computation of ditlihet earnings per share as their effect woulé baen antidilutive are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Stock options 25,90¢ 69,39: 575,26
Restricted stock units 3,99¢ 73t 74,16¢
Convertible preferred stock — — —
Total 29,90: 70,13( 649,43:

27. Plant Relocation

In November 2006, the Company finalized a settldragneement with the Frankfurt, Germany Airportréjport") that required the Company
to cease operations at its Kelsterbach, Germany Bitdvand sell the site, including land and buiginto Fraport, resolving several years of
legal disputes related to the planned Fraport esipanUnder the original agreement, Fraport agtegrhy the Company a total of €670
million . The agreement requires the Company toplete certain activities no later than December2®1,3 at which time title to the land and
buildings will transfer to Fraport. The agreemeiat riot
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require the proceeds from the settlement be usbdilo or relocate the existing POM operations; bear, based on a number of factors, the
Company built a new expanded production facilitghia Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park in the RHifi@n area in Germany.

The Company received its final payment from Frapb€110 million during the three months ended J8®e2011 and ceased POM operation
at the Kelsterbach, Germany facility prior to J8ly, 2011. In September 2011, the Company annouheeopening of its new POM product
facility in Frankfurt Hoechst Industrial Park, Geany.

A summary of the financial statement impact assediavith the Kelsterbach plant relocation is atofus:

Year Ended December 31, Inc;gitgyfrrﬁ:gugh
2012 2011 2010 December 31, 2012
(In'$ millions)
Deferred proceed8 — 15¢ — 907
Costs expensed 7 47 26 11z
Costs capitalize® 35 171 30& 1,123
Lease buyout — — 22 22
Employee termination benefits — 8 — 8

@ Inc luded in noncurrent Other liabilities in thensolidated balance sheets. Amounts reflect the @li&rcequivalent at the time of receipt.
Upon transfer of title to Fraport, the deferredgaeds will be recognized in the consolidated statésof operations. Such proceeds will
be reduced by assets of €87 million included impErty, plant and equipment, net and €22 millioduded in noncurrent Other assets in
the consolidated balance sheets, to be transfarrechport or otherwise disposed.

@ Inclu des a decrease in accrued capital expenditfr§14 million , $33 million and $7 million fohé years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

28. Insurance Recoveries

Due to periodic cessations of production causedrbglectrical disruption in January 2010 at the Gany's Acetate Products manufacturing
facility in Narrows, Virginia, the Company filed itain insurance claims resulting in business inj@ion and property damage insurance
recoveries.

Due to certain events in October 2008 and subsegeeindic cessations of production at the CompmByA Performance Polymers
manufacturing facility in Edmonton, Alberta, Canattee Company declared two events of force majddueing 2009, the Company replaced
long-lived assets damaged in October 2008.

Insurance recoveries included in Other (chargeisisgaet (Note 17) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In' $ millions)

Narrows, Virginia

Consumer Specialties 9 — —
Other Activities 9 — —
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada
Industrial Specialties — — 25
Other Activities — — @)
Total net recoveries — — 18 o

@ Tot al net recoveries for the year ended Decembg2@®10 consists of $8 million related to propelynage and $10 million related to
business interruption.
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29. Consolidating Guarantor Financial Information

The 4.625% Notes, the 5.875% Notes and the 6.6268@sNcollectively, the "Notes") were issued byabelse US (the "Issuer") and are
guaranteed by Celanese Corporation (the "Parenta@toa") and the Subsidiary Guarantofddte 13). The Issuer and Subsidiary Guarantors
are 100% owned subsidiaries of the Parent Guaraher Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Guarantus ¢paaranteed the Notes fully and
unconditionally and jointly and severally.

For cash management purposes, the Company tragsfdrdbetween Parent Guarantor, Issuer, Subsi@aayantors and non-guarantors
through intercompany financing arrangements, coutions or declaration of dividends between theeesve parent and its subsidiaries. The
transfer of cash under these activities facilitéhesability of the recipient to make specifieddhparty payments for principal and interest on
the Company's outstanding debt, Common Stock didis@nd Common Stock repurchases. The consolidstétgments of cash flow for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 pesgnintercompany financing activities, contribaos and dividends consistent with h
such activity would be presented in a stand-altatement of cash flows. Previously, the Companggmeed such activity within the category
where the ultimate use of cash to third parties prasented in the consolidated statements of dash Prior amounts have been revised to
conform to the current presentation.

The Company has not presented separate finantairiation and other disclosures for each of itssglibry Guarantors because it believes
such financial information and other disclosuresildaot provide investors with any additional infation that would be material in
evaluating the sufficiency of the guarantees.
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The consolidating financial information for the Bar Guarantor, the Issuer, the Subsidiary Guaras@od the non-guarantors are as follows:

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)

Net sales — — 2,692 4,82¢ (1,109 6,41¢
Cost of sales — — (1,899 (4,419 1,092 (5,22¢)
Gross profit — — 793 41C (11) 1,192
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — (222) (28%) — (507)
Amortization of intangible assets — — (18) (33 — (52)
Research and development expenses — — (73) (29 — (102)
Other (charges) gains, net — — 17 (22 9 (14)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — — 4 — 4)

Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net — — (2) 2 — 3
Operating profit (loss) — — 49¢ 35 (20 511
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 602 70¢€ 204 201 (1,47)) 242
Interest expense — (199 (42 (73 12¢ (18%)
Refinancing expense — (©)] — — — (©)]
Interest income — 5¢ 65 6 (12¢) 2
Dividend income - cost investments — — — 85 — 85
Other income (expense), net — — (10) 15 — 5
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation:
before tax 602 564 718 26¢ (1,497 657
Income tax (provision) benefit 3 38 (87) a7 15 (48)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation: 60¢ 602 62€ 252 (1,476 60¢
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued
operations — — (5) (€N} — (6)
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — — — — —
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — 2 — — 2
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatis — — 3 (@D} — (4)
Net earnings (loss) 60= 602 623 251 (1,476 60=
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 605 60z 628 251 (1,476) 605
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
Net sales — — 2,57: 5,24( (1,049 6,76:
Cost of sales — — (1,847 (4,507 1,02t (5,329
Gross profit — — 72t 733 (24) 1,43¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — (16¢) (369 — (53€)
Amortization of intangible assets — — () (45) — (62
Research and development expenses — — (64) 32 — (96)
Other (charges) gains, net — — 23 (72) — (48)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — — — — —
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net — — (2) — (@D} 2
Operating profit (loss) — — 49¢ 217 (25) 69C
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 60= 77C 16E 16€ (1,519 192
Interest expense — (217) (42) (41) 78 (221
Refinancing expense — (©)] — — — (©)]
Interest income — 23 48 10 (78) 3
Dividend income - cost investments — — — 80 — 8C
Other income (expense), net — — (39 53 — 14
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation:
before tax 60% 573 631 48t (1,539 75&
Income tax (provision) benefit 2 32 (149 (43 9 (149
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation: 607 60% 482 44z (1,530 60¢€
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued
operations — — 3 (@D} — 2
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — — — — —
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — (D] — — Q)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatis — — 2 (1) — 1
Net earnings (loss) 607 60~ 484 441 (1,530 607
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 607 60< 484 441 (1,530 607
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
Net sales — — 2,27 4,57( (929 5,91¢
Cost of sales — — (1,704 (3,976 942 (4,739
Gross profit — — 573 594 13 1,18(
Selling, general and administrative expenses — — (183) (322 — (505)
Amortization of intangible assets — — (14) 47 — (62)
Research and development expenses — — 42 (28 — (7C)
Other (charges) gains, net — — 68 (119 — (4€)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net — — — (©)] — (©)]
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses an
assets, net — — 3 5 — 8
Operating profit (loss) — — 40~ 85 13 503
Equity in net earnings (loss) of affiliates 407 551 15¢ 12¢ (1,069 16¢€
Interest expense — (173 (38 (46) 53 (209
Refinancing expense — (1€) — — — (1€)
Interest income — 21 30 9 (53 7
Dividend income - cost investments — — — 73 — 73
Other income (expense), net 27 2 (52 84 — 7
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation:
before tax 38C 38t 49¢ 331 (1,056 53¢
Income tax (provision) benefit 3 22 (92) (38 2 (112
Earnings (loss) from continuing operation: 371 407 407 29¢ (1,05¢) 42¢
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued
operations — — (78) 2 — (80)
Gain (loss) on disposition of discontinued
operations — — 2 — — 2
Income tax (provision) benefit from
discontinued operations — — 28 1 — 29
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatis — — (48) D — (49
Net earnings (loss) 377 407 35¢ 292 (1,059 377
Net (earnings) loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to
Celanese Corporation 3717 407 35¢ 29z (1,05¢) 3717
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L 0OSS)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net earnings (loss) 60% 602 623 251 (1,47¢) 60%
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable
securities — — — — — —
Foreign currency translation 5 5 (12 1 6 5
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swi 7 7 (D) 3 9 7
Pension and postretirement benefits (244 (244 (162) (89 49k (244)
Total other comprehensive income (los
net of tax (232) (232) (17%) (85) 492 (232)
Total comprehensive income (loss), ne
tax 378 37C 44¢ 16€ (984) 372
Comprehensive (income) loss attributa
to noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable B B
to Celanese Corporation 37¢ 37C 44¢ 16€ (989 37¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L 0OSS)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net earnings (loss) 607 60= 484 441 (1,530 607
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable
securities — — — — — —
Foreign currency translation 27 (27 (6) 6 27 27
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swi 27 27 1 1 (29 27
Pension and postretirement benefits (180 (180 (153) (27) 36C (180
Total other comprehensive income (los
net of tax (180) (180) (15¢) (20 35¢ (180
Total comprehensive income (loss), ne
tax 427 42~ 32¢€ 421 (1,172 427
Comprehensive (income) loss attributa
to noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable _ , _
to Celanese Corporation 421 42t 32¢ 421 (1,172 427
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L 0OSS)

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In $ millions)
Net earnings (loss) 377 407 35¢ 29z (1,059 377

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable

securities (@0} @ (§h)] — 2 @

Foreign currency translation 37 37 37 (20 (64) 37

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swi 17 17 — (4) (13 17

Pension and postretirement benefits (63 (63) (52) (12) 12¢ (63)
Total other comprehensive income (los

net of tax (20 (20 (16) (25) 51 (10
Total comprehensive income (loss), ne

tax 367 397 34z 267 (1,007 367
Comprehensive (income) loss attributa

to noncontrolling interests — — — — — —

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable _ _ ; _ ) _

to Celanese Corporation 367 397 34< 267 (1,00%) 367
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2012

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 — 27t 674 — 95¢
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates — — 34C 653 (16€) 827
Non-trade receivables, net 31 444 1,75¢ 484 (2,509 20¢
Inventories, net — — 19¢ 58¢ (74) 711
Deferred income taxes — — 62 8 (22) 49
Marketable securities, at fair value — — 52 1 — 53
Other assets — 5 15 27 (16) 31
Total current assets 41 44¢ 2,69 2,43¢ (2,78)) 2,83¢
Investments in affiliates 1,692 3,431 1,57¢ 57C (6,47¢) 80C
Property, plant and equipment, net — — 813 2,531 — 3,35(
Deferred income taxes — 5 50¢ 92 — 60€
Other assets — 1,927 13z 414 (2,010 463
Goodwill — — 30t 472 — 7717
Intangible assets, net — — 69 96 — 165
Total assets 1,73¢ 5,81¢ 6,101 6,617 (11,269 9,00(
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current
installments of long-term debt - third party
and affiliates — 1,58¢ 20¢ 15¢ (1,787 16¢
Trade payables - third party and affiliates — — 26¢ 54¢ (16€) 64¢
Other liabilities — 4C 267 47E (307) 47¢
Deferred income taxes — 21 — 25 (22) 25
Income taxes payable — — 41¢ 73 (454) 38
Total current liabilities — 1,64¢ 1,16 1,27¢ (2,737 1,35¢
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt — 2,467 872 1,597 (2,00€6) 2,93(
Deferred income taxes — — — 50 — 5C
Uncertain tax positions 3 6 23 14¢ — 181
Benefit obligations — — 1,36: 24C — 1,60z
Other liabilities — 8 101 1,05¢ 12 1,152
Total noncurrent liabilities 3 2,481 2,35¢ 3,091 (2,019 5,91t
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’
equity 1,73( 1,69: 2,58( 2,24¢ (6,520 1,73(
Noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Total equity 1,73( 1,69: 2,58( 2,24¢ (6,520 1,73(
Total liabilities and equity 1,73: 5,81¢ 6,101 6,617 (11,269 9,00(




CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents — — 13< 54¢ — 682
Trade receivables - third party and affiliates — — 297 694 (220 871
Non-trade receivables, net 29 383 1,651 562 (2,390 23t
Inventories, net — — 187 59C (65) 712
Deferred income taxes — — 102 17 (16) 104
Marketable securities, at fair value — — 64 — — 64
Other assets — 6 18 45 (34) 35
Total current assets 29 38¢ 2,45¢ 2,457 (2,625 2,70z
Investments in affiliates 1,31¢ 2,97¢ 1,53( 53t (5,539 824
Property, plant and equipment, net — — 73t 2,53¢ — 3,26¢
Deferred income taxes — 17 382 22 — 421
Other assets — 1,90: 13z 29¢€ (1,987) 344
Goodwill — — 29¢ 462 — 76C
Intangible assets, net — — 69 12¢ — 197
Total assets 1,34« 5,28 5,59¢ 6,43¢ (10,14¢) 8,51¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current
installments of long-term debt - third party
and affiliates — 1,49: 17¢ 131 (1,655 144
Trade payables - third party and affiliates — — 25¢ 53t (220 673
Other liabilities — 63 35¢ 50¢€ (383 53¢
Deferred income taxes — 1€ — 17 (16) 17
Income taxes payable — — 384 35 (407) 12
Total current liabilities — 1,571 1,171 1,22¢ (2,58)) 1,38t
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt — 2,37: 834 1,65(C (1,987 2,87:
Deferred income taxes — — — 92 — 92
Uncertain tax positions 3 1€ 27 13€ — 182
Benefit obligations — — 1,34¢ 14¢€ — 1,492
Other liabilities — 13 99 1,05¢ (14) 1,15¢
Total noncurrent liabilities 3 2,401 2,30¢ 3,07¢ (1,997 5,79:
Total Celanese Corporation stockholders’
equity 1,341 1,31¢ 2,122 2,131 (5,56¢) 1,341
Noncontrolling interests — — — — — —
Total equity 1,341 1,31¢ 2,122 2,131 (5,56¢) 1,341
Total liabilities and equity 1,344 5,28 5,59¢ 6,43¢ (10,146 8,51¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2012

period

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 7 (200 39¢ 48¢ (70) 722
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — 270 (197) — (3617)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (23 — — (23
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 1 — — 1
Deferred proceeds from Kelsterbach plant
relocation — — — — — —
Capital expenditures related to Kelsterbac
plant relocation — — — (49 — (49
Return of capital from subsidiary — — — — — —
Contributions to subsidiary — — 3 — 3 —
Intercompany loan receipts (disbursements) — 5 (53 — 48 —
Other, net — — 9 (59 — (68)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities — 5 (257) (299 51 (500
Financing Activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — 53 5 3 (53 2
Proceeds from short-term borrowings — — — 71 — 71
Repayments of short-term borrowings — — — (71) — (72)
Proceeds from long-term debt — 50C 50 — — 55C
Repayments of long-term debt — (419 (20 (70 5 (489)
Refinancing costs — 9 — — — 9
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees (45) — — — — (45)
Dividends to parent — (35) (35) — 70 —
Contributions from parent — — — 3 ©)] —
Stock option exercises 62 — — — — 62
Series A common stock dividends (43 — — — — 43
Preferred stock dividends — — — — — —
Return of capital to parent — — — — — —
Other, net 29 — @) (€N} — 21
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 3 9t 3 (71) 19 49
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — 6 — 6
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 10 — 142 12t — 2717
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnir
period — — 13¢ 54¢ — 682
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of
10 — 27t 674 — 95¢
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 41 (127) 44¢ 36¢ (90 63¢
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — (24%) (209 — (349
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (8 — — (8)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 1 5 — 6
Deferred proceeds from Kelsterbach plant
relocation — — — 15¢ — 15¢
Capital expenditures related to Kelsterbac
plant relocation — — — (209 — (204)
Return of capital from subsidiary — 10C — — (200 —
Contributions to subsidiary — (200 — — 10C —
Intercompany loan receipts (disbursements) — 5 (307) — 30z —
Other, net — — (15 (30 — (45)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities — 5 474 (274) 302 (447
Financing Activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — 307 (5) (8) (307) 13
Proceeds from short-term borrowings — — — 70 — 7C
Repayments of short-term borrowings — — — (73 — (73
Proceeds from long-term debt — 40( — 11 — 411
Repayments of long-term debt — (532) 9 (55) 5 (597
Refinancing costs — 8 — — — (8
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees (3D — — — — (32)
Dividends to parent — (45) (45) — 90 —
Contributions from parent — — 10C — (100 —
Stock option exercises 20 — — — — 2C
Series A common stock dividends (34 — — — — (39
Preferred stock dividends — — — — — —
Return of capital to parent — — — (200 10C —
Other, net 4 — (8) — — (4
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (42) 12z 33 (155) (212 (259)
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — 2 — 2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents — — 5 (63 — (58
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnir
period — — 12¢ 61z — 74C
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of
— — 13: 54¢ — 682

period
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Parent Subsidiary Non-
Guarantor Issuer Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
(In'$ millions)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 44 (39 17¢ 44F (172 452
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant ar
equipment — — (89) (119 — (207)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — — (46) — — (46)
Proceeds from sale of businesses and as
net — — 4 22 — 26
Deferred proceeds from Kelsterbach plant
relocation — — — — — —
Capital expenditures related to Kelsterbac
plant relocation — — — (312 — (312
Return of capital from subsidiary — — — — — —
Contributions to subsidiary — — — — — —
Intercompany loan receipts (disbursements) — 5 (337) — 332 —
Other, net — — (6) (22) — 27
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities — 5 473) (424 332 (560)
Financing Activities
Short-term borrowings (repayments), net — 37C 3 (34 (370 (32)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings — — — 70 — 7C
Repayments of short-term borrowings — — — (55) — (55)
Proceeds from long-term debt — 60C — — — 60C
Repayments of long-term debt — (827) @) (101 38 (897)
Refinancing costs — (24) — — — (24)
Purchases of treasury stock, including
related fees (48 — — — — (48
Dividends to parent — (86) (86) — 172 —
Contributions from parent — — — — — —
Stock option exercises 14 — — — — 14
Series A common stock dividends (28) — — — — (28
Preferred stock dividends 3 — — — — (©)]
Return of capital to parent — — — — — —
Other, net 16 — (2 — — 14
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (49 33 (92) (120 (160 (388
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash
equivalents — — — (18) — (18
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (5) — (392 (117 — (519
Cash and cash equivalents as of beginnir
period 5 — 52C 72¢ — 1,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents as of end of
— — 12¢ 61z — 74C

period




30. Subsequent Events

On February 6, 2013 , the Company declared a qiyadash dividend of $0.075 per share on its Comi@tmtk amounting t o $12 million .
The cash dividend was for the period from Novenihe?012 to January 31, 2013 and will be paid orriraaty 28, 2013 to holders of record as
of February 19, 2013 .
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibits will be furnished upon request for a noatifee, limited to reasonable expenses.

Exhibit Number Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

10.1%

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatfmor (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1he Annual Report on For
10-K filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

Third Amended and Restated By-laws, effectivef October 23, 2008 (incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Octobey 2Q08).

Form of certificate of Series A Common Stadkcdrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the iRegtion Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-120187) filed with the SEC on JanuhBy 2005).

Indenture, dated September 24, 2010, by amhgri@elanese US Holdings LLC, the guarantors ghsxeto, and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdtg reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the
SEC on September 29, 2010).

Indenture, dated as of May 6, 2011, by andiéetn Celanese US Holdings LLC, Celanese Corporatignwells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as trustee (incorporatededgrence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report omi€-K filed with the SEC on
May 6, 2011).

First Supplemental Indenture, 5.875% Senidebldue 2021, dated as of May 6, 2011, by and leet@elanese US Holdings
LLC, the guarantors party thereto and Wells FargokB National Association, as trustee (incorporaedeference to Exhibit 4.3
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with theGS&n May 6, 2011).

Second Supplemental Indenture, 4.625% SerotedN\due 2022, dated as of November 13, 2012, dpatween Celanese US
Holdings LLC, the guarantors party thereto and ¥EHrgo Bank, National Association, as trusteeofiparated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K fileith the SEC on November 13, 2012).

Credit Agreement, dated April 2, 2007, amG@e¢anese Holdings LLC, Celanese US Holdings LIb@,dubsidiaries of Celanese
US Holdings LLC from time to time party theretotamrowers, the Lenders party thereto, Deutsche BahkNew York Branch,
as administrative agent and as collateral agenttilMeynch Capital Corporation as syndication agegsBN AMRO Bank N.V.,
Bank of America, N.A., Citibank NA, and JP Morgaha&e Bank NA, as co-documentation agents (incorpaiay reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on May 28, 2010).

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, datate 30, 2009, among Celanese US Holdings LLGl#ajority Lenders under
the Revolving Facility (incorporated by referenoeEtxhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-lédiwith the SEC on July 1,
2009).

Amendment Agreement, dated September@9d) among Celanese Corporation, Celanese US HaldibG, certain subsidiaries
of Celanese US Holdings LLC, the lenders partyeterDeutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as admiiiste agent and as
collateral agent, and Deutsche Bank Securities Bh@ Banc of Americas Securities LLC as joint leadregers and joint book
runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with theGG&n September 29, 2010).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreemengddaeptember 29, 2010 among Celanese Corporatitemése US Holdings LLC,
the subsidiaries of Celanese US Holdings LLC franetto time party thereto as borrowers and guarani@eutsche Bank AG,
New York Branch, as administrative agent and cetkltagent, Deutsche Bank Securities LLC and Badawericas Securitie
LLC as joint lead arrangers and joint book runneiSBC Securities (USA) Inc., JPMorgan Chase BanRk, Nand The Royal
Bank of Scotland PLC, as Co-Documentation Agehts ather lenders party thereto, and certain othents for such lenders
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on ®egber 29, 2010).
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10.1(d)

10.2%

10.2(a)t

10.2(b)%

10.3%

10.3(a)t

10.3(b)t

10.3(c)F

10.3(d)t

10.3(e)t

10.3(f)1

10.3(g)t

10.3(h)t

10.4%

10.4(a)t

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated 2, 2007, by and among Celanese Holdings LCElanese US Holdings LLC,
certain subsidiaries of Celanese US Holdings LLE& Brutsche Bank AG, New York Branch (incorporatgdédference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on May 28, 2010).

Celanese Corporation 2004 Deferred Compenstan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10t@the Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-120187) filed with theGG&n January 3, 2005).

Amendment to Celanese Corporation 20Gériel Compensation Plan (incorporated by referém&sxhibit 10.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 7).

Form of 2007 Deferral Agreement betweelafiese Corporation and award recipient, (incotpdrhy reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the(S&n April 3, 2007).

Celanese Corporation 2004 Stock Incentige Bhcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 & Amnual Report on Form 10-K
filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreen@or employees) between Celanese Corporatiorasraatd recipient (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8(a) to the Annual Re¢jpor Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 1012).

Form of Amendment to Nonqualified Stoghtion Agreement (for employees) between Celanespdation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5(b) te fimnnual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SECRebruary 12, 2010).

Form of Amendment Two to Nonqualified &t®ption Agreement (for executive officers) betwézelanese Corporation and
award recipient (incorporated by reference to ExHi®.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filedtwihe SEC on January 26,
2009).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@or non-employee directors) between Celanesp@ation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8(d) te fimnual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SECRebruary 11, 2011).

Form of Performance-Based Restrictedk3tit Agreement between Celanese Corporation aratdarecipient (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the SEC on May 28, 2010).

Form of Performance-Vesting Restrictedc&tUnit Award Agreement between Celanese Corpmraind award recipient,
together with a schedule identifying substantialigntical agreements between Celanese Corporatideach of its executive
officers identified thereon (incorporated by refeze to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Forik fled with the SEC on
January 26, 2009).

Performance Unit Award Agreement, datedddnber 11, 2008, between Celanese CorporatioDavid N. Weidman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onuay 26, 2009).

Form of Tima&/esting Cash Award Agreement (for employees) betw@elanese Corporation and award recipient, togettik a
schedule identifying substantially identical agreats between the Company and each of its execoftieers identified thereon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onulay 26, 2009).

Celanese Corporation 2008 Deferred Compenstan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11@.éhe Annual Report on Form
10-K filed on February 29, 2008).

Amendment Number One to Celanese Corporation 2@98r2d Compensation Plan (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.2 t
the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed whith 8EC on April 23, 2009).
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10.5%

10.5(a)t

10.5(b)t

10.5(c)t

10.5(d)t

10.5(e)t

10.5(f)%

10.5(g)F

10.5(h)t

10.5()t

10.5()%

10.5(K)

10.5()F

10.5(m)+

10.5(n)t

Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentlae BEncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 te Registration Statement on Form
S-8 filed with the SEC on April 23, 2009).

Form of 2009 Time-Vesting Restricted &tdoit Award Agreement between Celanese Corporaimhaward recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to theaferly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJatty 29, 2009).

Form of 2009 Performance-Vesting RegtiGtock Unit Award Agreement between Celanese @atijpn and award recipient,
together with a schedule identifying substantiadigntical agreements between Celanese Corporatibeach of its executive
officers identified thereon (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.6 to the Quarterly Report on FAi9rQ filed with the SEC on
July 29, 2009).

Form of 2009 Nonqualified Stock Option @& Agreement between Celanese Corporation anddaweipient, together with a
schedule identifying substantially identical agreens between Celanese Corporation and each ofataitive officers identified
thereon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with ®EC on July 29, 2009).

Form of Long-Term Incentive Cash Awarddgment, together with a schedule identifying safitlly identical agreements
between the Company and each of its executiveasffidentified thereon (incorporated by referemcEsthibit 10.8 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJuity 29, 2009).

Time-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Agreem) dated April 23, 2009, between Celanese Cotiparand Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to @hearterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SECJaity 29, 2009).

Form of 2010 Performance-Vesting RestdcStock Unit Award Agreement) between Celanes@@ation and award recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on ®ember 13, 2010).

Form of 2010 Time-Vesting Restricted &tooit Award Agreement between Celanese Corporaimhaward recipient
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ther€nt Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on ®ember 13, 2010).

Form of 2010 Nonqualified Stock Option @ Agreement between Celanese Corporation anddaweipient (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2010).

Form of Time-Vesting Restricted Stock thwvard Agreement (for non-employee directors) lesw Celanese Corporation and
award recipient (incorporated by reference to ExHi.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filgith the SEC on July 22,
2011).

Form of 2011 Performance-Vesting Restdcbtock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by mefiee to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC ompteenber 13, 2011).

Form of 2011 Time-Vesting Restricted &tbmit Award Agreement (incorporated by referene&xhibit 10.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on Septenti®r2011).

Form of 2011 Nonqualified Stock Option & Agreement (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi8 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2011).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Awardraement for Chief Executive Officer (incorporatadreference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with theGS&n July 25, 2012).

Form of Time-Vesting Restricted Stock AsvAgreement for Chief Executive Officer (incorptad by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with ®EC on July 25, 2012).
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10.5(0)%

10.5(p)+

10.5(q)F

10.5(nNt

10.6%

10.6(a)*+
10.6(b)*+

10.7%

10.8%

10.9%

10.10(a)t

10.10(b)t

10.10(c)%

10.10(d)¥

Form of Performance-Vesting RestricteatitUnit Award Agreement for Chief Executive Offidgncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10H8df with the SEC on July 25, 2012).

Form of Amendment to 2010 and 2011 Nolifigrh Stock Option Award Agreements, dated Ap#&l, 2012, together with a
schedule identifying each of the executive offiogith substantially identical agreements (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit
10.6 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedhwthie SEC on July 25, 2012).

Form of Amendment to 2010 and 2011 Tinestihg Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreements, da&tpril 18, 2012, together
with a schedule identifying each of the executiffecers with substantially identical agreementsc@rporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10H8df with the SEC on July 25, 2012).

Form of Amendment to 2010 and 2011 Peréorce-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreeragdated April 18, 2012,
together with a schedule identifying each of thecerive officers with substantially identical agremts (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Quarterly ReporfForm 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 25, 2012).

Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentlaa,”as Amended and Restated, April 19, 2012 (paated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed witle ISEC on April 23, 2012).

Form of 2012 Tim&esting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem
Form of 2012 Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agresnt

Celanese Corporation 2009 Employee Stookhase Program (incorporated by reference to Extibito the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed on April 23, 2009).

Executive Severance Benefits Plan, datgd2lyl2010 (incorporated by reference to ExhibitLl10 the Current Report on Form
8-K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2010).

Summary of pension benefits for David N. &iiean (updated to include revisions effective aftersummary was first filed as
Exhibit 10.34 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Kdilwith the SEC on March 31, 2005) (incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit
10.13 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed witle SEC on February 11, 2011).

Offer Letter, dated February 25, 20@wken Celanese Corporation and Gjon N. Nivicgjricorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedhwthie SEC on April 28, 2009).

Restrictive Covenant Agreement, datqde®eber 7, 2011, between Celanese CorporationandslS. Alder (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current ReporFomrm 8-K filed with the SEC on September 13, 2011).

Letter Agreement, dated November 4, 2B&iween Celanese Corporation and Mark C. Robo(porated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on November 7, 2011).

Agreement and Amendment, dated Marcl2@¥2, between Celanese Corporation and David Ndiwén (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q filed with the SEC on April 24, 2012).

10.10(e)** Agreement and General Release, dated June 12, B@iZen Celanese Corporation and Jacquelyn H..

10.10(f)t

Offer Letter, dated September 8, 20E2vben Celanese Corporation and Lori A. Johnstwo(porated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filedwithie SEC on October 23, 2012).
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10.11%

10.11(a)t

10.11(b)¥

10.11(c)t

10.11(d)%

10.12%

10.13*f

10.16

10.17

10.18t

10.18(a)

10.18(b)

Change in Control Agreement, dated Apr2d08, between Celanese Corporation and David Ndan, together with a
schedule identifying other substantially identiagfleements between Celanese Corporation and e#tsmafme executive office
identified thereon and identifying the materiafeliEnces between each of those agreements aniteth€hanged of Control
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibifl10.the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Aptil2008).

Change in Control Agreement, dated Ma&3008, between Celanese Corporation and Christaffhdensen (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 23, 2008).

Form of 2010 Change in Control Agreenfitiveen Celanese Corporation and participantthegevith a schedule of
substantially identical agreements between Cela@esgoration and the individuals identified therdmtorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly Report on FormQ@Hed with the SEC on July 29, 2010).

Form of Amendment No. 1 to 2010 Form of Changeamtfl Agreement between Celanese Corporation artitjpant, togethe
with a schedule of substantially identical agreetmbetween Celanese Corporation and the individdalstified thereon
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to theaferly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC@ctober 26, 2011).

Form of 2012 Change in Control Agreenfexttveen Celanese Corporation and participantthegevith a schedule identifying
each of the executive officers with substantiadlgritical agreements (incorporated by referencexhibii 10.5 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on July 2312).

Form of Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back Agremt between Celanese Corporation and award ratifiecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporFormrm 8-K filed with the SEC on January 26, 2009).

Summary of Nomployee Director Compensati

Share Purchase and Transfer Agreement atien$ent Agreement, dated August 19, 2005 betwedar@se Europe Holding
GmbH & Co. KG, as purchaser, and Paulson & Co, bred Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLG;tean behalf of its
own and with respect to shares owned by the investifiunds and separate accounts managed by liteaeliers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Reporfonm 10-K filed with the SEC on February 11, 2011).

Translation of Letter of Intent, dated Nob@m29, 2006, among Celanese AG, Ticona GmbH aapldfr AG (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed November 29, 2006).

Purchase Agreement dated as of Decemb@0@8,by and among Celanese Ltd. and certain affiteates named therein and
Advent Oxo (Cayman) Limited, Oxo Titan US Corpowsati Drachenfelssee 520. V V GMBH and Drachenfel&&de V V
GMBH (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on Februaty 2007).

First Amendment to Purchase Agreemesidda¢bruary 28, 2007, by and among Advent Oxea @aylrtd., Oxea Corporation,
Drachenfelssee 520. V V GmbH, Drachenfelssee 521.G3MmbH, Celanese Ltd., Ticona Polymers Inc. anth@zse Chemicals
Europe GmbH (incorporated by reference to ExhiBi6to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed oayM, 2007).

Second Amendment to Purchase Agreemfadtiee as of July 1, 2007 by and among Advent GRegman Ltd., Oxea
Corporation, Oxea Holdings GmbH, Oxea DeutschlantbB, Oxea Bishop, LLC, Oxea Japan KK, Oxea UK L@&El|anese Ltd.,
and Celanese Chemicals Europe GmbH (incorporatedfbgence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Reporf-orm 10Q filed with
the SEC on October 24, 2007).
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12.1* Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings teeHiCharge

21.1* List of subsidiaries of Celanese Corporal

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouring of Celanese Corporation, KPMG LI

23.2* Consent of Independent Auditors of CTE PetrochelmiCampany, BDO USA, LLI

23.3* Consent of Independent Auditors of CTE PetrochelmiCampany, Deloitte & Touche LL

23.4* Consent of Independent Auditors of NatioM&thanol Company, BDO Dr. Mohamed Amri & Co.
23.5* Consent of Independent Auditors of National Metha@mmpany, Deloitte & Touche Bakr Abulkhair & (
24.1* Power of Attorney (included on the signatpege of this Annual Report on Form K-

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer murant to Section 302 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pswant to Section 302 of the Sarba@edey Act of 200z

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer murant to Section 906 of the Sarbafedey Act of 2002

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer psrant to Section 906 of the Sarba@edey Act of 200z

99.1* Audited financial statements as of Decen@igr2012 and 2011 and for each of the years ithitee year period ended December

31, 2012 for CTE Petrochemicals Company.

99.2* Audited financial statements as of Decenfifer2012 and 2011 and for each of the years ithitee year period ended December
31, 2012 for National Methanol Company.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docunt:

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docur

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

*  Filed herewith.

t Indicates a management contract or compensal@nyop arrangement.

t  Portions of this exhibit have been omittedspant to a request for confidential treatmentfikéth the SEC under Rule 24b-2 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 19034, as amended. Wttenl portions of this exhibit have been sepayditdd with the SEC.
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Exhibit 10.6(a)

Celanese

CELANESE CORPORATION
2009 GLOBAL INCENTIVE PLAN

2012 FORM OF

TIME-VESTING RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT
DATED <<Grant Date>>

<<NAME>>

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Ceta@@sporation 2009 Global Incentive Plan, you hasen awarded Time-
Vesting Restricted Stock Units, subject to therietidns described in this Agreement:

RSU Award

<<Units>> Units

This grant is made pursuant to the TiMesting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement datadof <<Grant Date>
between Celanese and you, which Agreement is atthlchreto and made a part hereof.
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CELANESE CORPORATION
2009 GLOBAL INCENTIVE PLAN

TIME-VESTING RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This Time-Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreent (the “Agreement”) is made and entered intofas<Grant
Date>> (the “Grant Date”), by and between Celaiamgoration, a Delaware corporation (the “Compangiid <<NAME>> (the
“Participant”). Capitalized terms used, but notesthise defined, herein shall have the meaningshestto such terms in the
Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentive Plaraasnded from time to time, the “2009 Plan”).

1. Time-Vesting RSU Award: In order to encourage Participant’s contributionhe successful performance of
the Company, the Company hereby grants to Particgsof the Grant Date, pursuant to the termbeP009 Plan and this
Agreement, an award (the “Award”) of time-vestingsRicted Stock Units (“RSUS”) representing thétigp receive an equal
number of Common Shares upon vesting. The Partitipareby acknowledges and accepts such Award tingoterms and subje
to the conditions, restrictions and limitations tzoned in this Agreement and the 2009 Plan.

2. Time-Based Vesting Subject to Section 4 and Section 7 of this AgreetyNumber_Units» RSUs shall vest on
<<vesting 1>>; «Number_Units» RSUs shall vest ormesting 2>>; and «Number_Units» RSUs shall vestyasting 3>. Each
such date shall be referred to as a “Vesting D&ath period between the Grant Date and a Vestatg Ehall be referred to as a
“Vesting Period”.

3. [Reserved]

4. Effects of Certain Events Prior to Vesting:

(@) Upon the termination of the Participant’'s employti@nthe Company without Cause or due to the
Participant’s Retirement, death or Disability, anated portion of the RSUs that remain unvestebwegt in an amount
equal to (i) the unvested RSUs in each VestingoBeriultiplied by (ii) a fraction, the numeratorwhich is the number of
complete and partial calendar months from the Geté to the date of termination without Causeus t the
Participant’'s Retirement, death or Disability, ahd denominator of which is the number of compéetd partial calendar
months in each applicable Vesting Period, suchymbtb be rounded up to the nearest whole numbemy such case
such prorated number of unvested RSUs that vestdardance with the preceding sentence will beestilhp any
applicable taxes under Section 8 upon such vestingich may be rounded up in each case to avaitiftmal shares, and
will be settled in accordance with the provisioh§ection 5 following the applicable Vesting Daje(s

(b) To the extent permitted by applicable country,estatprovince law, as consideration for the vesting
provisions upon Retirement contained in Section, &(@on Retirement, the Participant shall entey antleparture and
general release of claims agreement with the Coynheat includes two-year noncompetition and noriegation
covenants in a form acceptable to the Company.

(c) The remaining unvested portion of the Award shallomediately forfeited and cancelled without
consideration as of the date of the Participaetmination of employment without Cause or due tsoRlarticipant’s
Retirement, death or Disability.
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(d)  Upon the termination of the Participant’s employtrfen any other reason, the unvested portion of the
Award shall be immediately forfeited and cancelddthout consideration as of the date of the Paudiot’'s termination of
employment.

5. Settlement of RSUs Subject to Sections 4, 7 and 8 of this AgreemtastCompany shall deliver to the Participant
(or to a Company-designated brokerage firm or pdministrator) as soon as administratively prabtedollowing the applicable
Vesting Date (but in no event later than 2 Y2 moafter the applicable Vesting Date), in complettement of all RSUs vesting
on such Vesting Date, a number of Common Shared ¢mthe number of RSUs vesting on such VestingeDa

6. Rights as a Stockholder The Participant shall have no voting, dividenatirer rights as a stockholder with respec
to the Award until the RSUs have vested and Com8tmares have been delivered pursuant to this Agmeteme

7. Change in Control; Dissolution:

(@) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreernt® the contrary, upon the occurrence of a Chamge
Control with respect to any unvested RSUs grantedyant to this Agreement that have not previobslyn forfeited:

(1) If (i) a Participant’s rights to the unvessteortion of the Award are not adversely affected i
connection with the Change in Control, or, if achedy affected, a substitute award with an equivtajen
greater) economic value and no less favorablengstnditions is granted to the Participant up@n th
occurrence of a Change in Control, and (ii) thdi€ipant's employment is terminated by the Compan:
its successor) without Cause within two years foilg the Change in Control, then the unvested puorti
of the Award (or, as applicable, the substituteraljvahall immediately vest and a number of Common
Shares equal to the number of unvested RSUs ghdklivered to the Participant within thirty (3Gyd
following the date of termination, subject to theyisions of Section 8.

(2) If a Participant’s right to the unvestedtmmr of the Award is adversely affected in
connection with the Change in Control and a sulistiaward is not made pursuant to Section 7(a)(1)
above, then upon the occurrence of a Change inr@ptite unvested portion of the Award shall
immediately vest and a number of Common Shared égjtize number of unvested RSUs shall be
delivered to the Participant within thirty (30) dafpllowing the Change in Control, subject to the
provisions of Section 8; and

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemt the contrary, in the event of a corporate
dissolution of the Company that is taxed underi8e@31 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asma®d, then in
accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.48gH%4)(ix)(A), this Agreement shall terminate aady RSUs granted
pursuant to this Agreement that have not previobsin forfeited shall immediately become Commornr&hand shall be
delivered to the Participant within thirty (30) dafpllowing such dissolution.

8. Income and Other Taxes The Company shall not deliver Common Sharesspeet of any RSUs unless and until
the Participant has made arrangements satisfaitaie Committee to satisfy applicable withholdiag obligations for US
federal, state, and local income taxes (or thadareounterpart thereof) and applicable employnt@xes. Unless otherwise
permitted by the Committee, withholding shall bieetfed at the minimum statutory rates by withhadRSUs in connection with
the
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vesting and/or settlement of RSUs. The Participakhowledges that the Company shall have the tigtieduct any taxes
required to be withheld by law in connection witle delivery of Common Shares issued in respeatyiasted RSUs from any
amounts payable by it to the Participant (inclugdinghout limitation, future cash wages). The Raptant acknowledges and
agrees that amounts withheld by the Company faesanay be less than amounts actually owed for faxéise Participant in
respect of the Award. Any vested RSUs shall beecédld in the Companyrecords as issued on the respective dates ainicsise
forth in this Agreement, irrespective of whethelivday of such Common Shares is pending the Paditi's satisfaction of his or
her withholding tax obligations.

9. Securities Laws: The Company may impose such restrictions, camtlitor limitations as it determines appropriate
as to the timing and manner of any resales by #éingcipbant or other subsequent transfers by thedqaant of any Common
Shares issued as a result of the vesting or settieaf the RSUs, including without limitation (&strictions under an insider
trading policy, and (b) restrictions as to the aka specified brokerage firm for such resalestbetransfers. Upon the
acquisition of any Common Shares pursuant to tetéingor settlement of the RSUs, the Participafitméke or enter into such
written representations, warranties and agreenaantise Company may reasonably request in ordembply with applicable
securities laws or with this Agreement and the 2B&. All accounts in which such Common Sharesala or any certificates
for Common Shares shall be subject to such stogfeaorders and other restrictions as the Compaaydeem advisable under
the rules, regulations and other requirementseStcurities and Exchange Commission, any stodkagge or quotation system
upon which the Common Shares are then listed aeeguand any applicable federal or state secutaigsand the Company may
cause a legend or legends to be put on any sutificeges (or other appropriate restrictions andfotations to be associated with
any accounts in which such Common Shares are tefdake appropriate reference to such restrictions.

10. Non-Transferability of Award : The RSUs may not be assigned, alienated, pledgedhed, sold or otherwise
transferred or encumbered by the Participant dtieer by will or by the laws of descent and disttitw, and any such purported
assignment, alienation, pledge, attachment, salesfer or encumbrance shall be void and unenfblteegainst the Company;
provided, that the Participant may designate afizagy, on a form provided by the Company, to ieeeany portion of the Awa
payable hereunder following the Participant’'s death

11. Other Agreements: Subject to Sections 11(a) and 11(b) of this Agrest, this Agreement and the 2009 Plan
constitute the entire understanding between thiéicRanmt and the Company regarding the Award, andpmior agreements,
commitments or negotiations concerning the Awaedsaiperseded.

(@) The Participant acknowledges that as a conditidgh@aeceipt of the Award, the Participant:

(1) shall have delivered to the Company an ebeeccopy of this Agreement;

(2) shall be subject to the Company’s stock ogtmip guidelines;

(3) shall be subject to policies and agreemadtpted by the Company from time to time, and
applicable laws and regulations, requiring the yepent by the Participant of incentive compensatioder certai
circumstances, without any further act or deedonisent of the Participant; and

(4) shall have delivered to the Company an eeeccopy of the Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back
Agreement (if a current version of such Long-Tenoentive Claw-Back Agreement is not already on &k

determined by the Committee in its sole discreti&ioy purposes hereof, “Long-Term Incentive ClaveiBa
Agreement” means
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an agreement between the Company and the Participaociated with the grant of long-term incentioEthe
Company, which contains terms, conditions, restm& and provisions regarding one or more of (i)
noncompetition by the Participant with the Compaamyd its customers and clients; (ii) nonsolicitatemnd non-
hiring by the Participant of the Company’s empla/dermer employees or consultants; (iii) mainteaof
confidentiality of the Company’s and/or clientsfarmation, including intellectual property; (iv)
nondisparagement of the Company; and (v) such otla¢ters deemed necessary, desirable or appropyidhe
Company for such an agreement in view of the rights benefits conveyed in connection with an award.

(b) If the Participant is a non-resident of the U.Beré may be an addendum containing special terths an
conditions applicable to awards in the ParticipaoBuntry. The issuance of the Award to any suctidfzant is
contingent upon the Participant executing and nitgrany such addendum in the manner directeddZtmpany.

12. Not a Contract for Employment; No Acquired Rights; Agreement Changes Nothing in the 2009 Plan, this
Agreement or any other instrument executed in catimewith the Award shall confer upon the Partigipany right to continue
the Company's employ or service nor limit in anywee Company's right to terminate the Particigagthployment at any time
for any reason. The grant of RSUs hereunder, apdudnre grant of awards to the Participant unter2009 Plan, is entirely
voluntary and at the complete and sole discretidhe@Company. Neither the grant of these RSUsangrfuture grant of awards
by the Company shall be deemed to create any ¢ioiigeo grant any further awards, whether or nahsa reservation is expres
stated at the time of such grants. The Companyheasght, at any time and for any reason, to amsuaspend or terminate the
2009 Plan; provided, however, that no such amentirmegpension, or termination shall adversely attee Participant’s rights
hereunder.

13. Severability : In the event that any provision of this Agreemierdeclared to be illegal, invalid or otherwise
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictBarch provision shall be reformed, if possiblethis extent necessary to rende
legal, valid and enforceable, or otherwise deleaed, the remainder of this Agreement shall notflecged except to the extent
necessary to reform or delete such illegal, invafidnenforceable provision.

14. Further Assurances: Each party shall cooperate and take such actionay be reasonably requested by either
party hereto in order to carry out the provisiond purposes of this Agreement.

15. Binding Effect : The Award and this Agreement shall inure to thadjit of and be binding upon the parties heretc
and their respective permitted heirs, beneficiagascessors and assigns.

16. Electronic Delivery : By executing this Agreement, the Participant bgreonsents to the delivery of any and all
information (including, without limitation, infornmi@n required to be delivered to the Participanspant to applicable securities
laws), in whole or in part, regarding the Compang ds subsidiaries, the 2009 Plan, and the Awackectronic mail, the
Company’s or a plan administrator’s web site, tieotmeans of electronic delivery.

17. Personal Data: By accepting the Award under this Agreement,Ragticipant hereby consents to the Company’s
use, dissemination and disclosure of any infornmgpiertaining to the Participant that the Compangmaines to be necessary or
desirable for the implementation, administratiod amnagement of the 2009 Plan.
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18. Governing Law : The Award and this Agreement shall be interpreted construed in accordance with the laws o
the state of Delaware and applicable federal law.

19. Restricted Stock Units Subject to Plan By entering into this Agreement the Participagres and acknowledges
that the Participant has received and read a cbiine@009 Plan and the 2009 Plan's prospectusRBus and the Common
Shares issued upon vesting of such RSUs are subjdet 2009 Plan, which is hereby incorporateddbgrence. In the event of
any conflict between any term or provision of tAgreement and a term or provision of the 2009 Rlam applicable terms and
provisions of the 2009 Plan shall govern and pievai

20. Validity of Agreement : This Agreement shall be valid, binding and effezupon the Company on the Grant D
However, the RSUs granted pursuant to this Agreéstall be forfeited by the Participant and thigégment shall have no force
and effect if it is not duly executed by the Papémt and delivered to the Company on or before alicity Date>>.

21. Headings: The headings preceding the text of the sectiensdf are inserted solely for convenience of refese
and shall not constitute a part of this Agreemeot,shall they affect its meaning, constructioreifect.

22. Compliance with Section 409A of the Internal Revenel Code: Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement
to the contrary, this Agreement will be interpreted applied so that the Agreement does not faiid¢et, and is operated in
accordance with, the requirements of Section 40BheInternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendetthenregulations
thereunder. The Company reserves the right to éhtirggterms of this Agreement and the 2009 Plamowttthe Participant’s
consent to the extent necessary or desirable tplygomith the requirements of Internal Revenue C8detion 409A, the Treasury
regulations and other guidance thereunder. Furith@gcordance with the restrictions provided bgaBury Regulation Section
1.409A-3(j)(2), any subsequent amendments to thieément or any other agreement, or the entertogintermination of any
other agreement, affecting the RSUs provided by/Algireement shall not modify the time or form @&fuiance of the RSUs set
forth in this Agreement. In addition, if the Paigiant is a “specified employe&lithin the meaning of Section 409A, as determ
by the Company, any payment made in connection tv@hParticipant’s separation from service shatllb@made earlier than six
(6) months and one day after the date of such agparfrom service to the extent required by Secti69A.

23. Definitions : The following terms shall have the following mesags for purposes of this Agreement,
notwithstanding any contrary definition in the 208@n:

(@) “ Cause’ means (i) the Participant's willful failure tonferm the Participant's duties to the Company (othe
than as a result of total or partial incapacity tluphysical or mental iliness) for a period of&fys following written
notice by the Company to Participant of such fail{ii) conviction of, or a plea of nolo contendése(x) a felony under
the laws of the United States or any state theyeahy similar criminal act in a jurisdiction outsithe United States or (
a crime involving moral turpitude, (iii) the Parpant's willful malfeasance or willful misconduchwh is demonstrably
injurious to the Company or its affiliates, (iv)yaact of fraud by the Participant, (v) any matevialation of the
Company's business conduct policy, (vi) any mateitdation of the Company's policies concerningdssment or
discrimination, (vii) the Participant's conductttbauses material harm to the business reputatitiedCompany or its
affiliates, or (viii) the Participant's breach afyaconfidentiality, intellectual property, non-coeatjpion or non-solicitation
provisions applicable to the Participant underltbeg-Term Incentive Claw-Back Agreement or any otigreement
between the Participant and the Company.
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(b) “ Change in Control of the Company shall mean, in accordance witha$uey Regulation Section 1.409A-
3(i)(5), any of the following:

(i) any one person, or more than one person@ets a group, acquires ownership of stock of the
Company that, together with stock held by suchqres group, constitutes more than 50% of the tadtihg
power of the stock of the Company; or

(i) a majority of members of the Board is reggd during any 12-month period by directors whose
appointment or election is not endorsed by a mgjofithe members of the Board prior to the datthef
appointment or election; or

(i) any one person, or more than one perstéim@@s a group, acquires (or has acquired duhad.-
month period ending on the date of the most re@eqisition by such person or persons) assetsthiem
Company that have a total gross fair market vatpskto 50% or more of all of the assets of the Gamy
immediately prior to such acquisition or acquigigo

(c) “ Disability " has the same meaning as “Disability” in the CelmCorporation 2008 Deferred
Compensation Plan or such other meaning as detedniy the Committee in its sole discretion, proditieat in all event
a “Disability” under this Agreement shall constéuw “disability” within the meaning of Treasury Regfion Section
1.409A-3(i)(4).

(d) *“ Retirement of the Participant shall mean a voluntary sepamétiom service on or after the date when
Participant is both 55 years of age and has tersy#aervice with the Company, as determined byGbmpany in its
discretion based on payroll records. Retiremenit sbainclude voluntary separation from servicenhich the Company
could have terminated the Participant’s employnfienCause.

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thiément to be executed on its behalf by its duliiaized
officer and the Participant has also executedAbgigement in duplicate.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

This Agreement has been accepted and agreed teelwntersigned Participant.

PARTICIPANT

By:

Name: <<NAME>>
Employee ID: <<Personnel Number>>
Date:
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Exhibit 10.6(b)

Celanese

CELANESE CORPORATION
2009 GLOBAL INCENTIVE PLAN

2012 FORM OF

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT
DATED <<Grant Date>>

<<NAME>>

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Ceta@esporation 2009 Global Incentive Plan, you haeen awarded Nonqualifi
Stock Options with respect to Celanese Common Stadlect to the restrictions described in thise&gnent:

Stock Option Award

<<# Shares>> Shares

This grant is made pursuant to the NonqualifiecStoption Award Agreement dated as of

<<Grant Date>>, between Celanese and you, whickedgent is attached hereto and made a part hereof.
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CELANESE CORPORATION
2009 GLOBAL INCENTIVE PLAN

NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AWARD AGREEMENT

This Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement (tAgreement”) is made and entered into as of <<Gtate>> (the
“Grant Date”) by and between Celanese Corporatiddelaware corporation (the “Company”), acdNAME>> (the
“Participant”). Capitalized terms used, but notesthise defined herein shall have the meaningskastito such terms in the
Celanese Corporation 2009 Global Incentive Plarafasnded from time to time, the “2009 Plan”).

1. Grant of Option : In order to encourage Participant’s contributiothe successful performance of the
Company, the Company hereby grants to Participanf ¢he Grant Date, pursuant to the terms of 6@ 2Plan and this
Agreement, an award (the “Award”) of nonqualifigdck options (the “Option”) to purchase all or grart of the number of
Common Shares that are covered by such Optioredixhrcise Price per share, in each case as gokb#low. The Participant
hereby acknowledges and accepts such Award updertine and subject to the performance requirensdother conditions,
restrictions and limitations contained in this Agmeent and the 2009 Plan.

Number of Common Shares Subject to Option <<# Shares>>
Grant Date: <<Grant Date>>
Exercise Price Per Share: <<Exercise Price>>
Expiration Date: <<Expiration Date>>

Vesting Schedule (each date on which a portioh@Qption vests and become <<Vesting Schedule>>
exercisable, a “Vesting Date”, and each period betwthe Grant Date and a Vesting
Date, a “Vesting Period”)

2. Non-Qualified Stock Option : The Option is not intended to be an incentive stution under Section 422 of the
Code and this Agreement will be interpreted accaylgi

3. Exercise of Option:

(@) The Option shall not be exercisable as of the Gpate. After the Grant Date, to the extent not janesly
exercised, and subject to termination or accetanats provided in this Agreement or in the 2009 Pdae Option shall be
exercisable to the extent it becomes vested, asided in this Agreement, to purchase up to thatimer of Common
Shares as set forth above, subject to the Pamitgpeontinued employment with the Company (exe@spset forth in
Section 5 below). The vesting period and/or exatilgy of the Option may be adjusted by the Conteeitto reflect the
decreased level of employment during any perioahich the Participant is on an approved leave seabe or is
employed on a less than full time basis.

(b) To exercise the Option (or any part thereof), thgi€ipant shall notify the Company and its desigda
stock plan administrator or agent, as specifietheyCompany (the “Administrator”), and indicate ) the number of
whole shares of Common Stock the Participant wish@sirchase pursuant to such Option, and (ii) tlewParticipant
wishes the shares of Common Stock to be regis{ared- in the Participant’s name or in the Participaatisl the
Participant’s spouse’s name as community propergsqoint tenants with rights of survivorship).

(c) The exercise price (the “Exercise Price”) of thei@pis set forth in Section 1. The Company shatllve
obligated to issue any Common Shares until thediaant shall have
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paid the total Exercise Price for that number o@wn Shares. The Exercise Price may be paid iroathe following
forms, or in a combination thereof: (i) cash oreitglivalent, (ii) by means of tendering to the CampCommon Shares
owned by the Participant without reference to @tion, (iii) if there is a public market for thee@mon Shares at the
time of exercise, subject to such rules as maystabkshed by the Committee, through delivery mhiocable instructions
to a broker to sell the Common Shares otherwiseeatable upon the exercise of the Option and defwemptly to the
Company an amount equal to the aggregate Exerdise Br (iv) any other method approved by the Cattem.

(d) Common Shares will be issued as soon as practibahing exercise of the Option. Notwithstanding th
above, the Company shall not be obligated to delimg Common Shares during any period in whichGhmpany
determines that the exercisability of the Optionher delivery of Common Shares pursuant to thissdgrent would
violate any federal, state or other applicable laws

4. [Reserved]:

5. Effects of Certain Events:

(@) Upon the termination of Participant’'s employmentGympany without Cause or due to the Participant’s
death or Disability, a prorated portion of the usteel portion of the Option will vest in an amouqual to (i) the unvested
Option in each Vesting Period multiplied by (iijraction, the numerator of which is the number@hplete and patrtial
calendar months from the Grant Date to the daterafination without Cause or due to the Particijsasheath or
Disability, and the denominator of which is the aenof complete and partial calendar months in epghicable Vesting
Period, such product to be rounded up to the neatesde number. The Participant (or the Particifsa@state, beneficiary
or legal representative) may exercise the vestetibpoof the Option until the earlier of (1) thedive-month anniversary
of the date of such termination of employment 9rti2 Expiration Date. The remaining portion of @gtion shall be
forfeited and cancelled without consideration.

(b)  Upon the termination of the Participant’'s employingith the Company upon Retirement, a prorated
portion of the unvested portion of the Option witlst on the normal Vesting Dates in an amount eigu@l the unvested
Option in each Vesting Period multiplied by (iijraction, the numerator of which is the number@ahplete and partial
calendar months from the Grant Date to the daterafination for Retirement, and the denominatowbich is the numbt
of complete and partial calendar months in eaclicgippe Vesting Period, such product to be rounaledo the nearest
whole number. To the extent permitted by applicalblentry, state or province law, as consideratarttie vesting
provisions upon Retirement contained in this Sechi(h), upon Retirement, the Participant shall eint® a departure and
general release of claims agreement with the Coynbeat includes two-year noncompetition and nornegation
covenants in a form acceptable to the Company PHmtcipant (or the Participant's estate, benefica legal
representative) may exercise the vested portigheoOption until the Expiration Date. The remainpuagtion of the
Option shall be forfeited and cancelled withoutsidaeration.

(c) Upon the termination of a Participant’s employmeith the Company by reason of the Participant’s
voluntary resignation (other than Retirement){i{g unvested portion of the Option shall be immiediyaforfeited and
cancelled without consideration as of the datéefRarticipant’s termination of employment, anitie Participant may
exercise the vested portion of the Option untileébdier of (1) 90 days following the date of seeimination of
employment and (2) the Expiration Date.
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(d) Upon the termination of a Participant's employmeith the Company for “Causethe vested and unvest
portion of the Option shall be immediately forfeitend cancelled without consideration as of the dathe Participant’s
termination of employment

6. Rights as a Stockholder The Participant shall have no voting, dividenathrer rights as a stockholder with respec
to the Award until the Options have been exercessdi Common Shares have been delivered pursudnstadreement.

7. Change in Control: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agment to the contrary, upon the occurrence
Change in Control, with respect to any unexerc@ptions granted pursuant to this Agreement thag mat previously been
forfeited:

(a) If (i) the Participant’s rights to the unesisable portion of the Option is not adverselyaféd in connection
with the Change in Control, or, if adversely aféetta substitute award with an equivalent (or gr@@&conomic value and
no less favorable vesting conditions is grantethéoParticipant upon the occurrence of a Chan@mintrol, and (i) the
Participant's employment is terminated by the Camar its successor) without Cause within two gdfaliowing the
Change in Control, then the unexercisable portidh@ Option (or, as applicable, the substituterajvahall immediately
vest and become exercisable, and shall remainieabte for such period as specified by the Committied
communicated to the Participant.

(b) If the Participant’s rights to the unexeadike portion of the Option is adversely affectedonnection with
the Change in Control and a substitute award isrmaate pursuant to Section 7(a) above, then upoodh@rence of a
Change in Control, the unexercisable portion of@mption shall immediately vest and become exertésand shall
remain exercisable for such period as specifiethbyCommittee and communicated to the Participant.

8. Income and Other Taxes The Company shall not deliver Common Sharesspeet of the exercise of the Option
unless and until the Participant has made arrangemsatisfactory to the Committee to satisfy agfllie withholding tax
obligations for US federal, state, and local incdmees (or the foreign counterpart thereof) andiegiple employment taxes.
Unless otherwise permitted by the Committee, wiltling shall be effected at the minimum statutomgsaby withholding
Common Shares issuable in connection with the eseeof the Option. The Participant acknowledges ttiea Company shall have
the right to deduct any taxes required to be withbg law in connection with the delivery of Comm8hares issued in respect to
the exercise of the Option from any amounts payaplie to the Participant (including, without limtion, future cash wages). The
Participant acknowledges and agrees that amouttibeld by the Company for taxes may be less thasuats actually owed for
taxes by the Participant in respect of the Award.

9. Securities Laws: The Company may impose such restrictions, cambtor limitations as it determines appropriate
as to the timing and manner of any resales by #éingcipbant or other subsequent transfers by thedqaant of any Common
Shares issued as a result of the exercise of thierQncluding without limitation (a) restrictionsader an insider trading policy,
and (b) restrictions as to the use of a specifietdrage firm for such resales or other transtgpan the acquisition of any
Common Shares pursuant to the exercise of the Qqitie Participant will make or enter into suchtten representations,
warranties and agreements as the Company may eddgaaquest in order to comply with applicablewséies laws or with this
Agreement and the 2009 Plan. All accounts in wkisth Common Shares are held or any certificate€déonmon Shares shall be
subject to such stop transfer orders and othetigshns as the Company may deem advisable unéetks, regulations and otl
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Cononisany stock exchange or quotation system updohthe Common
Shares are then listed or quoted, and any appiidaderal or state securities law, and the Compaany cause a legend or legend:
to be put on any such certificates (or other appabgprestrictions and/or notations to be assodiatith any accounts in which
such Common Shares are held) to make appropri@enee to such restrictions.
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10. Non-Transferability of Award : The Option may not be assigned, alienated, pkbdagached, sold or otherwise
transferred or encumbered by the Participant otisertihan by will or by the laws of descent andritistion, and any such
purported assignment, alienation, pledge, attachrsale, transfer or encumbrance shall be voidusm@shforceable against the
Company; provided, that the Participant may desegyadeneficiary, on a form provided by the Compamyeceive any portion
the Award payable hereunder following the Partiotjsadeath.

11. Other Agreements: Subject to Sections 11(a) and 11(b) of this Agrest, this Agreement and the 2009 Plan
constitute the entire understanding between thiéicRanmt and the Company regarding the Award, andpmior agreements,
commitments or negotiations concerning the Awaedsaiperseded.

(@) The Participant acknowledges that as a conditidgh@aeceipt of the Award, the Participant:
(1) shall have delivered to the Company an ebeeccopy of this Agreement;
(2) shall be subject to the Company’s stock ogtmp guidelines;

(3) shall be subject to policies and agreemadtpted by the Company from time to time, and
applicable laws and regulations, requiring the yepent by the Participant of incentive compensatioder certai
circumstances, without any further act or deedonisent of the Participant; and

(4) shall have delivered to the Company an eeetcopy of the Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back
Agreement (if a current version of such Long-Tenoentive Claw-Back Agreement is not already on &k
determined by the Committee in its sole discreti&oy purposes hereof, “Long-Term Incentive ClaveiBa
Agreement” means an agreement between the Compantyr@ Participant associated with the grant ofj{t@rm
incentives of the Company, which contains termadi@ns, restrictions and provisions regarding onenore of
(i) noncompetition by the Participant with the Camp, and its customers and clients; (ii) nonsdath and non-
hiring by the Participant of the Company’s empladermer employees or consultants; (iii) maintereaof
confidentiality of the Company’s and/or clientsfarmation, including intellectual property; (iv)
nondisparagement of the Company; and (v) such otlatters deemed necessary, desirable or appropyidte
Company for such an agreement in view of the right$ benefits conveyed in connection with an award.

(b) If the Participant is a non-resident of the U.Beré may be an addendum containing special terths an
conditions applicable to awards in the Participantuntry. The issuance of the Award to any suctidjzant is
contingent upon the Participant executing and nittigrany such addendum in the manner directeddZtmpany.

12. Not a Contract for Employment; No Acquired Rights: Nothing in the 2009 Plan, this Agreement or atheo
instrument executed in connection with the Awarallstonfer upon the Participant any right to conéinn the Company's employ
or service nor limit in any way the Company's righterminate the Participant's employment at ang for any reason. The grant
of Options hereunder, and any future grant of awéwdhe Participant under the 2009 Plan, is dptirgluntary and at the
complete and sole discretion of the Company. Neithe grant of these Options nor any future gréatwards by the Company
shall be deemed to create any obligation to gnaytfarther awards, whether or not such a resemasi@xpressly stated at the
time of such grants. The Company has the rigrangttime and for any reason, to amend, susperefmirtate the 2009 Plan;
provided, however, that no such amendment, suspensi termination shall adversely affect the Rgréint’s rights hereunder.
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13. Severability : In the event that any provision of this Agreemierdeclared to be illegal, invalid or otherwise
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdictBargh provision shall be reformed, if possiblethi® extent necessary to rende
legal, valid and enforceable, or otherwise deleaad, the remainder of this Agreement shall notflecged except to the extent
necessary to reform or delete such illegal, invafidnenforceable provision.

14. Further Assurances: Each party shall cooperate and take such actionay be reasonably requested by either
party hereto in order to carry out the provisiond purposes of this Agreement.

15. Binding Effect : The Award and this Agreement shall inure to thedfienf and be binding upon the parties hereto
and their respective permitted heirs, beneficiagascessors and assigns.

16. Electronic Delivery : By executing this Agreement, the Participant bgreonsents to the delivery of any and all
information (including, without limitation, infornt@n required to be delivered to the Participanspant to applicable securities
laws), in whole or in part, regarding the Compang ds subsidiaries, the 2009 Plan, and the Awacthkectronic mail, the
Company’s or a plan administrator’s web site, tieoimeans of electronic delivery.

17. Personal Data: By accepting the Award under this Agreement,Ragticipant hereby consents to the Company’s
use, dissemination and disclosure of any infornmgpiertaining to the Participant that the Compangmines to be necessary or
desirable for the implementation, administratiod amnagement of the 2009 Plan.

18. Governing Law : The Award and this Agreement shall be interpreted construed in accordance with the laws o
the state of Delaware and applicable federal law.

19. Option Subject to Plan: By entering into this Agreement the Participagre®s and acknowledges that the
Participant has received and read a copy of th® P0én and the 2009 Plan's prospectus. The Optidthee Common Shares
issued upon exercise of such Option are subjebiet@009 Plan, which is hereby incorporated byregfee. In the event of any
conflict between any term or provision of this Agmeent and a term or provision of the 2009 Planagicable terms and
provisions of the 2009 Plan shall govern and pievai

20. Validity of Agreement : This Agreement shall be valid, binding and effectipon the Company on the Grant D
However, the Option granted pursuant to this Agergnshall be forfeited by the Participant and fgseement shall have no
force and effect if it is not duly executed by tarticipant and delivered to the Company on or feefaValidity Date>>.

21. Headings: The headings preceding the text of the sectiorsdfi@re inserted solely for convenience of refegenc
and shall not constitute a part of this Agreemeot,shall they affect its meaning, constructioreifect.

22. Definitions : The following terms shall have the following mesgs for purposes of this Agreement,
notwithstanding any contrary definition in the Plan

(@) *“ Cause’ means (i) the Participant's willful failure tonh@rm the Participant's duties to the Company (othe
than as a result of total or partial incapacity ttuphysical or mental iliness) for a period of&fys following written
notice by the Company to Participant of such fai\ii) conviction of, or a plea of nolo contendéwg(x) a felony under
the laws of the United States or any state theseahy similar criminal act in a jurisdiction oudsithe United States or |
a crime involving moral turpitude, (iii) the Parpant's willful malfeasance or willful misconduchwh is demonstrably
injurious to the Company or its affiliates, (iv)yaact of fraud by the Participant, (v) any matevialation of the
Company's business conduct policy, (vi) any mdteration of the Company's policies concerningassment or
discrimination, (vii) the Participant's conductttkauses material harm to the business reputatitireo
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Company or its affiliates, or (viii) the Particiganbreach of any confidentiality, intellectual pesty, non-competition or
non-solicitation applicable to the Participant unithe Long-Term Incentive ClaBack Agreement or any other agreen
between the Participant and the Company.

(b) “ Change in Control of the Company shall mean, in accordance witra$uey Regulation Section 1.409A-
3(i)(5), any of the following:

() any one person, or more than one person@ets a group, acquires ownership of stock of the
Company that, together with stock held by suchgems group, constitutes more than 50% of the taitihg
power of the stock of the Company; or

(i) a majority of members of the Board is req@d during any 12-month period by directors whose
appointment or election is not endorsed by a ngjofithe members of the Board prior to the datéhef
appointment or election; or

(i) any one person, or more than one persoin@as a group, acquires (or has acquired duhiad 2-
month period ending on the date of the most regequisition by such person or persons) assetstiiem
Company that have a total gross fair market vatjuakto 50% or more of all of the assets of the Gamy
immediately prior to such acquisition or acquigigo

(c) “ Disability” has the same meaning as “Disability” in the CelmCorporation 2008 Deferred
Compensation Plan or such other meaning as detedniy the Committee in its sole discretion.

(d) “ Retirement of the Participant shall mean a voluntary sepamdtiom service on or after the date when
Participant is both 55 years of age and has tersyd#aervice with the Company, as determined byGbmpany in its
discretion based on payroll records. Retiremernit sbainclude voluntary separation from servicenihich the Company
could have terminated the Participant's employrf@ntause.

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thigé&gent to be executed on its behalf by its dulja@nzed
officer and the Participant has also executedAgieement in duplicate.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

This Agreement has been accepted and agreed helmntersigned Participant.

PARTICIPANT

By:

Name: <<NAME>>
Employee ID: <<Personnel Number>>
Date:
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Exhibit 10.10(e’

Celanese

AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE

Celanese Corporation, its’ subsidiaries and itgiatis, (“ Company’), 222 W. Las Colinas Blvd., Irving, Tex
75039 andlacquelyn H. Wolf, her heirs, executors, administrators, succesantsassigns (* Employég agree that:

1. Last Day of Employment. The last day of employment with the CompanyNsvember 2, 2012 (Separatic
Date). Last day in the office isJuly 31, 2012.Unless otherwise expressly agreed to by the Compié
Employee voluntarily resigns before the Separabate, she shall immediately be removed from therqik
and forfeit all rights to the Consideration settian Paragraph “2below. In order to remain on the payroll u
the aforementioned date and receive the Considaraét forth in Paragraph “Below, Employee shall comy
with all Company policies and procedures and perfber duties faithfully, to the best of her abilggd to th
satisfaction of the Company while devoting her follsiness efforts and time to the Company and ¢
promotion of its business up to July 31, 2012 dretdafter as needed, including but not limitedwork or
projects assigned to her by the Chairman and CECassistance with transition duties.

2. Consideration . Each separate installment under this Agreemeall Hle treated as a separate paymer
purposes of determining whether such payment iggsuln or exempt from compliance with the requiesrs
of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. Imstaeration for signing this Agreement and commewitt
the promises made herein, Company and Employee:agre

a. Voluntary Resignation. Employee agrees to voluntarily resign from the Canyp effective on tt
Separation Date. Effective as of the close of lrssron such Separation Date, Employee will resgn &l
positions she holds as a corporate officer of tben@any (including without limitation any positioas al
officer, employee and/or director), and from alspi@ns held on behalf of the Company (e.g., extkboarc
memberships, internal committee positions). Emptoydl execute, in writing a voluntary resignatitattel
as a condition of this Agreement using the forneafarth at Exhibit A.

b. Separation Pay. The Company will pay an amount equal to her cureemtual base sala$415,000.00,
plus target bonug290,500.00)for a total payment of




$705,500.0Q less any lawful deductions. Such amount shadid in installments. The first installmen
the amount 0$352,750.0(representing 50% of the total payment)

shall be paid on the first available pay perio@afhe Separation Date (November 16, 2012), iEsmploye«
has previously signed and returned this Agreemedtthe letter enclosed at Exhibit B. If Employegns
and returns the Agreement after the Separation, Patanent will be made on the first available payiqd
seven (7) days after Employee signs and returssfilpieement and the letter enclosed at Exhibit B.

The remainings352,750.0@will be paid in three (3) substantially equalvieekly installments that begin
the second available pay period (November 30, 2d2)ong as the Employee has previously signe:
returned this Agreement and the letter encloseBxaibit B. Otherwise, the payments will commenc
three (3) substantially equal Weekly installments that begin on the second paiog@eafter the Separati
Date and after Employee signs and returns thiségeant and the letter enclosed at Exhibit B.

c. Bonus. Employee will be eligible to receive a prata bonus payout based on the number of full nsoat
service completed in 2012, up to the Separatioe.[Bxinus payout will be based on the annual boor
a salary level 2 (SL 2); which is 70% of Employeaimual base salary times the Emplogg@erson:
modifier of a 1.0, modified for Company performandde 2012 bonus payout will be paid to
Employee during the 2013 calendar year, but invemelater than March 15, 2013.

d. Long-Term Equity and Cash AwardsThe Company will fulfill its obligations to Empjee pursuant to the
terms of the signed equity award agreements amd lefiter dated November 19, 2009. The Company
and Employee agree that the total equity awardsylfich the Employee is eligible, are set forth at
Exhibit C.

e. Pension and 401(k) Plan Vestin. If Employee is eligible, the Company will fulfilts obligations accordir
to the terms of the respective Plans.

f. Unused Vacation. The Company will pay to Employee wages for any edugacation for 2012 and ¢
approved vacation carried over from 2011 understaaedard procedure for calculating and paying
unused vacation to separated employees. The gnssnd due to Employee, less any lawful deduct
will be payable within 30 days of the SeparatiortedQasubject to the Employee providing the detalil
any vacation days utilized during 2011 and 2018ubh the exit interview process.

g. Company Benefit Plans Healthcare & dental plan coverage based on Emplsyagrent health & den
plan elections will continue until October 31, 20A2 other
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normal Company programs (e.g., life insurance, l@mnm disability, 401(k) contributions, etc.) wabntinue
through the Separation Date.

h. COBRA Reimbursement If Employee applies for COBRA benefits, the Compamil pay medical an
dental coverage via COBRA for twelve (32months beyond the month of separation. There
Employee shall be entitled to elect to continuehsGOBRA coverage for an additional six (6) mor
the remainder of the COBRA period, at her expense.

i. Outplacement ServicesThe Employer will pay for outplacement serviceshy Company’s preferred
provider for thre€3) months, available seven (7) days after signing the Releas

J. Return of Company Propert. Employee will surrender to Company, on her last idathe office (July 3:
2012), all Company materials, including, but natited to her Company laptop computer, phone, ¢
card, calling cards, etc. Employee will be respholesior resolving any outstanding balances or
Company credit card.

k. Withholding . The payments and other benefits provided under Agseement shall be reduced
applicable withholding taxes and other lawful detthrcs.

3. No Consideration Absent Execution of this AgreementEmployee understands and agrees that she wot
receive the monies and/or benefits specified imgaph 2 above, unless Employee signs this Agreieometine
signature page without having revoked this Agredrpansuant to Paragraph 13 below and the fulfilltvadrthe
promises contained herein.

4. General Release of Claims Employee knowingly and voluntarily releases aokv¥er discharges, to the f
extent permitted by law, in all countries, incluglibut not limited to the U.S., the PeogléRepublic of Chir
(PRC), U.K. and Germany, the Company, its parerpiaration, affiliates, subsidiaries, divisions, geeessor
successors and assigns and the current and fompdoyees, officers, directors and agents thereafgctively
referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreetas “ Company), of and from any and all claims, kno
and unknown, asserted and unasserted, Employea Imagy have against Company as of the date of &rae
of this Agreement, including, but not limited tmyaalleged violation of:

» Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as ameed!

» The Civil Rights Act of 199:

» Sections 1981 through 1988 of Title 42 of the Whi&ates Code, as amenc
* The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1@&lamende
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The Immigration Reform and Control Act, as amen

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as awied

The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1968, amendel

The Workers Adjustment and Retraining Notificatidet, as amende

The Occupational Safety and Health Act, as ame

The Sarbane®&xley Act of 200z

The Wall Street Reform Act of 2010 (Dodd Frai

The Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FML/

The Texas Civil Rights Act, as amenc

The Texas Minimum Wage Law, as amen

Equal Pay Law for Texas, as amenu

Any other federal, state or local civil or humaghts law, or any other local, state or federal lezgulatiol
or ordinance including but not limited to the Stafelexas; or any law, regulation or ordinance dbreigr
country, including but not limited to the PRC, FedéRepublic of Germany and the UK.

Any public policy, contract, tort, or common Iz

The employment, labor and benefits laws and reguistin all countries in addition to the U.S. imsilug bu
not limited to the U.K. and Germany;

Any claim for costs, fees, or other expensehiging attorneysfees incurred in these mattt

Affirmations . Employee affirms that she has not filed, causeblet filed, or presently is a party to any cle
complaint, or action against Company in any forunfasm. Provided, however, that the foregoing doei
affect any right to file an administrative chargathwthe Equal Employment Opportunity Commiss
("EEOC"), or a charge or complaint under the Wall Street RefAct of 2010, subject to the restriction th:
any such charge or complaint is filed, Employeeeagrnot to violate the confidentiality provisionistiois
Agreement and Employee further agrees and covenlatsshould she or any other person, organizate
other entity file, charge, claim, sue or cause empt to be filed any charge or claim with the EEQRk
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), any gftegrnmental body, civil action, suit or legal peeding
against the Company involving any matter occurah@ny time in the past, Employee will not seelacecep
any personal relief (including, but not limited topnetary award, recovery, relief or settlemenguoh charg
civil action, suit or proceeding.

Employee further affirms that she has reportedhailirs worked as of the date of this release andéeas pai
and/or has received all leave (paid or unpaid), pEmsation, wages, bonuses, commissions, and/ofitiseio
which she may be entitled and that no other lepa@l(or unpaid), compensation, wages, bonuses, tEsian:
and/or benefits are due to him, except as providedis Agreement. Employee furthermore affirms tsize ha
no known workplace injuries or occupational dissased has been provided and/or has not been dany
leave requested under the Family Medical Leave Act.




5. Confidentiality . Employee agrees and recognizes that any knowledgdormation of any type whatsoeve!
a confidential nature relating to the businesshef Company or any of its subsidiaries, divisionsaffitiates
including, without limitation, all types of trade@ets, client lists or information, employee listanformation
information regarding product development, marlkggmans, management organization, operating pslioi
manuals, performance results, business plans, di@arecords, or other financial, commercial, bess o
technical information (collectively * Confidentiaiformation”), must be protected as confidential, not coy
disclosed or used other than for the benefit of @loenpany at any time unless and until such knovdeal
information is in the public domain through no wgfui act by Employee. Employee further agrees o
divulge to anyone (other than the Company or amgqres employed or designated by the Company), gtubl
make use of any such Confidential Information withthe prior written consent of the Company, exdgpar
order of a court having competent jurisdiction nder subpoena from an appropriate government agency

6. Non-competition/Non-solicitation/Non-hire. Employee acknowledges and recognizes the highlypetitive
nature of the business of the Company. Withouettggess written permission of Celanese, for a gesiawc
(2) years, following the Separation Date (the "tReted Period), Employee acknowledges and agrees the
will not: (i) directly or indirectly solicit salesf like products similar to those produced or doydCompany; ¢
(i) directly engage or become employed with anysibess that competes with the business of Cel:
including but not limited to: direct sales, supplyain, marketing, or manufacturing for a produdeproduct:
similar to those produced or licensed by Celangsaddition, for two (2) years, Employee will natettly or
indirectly solicit, nor hire employees of Celandse employment. However, nothing in this provisishal
restrict Employee from owning, solely as an investin publicly traded securities of any company \whig
engaged in the business of Celanese if Employes (ipt a controlling person of, or a member ofraug
which controls; and (ii) does not, directly or iretitly, own 5% or more of any class of securitieamy sucl
company.

7. Governing Law and Interpretation . This Agreement shall be governed and conformextaordance with tt
laws of the State of Texas, without regard to d@sflict of laws provision. In the event Employee@ompan
breaches any provision of this Agreement, Emplayed Company affirm that either may institute ancactc
specifically enforce any term or terms of this Agreent. Should any provision of this Agreement belatdec
illegal or unenforceable by any court of competpmisdiction and cannot be modified to be enforde;
excluding the general release language, such poovihall immediately become null and void, leavihg
remainder of this Agreement in full force and effec

8. Non-admission of Wrongdoing. The parties agree that neither this Agreementtherfurnishing of th
consideration for this Release shall be deemedmstued at any time
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for any purpose as an admission by Company ofiabifity or unlawful conduct of any kind.

9. Non - Disparagement.Employee agrees not to disparage, or make dispayagmarks or send any disparag
communications concerning, the Company, its remrtaits business, and/or its directors, officengnager:
Likewise the Companyg’ senior management agrees not to disparage, @& amgkdisparaging remark or s
any disparaging communication concerning Emplolieereputation and/or her business.

10. Future Cooperation after Separation DateAfter the Separation Dat&mployee agrees to make reason
efforts to assist Company including but not limited responding to telephone calls, assisting wainsitior
duties, assisting with issues that arise aftefS#yearation Date and assisting with the defenseasepution ¢
any lawsuit or claim. This includes but is not lied to providing deposition testimony, attendingrmggs an
testifying on behalf of the Company. The Companl rgimburse Employee for reasonable time and esgx
in connection with any future cooperation after §eparation Date, at her current annual base paygected t
an hourly rate of $199/hr. Time and expenses cafude loss of pay or using vacation time at a &
employer. The Company shall reimburse the Employdgkin 30 days of remittance by Employee to
Company of such time and expenses incurred.

11. Injunctive Relief. Employee agrees and acknowledges that the Compadhipenirreparably harmed by a
breach, or threatened breach by her of this Agreémad that monetary damages would be grossly quade
Accordingly, she agrees that in the event of a direar threatened breach by her of this Agreemiee
Company shall be entitled to apply for immediatgunistive or other preliminary or equitable reliefs
appropriate, in addition to all other remediesaat br equity.

12. Review Period. Employee is hereby advised she has until Jun@@12, or twentyene (21) calendar days,
review this Agreement and to consult with an aggrprior to execution of this Agreement. Employegeea:
that any modifications, material or otherwise, maméhis Agreement do not restart or affect in amnner th
original twenty-one (21) calendar day considerapenod.

13. Revocation Period and Effective Date If Employee signs and returns to the Company jay cof this
Agreement, she has a period of seven (7) days' {@evocation Period) following the date of such execut
to revoke this Agreement, after which time thisesgment will become effective (the * Effective D&taf not
previously revoked. In order for the revocatiorb®effective, written notice must be received g @ompan
no later than close of business on the seventhaftay Employee signs this Agreement at which titme
Revocation Period shall expire.




14. Amendment. This Agreement may not be modified, altered @angfed except upon express written conse
both parties wherein specific reference is madbitoAgreement.

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreemehwd®n the parties hereto, and fi
supersedes any prior obligation of the Companyrpleyee. Employee acknowledges that she has netl
on any representations, promises, or agreememasyokind made to him in connection with her decisic
accept this Agreement, except for those set famththis Agreement Notwithstanding the foregoing, it
expressly understood and agreed that the Equitgexgents and the Long Term Incentive Award Claw |
Agreement executed by Employee on or about Mar¢l2Q20 shall remain in full force and effect, excef
such Equity Agreements are modified by Section 8{dhis Agreement.

16.HAVING ELECTED TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT, TO FULFIL THE PROMISES AND T(
RECEIVE THE SUMS AND BENEFITS IN PARAGRAPH “2ABOVE, EMPLOYEE FREELY ANL
KNOWINGLY, AND AFTER DUE CONSIDERATION, ENTERS INTOHIS AGREEMENT INTENDINC
TO WAIVE, SETTLE AND RELEASE ALL CLAIMS SHE HAS ORMIGHT HAVE AGAINST COMPANY.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto knowinglyl amoluntarily executed this Release as of the da
forth below.

Employee Celanese Corporation:

By: /sl Jacquelyn H. Wolf By: /sl Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.
Jacquelyn H. Wolf Gjon N. Nivica, Jr.

Date: June 11, 2012 Date: June 12, 2012

28007.2




Exhibit C

Summary LTI Awards




J. Wolf Exhibit C
Separation Equity Calculation:

Separation Date Assumption: 11/2/2012
Sign-on Awards (1)
Timing of Payment

Prorated (RSUs)/ Exercisable Market Value
Vesting Period Target Award  Numerator  Denominator ~ Amount Price ©@ Until (NQSO) (est.)
Time Vested RSUs: (2)
1/21/2010- 10/1/2013 3,500 44 44 3,500 $48.37 Oct. 2012 $169,29!
Stock Options: (3)
1/21/2010- 10/01/2013 6,000 33 44 4,500 $32.54 11/2/2013 $71,23!
Total Prorated Sign-on LTI Award Value $240,53I
2010 Performance-Based RSU and Time Vested RSUthoui Options)

Prorated Timing of Pavment Market Value
Vesting Period Target Award Numerator Denominator ~ Amount Price @ 9 y (est.)
2010 Performance RSU Awards: (4)
12/1/2010- 9/30/2013 8,050 23 34 5,446 $48.37 Oct. 2013 $263,42:
2010 Time Vested RSUs: (5)
10/01/2010 10/1/2013 1,611 25 36 1,119 $48.37 Oct. 2013 $54,12¢
Total Prorated 2010 RSU Award Value $317,55!
2010 Stock Options (6)

Prorated Exercisable Market Value

Grant Date Options Granted  Numerator Denominator ~ Amount  Exercise Price until: (est.)

10/1/2010- 10/1/2013 2,141 25 36 1,487 $32.35 11/2/2013 $23,82;
10/1/2010- 10/01/2014 2,142 25 48 1,116 $32.35 11/2/2013 $17,87
Total Prorated 2010 Option Award Value $41,70:
2011 Performance-Based RSU and Time Vested RSUthéwi Options)

Prorated — Market Value
Vesting Period Target Award Numerator ~ Denominator ~ Amount Price @ Timing of Payment (est.)
2011 Performance RSU Awards: (4)
11/1/2011 - 11/1/2014 5,769 12 36 1,923 $48.37 Nov. 2014 $93,01¢
2011 Time Vested RSUs: (5)
10/03/2011 10/1/2013 1,289 13 24 699 $48.37 Oct. 2013 $33,81:
10/03/2011- 10/1/2014 1,721 13 36 622 $48.37 Oct. 2014 $30,08!
Total Prorated 2011 RSU Award Value $156,91.
2011 Stock Options (6)

Prorated Exercisable Market Value

Grant Date Options Granted  Numerator Denominator ~ Amount  Exercise Price until: (est.)

10/3/2011- 10/3/2013 2,476 13 24 1,342 $32.51 11/2/2013 $21,28:
10/3/2011- 10/3/2014 2,476 13 36 895 $32.51 11/2/2013 $14,19!
10/3/2011- 10/3/2015 2,476 13 48 671 $32.51 11/2/2013 $10,64;




Total Prorated 2011 Option Award Value $46,12:
Total Pro-rataquity Value $802,81!

Treatmert o f outstandirg awardsi f terminated not fo r cause

(1) The sigron 2009 PRSUs will vest on October 1, 2012 whilgigigant is still employed

(2) Signon Time RSUsbecome immediately vested upon termination datedfber letter)

(3) Sigrton Stock Optionspro rate on termination date; become immediatedyeceand are exercisable for eyear following termination; natubject to holding requirement (per
agreement)

(4) 2010/ 2011 PRSUsro rate on termination date and pay out on orlgiaating date subject to performance attainmedtteniding requirement (per agreement)

(5) 2010/ 2011 Time RSUsro rate on termination date and pay out on orlgiaating date subject to holding requirement ggmeement)

(6) 2010/ 2011 Stock Optionpro rate on termination date; become immediatesfaceand are exercisable for erear following termination, Options are subjechtidding
requirement (per agreement)

®@Stock price used for separation calculation on2212  $48.37



Exhibit 10.13

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation

Each non-employee director of Celanese Corpordti@“Company”) is entitled to (i) an annual castamer of $85,000, which is paid in
quarterly installments, in arrears, and (ii) anwalrequity retainer of $95,000 in restricted staoks (awarded at the first regular board mee
following the Annual Meeting of Stockholders). lddition, the chair of the nominating and corpoigteernance committee and the
environmental, health & safety committee receivesianual fee of $10,000, and the chair of the azafiimittee and the compensation
committee receives an annual fee of $20,000. Téu dérector receives an annual fee of $25,000. d hesounts are paid in quarterly
installments, in arrears, and prorated for actaalise.

Non-employee directors are also entitled to padite in the Company's 2008 Deferred Compensatiamm, Rlhich is an unfunded,
nonqualified deferred compensation plan that alldimsctors the opportunity to defer a portion adittcompensation in exchange for a future
payment amount equal to their deferments plus aumcertain amounts based upon the market perfaenafrspecified measurement funds
selected by the participant.



Exhibit 12.1

Celanese Corporation and Subsidiaries
Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Bied Charges

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In $ millions, except ratios)
Earnings:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befave t 657 75E 53¢ 251 43¢
Subtract
Equity in net earnings of affiliates (242) (192) (16¥¢) (99 (172
Add
Income distributions from equity investments 262 20t 13¢ 78 18z
Amortization of capitalized interest 7 4 2 2 2
Total fixed charges 242 28C 262 26€ 324
Total earnings as defined before combined fixedgdm 92€ 1,052 772 50C 77C
Fixed charges:
Interest expense 18t 221 204 207 261
Capitalized interest 2 1 2 2 6
Estimated interest portion of rent expense 55 58 53 49 47
Cumulative preferred stock dividends — — 3 10 10
Guaranteed payment to minority shareholders — — — — —
Total combined fixed charges 242 28( 262 26€ 324

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges 3.8x 3.8x 2.9x 1.9x 2.4x



List of Subsidiaries of Celanese Corporation

Exhibit 21.1

Name of Company Jurisdiction
Aggregate Ownership of more than 50% (100% aggregatownership unless otherwise indicated)

1776461 Canada Inc. Canad:
Acetex Chimie S.A. France
Acetex (Cyprus) Ltd. Cyprus
Acetex Derivatives, SAS France
Acetex Intermediates, SAS France
Acetyls Holdco Cayman Ltd. Cayman Island
Alberta Ag - Industries Ltd. Canad:
Amcel International Co., Inc. Delaware
BCP Holdings GmbH Germany
CAPE Holding GmbHTt Germany
CCC Environmental Management and Solutions GmbHo& K5 Germany
CCC Environmental Management and Solutions VerwatsGmbH Germany
Celanese (China) Holding Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Derivatives Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Intermediates Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Chemical Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Nanjing) Diversified Chemical Co., Ltd. China
Celanese (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd. China
Celanese Acetate Limited United Kingdon
Celanese Acetate LLC Delaware
Celanese Advanced Materials Inc.t Delaware
Celanese Alpine S. ar.l. & Co. KG Germany
Celanese Americas LLC Delaware
Celanese Argentina S.A. Argentina
Celanese Canada Inc. Canad:
Celanese Chemicals Europe GmbH Germany
Celanese Chemicals Ibérica S.L Spain
Celanese Chemicals Inc. Delaware

Celanese Chemicals India Private Ltd

Celanese Chemicals S.A. (Pty) Ltd.

Celanese Chemicals UK Ltd.

Celanese Deutschland Holding GmbH

Celanese do Brasil Ltda.

Celanese Emulsions B.V

Celanese Emulsions GmbH

Celanese Emulsions Ltd.

Celanese Emulsions Norden AB

Celanese Emulsions Pension Plan Trustees Ltd
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Corporation
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Inc.
Celanese EVA Performance Polymers Partnership
Celanese Far East Ltd.

Celanese Fibers Operations LLC

Celanese Global Relocation LLC

India

South Africa
United Kingdon
Germany

Brazil
Netherland:
Germany
United Kingdon
Sweder

United Kingdon
North Caroline
Canad:

Canad:

Hong Kong
Delaware
Delaware






Celanese GmbH

Celanese Holding GmbH

Celanese Holdings B.V

Celanese Holdings Luxembourg S.a .|
Celanese Hungary Kift.

Celanese International Corporation
Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.ar.|
Celanese Japan Limited

Celanese Korea Ltd.

Celanese Ltd.

Celanese Mexico Holdings LLC
Celanese PTE. Ltd.

Celanese S.A.

Celanese S.A./N.V.

Celanese Singapore PTE. Ltd.

Celanese Singapore VAM PTE. Ltd.
Celanese US Holdings LLC

Celanese Ventures USA, Inc.t

Celstran GmbH

Celtran Inc.

Celwood Insurance Company

CNA Funding LLC

CNA Holdings LLC

Crystal US Sub 3 Corp.

Edmonton Methanol Company

Elwood Insurance Limited

Estech GmbH & Co. KGt

FKAT LLC

Grupo Celanese, S. de R.L. de C2V.
HNA Acquisition ULC

Hoechst ltalia S.p.A.T

InfraServ Verwaltungs GmbH

KEP Americas Engineering Plastics, LLC
KEP Europe GmbH

Majoriva GmbH

Methanol Holdco Cayman Ltd.

Northern Mountains Celcan LP
NutriCapital Inc.

Nutrinova Benelux S.A./N.V.

Nutrinova France S.ar.It

Nutrinova Inc.

Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@sbH
PT Celanese Indonesia Operations
RIOMAVA GmbH

Servicios Corporativos Celanese S. de R.L. de C.V.
Tenedora Tercera de Toluca S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ticona Austria GmbH

Ticona CR s.r.o

Ticona Fortron Inc.

Ticona France S.ar.l|

Germany
Germany
Netherland:
Luxembourg
Hungary
Delaware
Luxembourg
Japar
Korea
Texas
Delaware
Singaport
Argentina
Belgium
Singaport
Singaport
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Delaware
Vermont
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Canad:
Bermude
Germany
Delaware
Mexico
Canad:
Italy
Germany
Delaware
Germany
Germany
Cayman Island
Canad:
Delaware
Belgium
France
Delaware
Germany
Indonesi
Germany
Mexico
Mexico
Austria
Czech Republi
Delaware
France






Ticona GmbH

Ticona Industrial Co. Ltd.

Ticona Italia S.r.L

Ticona Japan Ltd.

Ticona Korea Ltd.

Ticona LLC

Ticona PBT Holding B.V.

Ticona Polymers Inc.

Ticona Polymers Ltda.

Ticona Technische Polymere gAG
Ticona UK Limited
Transatlantique Chimie S.A.
Tydeus Erste Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH

Tydeus Zweite Vermdgensverwaltungs GmbH

US Pet Film Inc.

Aggregate Ownership of 50% or less

CTE Petrochemicals Cb.

Fortron Industries, LLC

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K&
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K&
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack KG
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbadem KG
Korea Engineering Plastics Co., Ld.
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Company, Limitéd
National Methanol Comparty

Nantong Cellulose Fibers Company, Limiféd
Polyplastics Company, Ltdt

Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Company, Limitéd

1 Aggregate ownership is 51.00%
2 Aggregate ownership is 99.89%
8 Aggregate ownership is 50.00%
4 Aggregate ownership is 32.43%
® Aggregate ownership is 39.00%
¢ Aggregate ownership is 27.00%
7 Aggregate ownership is 7.90%

& Aggregate ownership is 30.00%
® Aggregate ownership is 25.00%
10 Aggregate ownership is 30.68%

1 Aggregate ownership is 45.0C

Germany
South Korei
Italy

Japar
Korea
Delaware
Netherland:
Delaware
Brazil
Russie
United Kingdon
France
Germany
Germany
Delaware

Cayman Island
North Caroline
Germany
Germany
Germany
Germany
Korea

China

Saudi Arabi:
China

Japar

China
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celanese Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrdgistration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-822333-128048, 333-158734, 333
158736, 333-166358, and 333-180932) and on FornfN$3333-173822) of Celanese Corporation of oports dated February 8, 201@ith
respect to the consolidated balance sheets of €daBorporation as of December 31, 2012 and 2@hd the related consolidated statern
of operations, comprehensive income (loss), eqaity, cash flows for each of the years in the tlyesr-period ended December 31, 204Rc
the effectiveness of internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2012 , which repappear in the December 31, 2(r#hua
report on Form 10-K of Celanese Corporation.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 8, 2013



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referendbe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N&-BA3822) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333
122789, 333-128048, 333-158734, 333-158736, 3338%&ind 333-180932) of Celanese Corporation ofreport dated February 8, 2013
relating to the financial statements of CTE Petemaitals Company appearing in this Annual Reporftarm 10-K of Celanese Corporation.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 8, 2013



Exhibit 23.3

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-122789, 333-128048;158734, 333-158736, 33H635¢
and 333-180932 on Form S-8 and Registration Stateide. 333-173822 on Form 3of our report dated February 10, 2011, relatmght
2010 financial statements (before retrospectivasidjents to the financial statements) of CTE Pa#odcals Company (not presented her
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ofabelse Corporation for the year ended December@3®, 2

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 8, 2013



Exhibit 23.4

Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referenabe Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N@-BA3822) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333
122789, 333-128048, 333-158734, 333-158736, 3338%&nd 33380932) of Celanese Corporation of our report d&tebruary 5, 201
relating to the financial statements of Nationaltiaol Company (Ibn Sina) (which expresses an uiigpehopinion and includes an emphe

of matter paragraph relating to differences betwsmrounting principles generally accepted in Sédwdbia and accounting principles gener
accepted in the United States of America) appeaniniis Annual Report on Form 10-K of Celanesep@oation.

For BDO DR. MOHAMED AL-AMRI & CO.
/s/ Gihad M. Al-Amri
Certified Public Accountant

Registration No. 362

Dammam, Saudi Arabia
February 8, 2013



Exhibit 23.5

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniRegion Statement Nos. 333-122789, 333-128048;158734, 333-158736, 33H635¢
and 333-180932 on Form S-8 and Registration StateMe. 333-173822 on Form Fef Celanese Corporation of our report dated Faalyri0
2011 related to the financial statements of Natidnathanol Company (Ibn Sina) (which expresses agualified opinion and includes
explanatory paragraph relating to differences betweccounting principles generally accepted inkiimgdom of Saudi Arabia and account
principles generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica) for the year ended December 31, 20fpfearing in this Annual Report on Fc
10-K of Celanese Corporation for the year endedebdoer 31, 2012 .

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE BAKR ABULKHAIR & CO.
Al Khobar

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
February 8, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark C. Rohr, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedotge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentiusireport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evaituaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weegses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefrmaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl MARK C. ROHR

Mark C. Rohr

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 8, 2013



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Sterin certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiCelanese Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedotge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentiusireport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdlsguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) drithve disclosed, based on our most recent evaituaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weegses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefrmaincial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

/sl STEVEN M. STERIN

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 8, 2013



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the petiending December 31, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiohe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark C. RaBhairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby ifgrpursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteduant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl MARK C. ROHR

Mark C. Rohr
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 8, 2013



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmtion (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the petiending December 31, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Steven M. BteBenior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifyrguant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted ant$a Section 906 of the Sarbarigsley

Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl STEVEN M. STERIN

Steven M. Sterin
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: February 8, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Partners of
CTE Petrochemicals Company

We have audited the accompanying financial stat¢ésneCTE Petrochemicals Company, which comprigelthlance sheets as of Decer
31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statementsearhtipns, comprehensive income (loss), partneptataand cash flows for the years t
ended, and the related notes to the financialraetés.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpresentation of these financial statementscicoalance with accounting princip
generally accepted in the United States of Ametiua;includes the design, implementation, and tea@nce of internal control relevant to
preparation and fair presentation of financialestagnts that are free from material misstatemengther due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢héeancial statements based on our audits. We umtad our audits in accordance v
auditing standards generally accepted in the UrBiedes of America. Those standards require thaplase and perform the audit to obt
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidifevidence about the amounts and disclosuréeiinancial statements. The proced
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, incuttile assessment of the risks of material missteemwf the financial statements, whe
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assesss) the auditor considers internal control redéva the entity's preparation and
presentation of the financial statements in ordeddsign audit procedures that are appropriateércircumstances, but not for the purpos
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thtéyés internal control. Accordingly, we express such opinion. An audit also inclut
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting psicised and the reasonableness of significant aficglestimates made by managemer
well as evaluating the overall presentation offthancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtsg, financial position of CTE Petrochemic
Company as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, andeth#dts of its operations and its cash flows forybkars then ended in accordance
accounting principles generally accepted in thedéhStates of America.

Other Matter

As part of our audits of the 2012 and 2011 findmsiatements, we have also audited the adjustnetiie 2010 financial statements to
retrospectively apply the change in presentatiothefstatement of comprehensive income (loss)l giegiods presented, as discussed in Note
to the financial statements. In our opinion, suethaspective adjustments are appropriate and heae properly applied. However, we were
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedwehe 2010 financial statements of the Companyrdtien with respect to the retrospective
presentation and, accordingly, we do not expressparion or any other form of assurance on the Ziifdhcial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 8, 2013




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Partners of
CTE Petrochemicals Company

We have audited, before the effects of the adjustsnt retrospectively apply the change in accogntiscussed in Note 3 to -
financial statements of CTE Petrochemicals Comg#my "Company"), the statements of operations,neast capital, and cash flows for
year endeiDecember 31, 2010These financial statements are the responsilofithe Company's management. Our responsibility Expres
an opinion on these financial statements basedipauit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditapdards generally accepted in the United Stdtéamerica. Those standai
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes consideration o&rimal control over financial reporting as a bésis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thegppse of expressing an opinion on the effectivertéghe Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nolsopinion. An audit also includes examining, orest basis, evidence supporting the amc
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgpfse accounting principles used and signifiesitimates made by management, as wi
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@maWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements, befdre éffects of the adjustments to retrospectivelghaphe change in accounti
discussed in Note 3 to the financial statementssgmnt fairly, in all material respects, the resaft€TE Petrochemicals Company's opera
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 20d@onformity with accounting principles geneyaliccepted in the United States
America.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply@ogedures to the adjustments to retrospectivghlyahe change in accounting
discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements acebrdingly, we do not express an opinion or @timgr form of assurance about whether
retrospective adjustments are appropriate and Ibage properly applied. Those retrospective adjustsneere audited by other auditors.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 10, 2011




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Equity in net earnings of Ibn Sina $ 267,17. $ 232,25( $ 161,70:
Administrative expenses (67) (119 —
Withholding tax expense (12,717 (11,329 (7,69¢)
Net earnings $ 25439. $ 220,80 $ 154,00¢

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Net earnings $ 254,39: $ 220,80: $ 154,00t
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Pension and postretirement benefits (700 (5,642 (527)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (700 (5,642 (527)
Total comprehensive income, net of tax $ 253690 $ 21516( $  15347¢

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme




Assets

Current assets
Cash

Total current assets

Investment in Ibn Sina

Total assets

Liabilities and Partners' Capital
Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Partners' capital

Total liabilities and partners' capital

CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
BALANCE SHEETS

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme

As of December 31,

2012 2011

(In thousands)

71 % 68
71 68
156,04 143,82
156,11¢ $ 143,89!
60 $ 58
60 55
156,05¢ 143,84(
156,11¢ $ 143,89}




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' CAPITAL

2012 2011 2010
Texas Texas Texas
Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood Eastern Elwood
Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance Arabian Insurance
Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total Ltd. Ltd. Total
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)

Partners' Capital
Balance as of the

beginning of the

period $ 73,25t $ 7797¢ $ 15123. $ 72,34« $ 73,198 $ 14553¢ $ 72,74¢ $ 72,747 $ 145,49
Net earnings 127,19 127,19¢ 254,39: 110,40: 110,40: 220,80: 77,00:¢ 77,00: 154,00t
Net dividends (122,750 (119,729 (241,47 (109,489 (105,62() (215,109 (77,407 (76,555 (153,96
Balance as of the end c

the year 78,70: 85,44¢ 164,15: 73,25¢ 77,97¢ 151,23: 72,344 73,19t 145,53¢
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

Income (Loss), Net
Balance as of the

beginning of the

period (3,696 (3,696 (7,399 (875) (87%) (1,750 (612 (617) (1,229
Pension and

postretirement benefi (350 (350 (700 (2,821) (2,827) (5,647) (263) (2649) (527)
Balance as of the end of

the period (4,040 (4,04¢) (8,099 (3,69¢) (3,696 (7,399 (87%) (875) (1,750

Total Partners' Capital $  74.65: $ 81,40: $ 156,05 $ 6956( $ 74280 $ 143,84 $ 7146¢( $ 72,32( $ 143,78

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesne




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Operating activities

Net earnings $ 254,390 $ 220,800 $ 154,00t
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net caskiged by operating activities:
Equity in net earnings of Ibn Sina (267,177 (232,25() (161,70
Dividends received 254,25 226,57( 176,15!
Income taxes payable — — (14,499
Accrued liabilities 5 55 —
Net cash provided by operating activities 241,47 215,17 153,96:
Financing activities
Dividends paid (241,47, (215,109 (153,96
Net cash used in financing activities (241,47, (215,109 (153,96))
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3 68 —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 68 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1% 68 $ —

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme




CTE PETROCHEMICALS COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Basis of Presentatit

CTE Petrochemicals Company (“CTE” or the “Compang’a common general partnership (the “Partnerghigiich was formedn Januar
27, 1981 pursuant to the laws of the Cayman IslaBdssh West Indies. The original partners, Celse Arabian Inc. ("Celanese Arabiaat
Texas Eastern Arabian Ltd. (“Texas Eastern”), a llyhowned subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation (H2"), each acquired an eq
ownership interest in CTE. Through a series ofdaations, Elwood Insurance Limited (“Elwoodg,wholly owned subsidiary of Celan
Corporation (“Celanese”gcquired Celanese Arabian's original interest ireCand Celanese and Duke continue to have an eguarshi
interest, including profit and loss distributiohraugh their respective subsidiaries, Elwood anxe§dcastern.

CTE's primary asset is its 50% investment in Natidviethanol Company (“Ibn Sina”)bn Sina, a Saudi limited liability company regigte
under the laws of Saudi Arabia, is owned equally0ByE and Saudi Basic Industries Corporation (“SABJ@ privatelyheld Saudi Arabie
joint stock company. Ibn Sina was formed in 198d &nin the business of operating a petrochemicaipgiex which produces methanol :
methyl tertiary butyl ether (“MTBE”").

On April 1, 2010, Elwood, Texas Eastern and SABkPamded the scope of Ibn Sina to include the aeaif a polyacetal (“POM”productiot
facility and extended the term of the joint venttwe2032. The capital required to build the POMnplis funded equally by SABIC and C”
Elwood and Texas Eastern provide 65% and 35%, césply, of the POM funding requirements of CTE. &@nthe POM plant becon
commercially operational, which istimated to be completed in 2015, CTE's respeetaraings will be split 65% and 35% to Elwood
Texas Eastern, respectively. However, the partegrsal ownership percentage in CTE will remain amged. Elwood and Texas Eastern
continue to share the power to direct the actiwitieat most significantly impact the Company's etoic performance. SABIC will continue
have 50% ownership in Ibn Sina, including its resipe share of profits and losses.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements were prepared in accomlavith accounting principles generally acceptedhi@a United States of Americal$S
GAAP") for all periods presented.

2. Summary of Accounting Policie:
» Estimates and assumptior

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith US GAAP requires management to make estmand assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andrmese and expenses These estimates, based on h#ablavinformation at the time, coi
differ from actual results.

* Investment in Ibn Sing

The Company accounts for its investment in Ibn Sisiag the equity method of accounting as it hasathility to exercise significant influer
over operating and financial policies of Ibn Sibhat does not exercise control. Under the equityhoektthe investment, originally recorde:
cost, is adjusted to recognize the Company's sharet earnings or losses of Ibn Sina and redugeatividends received.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrralue of its investment whenever events omgea in circumstances indicate a los
value that is other than a temporary decline. A limsvalue of an equityaethod investment which is other than a temporaglide will be
recognized as the difference between the carryimguat of the investment and its fair value, andhsloss, if any, would be charged
earnings. No such losses have been recognized.

» Dividends
The Company records dividends when received asctieduof its investment. Historically, Ibn Sina hadistributed a substantial portion of

after tax earnings to its partners. CTE remitsdividends to its partners, Elwood and Texas Eastmultaneously when received from
Sina.




e Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Los

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)as@bmpany's share of Ibn Sina's gains or lossgseimsion and postretirement benefits
are not recognized immediately as a componenttgfergodic pension cost.

3. Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardar8d“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update SUX) 2011-05,Presentation ¢
Comprehensive Incoman amendment to FASB Accounting Standards Codificat'’ASC”) Topic 220,Comprehensive IncomeThe updat
gives companies the option to present the totatafhprehensive income, the components of net incand, the components of ot
comprehensive income either in a single continustagement of comprehensive income or in separatectmisecutive statements. -
amendments in the update do not change the iteahsntinst be reported in other comprehensive incaméhen an item of other comprehen:
income must be reclassified to net income. Thisraiment also required an entity to present on tbe & the financial statements adjustm
for items that are reclassified from accumulatdteotomprehensive income to net income; howevedeicember 2011 the FASB issued A
2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments te fresentation of Reclassifications of ltems OutAotumulated Oth
Comprehensive Income in ASU 2011-0bhe update defers the specific requirement tggureitems that are reclassified from accumu
other comprehensive income to net income separatighy their respective components of net income athgtr comprehensive income. -
Company adopted ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2021beginning January 1, 2012 and amendments haare dyplied retrospectively for all pr
periods presented.

4. Investment in Ibn Sina

The following are summarized US GAAP financial staént results of Ibn Sina as of and for the yeadee December 31 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Total Assets $ 551,500 $ 529,10 $ 480,26:
Debt — — —
Total Liabilities 231,95¢ 222,12: 183,97
Net Sales 1,345,141 1,242,61 930,61
Operating Profit 665,05( 576,47t 387,72.
Net Income 591,48 515,65( 343,63

The laws of Saudi Arabia require different allooa of income taxes to capital balances based tiporrespective partner's country
domicile. Accordingly, CTE's percentage of Ibn Sin@et income in equity is not proportioned toolanership percentages.

5. Taxes

The financial statements reflect no provision ability for income taxes because the Company'sfite results are included in the income
returns of the Partners for the years ended Dece®ihe2012 , 2011 and 2010rhe Company incurs withholding tax from the Safidibiar
government at a rate of 5% on dividends receivenhfits investment in Ibn Sina. Withholding taxes egported as withholding tax expensi
the Company's statements of operations when didel@me received. Amounts shown as withholding texerse were paid to the Sa
Arabian government in the respective periods pitesker-or the years ended December 31, 204® 2011 taxes paid were $12.7 million
$11.3 million, respectively.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC Td6pme Taxegoriginally issued as FASB Interpretation No. 48 counting fo
Uncertainty in Income Tax@s which clarifies the accounting and disclosure docertainty in income tax positions, as defined January :
2007. Based on the Company's review, a reservd @f3%million related to Saudi Arabia corporate imeptax on the Company's share of
Sina earnings for tax years 1997 to 2003 was reduifhe tax reserve was recorded through incomexpgnse on the Company's finar
statements prior to the adoption of FASB ASC 748 ao cumulative effect adjustment was requireddaipdion. Upon receiving a final t
assessment from the Saudi Arabian tax authori®0@9, the Company reversed $4.7 million of therserve. The remaining $14.5 mill
was paid in the first quarter of 2010.
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6. Subsequent Event

Subsequent events were updated through Febru26418,, the date at which the financial statememti®ewavailable to be issued.

11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the management
National Methanol Company (Ibn Sir
Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia

We have audited the accompanying financial statésneinNational Methanol Company (Ibn Sina), whidmprise the balance sheets a
December 31, 2012 and 2014&nd the related statements of income, partngestye and cash flows for the years then ended,thadelate
notes to the financial statements, which, as desdrin Note 2 to the financial statements, havenlj@epared on the basis of accour
principles generally accepted in Saudi Arabia.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpresentation of these financial statementscicoalance with accounting princip
generally accepted in Saudi Arabia; this includesdesign, implementation, and maintenance ofriaterontrol relevant to the preparation
fair presentation of financial statements thatfere from material misstatement, whether due todrar error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hérancial statements based on our audits. We umtad our audits in accordance v
auditing standards generally accepted in the UrBiedes of America. Those standards require thaplase and perform the audit to obt
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidifevidence about the amounts and disclosuréeiinancial statements. The proced
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, incutiile assessment of the risks of material missteemf the financial statements, whe
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assesss) the auditor considers internal control redéva the entity's preparation and
presentation of the financial statements in ordeddsign audit procedures that are appropriatedrcircumstances, but not for the purpos
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thtéyés internal control. Accordingly, we express such opinion. An audit also inclut
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting psicised and the reasonableness of significant aficglestimates made by managemer
well as evaluating the overall presentation offthancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedtg tinancial position of National Methal
Company (Ibn Sina) as of December 31, 2012 and 20d4iid the results of its operations and its castvdlfor the years then endec
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in Saudi Arabia.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statemev&ional Methanol Company (Ibn Sina) preparedirigncial statements in accordance \
accounting principles generally accepted in Saudibf, which differs from accounting principles geally accepted in the United State:

America. Information relating to the nature anceetfof such differences is presented in Note 2hédinancial statements. Our opinion is
modified with respect to this matter.

For BDO Dr. Mohamed Al-Amri & Co.

/s/ Gihad M. Al-Amri
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 362

Dammam, Saudi Arabia
February 5, 2013




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the management
National Methanol Company (Ibn Sir
Al-Jubail, Saudi Arabia

We have audited the statements of income, castsflowd partners' equity of National Methanol Comp@dbg Sina), a Saudi limited liabili
company (the "Company") for the year ended DecerBhber2010. These financial statements are the nsdpitity of the Company
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on out. aud

We conducted our audit in accordance with audisitegndards generally accepted in the United Stdt@snerica. Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonas$eirance about whether the financial statemeetse® of material misstatement. An a
includes consideration of internal control overafigial reporting as a basis for designing auditcgdores that are appropriate in
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compainy&snal control over financial reporti
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aulibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made byagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf in all material respects, the results of @@mpany's operations and its cash flows fo
year ended December 31, 2010 in conformity wittoaating principles generally accepted in Saudi Aaz

Accounting principles generally accepted in Saudibda vary in certain significant respects fromaatting principles generally accepte(
the United States of America. Information relatinghe nature and effect of such differences isgmg=d in Note 22 to the financial stateme

Deloitte & Touche
Bakr Abulkhair & Co.

/sl Nasser M. Al-Sagga
License No. 322

Al Khobar
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
February 10, 2011




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

201z 2011

Notes SR 00( SR 00(
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 419,34: 395,34
Trade receivables 15 554,14( 502,59
Inventories 4 240,02- 201,72
Other receivables and prepayments 5 65,86 56,84«
Total current assets 1,279,37. 1,156,50
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 715,53 730,68
Intangible assets 7 34,53¢ 63,10¢
Other non-current assets 8 17,40: 20,92:
Total non-current assets 767,47" 814,71t
TOTAL ASSETS 2,046,84 1,971,22!
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 10 70,917 39,96«
Accrued and other current liabilities 11 570,85: 578,06:
Total current liabilities 641,76¢ 618,02
Non-current liabilities 12 121,68l 126,57:
Total liabilities 763,44¢ 744,60:.
Partners' equity
Share capital 1 558,00( 558,00
Statutory reserve 18 279,00( 279,00!
Retained earnings 446,40: 389,62:
Total partners' equity 1,283,40. 1,226,62.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY 2,046,84 1,971,22:

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

201z 2011 201(¢

Notes SR 00( SR 00( SR 00!

Sales 15 5,044,29i 4,659,81 3,489,81.
Cost of sales 15 (2,524,44) (2,474,36) (2,021,01)
Gross profit 2,519,85: 2,185,441 1,468,79
Distribution expenses (47¢) (1,010 (372
General and administrative expenses 14,15 (25,439 (20,227 (16,33
Operating income 2,493,93 2,164,21. 1,452,09
Financial charges — (14) 4
Other income, net 11,75: 15,02¢ 7,98¢
2,505,68! 2,179,22! 1,460,07!

NET INCOME

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

201z 2011 201(¢
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 2,505,68: 2,179,22! 1,460,07
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 111,25t 159,24t 97,30¢
Amortization 50,50¢ 29,59: 51,99:
End-of-service indemnities 14,80¢ 14,66¢ 14,75(
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables (51,549 (40,467 9,64(
Inventories (38,29¢) 17,47 (38,489
Other receivables and prepayments (9,029 (19,149 14,45:
Accounts payable 30,95 (6,579 16,71
Accrued and other current liabilities 17,35 11,42« 51,55:
Other liabilities (3,58)) 3,67¢ (283)
End-of-service indemnities paid (16,119 (3,159 (1,877)
Zakat and income tax paid (311,62) (186,229 (137,749
Net cash from operating activities 2,300,38: 2,159,741 1,538,08:
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment, net (96,667) (232,77)) (68,57Y)
Additions to intangible assets (21,937 (53,969 (51,469
Other non-current assets 3,52( 33,09' 997
Net cash used in investing activities (115,08() (253,63 (119,049
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid net of zakat and income tax (2,161,29)  (1,845,99) (1,368,13)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,161,29) (1,845,99)  (1,368,13)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 24,00: 60,10¢ 50,91¢
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 395,34( 335,23 284,31
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 419,34 395,34( 335,23
Non-cash transactions:
Accruals for additions to property, plant and equimt 55E 6,89:2 9,021
27,68

Construction in progress transferred to employeaeéhownership receivables — —

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseHerancial statements




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Share capital

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Statutory reserve

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Retained earnings

January 1, 2010

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for the year
Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat amdine tax
Dividends related to the year 2009, net
Dividends related to the current year
December 31, 2010

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for the year

Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat amdine tax
Dividends related to the year 2010, net

Dividends related to the current year

December 31, 2011

Net income for the year

Zakat and income tax for the year

Amounts withheld from partners towards zakat amdine tax
Dividends related to the year 2011, net

Dividends related to the current year

December 31, 2012

Total partners' equity
December 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

Saud

Basic CTE

Industrie! Petrochemica
Corporatiot Compan Total
Notes SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
1 279,00( 279,00( 558,00t
18 139,50( 139,50( 279,00(
199,20( 199,66t 398,86t
730,03 730,03 1,460,07!
13 (19,84¢) (159,58¢) (179,43)
— 97,42 97,42
(199,309 (192,049 (391,35)
(537,099 (537,099 (1,074,19)
172,98¢ 138,39( 311,37¢
1,089,61! 1,089,61. 2,179,22!
13 (28,549 (226,44 (254,99()
— 113,09¢ 113,09¢
(173,189 (139,569 (312,749
(823,17 (823,179 (1,646,34)
237,69° 151,92¢ 389,62:
1,252,84. 1,252,84. 2,505,68:
13 (33,030 (254,58 (287,61))
— 169,77( 169,77(
(237,85) (153,179 (391,03)
(970,019 (970,019 (1,940,03)
249,63¢ 196,76. 446,40:
668,13¢ 615,26 1,283,40
656,19° 570,42¢ 1,226,62.
591,48t 556,89( 1,148,37

The accompanying notes form an integral part afeéHfenancial statements




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

1. ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES

National Methanol Company‘lbn Sina”) (“the Company”js a Saudi limited liability company registered endCommercial Registration N
2055000779 dated 19 Rajab 1401H (May 23, 1981).

The Company is owned equally by Saudi Basic InékstiCorporation (“SABIC”),a Saudi Arabian joint stock company and (
Petrochemicals Company (“CTE§,partnership registered in Cayman Islands, Brifigst Indies. CTE is equally owned by Elwood Insge
Ltd., a Bermuda Corporation and Texas Eastern Arabtd., a Bermuda Corporation (collectively "thertRers").

The authorized share capital of the Company is 8R rnillion divided into 7,420 units of SR 100,00@ck. The paid up capital
December 31, 2012 and 2011 was SR 558 million cmapof 5,580 units of SR 100,000 each.

The Company's principal business activity is torapee a petrochemical complex at #ibail Industrial City which produces Methanol
Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether (“MTBE”").The Company's Methanol and MTBE plants commenceaheercial operations on November 1, 1
and July 1, 1994, respectively. SABIC distributad aarkets the Company's products.

During 2010, the partners agreed to expand the @opp activities by establishing a plant for thenofacturing of polyoxymethylel
(“POM").

The Company's registered office is in Al-Jubaildattial City in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have beguaprd in compliance with the accounting standasdsed by the Saudi Organization
Certified Public Accountants ("SOCPA"). The followjiis a summary of significant accounting poliagglied by the Company:

Accounting convention
The financial statements are prepared under therttal cost convention.

Revenue recognition

Product sales are made to SABIC (“the Marketddpon delivery of products to the Marketer, sales racorded at provisional selling pri
net of marketing expenses paid directly by the Mtek These selling prices are later adjusted baped actual selling prices received by
Marketer from third parties. Adjustments are reeards they become known to the Company.

Distribution and general and administrative expensge
Distribution expenses principally comprise of casturred in the distribution and sale of the Comps products / services. All other expel
are classified as general and administrative exggens

General and administrative expenses include indoests not specifically part of production cosssraquired under the accounting stanc
issued by SOCPA. Allocations between general antir@igtrative expenses and cost of sales, when redjudre made on a consistent basis.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the originalicev@amount less an allowance for any uncollectisi®ounts. Adjustments are recorded as
become known to the Company. An estimate for dalilsiébts is made when the collection of the accouateivable amount is conside
doubtful. Bad debts are written off as incurred.




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Inventories
Finished goods and chemicals are stated at the lofag®st or net realizable value. Cost of finislgesds, chemicals, spare parts and suppl
determined on a weighted average cost basis. loxestof finished goods include cost of materibpr and an appropriate portion of dil
overheads.

Inventory items that are considered as essenti@ahsore continuous plant operations are treated@ital spare parts and are classified as
and equipment and are depreciated using the deficetiate relevant to the corresponding plantemqdpment.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cdsbfnaccumulated depreciation except for constoancin progress which is stated at ¢
Expenditure on maintenance and repairs is expenshkitk expenditure for betterments are capitalizBdpreciation is provided over 1
estimated useful lives of the applicable assetsgutie straightine method. Leasehold improvements are amortiaedt the shorter of tl
estimated useful life or the remaining term of lfese. The estimated years of depreciation of timeipal classes of assets are as follows:

Year
Buildings 33
Plant and equipment 5-2C
Catalyst 16
Furniture, fixtures and vehicles 4-1C

Shared power project under construction

The shared power project is stated at cost lesshhee of SABIC and its affiliates (collectivelyh& parties”)in the project. Initially, the tot
cost incurred for the shared power project is réedrby the Company and the share received fronpdhiées is reduced from the total ¢
incurred.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets anticipated to provide identiédinture benefits are classified as non-curresetss and are amortized using the straligiet-
method over their estimated useful lives. Suchigifales assets and their expected amortizatiomgerre as follows:

Employee home ownershi'HOP”) costs
Costs incurred in connection with the constructidremployee housing are capitalized with the relaassets and are amortized using
straight-line method over a period of five years.

Planned turnaround cos

Planned turnaround costs are deferred and amortized the period until the date of the next planttharound. Should an unexpec
turnaround occur prior to the previously envisadate of planned turnaround, then the previouslymortéized deferred costs are immedia
expensed and the new turnaround costs are amodiazdhe period likely to benefit from such costs.

Costs of implementation of SAP Enterprise ResoRl@ening System (“SAP ERP”)
As per the requirements of SABIC's unified accawniolicies, all costs relating to Farg#P ERP implementation are deferred and amoi
using the straight-line method over a period oé fjears.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviewsattiging amounts of its property, plant and equéptrand intangible assets to deterr
whether there is any indication that those assae suffered an impairment loss. If any such inéoaexists, the recoverable amount of
asset is estimated in order to determine the extietlite impairment loss (if any). Where it is naispible to estimate the recoverable amou
an individual asset, the Company estimates thevezable amount of the cash-generating unit to wthiehasset belongs.

9




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or @gerating unit) is estimated to be less thandtsy;mg amount, the carrying amount of the &
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverablount. Impairment losses are recognized asensg immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses;airging amount of the asset (cagimerating unit) is increased to the revised es#roi
its recoverable amount, but so that the increasegiog amount does not exceed the carrying amthatitwould have been determined ha
impairment loss been recognized for the asset {gashrating unit) in prior years. A reversal of axpairment loss is recognized as inct
immediately.

Production advances
Amounts received from affiliates in respect of ¢apadvances to finance tangible assets of the @asn@re included under namnxren
liabilities and are amortized over the estimategfuldives of the related assets using the strdigetmethod.

End-of-service indemnities
End-ofservice indemnities, required by the Saudi Arallédror law, are provided in the financial statemdystsed on the employees' lengt
service.

Employees' home ownership program
The Company has a home ownership program thatsoflegible Saudi employees home ownership oppdiasi

Unsold housing units constructed for eventual salkeligible employees are included under propgignt and equipment and depreciated
33 years.

When the houses are allocated to the employeesp#ieof houses constructed and sold to the emesoyader the program is transferred f
property, plant and equipment to other rumrent assets. Down payments and installmentsiah@ase price received from employees ar
off against the other non-current assets.

The cost of the houses and the related purchase isrremoved from other nanwrent assets when the title to the houses isfeared to th
employees, at which time, no significant gain @slis expected to result to the Company.

Employees' savings plan
The Company maintains an employee saving plan. ddmgributions from the participants are depositedai separate bank account
provision is established for the Company's contiisu

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability at the tiofieheir approval by the Board of Directors. literdividends are recorded as and w
approved by the Board of Directors.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated iatedBRiyals at the rates of exchange prevailintdatiime of the transactions. Monetary as
and liabilities denominated in foreign currenci¢she balance sheet date are translated to SaydisRat the exchange rates prevailing at
date. Gains and losses from settlement and trémslaf foreign currency transactions are includethe statement of income.

Zakat and income tax

The Company is subject to the Regulations of thpabtenent of Zakat and Income Tax ("DZIT") in thengdom of Saudi Arabia. Zakat ¢
income tax are provided on an accruals basis aadget to retained earnings. The zakat charge igpuetad at 2.5% on the zakat bas
adjusted net income, whichever is higher. Inconxeisacomputed at 20% of adjusted net income. Arffedince in the estimate is recon
when the final assessment is approved, at which tiva provision is cleared.

10




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

As per the requirements of the standard issuedéystudi Organization for Certified Public Accoumsa zakat and income tax provisions
mixed companies are presented as a separate itéra giatement of partners' equity. Any amount lnéttl or recovered from partners towe
zakat and income tax is added back to the partequsty.

By-product sales
Sales of by- products are credited to cost of sales.

Technology and innovation
Technology and innovation costs are expensed wienried.

Leasing

Leases are classified as capital leases whenegetetims of the lease transfer substantially alihef risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as opegridimses. Rentals payable under operating leasesharged to income on a straigine basi:
over the term of the operating lease.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, demandsitepand fixed term deposits with maturities afeth months or less from the date
acquisitions. At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , eashcash equivalents are as follows:

201z 2011

SR 00C SR 00(

Cash and bank balances 175,59: 114,09
Time deposits 243,75( 281,25(
419,34: 395,34(

Cash and bank balances at December 31, 2012 inelagyees saving plan deposits held in a sepheatie account of SR 5.0 million ( 2011
SR 5.0 million ), which are not available to thenGaany.

4. INVENTORIES

201z 2011

SR 00( SR 00(

Finished goods 120,67: 130,88
Chemicals 31,05¢ 21,21
Spare parts and supplies 53,44( 36,15°
Goods in transit 34,85 13,47:
240,02: 201,72¢

Inventories at December 31, 2012 are shown nell@mfance for obsolescence of SR 12.3 million ( 208R 12.3 million). The spare pai
inventory primarily relates to plant and machinang, accordingly, this inventory is expected taibkzed over a period exceeding one year.

11




NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2012 2011
SR 00( SR 00(
Advances to related parties (note 15) 44,71 33,92¢
Prepayments 15,94 11,322
Others 5,211 11,59°
65,867 56,84«
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2012
Furniture
Plant an fixtures ant Constructiol
Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicle: in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2012 311,68: 2,264,30 171,12: 86,10( 161,57¢ 2,994,78:
Additions — 7,91¢ 98 1,23¢ 86,86 96,11
Transfers — 22,50( 1,55¢ 2,18( (26,239) —
Disposals — (15€) — — — (15€)
December 31, 2012 311,68: 2,294,56! 172,77 89,51¢ 222,20« 3,090,74!
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2012 224,27! 1,842,46. 121,44! 75,91 — 2,264,10
Charge for year 9,51¢ 79,15¢ 19,89: 2,691 — 111,25!
Disposals — (157) — — — (157
December 31, 2012 233,79 1,921,46! 141,33t 78,60¢ — 2,375,20:
Net book value
December 31, 2012 77,88¢ 373,09t 31,43¢ 10,91« 222,20« 715,53
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)

(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

2011

Cost

January 1, 2011
Additions

Transfers
December 31, 2011
Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2011
Charge for year
Transfers
December 31, 2011
Net book value

December 31, 2011

Furniture
Plant an fixtures ant  Constructiol

Buildings equipmer Catalys vehicle: in progres Total
SR 00( SR 00! SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
311,56¢ 2,187,05: 141,15 80,38t 35,61« 2,755,77
— 65,18: 27,09: 1,49¢ 145,10¢ 238,87!

113 12,07: 2,87¢ 4,221 (19,149 13¢
311,68: 2,264,30 171,12: 86,10( 161,57¢ 2,994,78
215,39¢ 1,747,79 68,85¢ 73,44¢ — 2,105,50
9,52¢ 94,66¢ 52,58 2,467 — 159,24
(64¢€) — — — — (64¢)
224,27! 1,842,46. 121,44! 75,91: — 2,264,10
87,40: 421,84. 49,67¢ 10,18} 161,57¢ 730,68

The Company has renewed its industrial land leageement with the Royal Commission for Jubail arahbu for a period of 10 ye:
commencing from 1 Jumada 'l, 1432H (April 5, 2011).

At December 31, 2012 and 201konstruction in progress mainly represents ciostsrred and advances paid in respect of catalyssing
units under construction, POM and the shared ppnaect.

POM project under construction

The POM project under construction at Decembe2812 amounted to SR 160.6 million (2011: SR 114il8am). This comprises of costs
incurred by the Company for the construction of @M plant and related facilities at Jubail India$t€ity, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Construction related costs at December 31, 20128ad , comprise of construction costs under varmgreements and directly attributable
costs to bring the asset to the location and camditecessary for it to be capable of operating inanner intended by the management.
Directly attributable costs mainly include employmmefits, licensing fees and engineering costs.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Shared power project under construction

During 2012, the Company entered into an agreeitientfront end engineering design phase) with SABI its affiliates for the shat
power project to facilitate the Company's POM peognd existing Methanol and MTBE plants. The totadt incurred, provisional share of
parties, share of the POM project, and cost atizifle to existing Methanol and MTBE plants recordecdonstruction in progress are
follows:

2012
SR 000
Total cost incurred for the shared power project 48,13.
Less: provisional share of the parties (40,037
Total cost attributable to the Company 8,10(
Share attributable to the POM project under corstn 7,54¢
Share attributable to existing Methanol and MTB&n$ 554

Agreement for next phase of the shared power projeger construction is currently under negotiatietween the Company and the parties.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2012
Employet
home Software
ownershi| Turnarouni developmer
costt costt costt Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2012 5,87 269,71¢ 18,96: 294,55!¢
Additions — 21,93% — 21,93°
December 31, 2012 5,87 291,65¢ 18,96: 316,49¢
Accumulated amortization
January 1, 2012 3,752 210,11¢ 17,58¢ 231,45:
Charge for the year 1,17t 49,17: 161 50,50¢
December 31, 2012 4,927 259,28t 17,74¢ 281,96:
Net book value
December 31, 2012 95( 32,36¢ 1,215 34,53
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

2011
Employet
home Software
ownershi| Turnarouni developmer
costt costt costt Total
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Cost
January 1, 2011 4,35¢ 218,65: 17,58t 240,591
Additions 1,51¢ 51,067 1,37¢ 53,96!
December 31, 2011 5,871 269,71 18,96 294,55¢
Accumulated amortization
January 1, 2011 2,12¢ 182,14t 17,58t 201,86
Charge for the year 1,62 27,97( — 29,59:
December 31, 2011 3,75 210,11¢ 17,58t 231,45:
Net book value
December 31, 2011 2,12¢ 59,60t 1,37¢ 63,10¢
8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
2012 2011
SR 00( SR 00(
Employee home ownership receivables 15,62 19,48t
Others 1,78( 1,43¢
17,40: 20,92

9. BANK FACILITIES

The Company has bank facilities amounting to SRA&Tillion from a local commercial bank for overftrahort term loans, letters of cre
guarantees etc. and bearing interest at commeatéd. The amount utilized at December 31, 2012uaed to SR 24.9 million (2011: Nil).

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

2012 2011

SR 00( SR 00!

Trade accounts payable 11,54: 11,12t
Due to related parties (note 15) 59,37¢ 28,83¢
70,917 39,96«
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

11. ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

2012 2011
SR 00( SR 00(
Suppliers' accruals (note 15) 406,83t 408,19!
Technology and innovation costs (note 14,15) 1,55 1,331
Zakat and income tax (note 13) 117,87 141,88
Withholding tax 14,40: 14,32t
Others 30,17¢ 12,32
570,85: 578,06«
12. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
2012 2011
SR 00( SR 00(
End-of-service indemnities 106,44 107,76l
Employees' savings plan (note 17) 9,551 9,55¢
Employees' early retirement — 2,94¢
Other deferred credits 5,68 6,30¢
121,68 126,57:
The movement in end-of-service indemnities provis®as follows:
2012 2011
SR 00( SR 00(
January 1 107,76( 96,24
Additional provision for the year 14,80¢ 14,66¢
Utilization of provision (16,119 (3,159
December 31 106,44 107,76(

Other deferred credits represent capital advareeswed from two affiliated companies for their ghaf the capital cost of a commonly u
Truck Loading Facility which is owned and managgdhe Company. These advances are being amortizedame over a period of twel
years, which approximates the period over whichréheted assets are depreciated by the Com|
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

13. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

The principal elements of the zakat base are &sifsi

Non-current assets
Spare parts and supplies
Non-current liabilities
Opening partners' equity
Dividends paid

Net income

Some of these amounts have been adjusted in @ratithe zakat charge for the year.

The movement in zakat and income tax provisiorsifolows:

Zakat

January 1

Provision for the year

(Over)/under provision for the prior year
Payments during the year

December 31

Income tax

January 1

Provision for the year

(Over)/under provision for the prior year
Payments during the year

December 31

The charge for the year for zakat and income tas i®llows:

Zakat for the current year

(Over)/under provision of zakat for the prior year
Income tax for the current year

(Over)/under provision for income tax for the pry@ar

Charged to retained earnings

201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00!
767,47 814,71( 743,02

53,44( 36,15' 80,95:
121,68( 126,57 111,38:

1,226,62  1,148,37°  1,235,86

2,161,290 184599  1,368,13

2,505,68 2,179,220  1,460,07!

201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00!
28,60 19,80¢ 16,49:
33,04 28,60: 19,80¢
(13) (52) 4C
(28,58¢) (19,759 (16,53%)
33,04 28,60" 19,80¢
201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00!
113,28 53,31¢ 14,94:
254,60 226,38t 150, 74(
(23) 56 8,84¢
(283,03) (166,479 (121,21)
84,83: 113,28( 53,31¢
201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00!
33,04 28,60: 19,80¢
(13) (52) 4C
254,60 226,38t 150, 74(
(23) 56 8,84¢
287,61 254,99 179,43
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Outstanding assessments
Zakat and income tax assessments have been fishalide DZIT up to 2004.

During 2012, the DZIT has withdrawn the 2004 assesd. The DZIT demanded the Company to pay SR 1a8%hal settlement for the 2C
assessment which was paid by the Company during.201

During 2011, the DZIT issued assessments for thesy2Z005 and 2006 demanding additional incomeziat, delay fine and withholding tax
amounting to SR 6.4 million. Additionally, durin@®2, the DZIT issued revised assessments for thes @905 and 2006 demanding additic
income tax, zakat, delay fine and withholding tenoanting to SR 7.9 million. The Company is currgméviewing the additional assessment
received for the years 2005 and 2006.

Additional liabilities that may become payable onoection with zakat, income taxes, delay fines evgls related to the appeals will be b
by the partners of the Company.

The DZIT did not issue assessments for the year dBvards as these years are in process by the.DZIT

14. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2012 2011 201¢(

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Employee benefits 11,10¢ 7,68¢ 5,60z
Technology and innovation (note 15) 9,99¢ 10,24¢ 8,28:
Depreciation 221 10 1C
Other 4,117 2,28: 2,441
25,43¢ 20,22: 16,33t

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Product sales are made to the Marketer. Tradevaduess at December 31, 2012 and 2011 mainly represeeivables from the Marketer.

Certain feedstock material is purchased from thegted parties. During 2012 such feedstock matguathased amounted to SR 17.9 mil
(2011: SR 15.5 million) (2010: SR 15.6 million).

By-product sales are made to the related partieen® 2012 by-product sales amounted to SR 100l8&m{2011: SR 82.8 million) (2010: SR
51.0 million).

All procurement services, including warehousingngporting and arranging for delivery of materiskated to the Company's spare p
supplies and materials are provided by SABIC urttierterms of the procurement services agreemeerezhtoetween the Company
SABIC. Procurement services are provided by SABI@ugh the Shared Services Organization (SSO). SABlarged the Company SR
million in 2012 ( 2011 : SR 5.8 million) ( 2010 RSt.7 million) as procurement services fees.

Advances to the related parties included undemratieeivables and prepayments represent advan&S3Qo

In addition to procurement services, SSO provigesanting, human resources, information technoleggineering, and other general ser
to the Company. The total amount charged in respietttese services was SR 13.0 million in 2012 11220 SR 9.9 million) ( 2010 SR 8.¢
million).

SABIC Terminal Services Limited (Sabtank) providégpping and material handling services to the Camgp The total service
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

fee charged by the related party in this respectuared to SR 12.7 million in 2012 (2011 : SR 7iBiom) ( 2010 : SR 6.0 million).

The partners also provide the Company with certeiquired technical, research and development, asirdtive and other services
accordance with executed agreements. The Companyp fA@chnology and Innovation Service agreemerit @ABIC, under which SABI
provides research and development services to tmp@ny. The Company is required to pay an annwalufeder the agreement, whicl
calculated at one percent of Methanol sales pledesser of US $1 million or one percent of MTBEesaA summary of the amounts char
by the partners is as follows:

201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
SABIC - for technology and innovation services 9,99t 10,24t 8,28:

During 2012 , related parties incurred SR 13.4iamill( 2011: SR 29.4 million) (2010: SR 12.2 million) in rdlat to the POM and the sha
power project which is reimbursable on an actualsa

During 2012, the Company charged SABIC SR 12.5iomil(2011: Nil) (2010: Nil) on account of SABIC'sa&e in common utilities of tl
POM project under construction.

Suppliers' accruals included under accrued and atireent liabilities include amounts payable te thlated parties amounting to SR 21.7
million (2011: SR 4.8 million) (2010: SR 5.5 milt.

16. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

201z 2011 201C
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Charges under operating leases recognized as ansxpluring the year 15,74¢ 7,63¢ 6,20¢

Operating lease charges represent rentals payaileliicles, properties and land. Rentals are fatettie start of each lease term for a peric
4 years for vehicles and 1 to 2 years for propertie

17. EMPLOYEES' SAVING PLAN

The Company administers a saving plan coveringtanbally all of the Company's employees. Partitimpemployees may elect to contrik
1 to 15 percent of their basic salary. The Compaajches cumulative employee contributions at awdieh increases by 10 percent each
until completion of ten years of participationvatich time Company's cumulative contributions eghal employee's cumulative contributic
The Company's contributions to the saving plareacgued monthly and are not funded.

Employees are always fully vested in their contiitiu The employees are fully vested in the Comfsaagcruals generally after one yee
participation in the plan. Employees may withdrdagit contribution at any time under certain comuatii, and have the option to repay ¢
withdrawals. All fully vested amounts are payaldehie employees upon retirement or terminationasfigipation in the plan. Upon complet
of ten years participation in the plan, Saudi emeés may elect to continue their participationoocallect all fully vested amounts and to re
the plan as if for the first time.

18. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Regulations for Companies indBAuabia, the Company has established a statutsgrve by appropriation of 10% of
income until the reserve equaled 50% of the shapéal. This reserve is not available for dividendstribution.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

19. RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments carried on the balance spaetipally include cash and cash equivalents, astoreceivable from related parties
other receivables, accounts payable and accruedthrdcurrent liabilities.

Credit Risk is the risk that one party will fail to dischards obligation and will cause the other party touina financial loss. Receivables
generally from related parties. Cash is substaytihced with banks with sound credit ratings. deraccounts receivable are carried ni
provision for doubtful debts, if any.

Interest Rate Riskis the risk that the value of financial instrumewi§ fluctuate due to changes in the market interates. The Company |
no significant interest bearing long term assetgabilities.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difftguin raising funds to meet commitments associatéth financia
instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an iilép to sell a financial asset quickly at an ambufose to its fair value. Liquidity risk
managed by monitoring on a regular basis thatdafit funds are available to meet any future commaitts.

Currency Risk is the risk that the value of financial instrumewili fluctuate due to changes in foreign excharges. Management monit
the fluctuations in currency exchange rates andages their effect on the financial statements aliogly.

Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be excharued liability settled between knowledgeable wdl parties in an arm's leng
transaction. As the Company's financial instrumanéscompiled under the historical cost conventibfierences can arise between their k
values and fair value estimates. Management bali¢ghvat the fair value of the Company's financiale#s and liabilities are not materi:
different from their carrying values.

20. CONTINGENCIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company was contingently liable for bank gusges issued on behalf of the Company in the noomatse of business amounting to
2.0 million (2011 : SR 2.0 million) (2010 : Nil).

At December 31, the Company had the following @gibmmitments:

201z 2011 201(
SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(
Commitments for acquisition of property, plant awiipment 234,88 136,81! 172,38l

21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain prior year figures have been reclassifeddnform with the current year's presentation.hSueclassifications have no impact on
Company's net income and the partners' equity.

22. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BY THE SAUDI
ORGANIZATION FOR CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (SAUD | GAAP) AND GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THE UNITED STATES (US GAAP )

The Company is a Saudi limited liability companygistered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and prepatefinancial statements in accorde
with Saudi GAAP. Saudi GAAP varies in certain regfperom US GAAP. The material differences betwaenounting principles, practic
and methods under Saudi GAAP and US GAAP and #féect on net income and partners' equity for tearg ended December 31, 2012
2011 and 201@re presented below, with an explanation of thesidjents. There are no material effects on thenbalaheets or the statems
of cash flows under Saudi GAAP for the purposereobnciliation to US GAAP. In addition, comprehasmsincome under Saudi GAAP is
same as net income.
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NATIONAL METHANOL COMPANY (IBN SINA)
(A SAUDI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(a) Reconciliation of net incomi

2012 2011 201¢(

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Net income under Saudi GAAP 2,505,68: 2,179,22! 1,460,07

Adjustments:

(i) Zakat and income tax (287,61.) (254,99() (179,43)

(ii) Deferred tax 11,01t 6,07( 6,14(

(iif) Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of\gee indemnities (14,33) 337 2,881

(iv) Other (43%) 3,04« (1,016

Net income under US GAAP 2,214,32 1,933,691 1,288,64
(b) Reconciliation of partners' equity

2012 2011 201¢(

SR 00( SR 00( SR 00(

Partners' equity under Saudi GAAP 1,283,40. 1,226,62. 1,148,37

(ii) Deferred tax 23,07¢ 12,06: 5,99:

(iif) Actuarial valuation adjustments for end of\see indemnities (98,98¢) (78,757 (31,48

(iv) Other (9,209 (8,779 (11,81)

Partners' equity under US GAAP 1,198,28 1,151,16. 1,111,07.

(c) Summary of reconciling items to US GAAI

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Zakat and income ta

Under Saudi GAAP, companies with both Saudi aneifpr shareholders (commonly referred to as mixeshpamies) ai
required to present income tax and zakat as a aeplme item in the statement of partners' equitgywever, under US GAA
income tax and zakat are viewed as expenses a#ibileuto the Company's operations. Accordinglgpme tax and zakat ¢
recognized in the statements of income.

Deferred tax

The Company has not recognized deferred incomerder Saudi GAAP. Under US GAAP, deferred tax asaptl deferred ti
liabilities are recognized for future tax conseqremnof events, which have been recognized in aty'srftnancial statements
tax returns. The Company recognized deferred tagtasnd liabilities for the portion of temporaiffetences subject to incor
tax, that is, the portion of the taxable incomeilaitable to the foreign partner. Deferred tax tss@d liabilities attributable
zakat, which is also considered as a tax basedaamrie, are not material and, as such, have notreeended.

Actuarial valuation adjustment for end of service hdemnities (“EOSI”)

Under Saudi GAAP, the Company's EOSI obligatiorsaisulated as the current amount of the aggregeted benefits to whi
each employee is entitled, assuming each emplogdddft the Company at the balance sheet date. tHawander US GAAI
EOSI is deemed to be a defined benefit plan, aqdires recognition of a liability, known as projedtbenefit obligation, for ti
actuarial present value as of the balance sheetalatll benefits attributed by the benefit formtdaemployee services prior
that date. Since EOSI is unfunded, under US GAARility is recognized equal to the projected &obligation. Net period
pension costs comprise of service
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(iv)

costs, interest costs, and gains and losses. litiaddyains or losses that are not recognized idiately as a component of |
periodic pension cost are recognized as increasgsareases in other comprehensive income/lodsegsarise, and subsequel
amortized to income using the corridor approach.

Other
Other adjustments include the impact on net incame partners' equity primarily for intangible asseapitalized under Sat
GAAP which should be expensed under US GAAP, istdree loans to employees recorded at historical aoder Saudi GAA

that are recorded at amortized cost under US GAAd certain items of property, plant and equipmehictv are capitalize
under Saudi GAAP which should be expensed as iadwnder US GAAP.
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